
 

 
 

 

Please note that this meeting will be webcast. 
Members of the public who do not wish to appear 
in the webcast will be able to sit in the balcony, 

which is not in camera range. 

 

 
 
 
 

CABINET 
 

7.30 pm 
Wednesday 

24 September 2014 
Council Chamber - 

Town Hall 

 
Members 7: Quorum 4 
 
Councillor Roger Ramsey (Leader of the Council), Chairman 
 

 Cabinet Member responsibility: 

Councillor Damian White Housing 

Councillor Robert Benham Environment 

Councillor Wendy Brice-Thompson Adult Social Services and Health 

Councillor Meg Davis Children and Learning 

Councillor Osman Dervish Regulatory Services and Community Safety 

Councillor Melvin Wallace Culture and Community Engagement 

 
 

Andrew Beesley 
Committee Administration  Manager 

 
 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Grant Soderberg  tel: 01708 433091 

e-mail: grant.soderberg@onesource.co.uk 
 

Public Document Pack



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, except in 
circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

• filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

• using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at a meeting as it 
takes place or later; or 

• reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so that the report or 
commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary or report. This is 
to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 that they wish to 
report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable employees to guide anyone choosing to 
report on proceedings to an appropriate place from which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and walking around 
could distract from the business in hand. 
 

 
1 ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
 On behalf of the Chairman, there will be an announcement about the arrangements in 

case of fire or other events that might require the meeting room or building’s 
evacuation. 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 (if any) - receive 

 

3 DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  
 
 Members are invited to disclose any pecuniary interests in any of the items on the 

agenda at this point of the meeting. Members may still disclose a pecuniary interest in 
an item at any time prior to the consideration of the matter.  
 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2014, 

and to authorise the Chairman to sign them. 
 

5 THE COUNCIL'S FINANCIAL STRATEGY (Pages 7 - 312) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

6 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PHASE 2 PRIMARY SCHOOL EXPANSION 
PROPOSALS - RAINHAM (Pages 313 - 332) 

 

7 APPROVAL TO CONVERT 10600 STREET LIGHTS IN ROADS ACROSS THE 
BOROUGH TO MORE ENERGY EFFICIENT LED LIGHTS. 
 
 (Pages 333 - 340) 

 

8 BEAM PARK HOUSING ZONE PROPOSAL (Pages 341 - 352) 
 

9 THE FUTURE OF THE COUNCILS COMMERCIAL WASTE COLLECTION 
SERVICE (Pages 353 - 366) 

 

10 COUNCIL HOUSING NEW BUILD PROGRAMME (Pages 367 - 382) 
 

 
  
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�

�
��������	
������������������

����������������������������
����� ��!"�#���$%������&'()��

*+,#'���-,'.�$�/�
�

�
�

0�� ��%1�
�
���������	�
���	�
����������	���������������������	���
�

�
� ������%���������� $�� �����%!1�

���������	�
���	�������� ����	�������

���������	��������	�������� ���� !�����"�����"�	���������#�����

���������	�$���%���� �����	��������	�����

���������	�&����%�	����� 
������	��"�	�������������������
"�����

���������	�$������������ �����	���������������
����������

���������	�%���������� #�������

�
���������	�� ��	����� �		����� ����� #'���	��� !��(� %������ %���� %�	����
�'	�����������)���� �#�����*�����%	������$������%������	�����+�����)�	����
���"������*����������������,�
�
���	��'�	����	��������	��������� ���������� 	����	� 	���������� 	�����,�
�
���	��'�	�������������	������ �����	������	���,�
�
�������	-���������������������	������������������������� 	�����	����������
��������������	������
�
.������ ����	'���� ���������� ��� ���������� '�	�� �	���� ����������� '������� ���
$����	�������������,�
�
�������	���'�������������� 	���������������������������'�����������������
������� �������� ��	� $�-�� "�	����	� �#��� ��� /������ 0� )	���	������� '��� '��
	���	�����������	������ �������	 �	���)������0�����������$���	��'���'��
�������#��	��������-��� �� ���������������(���������������,�
�

&�� ������ ��� $����	��� ���� ���	��� ���-��� ����� ����� ��	� ����	� �����������
 	������������� ��� ��  �	�� ��� '������ ����� ����� '���� ��	� ���� ����	�,� � ������
�����������'�	������	�������������,�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 4

Page 1



������%"�#���$%������&'()�

�
�

�

�

1� ���������
�
�����������������������������������23�4����5367�'�	���	���������		����
	���	�����'�	�������������������	���
�
�

63� ��2�3	��4��	������	����56��
�������5���3����7��
�
����������	
����	
�����	������	������	���	�����	����������	���	������		
�
���� ��		���� �������� ��	������'�����'�� ��������� ��� ��	���� � 	�������
������� ��� ����� �������� '����� ����� ��� �� ���� ��	���� 5367869,� � �����
��	����� ��� �	���� ������� ���� �������� ��� ��	���� � ����������� �������
� �� 	��������� �	��� 	������� :���	������ �������� �� '���� �� � 	���� ���
 	����	��,��!�� 	�������	� �	��������������������������������	��'����-����
���������	���	�������������������� ����������	���������������������������
������������������ ������������������������(����	;��:���	������������
���� ��-�������� '�� ���� �(������� ����	���� ����	��� '����� ��������,� � ����
����	��������������� �������������'�������������	����'���	�����������
 �������� �������	����� 	�������,�
�

���� 	� �	�� ����	��$����	�� ���� ���� 	������� ��-�	����� �	��� ���� ��		����
��	������ �������	� '���� �� � ���� ��� ������� ������ ������ ���������� ����
$	���������,��<�����������������-�	���������	�������������������	������
����	��������� �������	����������� �����������;�����������������(�� ��� ����
������ ����� ��� � ��'� ������� ��	����,� � $����	�� '�	�� ����	���� ����
 	� �������	������������;������	����	�����'�	��������������������� ������
	� �	�����������'��������	���		����������������=����������������&��	���'�0�
"�	���������������������	����	���������������'�������� �����,�
�

�������'�� 	�������� ����'������ ��� ����� ���� ��� ��	������ ���� 	�� ���
���� ���� ��� ���� ��		���� ������ '�	�� � ��� ��� ������� ���� ����� ��	� ����
������ ����� ��� � ��	����� '�� >����� ���	,� � ���� 	� �	��  	������� �������
'������-�	���������	���������������		������������ ����������� 	���	��	�
�������������������!�������	����;�� 	� ��������������	����,�
�
3�� �� �8���%���4��� ����
�

<�� '�� ��������� ���� ���� �������;�� �������� ��	����� ���-� ���� ������� ���
:���	������ ���������������	����	�������	��'��	��������'�	����-�������
������ �� ������ �����������;�� �������� �������,� ����� 	� �	���������� ����
��-�	����� ��� ���� �������;�� ��������  �������� ��� ���� ������� ������� � �
 	�=�������� �� �  	���	��	� ��� ���� ������ ����� ��� � ����� ��	�� �������
��	����,������	� �	��'������������������	�������������'��  	� 	������
'	��������������(�����'�����������	������������������� ��,�
�
��%����%�9��	$%��� ���� �������
�

?���,�������������������	�>��	�������������� ���'	����������������������;��
������,�
�

Page 2



������%"�#���$%������&'()�

�
�

�

�

������%1�
�

��%��@�
�

6,� ���� �� ��� ��� ���� $	��� 5367� ������� ��� ���� �������;��
�������� �������,�

�

5,� ������-�	�������������������;����		������������ �����������
��'� ����� ��� �� ����� ��� ���� ������ ����� ��� ���� ����	��
���������	����,�

�

2,� ����  	�=������ ������� � � ��� '����� ���� ������ ����� ��� ����
���������	�����������������,�

�

7,� �$$��9������������������%���������������� ������������
	������� ������� ��	����� ��������� ���� ���� ��� !  ����(� �� ���
����
� �	�,��

�
�

66� �����	����56��
�������5���3����7��
�
����������	
����	
�����	������	������	���	�����	����������	���	������		
�
������� '�� ����	���� ���� ���� 	� �	�� ���� ���� ���� �������;�� ����� ��	��
����������	������������������� ��������������������	������������������
 	����	������	�������(�����	���	�,�
�

<�� ��������� � �������  	� ����� ��� �	����� ���� �������� � � ��	� ���� ��(�� �'��
��	��� '���� ��	���	�  	� ����� ���� '����� ����� ���� !����	���� ��'	��� �
����������	���	�������,�
�

<������	�������'���������������������� ��������� 	� �����������������	���
����	���������������������'�'�����������������!����	���A���������
��� 	���	������������� ����������� ��������������� �������	����������
��	������'�������  �	���� �� �����������'�������������������,�
�

!����������������'��	�� ������������	������'��������	������������	�������
��	������������'������	��	����-�� �������������������� �������'������	��
������������������	������	��������������	���	������������������������	�
���	������,�
�

�������'��	��������������� 	� �����'�����������=��������������� 	� �	�
������������� '���� ���������	��� ������ ��	����� ���	�� ��� ���� ����	��  ������
����	��������������������'�	�����,�
�
�
3�� �� �8���%���4��� ����

�

<�� '�� ��������� ���� ���� �������;�� �������� ��	����� ���-� ���� ������� ���
:���	������ ��������������	����	�������	��'��	��������'�	����-�������
���� �� �� ��� ��� ���� �������;�� ��������  �������,� � ���� 	� �	�� ���� ����
 	� ����� ��	� ���� �������;�� ������� ��	����� ��	� ���� ��(�� ���	� ��	�� ���
	��������������( ����������������:���	������  	�������	�����������������

Page 3



������%"�#���$%������&'()�

�
�

�

�

�������,������������������������������������	���������������� 	� ������
�����'����������������������� ����������������	�������������'��������
����������������'����������,�

�
��%����%�9��	$%��� ���� �������

�

?���,�������������������	�>��	�������������� ���'	����������������������;��
������,�
�
������%1�

�
6,� ��%��������	�����������		������ 	�=�������������� ��������

���� ������� ���'��������������������������������	��-��
���������'��������,�
�

5,� �:����� ���� ����� ��	�� �������� ��	������ ����	���� ����  �	����
�	���536986B����536C861������������������	� �	�,�
�

2,� ��%����������	��'���	�������	��-��������� ����������
��  	�� ��� ���� ������ ����� ��� ���� ����� ��	����� ��� ����
� �����'�������� 	�������������������������������	�,�
�

7,� ��%�������������	������ 	� ������	���&��	���'�0�"�	������
�	� �  �������� �	�� �� '����� ����� ��� ��� ���=���� ��� � 	������
	����'� ����	�� ����� ������ ��� �������	��� ��	� ���������� ��� ����
�������;���������������	���	�������������������� 	��	��������
��(�� �������� ��� ������� ��� 57��� "� �����	� ��� �	��	� ��� ���
�������	�����	�������������� �����������������,�
�

9,� ��� ������� ���� � ������ ������� ��	� ���� ����� �������� �(�
"�  �	�� "������ ��� �$$��9��� & ����� 6� ��� ���� ���� ���
!  ����(� �� ��� ���� 	� �	��� ��	� ������������ '���� ���� :	���	�
�������!����	����������	����� ���� �������������	� ����	������
 	����,�
�

B,� ��%��������	���������	 �	�����	�������'���������� �����
��� ���� ������� ��	����� ��� ������'����� ����� ��� ��� � �����
���  	��������	������,�
�

D,� 3�9������ ���� �������  	� ���� ��� ������� � ��	�� � ����
 	��	�������	�����E7�����	����=����������������	����'�
����������	���� ��,�
�

C,� �  ��������  	���������������	�������� 	� �����	�����	�
������� 	��������� ���&��	���'����"�	������ ����	��	� ��� ��������
  	� 	���������������,��
�

1,� �:����� ��� 	������� � ��	���	� 	� �	�� ��� ���� "� �����	� '��	��
��������� �	���&��	���'� ��� "�	������ '����� ��� �������	���
 	��	�����	�������������������� 	� �������	���	���������������
'���� ���� ����� ����������� ��-������	��� ����	� ����	������
�	�� �����������������,�
�

Page 4



������%"�#���$%������&'()�

�
�

�

�

63,� ��%��������������������"�������696�&�����	�������������	������
������,�

�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�

� ���������
�

�

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

 
CABINET 
24 September 2014 
 

 

Subject Heading: 
 

THE COUNCIL’S FINANCIAL 
STRATEGY 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Cllr Roger Ramsey 

CMT Lead: 
 

Andrew Blake-Herbert 
Group Director Resources 

Report Author and contact details: 
 

Mike Stringer 
Head of Finance & Procurement 
01708 432101 
mike.stringer@havering.gov.uk 

Policy context: 
 

The Council is required to approve an 
annual budget and to establish a financial 
strategy and this report is the next step in 
that process 

Financial summary: 
 

This report summarises the outcome of 
the initial consultation on specific financial 
proposals as part of the development of a 
long term financial strategy for the Council 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Is this a Strategic Decision? 
 

No 

When should this matter be reviewed? 
 

February 2015 

Reviewing OSC: 
 

Value 

 
The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 
 
Ensuring a clean, safe and green borough 
Championing education and learning for all 
Providing economic, social and cultural activity in thriving towns and 
villages 
Valuing and enhancing the lives of our residents 
Delivering high customer satisfaction and a stable council tax 

[X] 
[X] 
[X] 
 

[X] 
[X] 

 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
 
The report to Cabinet on 3 September 2014 set out the background to the 
development of the Council’s future budget strategy.  It also included a range of 
proposals to bridge a substantial budget gap over the coming four years.  These 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

proposals were considered at a joint meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees 
on 8 September. 
 

This report summarises the outcome of that meeting and recommends a final set of 
proposals, on which consultation will now commence.  The report also sets out as 
further background information the final outturn position for 2013/14, and the initial 
monitoring position for 2014/15, as this also informs the development of the strategy.  
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
Cabinet is asked to: 
 
1. Approve the final schedule of proposals, set out in Appendix A. 

 

2. Review any alternative proposals submitted and accepted by the Chief Finance 
Officer and agree their inclusion or omission within the consultation process. 

 

3. Agree that officers should commence consultation on these proposals. 
 

4. Note the specific consultation questions being asked in the consultation 
documents, set out in Appendices J, K, L and M. 
 

5. Agree the draft strategies for libraries and parking, set out in Appendices C and 
D, as part of the consultation process. 

 

6. Note the final outturn position for 2013/14 and the initial forecast for 2014/15. 
 

7. Note the proposed timetable for reviewing the outcome of the consultation 
process and the remainder of the budget cycle. 

 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 

 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The general financial background was set out in the previous report to Cabinet.  

This identified a potential budget gap over a four year period, starting in 
2015/16, of around £60m, although this was expected to reduce to around 
£45m, accepting the risks inherent with this scale of gap.  The report formed the 
first stage in the development of a future budget strategy for the Council. 

 

1.2 Set out in the report was a range of proposals designed to cover the majority of 
the forecast budget gap.  These proposals were considered by Cabinet, and 
then subsequently by a joint meeting of Overview & Scrutiny Committees 
(OSCs) on 8 September.  This report summarises the outcome of that review, 
and includes a final set of proposals, for Cabinet’s approval.  Consultation on 
these proposals will commence shortly.  The outcome of that process will be 

Page 8



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

taken into account when the more formal stages of the budget setting process 
are underway, in January and February 2015. 

 

1.3 As part of the background to the development of the budget strategy, it is 
important to reflect on the current financial position.  A summary of the outturn 
position for the year recently ended, 2013/14, and the initial monitoring position 
for the current year, 2014/15, are included in this report. 

 
2. OUTCOME OF INITIAL CONSULTATION 
 
2.1 As indicated above, a joint meeting of OSCs was held on 8 September and the 

proposals contained in the previous report to Cabinet were subject to scrutiny. 
 

2.2 A range of comments and queries were raised on the report and the proposals 
set out within it.  The draft notes of the meeting are set out in Appendix G. 
Although there were a considerable number of issues discussed, no explicit 
alternative proposals were put forward at the meeting.  The Administration 
therefore proposes to now initiate formal consultation on its budget proposals, 
as set out later in the report.  Further details on the consultation process are set 
out later in this report in Section 5. 
 

2.3 The final schedule of proposals is now set out in Appendix A; this schedule is 
now recommended to Cabinet for approval.  The relevant draft Equalities 
Impact Assessments (EIAs) have now been completed and these are attached 
at Appendix B.  Consultation with relevant groups, including the local 
community, interested stakeholders, staff and unions, will now commence.  
Final versions of the EIAs will be produced as part of the budget finalisation 
process in January. 

 

2.4 As indicated in the previous report to Cabinet, a number of Council strategies 
will need to be refined to reflect the budget proposals.  Two of these strategies 
have been revised and draft documents are set out for them, for approval as 
part of the consultation process, as follows: 

 

• Appendix C Draft Parking Strategy 

• Appendix D Draft Libraries Strategy. 
 

2.5 In addition, further details of the Council Tax Support Scheme are set out in 
Appendix E for Cabinet’s information.  Consultation on the scheme will be run 
in parallel with the remainder of the consultation process, but as explained at 
the OSC meeting and elsewhere in this report, the new scheme needs to be 
approved by Full Council by 31st January.  The proposed Havering scheme 
would, if approved, bring us in line with the schemes in neighbouring boroughs. 
 

2.6 It is open to Opposition groups to propose changes to the Administration’s 
proposals, and to submit alternatives.  These were due to be submitted by 
Monday 15th September and any such proposals will be included in a 
supplementary paper, for consideration by Cabinet at this meeting.  Cabinet will 
be asked to consider whether to include those alternative proposals as well as 
those set out in the attached documents, subject to confirmation from the 
Group Director Resources (the Chief Finance Officer) that he considers the 
proposals to be robust and financially viable and that the budget would remain 

Page 9



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

balanced, and to his advice on the impact any proposals would have on Council 
balances in subsequent years. 

 

2.7 In agreeing these proposals, Cabinet is asked to be mindful of the advice of the 
Chief Finance Officer (CFO), which was set out in the previous report, and the 
revenue budget strategy statement, which was agreed at the last meeting.  The 
Council needs to put in place a new long-term budget strategy, given the 
potential scale of the budget gap it is facing.  It is the view of the CFO that 
approving the current proposals, coupled with a further report in the summer of 
2015, will place the Council in a financially robust position.  There is a 
significant lead-in time with many of the proposals and it was not felt prudent to 
delay bringing an initial strategy to Cabinet beyond summer 2014. 
 

2.8 The projected budget gap is, as discussed at the last meeting, a best estimate 
forecast.  Clearly, circumstances may and almost certainly will change, not the 
least with the next General Election coming ever closer.  However, the sheer 
scale of the gap has made the early development of a new strategy essential, 
and the Administration firmly believes its adoption at this point in time is critical 
to maintain essential services but also to provide financial stability.  Containing 
the gap at the lower level of £45m will require considerable effort, and the risk 
remains that this gap could conceivably be bigger.  The Council’s financial 
strategy needs to be mindful of this. 
 

2.9 Looking beyond the General Election, the likelihood is that some things will be 
the same but others will change significantly and probably very quickly.  The 
current Coalition Government has pursued a very clear fiscal policy which has 
resulted in significant funding cuts for local government.  All the indications are 
that there will be continued downward pressure on funding for local 
government, regardless of whether there is a change in government in May 
2015 or not.  That in turn means that there are likely to be implications for local 
government funding of a change in government. 
 

2.10 Most obviously, some current funding streams would cease very quickly.  New 
Homes Bonus is an obvious example of funding that rewards local authorities in 
the south east with a growing population, and is unlikely to survive a change in 
government, which explains the prudent approach the Council has taken to its 
treatment in the base budget.  Other changes might be less high profile but 
would certainly move funding around the country: for example the assumed 
council tax in the system is set to be 34% below the actual level in 2015/2016 
and a correction would be highly redistributive.  And the balance of funding 
between adult social care and health could change to respond to policy 
development and political change.  These issues simply underline the 
importance of developing and implementing a long term strategy. 
 

2.11 Whilst final decisions are taken at the budget and tax setting in February, these 
proposals are based on the assumption that there would be an increase in 
Council Tax of 2% in 2015/16.  Should any alternative proposals be put forward 
that would require a higher Council Tax rise, under current rules, this would 
necessitate the holding of a referendum.  Cabinet is asked to be mindful that 
such a process would cost at least £250k, and may require the Council to 
reissue every Council Tax bill, if a Council Tax rise was to be rejected, with the 
risk of confusing residents over their payments and inevitably introducing 

Page 10



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

delays in payments and recovery action.  A proposal to raise Council Tax has 
however been included within the consultation process to gauge residents’ 
views on such a step. 
 

2.12 The previous report to Cabinet highlighted a number of issues, including the 
ELWA levy.  There was a major fire at the main site at Frog Island and this is 
likely to disrupt service provision for a considerable period of time.  This in turn 
is likely to impact on the ELWA levy.  ELWA is currently reviewing its forward 
projections and once these have been properly assessed, the position will be 
reported to the Authority and the constituent councils.  Should there be an 
adverse impact, this will be reported to Cabinet accordingly.  It is however 
believed at this stage that any additional costs will be covered by insurance.  
This therefore represents an additional area of risk in formulating the budget 
strategy, albeit likely to be a minor one. 
 

2.13 The Council is also considering increasing the Council Tax level applied to 
empty properties and a motion has been proposed to Full Council seeking 
agreement to the application of an empty house premium on empty households 
above the standard Council Tax rate.  This motion was due to be debated at 
the Council meeting on 17th September. 

 
3. PROVISIONAL OUTTURN POSITION FOR 2013/14 AND MONITORING 

POSITION FOR 2014/15 
 

3.1 As part of the development of the future financial strategy, due account needs 
to be taken of the position in both the previous and current financial years.  
These are summarised below. 

 
Outturn Position 2013/14 

 

3.2 The last forecast reported to Cabinet was set out in the February report, as part 
of the formal budget setting process.  This covered the most recent revenue 
monitoring reports for periods 7 and 8, October and November.  These were 
exception-only reports; for period 7, this showed an increase in the service 
overspend to around £1.4m, whilst the period 8 report showed a further 
increase to around £1.5m.  Neither of these forecasts took into account the 
position around the Collection Fund or with corporate finances, such as the 
Contingency Fund.  These are not generally declared until year end, once all 
other issues have been identified and dealt with. 
 

3.3 The last monitoring report for the year, period 11, indicated an overall 
underspend in the region of £7.5m.  The final position shown by the draft 
statement of accounts showed a final net underspend of £7.2m and this sum 
was transferred into earmarked reserves, as is customary.  This sum included 
around £5.2m in corporate finance issues and a further £1.4m unallocated 
contingency.  The outturn report, including service narratives on all variances in 
excess of £25k, is set out at Appendix F. 
 

3.4 The net service underspend was less than £600k, and there were four material 
adverse variances, as follows: 
 

• Regulatory Services, £213k; principally shortfall in income 

Page 11



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

• Customer Services, £215k; mainly slippage in delivery of planned 
savings 

• Adults Services £505k; pressures arising from demand for services 

• Special Educational Needs (SEN) £571k; increase in number of children 
plus overspend on transport services. 

 

3.5 The first of these was already provided for within the 2014/15 budget, and the 
second is still expected to be achieved.  The third and fourth are reflected in the 
assessment of demographic growth allowed for within the current budget but 
would be reviewed as part of the development of the future budget strategy and 
against the current year. 

 

3.6 There were a number of service underspends as well and these are also set 
out in the Appendix.  These arise in the main from measures taken to 
compensate for the over-spends referred to above, though there was also a 
significant underspend within Exchequer Services of around £700k.  This arose 
from the benefits subsidy account; whilst this is a material sum, it needs to be 
seen in the context of an overall throughput of over £100m.  It is not felt prudent 
to assume future surpluses as part of the base budget, owing to the degree of 
volatility in this area. 
 

3.7 The corporate underspend including a special budget provision of £3m, created 
as part of the budget setting process for 2013/14.  These funds were intended 
to act as a safeguard to the Council from any adverse consequences arising 
from the major changes to the funding system introduced in that year, which 
were set out in the background report to the previous Cabinet meeting.  This 
was felt to be a significant area of risk, hence the creation of the provision.  
Events subsequently have meant that this provision was not drawn on during 
the year, and thus appears as an underspend, and with the funding system now 
reasonably well-stabilised – though not without risk – this provision has since 
been removed from the budget. 

 

3.8 The outturn position included around £10m in funds carried forward.  These are 
detailed in the report but this includes nearly £4m from NHS funding and a 
further £1m from public health.  The final position also indicates that earmarked 
reserves now stand at around £45m, although this sum has fallen from the 
previous year.  These funds all have a designated purpose and are not 
otherwise available to offset the budget gap, although the Council’s budget 
strategy precludes the use of reserves to balance the budget, as this simply 
creates a problem for future years.  The CFO’s advice is that it is not prudent to 
use one-off funds as a means of balancing the Council’s budget strategy. 
 

3.9 Whilst the Council’s balance sheet now includes around £10m in general 
reserves and £45m in earmarked reserves, these are all one-off funds and can 
thus only be deployed once.  The general reserves level, as well as the 
contingency level, is based on a risk-assessed calculation and this is set out in 
the February report to Cabinet, and also reflects the broad views of the 
Council’s external auditor.  Earmarked reserves are more volatile, as the 
balance not only reflects the Council’s financial performance, it also reflects the 
reasons why such reserves are required.  For the purposes of clarity, set out 
below in the table is a brief explanation of the main areas of reserves included 

Page 12



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

within the Council’s accounts, and the relevant note from the 2013/14 accounts 
listing the details of earmarked and general reserves has been included at 
Appendix H: 
 

Item Definition 

General Reserves Councils are expected to set a minimum level of 
reserves for which an authority must provide in 
setting its budget. These are known as general 
balances.  The minimum would apply to “controlled 
reserves”, as defined in regulations. This excludes 
reserves that are not under the authority’s control 
when setting its call on council tax, for example the 
balance on the housing revenue account and 
schools balances.  

Earmarked Reserves An earmarked reserve is a sum set aside to fund 
known items of anticipated expenditure for which 
the liability is not chargeable to the current year's 
accounts.  The Council holds a number of these, 
the most significant of which are for the Corporate 
Transformation programme, funds to deliver 
strategic projects, insurance claims, capital bridge 
funding and invest to save resources.  This differs 
from the general reserves, as they have no explicit 
designated purpose, and contingency, as that is for 
unforeseen circumstances 

Contingency The contingency fund enables the Council to fund 
costs arising from unforeseen issues, such as 
emergencies.  Although the fund lies within the 
base budget, use can only be made of the fund for 
one-off expenditure.  This would include major 
incidents, which could include inclement weather 

 

3.10 Whilst the year-end balance is considerable, a large element of this relates to 
specific grant funding (for Public Health and Better Care), totalling nearly £10m, 
and these can only be used for designated purposes.  Nearly £9m is being held 
for future capital schemes and a further £4m relates to the Council’s insurance 
fund. There is around £15m within the strategic reserve, of which around £8m 
currently has not yet been explicitly earmarked for use.  However, the level of 
future redundancy costs coupled with costs arising from further transformational 
changes to Council services will mean these funds will be required.  They will 
not therefore be available for other purposes in any event.  The earmarked 
reserves balance is therefore expected to diminish significantly over the current 
and following financial years. 
 
 
 
 
Current Monitoring Position 2014/15 

 

Page 13



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

3.11 The initial revenue monitoring report for the year, as at period 3 (June), has 
been produced.  This is the first review of the financial position for the year and 
sets out the forecast position in detail.  Any variance exceeding £25k is 
included in the report. 
 

3.12 It is essential that the development of a long term financial strategy takes due 
account of the position in the current year.  In particular, any variances likely to 
have an impact beyond the current year need to be considered against future 
savings proposals and demographic growth, as well as the other factors 
included in the assessment of the budget gap. 

 

3.13 The monitoring report is set out in Appendix G and indicates an overall 
overspend of just above £2m.  The main elements of these are as follows: 
 

• Children’s Services £829k; mainly due to an increased in the number of 
looked after children and placements costs 

• Learning & Achievement £638k; due to SEN transport costs, this follows 
on from a similar level of overspend in 2013/14, as indicated above 

• Adult Services £478k; this is due to placement activity in Learning 
Disabilities, pressures within the Preventative Services, and Dreywood 
Court. 
 

3.14 At this moment in time, the adverse variances within the three social care areas 
are felt to be containable in the longer term.  This however is not without a 
degree of risk.  It is intended to undertake a fundamental review of transport 
services and this will include the SEN functions as well. 

 

3.15 The forecast position takes no account of any potential draw-down or under-
spend from the corporate contingency fund or corporate provisions.  Whilst 
these are monitored throughout the year, they would not normally be declared 
until year end. That said, the Council’s financial capacity has been eroded over 
time, with the ongoing funding cuts, and this position will inevitably continue into 
the future. 

 
4. NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 
 

4.1 The final budget proposals are set out in this report and are designed to deliver 
a balanced budget position over the next two financial years.  It will be 
necessary to refine the budget strategy in the light of the financial settlement 
announcements later this year – though these are not expected to show any 
material changes from the current position – and after the General Election, 
once the incoming Government sets out its spending plans in the 
Comprehensive Spending Review.   

 

4.2 A number of budget proposals require consultation and this will now be initiated 
as appropriate.  Consultation is scheduled to close on 29th December and the 
results will be analysed at that point.  The outcome from this process will be 
taken into account when the final budget proposals for 2015/16 are brought 
before Cabinet by the Administration in January 2015 for formal consultation.   
 

4.3 The position in the current year will continue to be monitored and the next 
major review, for period 6, the mid-year position, will be reported to Cabinet 

Page 14



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

around Christmas.  This will also take into account the details of the local 
government financial settlement, although it is not yet known when these will be 
announced.  Based on recent years, this may not be available until around 
December.  That said, given the two year announcement last year, it is unlikely 
there will be any material shift in funding. 
 

4.4 Due account will be taken of any responses to consultation on the final budget 
proposals and a formal recommendation will be put before Cabinet in February 
2015, prior to the Council Tax setting meeting later that month.  This will include 
the final detailed proposals, together with the overall budget and Council Tax 
level. 
 

4.5 The only difference to this timetable applies to the proposed Council Tax 
Support scheme.  This requires approval by Council by 31st January.  
Therefore, the final scheme proposals will be brought before Cabinet in 
January. 

 
5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 As indicated in the previous Cabinet report, the intention is to consult widely on 
the council’s proposed budget strategy and on the specific proposals within the 
strategy that require statutory consultation.  As some specific proposals require 
3 month consultation periods, in order to provide greater clarity and 
transparency, it is proposed that the general budget consultation also runs for 
the same 3 month period.  This will mean that consultation opens on Monday 
29th September 2014 and closes on Monday 29th December 2014.  The specific 
consultation documents are set out in Appendices J, K, L and M, together with 
the form the consultation will take. 
 

5.2 There will be a general consultation on the overall budget strategy asking for 
comments on the areas identified for protection and those identified for savings. 
Questions on residents’ priorities will be included. 
 

5.3 In respect of the Library Service and car parking, the council is consulting on 
revised strategies as well as asking for specific views about the options 
proposed in the budget strategy. These consultations will be statutory 3 month 
consultations. 
 

5.4 The Council is also consulting on the Council Tax Support Scheme and this 
consultation will run for the same 3 month period.  However, members should 
note that decisions about the Council Tax Support Scheme will need to be 
taken at the January Cabinet and Full Council meetings in order to meet the 
legal deadline for any changes to the scheme being enacted on 1st April 2015.  
The results of all of these case consultations will be reported back to the 
January Cabinet meeting. 
 

5.5 There will also be a 3 month consultation on the Council’s voluntary sector 
strategy.  Though there is not a requirement for a statutory 3 month 
consultation period for this, the Council has a compact with the voluntary sector 
that sets out a 3 month period as appropriate for consultation.  This 
consultation is targeted at the voluntary and community sector and so will not 
be a general public consultation.  Any specific changes to individual grants or 

Page 15



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

commissioned services will be subject to appropriate consultation at a later 
date.  The proposal to reduce funding to the voluntary and community sector is 
of course, included as part of the broad public consultation on the overall 
budget strategy. 
 

5.6 Proposals for reductions to the youth service also require statutory consultation.  
However, further mapping work is being undertaken prior to specific proposals 
being put forward for consultation.  Specific consultation on changes to the 
youth service will therefore be launched at a later date, probably in November 
2014.  There is no intention to shorten the overall 3 month consultation period 
for these specific proposals and so decisions on the youth service will run more 
slowly than for other savings. 
 

5.7 Some of the savings will require consultation with the Council’s staff.  In the 
case of those proposals that are the subject of statutory consultation, staff 
consultation will not commence until the statutory consultation is complete and 
final decisions taken.  For other savings, particularly where they involve internal 
reorganisations within the Council and savings proposals are timed to be 
delivered in the 2015/16 financial year, staff consultation will commence during 
November so that the ending of staff consultation will coincide with the end of 
public consultation.  In some case, where it is necessary to ensure savings are 
delivered in 2015/16, it may be necessary to complete restructure proposals 
and issue consultation notices in advance of the Council Tax setting meeting in 
February 2015.  These notices will be withdrawn if Council does not support the 
savings proposal. It should be stressed that only a small number of the 
proposals require staff consultation to this timescale. 
 

5.8 Cabinet is also asked to note that the LED lighting saving is still shown within 
the overall scope of the budget strategy but is being progressed ahead of the 
remainder of the savings due to the need to obtain the necessary capital 
funding loans for the Government.  

 
6. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
 

6.1 The outline capital programme was set out in the previous report to Cabinet.  It 
is now intended to develop a detailed programme at scheme level, within the 
overall sum proposed, and this will be brought back to Cabinet as part of the 
detailed budget proposals, in January.  This will be accompanied by an updated 
Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan. 
 

6.2 A separate report is included on the agenda for this meeting with respect to 
Street Lighting, as outlined in the previous report, and as indicated above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REASONS AND OPTIONS 

Page 16



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

 
 

Reasons for the decision: 
It is essential that the Council’s financial strategy takes due account of Government 
plans, and any other material factors where these are likely to have an impact on the 
Council’s financial position.  This report sets out proposals for the Council’s budget 
strategy for the next four years, and reflects the expected continued Government 
approach of reduced levels of funding.  The scale of these means  consideration of 
detailed proposals, followed by consultation and implementation, at an early stage 
following the local elections, is essential. 
 

Other options considered: 
None.  The Constitution requires this as a step towards setting the Council’s budget. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 
 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
 

The Council’s budget process will ensure that financial implications and risks are fully 
met.  There are continuing risks with the potential impact on funding arising from the 
continuing Government grant reductions, as highlighted in both this and the previous 
reports to Cabinet.  The steps already taken by the Council should mitigate this, but it 
is evident that a longer term approach now needs to be considered, as the potential 
scale of the future budget gap has proven to be even bigger than the gap the Council 
is currently addressing. 
 

There are considerable risks in the medium to longer term, with the continuing 
economic uncertainty as well as the likely impact of further funding changes.  The 
Council therefore needs to maintain a prudent approach over its financial 
management and the budget setting process. 
 
Legal implications and risks: 
 

The Council is subject to a number of duties in relation to revenue, capital and 
procurement.  For instance, as a Best Value Authority the Council is under a duty to 
“make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness." s 3 Local Government Finance Act 1999.  The Council is also under an 
implied duty to set a balanced budget. 
 

Case law has established that when consultation is undertaken it must be done at a 
time when final decisions have not yet been taken.  It is appropriate nevertheless to 
have a preferred option.  Consultees must have sufficient information and time to 
comment meaningfully.  Once the responses have been received they must be 
conscientiously taken into consideration before a final decision is taken.  There is 

Page 17



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

nothing within the Report to indicate any legal risk in putting the Budget and other 
proposals out to a 3 month consultation. 
 

Otherwise there are no apparent specific legal risks in adopting the Recommendations 
set out in the Report. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 

The Council continues to work closely with its staff and with Trades Unions to ensure 
that the effects on staff of the savings required have been managed in an efficient and 
compassionate manner.  
  

All savings proposals or changes to the funding regime that impact on staff numbers, 
will be managed in accordance with both statutory requirements and the Council's 
Managing Organisational Change & Redundancy policy and associated guidance 
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
 

There are no equalities implications or risks at this stage.  However any savings that 
need to be considered following publication of details of the Local Government 
Financial Settlement may carry equalities implications and risks and accordingly, 
these will need to be analysed. 
 
Other Risks: 
 

There are no particular other risks arising, other than a very short timescale to 
properly analyse the LGFS announcements whenever they eventually occur.  This is 
being planned for but much of the detail will have to await the final announcements 
and publication. 
 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 
There are none. 
 
 

Page 18



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A Savings Schedule and Templates 
Appendix B Draft Equalities Impact Assessments 
Appendix C Draft Parking Strategy 
Appendix D Draft Libraries Strategy 
Appendix E Summary of the proposed Council Tax Support Scheme for 2015 
Appendix F Outturn 2013/14 Report 
Appendix G Revenue Monitoring Report Period 3 2014/15 
Appendix H Earmarked and General Reserves 
Appendix I Notes from Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee Meeting 
Appendix J Consultation Document – Parking 
Appendix K  Consultation Document – Libraries 
Appendix L Consultation Document – Council Tax Support Scheme 
Appendix M Consultation Document – Budget Strategy 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX!A

Temp"!

late!

No.

Service HoS 15/16 16/17 Total

EFFICIENCIES

1 Economic!Development T!Dobrashian Development!Company 0.000 0.000 0.000

1 Economic!Development T!Dobrashian Other!Savings 0.000 0.000 0.000

1 0.000 0.000 0.000

2 Streetcare R!Wenman Street!Lighting (0.150) (0.100) (0.250)

2 Streetcare R!Wenman Efficiencies!Programme (0.050) (0.050) (0.100)

2 Streetcare!Template!Total! (0.200) (0.150) (0.350)

3 Communications M!Leech Events (0.045) 0.000 (0.045)

3 Communications M!Leech Communications:!Staffing!&!Structure 0.000 (0.030) (0.030)

3 (0.045) (0.030) (0.075)

4 Corporate!Policy!&!Community! B!Partridge (0.100) (0.250) (0.350)

5 Corporate!&!Customer!Transformation C!Woolf Information!Kiosk (0.100) 0.000 (0.100)

5 Corporate!&!Customer!Transformation C!Woolf Channel!Shift 0.000 (0.300) (0.300)

5 (0.100) (0.300) (0.400)

6 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson Retender!Sports!Leisure!Mgt!Contract 0.000 (0.200) (0.200)

6 Asset!Management M!Butler Stubbers 0.000 TBA 0.000

6 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson Music!School (0.100) (0.100) (0.200)

6 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson My!Place!Efficiencies 0.000 (0.050) (0.050)

6 (0.100) (0.350) (0.450)

7 Housing S!Witherspoon CCTV (0.045) 0.000 (0.045)

7 Housing S!Witherspoon Support!People!Commissioning (0.516) 0.000 (0.516)

7 (0.561) 0.000 (0.561)

8 Housing S!Witherspoon Private!Sector!Leasing (0.350) (0.150) (0.500)

8 Learning!&!Acheivement M!Pattinson Catering!(Schools!&!Meals!on!Wheels) (0.100) 0.000 (0.100)

8 (0.450) (0.150) (0.600)

9 Adults B!Nicholls Better!Care!Funding (2.500) 0.000 (2.500)

9 Adults B!Nicholls Older!People (0.500) (0.500) (1.000)

9 Adults B!Nicholls Royal!Jubilee!Court (0.200) (0.210) (0.410)

9 (3.200) (0.710) (3.910)

10 Adults B!Nicholls Adult!Social!Care (0.100) 0.000 (0.100)

10 Children's!Services K!Bundred Children's!Social!Care (0.100) (0.100) (0.200)

10 Learning!&!Acheivement M!Pattinson Children!&!Adults!Disability!(CAD) 0.000 (0.400) (0.400)

10 Homes!&!Housing S!Witherspoon Disabled!Facilities!Grant (0.110) 0.000 (0.110)

10 Adults B!Nicholls Workforce!Development! (0.300) 0.000 (0.300)

10 (0.610) (0.500) (1.110)

11 Adults B!Nicholls Younger!Adults (1.000) (1.450) (2.450)

12 oneSource!HR&OD C!Nugent Terms!&!Conditions 0.000 (0.500) (0.500)

13 oneSource!Exchequer!&!Transactional! S!Bryant Council!Tax!Support!Options (1.244) 0.000 (1.244)

EFFICIENCIES!TOTAL (7.610) (4.390) (12.000)

SERVICES

14 Streetcare R!Wenman Parking! (1.000) 0.000 (1.000)

15 Regulatory!Services P!Keyes Public!Protection:!Trading!Services (0.150) 0.000 (0.150)

15 Regulatory!Services P!Keyes Pet!Cemetery (0.010) (0.010) (0.020)

15 (0.160) (0.010) (0.170)

16 Corporate!Policy!&!Community B!Partridge HAVCO,!Accounting!for!Community!

Enterprise!Grant

(0.045) 0.000 (0.045)

16 Corporate!Policy!&!Community B!Partridge Voluntary!Sector!Review 0.000 (1.100) (1.100)

16 (0.045) (1.100) (1.145)

17 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson Library!Service 0.000 (1.138) (1.138)

17 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson Parks (0.100) (0.200) (0.300)

17 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson Queens!Theatre (0.100) (0.100) (0.200)

17 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson Fairkytes (0.100) 0.000 (0.100)

17 (0.300) (1.438) (1.738)

18 Culture!&!Leisure S!Parkinson Youth!Service!Redesign (0.250) (0.616) (0.866)

19 Children's!Services K!Bundred Early!Help!&!Troubled!Families (0.300) (0.300) (0.600)

SERVICES!TOTAL (2.055) (3.464) (5.519)

OVERALL!TOTAL (9.665) (7.854) (17.519)

Corporate!Policy!&!Community!Template!Total

Culture!&!Leisure!Template!Total

Culture!&!Leisure!Template!Total

Housing!Template!Total!

Income!Generation!Template!Total

Adults!Template!Total

Staffing!Template!Total

Regulatory!Services!Template!Total!

Corporate!&!Customer!Transformation!Template!Total!

CURRENT!SAVINGS!TEMPLATES!2015/16!"!2016/17

Papers!Checked!9th!September!2014

Economic!Development!Template!Total

Communications!Template!Total

Page 21



!

Se

Econo

Tom!D

!

11/12

!

!

!

What!

within

!

ervice!&!Ser

omic!Develop

Dobrashian!

2:!!!85K!

Developm

Other!sav

is!protected

n!service!

rvice!Head!

pment!–!!

ment!compan

vings"!staffing

d! !

Capa

!

!

!

!

Capa

!

!

Capa

!

!

BUDGET

Econom

and!skil

develop

12/13:!!!210

ny!–!establis

g!and!other!

acity!to!deliv

! Securing!a

1000!new

square!m

realm!imp

! Bring!£2m

years.!

! Deliver!a!

acity!to!deliv

! Deliver!hi

achieving

attracting

include!a!

! Improve!t

bus!servic

!

acity!to!impr

! Support!H

programm

centres!to

! Successfu

the!next!3

leisure!ec

and!natur

!

T!SAVINGS:!

mic!Developm

lls,!Infrastruc

pment!servic

Current!

Savi

0K!

Main!Savin

h!this!and!ge

savings!!as!th

ver!!a!vibrant

an!estimated!

w!homes!(300!

etres!of!recon

provements.

m!of!external!f

new!Cross!rai

ver!London!R

gh!quality!ho

!planning!per

g!20!new!busin

new!Beam!Pa

transport!links

ce!in!the!Lond

rove!!smaller

Havering!town

me!of!events,!

o!maintain!foo

ully!attract!£3m

3!years)!that!w

conomy,!incre

ral!heritage!!

INITIATIVE!

De

ment!include

cture!investm

ces!!

Budget!Info

!

!

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

enerate!an!in

he!business!

t!town!centr

£400m!of!pub

started!by!20

nfigured!retai

funding!into!t

il!station!and!

Riverside!and

using!and!imp

mission!for!40

nesses,!bringi

ark!station.!

s!in!the!borou

don!Riverside!

r!town!centr

n!centres,!dev

including!Chr

otfall!at!2014!

m!of!new!inve

will!promote!g

easing!the!abil

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

es!Regenerat

ment,!town!c

rmation!

ears!

4:!!!205K!

escription!

ncome!strea

developmen

re!in!Romfor

blic!and!privat

017),!2000!new

l!space!(250!s

he!borough!fr

environment.

d!Rainham

prove!the!eco

000!new!hom

ng!in!over!£10

ugh!and!impro

by!2017.!!

res!and!the!g

velop!partners

ristmas!activit

levels!and!kee

estment!in!Ha

growth!and!in

ity!of!resident

Service!Area

ion,!inward!i

centre!suppo

m!!!

nt!offer!beco

rd!!

te!investment

w!jobs!(800!in!

quare!metres

rom!LEP/GLA!

!

nomic!base!in

es!(initiating!b

000m!of!secu

ove!traffic!flow

green!and!bl

ships,!attract!f

ies,!attracting

ep!retail!vaca

vering’s!green

ward!investm

ts!to!have!acc

a!

investment,!

ort,!and!busi

14/15:!!!268

omes!establis

t!by!2020,!thr

!office!sector!

s!by!2017)!and

and!EU!over!t

n!London!Rive

build!on!1000

red!investme

ws,!to!include

lue!infrastru

funding!and!d

g!10,000!peop

ncy!rates!belo

n!and!blue!inf

ment,!support!

cess!to!open!s

Employmen

ness!

K!

shed!

ough!delivery

by!2017),!100

d!£5m!public!

the!next!two!

rside!through

0!by!2017)!and

nt!by!2020.!!T

!securing!a!ne

cture!!

deliver!an!ann

ple!across!7!

ow!10%.!

frastructure!(i

the!visitor!an

space!and!the!

nt!

y!of!

00!

h!

d!

To!

ew!

ual!

n!

d!

built!

Page 22



!

!

Deve

!

!A!pro

deve

lengt

the!b

!

Othe

!

This!i

follow

more

capita

TOTA

!

Reaso

recom

propo

elopment!com

oposition!to!

loped!by!Reg

h!body!whic

business!case

r!savings!

s!a!mixture!o

wing!recent!r

e!established

al!&!other!pr

AL!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

Busin

!

!

!

!

mpany!

establish!a!c

generation,!R

h!would!dev

e!is!approved

of!staffing!an

restructure!a

d.!!This!includ

rojects!

BY!YEAR!

Deve

!

!

!

Staffi

!

!

!

ness!develop

! Support!t

businesse

first!2!yea

! Attracting

! Improve!t

to!busine

reduce!un

Saving

council!led!d

Resources!an

velop!housing

d!it!will!delive

nd!other!sav

and!the!busi

des!‘charging

lopment!com

! This!is!a!g

the!bene

! Similar!c

have!tak

ing!and!othe

There!are

and!to!su

include!m

inward!in

station,!s

opportun

chargable

pment!!

he!developme

es!to!invest!an

ars)!to!yield!a!

g!in!businesse

the!skills!level

ss!needs!and!

nemployment

Sav

g!

evelopment!

nd!Housing!s

g!for!sale.!!It

er!a!revenue

ings!as!the!s

ness!develop

g’!officer!tim

mpany!

good!opport

efit!of!the!Co

ompanies!ha

en!advantag

er!savings!

e!currently!a!

pport!local!b

making!the!m

vestment!ar

upporting!Ha

nities!!!!Over!t

e!to!projects!

ent!of!a!stron

nd!expand!by!

30%!increase

es!across!Have

ls!of!Havering

implement!a!

t!by!10%!over!

vings!propos

!company!is!

staff.!This!is!a

t!is!anticipate

e!stream!by!2

ervice!refocu

pment!offer!

e!in!the!deliv

tunity!for!the

ouncil!and!loc

ave!been!est

ge!of!investm

wide!range

businesses!b

most!of!Cross

round!Londo

avering!Busi

time!the!sta

or!capital!fu

g!business!ba

giving!targete

!in!turnover!a

ering!with!an!e

!residents!thr

Harold!Hill!em

the!next!two!

sals!

being!

an!arms"!

ed!that!if!

2018.!!!

uses!

becomes!

very!of!

e!Council!to!s

cal!residents

tablished!in!n

ment!opportu

of!opportun

y!securing!Lo

rail!regenera

on!Riverside,!

nesses!to!gro

ffing!require

unding.!!Fund

se!in!the!boro

ed!support!to!

nd!establish!5

emphasis!on!R

ough!improvi

mployment/sk

years.!!

Valu

TOTAL!£30

15/16!

!

TOTAL!£20

15/16!

!

TOTAL!500

15/16!

!

shape!the!de

s!and!secure!

neighbouring

unities.!!

ities!to!secur

ondon!wide!f

ation!&!deve

securing!ear

ow!and!Euro

ed!to!do!this!

ding!for!even

ough!by!2020

300!existing!b

50!new!busine

Romford!and!

ing!the!match

kills!programm

ue!of!Saving!

00k!

16/17! 1

!

00K!

16/17! 1

!

0k!!

16/17! 1

!

elivery!of!dev

a!revenue!re

g!boroughs!a

re!investmen

funding.!Ma

elopment!op

rly!delivery!o

opean!and!LE

should!redu

nts!is!also!be

:!encouraging

businesses!(50

esses!by!2017

London!Rivers

!of!skills!prov

me!which!will!

and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

! 300

17/18! 18/

50k! 150

17/18! 18/

50k! 450

velopment!t

eturn!!

and!elsewhe

nt!into!this!a

jor!projects!

portunities,!

of!Beam!Park

EP!funding!

ce!and/!or!b

ing!reduced

g!

0!in!

7.!

side.!

ision!

/19!

0k!

/19!

0k!

/19!

0k!

o!

re!

area!

k!

be!

.!

Page 23



!

Devel

1.

2.

3.

!

Staffin

1.

2.

3.

!

!

!

Numb

Antici

!

opment!com

. The!risk!th

. The!risk!th

. The!risk!o

ng!and!othe

. The!risk!th

supportin

. The!risk!th

. The!risk!th

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

mpany!!

hat!the!busin

hat!the!deve

f!another!ec

r!savings!

hat!demand!

g.!

hat!no!other!

hat!funders!r

area!

ction!in!FTE!a

ness!case!is!n

lopment!com

onomic!dow

for!support!f

capital!fund

resist!the!ab

as!a!result!of

Ide

not!agreed!a

mpany!does!

wnturn!or!ma

from!the!cou

ding!is!availab

ility!to!charg

f!proposals

entified!Risk

nd!the!deve

not!make!th

ajor!change!t

uncil!increas

ble.!!

ge!officer!tim

18!

De

!

3!F

fur

De

!

ks!

lopment!com

he!anticipate

to!the!housin

es!rather!tha

me!to!the!deli

FTE!

velopment!c

FTE!–!this!is!a

rther!review!

velopment!c

mpany!is!not!

d!rate!of!ret

ng!market!!

an!stabilises!

ivery!of!proje

company!!N/

a!current!esti

and!consulta

company!!N/

t!established

urn!!!

and!become

ects.!

/A!!

imate!and!is

ation.!!

/A!!

!

es!self"!

subject!to!

Page 24



!

Se

Street

!

!!!!!!!!!

!

Act

Stre

Stre

Was

Was

High

Hig

Park

Par

Gra
!

!

11/12

!

!

!

!

!

ervice!&!Ser

tcare!"!Rober

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

ivity 

eet Cleansing 

eet Cleansing T

ste Collection 

ste Collection T

hways including

hways Total 

king & Road Sa

king Total 

and Total 

:!!!3853K!

Street!light

!

Efficiencies

practices!

!

rvice!Head!

rt!Wenman!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

Total 

Total 

g streetlighting 

afety Services 

12

ting!–!Survey!t

s!–!Realise!eff

BUDGET

Streetca

!

!

!Current!Bu

Subj T

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

2/13:!!910K!

the!rest!of!the

ficiencies!in!th

T!SAVINGS:!

are!LED!&!Ef

dget!Inform

Type FY Re

nditure 4

me

ollable

4

nditure 6

me -2

ollable

3

nditure 7

me -1

ollable
3

9

nditure 2

me -3

ollable
1

18

Savin

Main!Savin

e!street"lightin

he!waste!and!h

INITIATIVE!

De

fficiencies!

ation!

evised Budget 

4,231,120 

-139,343 

640,855 

4,732,633 

6,036,950 

2,476,053 

59,930 

3,620,828 

7,798,404 

1,582,087 

3,614,665 Inc
en

9,830,983 

2,619,995 

3,867,973 

1,305,125 Inc
en

57,148 

8,241,591 

ngs!last!4!Yea

13/14:!!!1,

ngs!Items!Des

ng!columns!a

highways!area

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

cludes notional a
tries

cludes notional a
tries

ars

,060K

scription

nd!roll!out!mo

a!through!red

Service!Area

accounting

accounting

14/15

ore!LED!lightin

uced!vehicles

a!

5:!!!1,123K!

ng!

s!and!improveed!operational!

Page 25



!

Stree

We!p

the!w

becau

case,!

fundi

!

Effici

!This!

delive

reduc

contr

!

TOTA

!

What!

within

!

Reaso

recom

propo

et!Lighting!!

propose!to!ex

whole!of!the!

use!the!LED!

and!capital!

ng!

encies!progr

is!a!review!o

er!out!efficie

ced!construc

ract!payment

AL!SAVINGS!B

is!protected

n!service!

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

xtend!the!cu

Council’s!str

lights!are!mo

funding!and!

ramme!!

of!elements!o

encies,!result

ction!waste,!

ts.!!!!!!

BY!YEAR!

d! Stree

Highw

!

Stree

!

!

!!

Efficie

!

!

!

!

!

Saving

rrent!street!

reet!lighting!

ore!energy!e

it!may!be!po

of!the!highw

ting!in!a!redu

reduced!staf

et!!Cleansing!

Statutory

business!

ways!!

Predomin

pavemen

highways

savings!ta

et"!lighting!

Business!

viable!pro

Energy!co

longer!te

encies!progr

Programm

creation!

Reduces!c

Sav

g!

lighting!repl

stock.!Saving

fficient.!!This

ossible!to!att

ways!and!was

uction!in!veh

ffing!and!sm

y!universal!fr

agenda.!Spe

nately!a!statu

ts!schemes!a

s.!Cross!boro

arget!identifi

case!proved!

oposition!for

osts!volatile!a

rm!

ramme!!

me!driven!by

cost!in!the!se

vings!propos

acement!pro

gs!would!be!

s!will!require

tract!externa

ste!services!d

hicles!and!fue

all!scale!redu

ont!line!serv

end!reduced!

utory!service

and!mainten

ugh!and!Lon

ied!!!

!and!current

r!remainder!

and!likely!to!

y!changing!w

ervice!and!p

sals!

ogramme!to!

made!

e!a!business!

al!grant!

designed!to!

el!usage,!

uctions!in!

vice!and!key!

last!savings!

e!covering!st

nance,!includ

ndon!wide!co

tly!being!rolle

although!som

increase!–!t

working!pract

aid!for!tonna

Valu

TOTAL:!£2

!

15/16!

£150k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£50k!
!

TOTAL:!£3

!

15/16!

200k!

contributor!t

round!!!!

reet!lighting,

ing!permits!f

ontacts!for!so

ed!out!for!60

me!risks!and!

his!reduces!c

tices!to!minim

age!under!th

ue!of!Saving

250k!

16/17! 1

100k!

100k!

16/17! 1

50k!

350k!

16/17! 1

150k!

to!the!clean!

,!and!genera

for!utilities!w

ome!services

000!street!lig

!requires!cap

costs!and!ma

mise!highwa

he!ELWA!con

!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

17/18! 18/

17/18! 18/

and!green!a

al!highways!a

works!on!

s.!Efficiency!

ghts,!therefo

pital!!

aintenance!

ays!waste!

tract!!!

!

/19!

/19!

/19!

nd!

and!

ore!!

Page 26



!

Street

1.

2.

3.

!

Efficie

1.

Numb

Antici

t"lighting!!

. Business!c

. Survey!of!

. Volatility!o

encies!progra

. Risk!that!e

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

case!requires

existing!stre

on!utilities!p

amme!!

efficiencies!w

area!

ction!in!FTE!a

s!capital!fund

eet!lighting!st

prices!may!re

will!not!be!ac

as!a!result!of

Ide

ding!!

tock!may!ide

educe!savings

chievable!or!

f!proposals

entified!Risk

entify!areas!n

s!although!th

delayed!!!

Str

Eff

!

Str

Eff

ks!

not!suitable!

his!will!still!m

reet!lighting!_

iciencies!Pro

reet!lighting!_

iciencies!Pro

for!this!treat

mitigate!tota

_!N/A!

ogramme!!

_!N/A!

ogramme!!

tment!

l!costs!for!coouncil!

Page 27



!

Se

Comm

Mark!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!

!

11/12

!

!

What!

within

!

ervice!&!Ser

munications!–

Leech!

!!!!!!!!

Activity

AB6200!C

AB6200!C

2:!100!

Event!man

Staffing!le

is!protected

n!service!

rvice!Head!

–!!

Communications!

Communications

nagement!–!

evels"!reduce

d! Comm

!

For!th

comm

!

Living

socia

18/19

!

!

Event

!

The!B

atten

!

Other

Borou

!

The!e

BUDGET

Externa

and!onl

publica

Holding!Account

!Holding!Accoun

12/13:!100!

reduce!the!c

e!the!size!and

munications!

he!next!four!

munications!

g!in!Havering

l!media!chan

9.!

ts!

Borough’s!ma

d.!

r!major!even

ugh"wide!Ch

events!office

T!SAVINGS:!

al!and!Interna

ine!commun

tions!includi

Current!

Subj!Type

Expenditure

Income

Non"Controll

t!Total

Savi

Main!Savin

cost!of!event

d!change!the

team!

years,!the!te

and!reputati

g!magazine!w

nnels!will!con

ajor!public!ev

nts!are!prote

ristmas!swit

r!also!provid

INITIATIVE!

De

al!Communi

nication,!maj

ng!Living!in!H

Budget!Info

FY!Revised

773,

-80,

lable 95,

788,

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

!

ngs!Items!De

ts!managed!

e!compositio

!

eam!maintai

ion!managem

will!continue!

ntinue!to!be!

vent,!the!Ha

ected,!includi

tch!on!events

des!advice!on

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

cations!and!

jor!event!ma

Havering!Ma

rmation!

d!budget

080

300

720

500

ears!

4:!130k!

escription!

by!Commun

on!of!the!Com

ns!the!capac

ment!progra

to!be!publis

developed!a

avering!Show

ing!Rememb

s!and!the!an

n!the!safe!ma

Service!Area

campaigns;!M

anagement!,!

agazine!!!!!

!

ications!and!

mmunication

city!to!delive

mme.!

hed!every!qu

ahead!of!a!m

w,!will!continu

brance!Sunda

nual!Langton

anagement!o

a!

Media!relatio

!Design!and!

14/15:!208

Culture!&!Le

ns!Team!

r!a!robust!an

uarter,!while

major!reducti

ue!and!will!r

ay,!Armed!Fo

ns!concert.!

of!public!out

ons;!social!m

Production!

8k!

eisure!!!

nd!proactive!

e!electronic!a

on!in!budget

remain!free!t

orces!Day,!

tdoor!events!

media!

of!

and!

t!in!

to!

Page 28



!

!

The!C

unde

main

!

This!s

Have

atten

!

Othe

renew

!

Langt

Arme

Holoc

Have

Older

!

Xmas

These

costs

Comm

!

The!c

comm

Living

Coun

budg

!

The!t

over!

fundi

by!th

Council!curre

rtaken!with!

taining!as!m

saving!will!be

ring!Show,!b

nd.!Events!co

r!significant!

wed!drive!fo

tons!Concert

ed!Forces!Da

caust!Memo

ring!Mela!

r!People’s!Xm

s!lights!event

e!will!continu

.!

munications

current!prior

munications,

g!magazine.!T

cil’s!new!pri

et!savings.!

iming!of!the

the!coming!y

ng!from!the!

e!relevant!se

prior!

!

Web!

!

The!C

webs

subsc

Servic

!

!

!

ently!funds!a

a!view!to!red

any!of!the!p

e!achieved!b

but!ensuring!

ontingency!–!

annual!even

r!sponsorshi

t!!

y!

rial!Day!

mas!Party!(pa

ts!

ue.!Sponsors

s!team!–!staf

rities!for!the!

!supporting!

The!team!wi

orities!and!e

!savings!refle

years,!with!a

team!in!16/

ervice!or!cor

to!licencing!

Communicati

ite!and!othe

cribing!reside

ces!to!align!c

Saving

Events

!range!of!eve

ducing!the!o

opular!event

by!reducing!t

that!the!eve

funding!one

nts!will!be!su

ip,!but!will!co

artnership!ev

ship!opportu

!

ffing!and!stru

team!include

the!Havering

ill!focus!on!e

engaging!wit

ects!the!nee

a!small!reduc

/17!(meaning

rporate!budg

applications

ions!team!als

r!online!form

ents.!The!tea

corporate!me

Sav

g!

s!

ents!and!a!re

verall!budge

ts!as!possible

he!overall!bu

ent!continues

e"off!events!w

bject!to!effic

ontinue!to!ru

vent)!

unities!will!be

ucture!!

e!internal!an

g!Show!and!c

effectively!co

h!public!and!

d!to!support

ction!to!remo

g!campaigns!

get).!!

s!being!agree

so!plays!an!i

ms!of!commu

am!works!clo

essages.!

!

vings!propos

eview!has!be

et!for!events

e.!!

udget!for!the

s!and!remain

will!be!remo

ciency!saving

un.!These!are

e!explored!to

nd!external!

continuing!to

ommunicatin

!staff!around

t!the!budget!

ove!central!c

will!need!to!

ed.!!

mportant!ro

unications,!in

osely!with!th

sals!

een!

,!while!

e!annual!

ns!free!to!

ved.!

gs!and!a!

e:!

o!reduce!

o!produce!

ng!the!

d!the!

process!

campaign!

be!funded!

ole!in!the!pre

ncluding!soci

e!Web!Edito

Valu

15/16!

£45k!

TOTAL!£!2

15/16!

!

esentation!of

ial!media!an

orial!team!in!

ue!of!Saving!

TOTAL!£

16/17!

!

270k!

16/17!

£30k!

f!the!Haverin

d!e"updates!

Customer!

and!Year(s)

£45k!

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

! £24

ng!

to!

/19!

!

/19!

40k!

Page 29



!

!

This!w

comm

capac

restru

chann

!

!

!

TOTA

!

Reaso

recom

propo

!

Staffin

1.

!

Event

1.

!

!

!

!

Numb

Antici

will!be!follow

munication!s

city.!Howeve

ucture!will!b

nels!as!techn

AL!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

ng!

. Reputatio

Council’s!a

ts!

. By!mainta

!

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

wed!in!2018/

ervice!and!it

er,!the!exact!

e!informed!b

nology!devel

BY!YEAR!

Staffi

!

!

Event

!

!

onal!risk"!High

activities!ma

aining!almost

area!

ction!in!FTE!a

/19,!with!a!m

ts!staffing!lev

nature!of!th

by!a!review!o

ops.!

ing!

! This!prop

of!press!

technolo

2018/19

ts!

The!Coun

strengthe

to!contin

h!demand!fo

ay!continue!b

t!all!annual!e

as!a!result!of

major!reducti

vels!–!which!

e!changes!an

of!communic

posal!steps!d

and!consulta

ogy!and!meth

.!

ncil!runs!a!ran

en!communit

ue.!

Ide

or!communic

beyond!2018

events,!reput

f!proposals

on!in!the!co

will!also!imp

nd!resulting!

cations!meth

down!resourc

ation!activity

hods!of!comm

nge!of!popul

ty!links.!Mak

entified!Risk

cations!activi

8!and!exceed

tational!risks

Sta

!

!

Sta

The

rev

!

st!of!the!

pact!on!its!

hods!and!

ces!over!a!pe

y!resulting!fro

munication!w

lar!events!de

king!the!even

ks!

ity!to!manag

d!resources!a

s!are!very!lim

affing!(includ

affing:!5!

ese!are!curre

view!and!con

TOTAL!£3

15/16!

£45k!

eriod!of!time

om!the!budg

will!inform!th

esigned!to!en

nts!more!effi

ge!issues!and

available!!

mited.!

ing!events):!

ent!estimate

nsultation!

15k!

16/17!

£30k!

e!reflecting!t

get!programm

he!final!shap

ngage!with!t

icient!allows

d!proactively!

14!

es!and!are!su

17/18! 18/

! £24

he!likely!volu

me.!Changes

pe!of!the!tea

he!public!an

more!of!the

promote!the

bject!to!furt

/19!

40k!

ume!

s!in!

m!in!

d!

em!

e!

her!

Page 30



!

Se

Corpo

Mana

!

!

!

!

!

Childr

and!P

Isherw

!

!

Servi

AE40

Perfo

AE40

!

CAH B

11/12

!

!

!

What!

within

!

!

ervice!&!Ser

orate!Policy!&

ger!–!Claire!T

rens!and!Adu

erformance!

wood!

ce 

00 Business & 

rmance 

000 Business &

Business and P

2:!!!200K!!

Restructu

!

is!protected

n!service!

rvice!Head!

&!Communit

Thompson!

ults!Business

–!Pippa!Bren

Subjective

Expenditur

Income To

Non-Contro

& Performance 

Performance 

Savings

re!to!combin

d! Polic

!

Core

direc

spec

BUDGET

ty!

!

nt"!

The!Cor

policy,!p

commu

sector.!

Safety,!

!

!

The!Bus

Directo

systems

re Total 

tal 

ollable Total 

Total

Salarie

s!Last!4!Year

12/13:!!200

ne!and!strea

cy!performan

e!capacity!to!

ct!role!in!the

ifically!with!d

T!SAVINGS:!

rporate!Polic

performance

unity!safety,!c

!The!service!

Energy!Strat

siness!and!Pe

rate!with!po

s!developme

Current!

FY Revised B

1

1

es Total 

rs!(from!the!

K!

Main!Savin

mline!the!Co

nce!and!data

produce!dat

!intelligence

demand!red

INITIATIVE!

De

cy!and!Comm

e!and!intellig

community!e

consists!of!4

tegy!and!Com

erformance!

olicy!and!ana

ent.!!The!Serv

Budget!Info

Budget

,443,680 

0

346,240 

,789,920 

Corporate!P

13/14

ngs!Items!De

ouncil’s!polic

a!analysis!ca

ta!and!analys

e"led!commis

uction!and!b

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

munity!Servic

gence!suppo

engagement

4!sections:!C

mmunity!Eng

Service!prov

lytical!suppo

vice!is!a!new

rmation!

!

1,274,050 

Policy!and!Co

4:!!!305K!

escription!

cy!performan

apacity!

sis!for!statut

ssioning!and!

behaviour!ch

Service!Area

ce!provides!t

rt,!as!well!as

t!and!the!rela

orporate!Po

gagement.!

vides!the!Chil

ort,!complain

w!function!of!

ommunity!Se

nce!and!data!

ory!purpose

provision!of!

ange!in!mind

a!

the!council!w

s!being!the!co

ationship!wit

licy!&!Divers

ldren,!Adults

nts!managem

the!director

ervice)!

14/15:!!!!45

!analysis!cap

s!and!to!pro

f!services!acr

d.!!!

with!strategic

orporate!lea

th!the!volunt

sity,!Commun

s!and!Housin

ment!and!ICT

rate.!

51K!

pacity!!

vide!a!more!

ross!the!Coun

c!

d!for!

tary!

nity!

ng!

T!

ncil,!

Page 31



!

Policy

The!C

three

! T

jo

c

! C

A

a

! P

c

Work

resou

team

revie

ensur

TOTA

!

Reaso

recom

propo

!

Policy

1.

Numb

Antici

y!performan

Council!curre

e!main!locati

The!Corporat

ointly!with!P

ustomer!insi

CAH!which!in

Adults!service

nd!!inspectio

Public!Health

ommissionin

k!is!already!u

urces!and!co

s!and!create

w!would!also

re!this!is!the!

AL!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

y!performanc

. The!new"l

ensure!int

smaller!co

pose!a!risk

stages!in!c

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

nce!and!data

ently!has!pol

ons:!!

te!Policy!and

ublic!Health,

ight!analysis

cludes!capac

es!with!the!g

ons!and!the!

!to!support!h

ng.!!!

underway!to!

rporate!inte

e!a!single!cen

o!examine!th

most!appro

BY!YEAR!

Policy

!

ce!!and!data

look,!smaller

telligence!is!

orporate!tea

k!to!decision

consultation

area!

ction!in!FTE!a

Saving

a!analysis!cap

icy,!perform

!Community

,!and!!includ

!and!demogr

city!and!reso

generation!o

commissioni

health!analy

rationalise!a

lligence!and!

ntral!corpora

he!role!of!sta

priate!locati

y!Performan

The!Coun

resources

more!tha

duplicatio

whilst!!sti

produce!b

a!capacity!

r!corporate!i

being!used!t

m!will!not!ha

n!making!and

!with!Group!

as!a!result!of

Sav

g!

pacity!

ance!and!da

y!Service!–!w

es!crime!inte

raphic!resea

ources!to!sup

f!data!for!sta

ing!of!service

tics,!the!JSNA

and!merge!th

it!is!propose

ate!data!and!

aff!embedde

on!for!them.

nce!and!data

ncil!needs!the

s!and!to!mee

n!is!absolute

on!that!can!o

ill!retaining!c

business!inte

Ide

ntelligence!f

o!drive!impr

ave!sufficien

d!external!ins

Directors!an

f!proposals

vings!propos

ta!analysis!s

which!prepare

elligence,!as!

rch!!!

pport!Childre

atutory!fram

es!

A,!the!CCG!in

he!Council’s!

ed!to!combin

policy!resou

ed!within!serv

.!!!!!!

a!capacity!!

ese!function

et!the!needs!

ely!necessary

occur!with!a!

capacity!nece

elligence!req

entified!Risk

function!will!

rovement!mo

t!capacity!to

spections.!!T

nd!Heads!of!S

Po

22!

Ho

Po

Ap

The

rev

sals!

taff!in!

es!the!JSNA!

well!as!

en’s!and!

meworks!

n!its!

data!

ne!these!

urce.!The!

vices!to!

s,!to!ensure!

of!its!custom

y!on!them.!T

decentralise

essary!to!dis

quired!by!the

ks!

need!to!hav

ore!efficient

o!meet!the!n

This!can!be!m

Service.!

licy!perform

in!Corporate

using!&!Adu

licy!perform

prox!7!FTE!

ese!are!curre

view!and!con

Valu

TOTAL!£3

15/16!

100k!!

TOTAL!£3

15/16!

£100k!

it!is!making!t

mers,!but!can

his!restructu

ed!policy!and

charge!its!st

e!Council!to!i

ve!robust!SLA

ly.!!There!is!a

eeds!of!the!o

mitigated!som

ance!!and!da

e!Policy!and!

lts!Business!

ance!and!da

ent!estimate

nsultation.!

ue!of!Saving!

50k!

16/17!

250k!

50k!!

16/17!

£250k!

the!most!eff

nnot!afford!t

ure!removes!

d!analytical!s

tatutory!func

nform!its!de

As!in!place!w

a!risk!that!a!

organisation

mewhat!in!th

ata!capacity

Community,

&!Performa

ata!capacity!

es!and!are!su

and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

ficient!use!of

to!spend!any

any!risk!of!

upport!mod

ctions!and!

ecision!makin

with!services!t

significantly!

!,!which!may

he!early!desig

y!!

,!44!in!Childr

nce!!

bject!to!furt

/19!

!

/19!

!

f!its!

y!

el,!

ng!!!

to!

y!

gn!

ren!

her!

Page 32



!

Se

Corpo

Transf

Caroli

!

Activit

AB233

AB233

!

11/12

£1.3m

Th

an

!

!

!

What!

within

!

Infor

The!k

Olym

enqu

Also,!

Town

close

!

Redu

Whils

work

!

ervice!&!Ser

orate!&!Custo

formation!–!

ne!Woolf!

ty

30 CRM 

30 CRM Total 

2!

m!!

he!savings!up

nd!back!offic

Informatio

Reduction

Channel!S

is!protected

n!service!

mation!Kios

kiosk!was!ope

mpics.!Curren

iries!are!abo

numbers!are

n!centre!part

!the!Kiosk!an

uction!in!age

st!we!embed

ers!in!establ

rvice!Head!

omer!

!

p!to!£2.6m!a

ce.!New!prop

on!Kiosk!in!R

n!in!agency!w

Shift!–!reduce

d! !Chan

!

t

Front

!

t

!

k!!

ened!to!assis

t!informatio

out!signposti

e!dwindling.!

tners!to!prom

nd!re"let!it!!!!

ncy!worker!

d!our!previou

ished!posts!t

BUDGET

Provisio

!

Subj Type 

Expenditure 

Income

Non-
Controllable

Sav

12/13!

£2.3m!

above!have!b

posals!are:"!

Romford!Tow

worker!posts

e!staffing!to!

nge!managem

Services!are!

that!!

t!line!service

For!some!cu

more!approp

to!face!and!c

will!be!retain

Saving

st!in!the!pro

n!about!utili

ng!the!locati

!!It!is!propos

mote!Romfor

!

covered!pos

us!restructur

to!ensure!ne

T!SAVINGS:!

on!of!face!to!

Current!
FY Revised 
Budget 

2,909,886

-28,380

928,560

3,810,066

vings!Last!4!Y

Main!Savin

been!delivere

wn!Centre"!cl

reflect!custo

ment!!

still!being!ad

e!capacity!

stomers!and

priate!way!o

continue!to!o

ned!to!delive

Sav

g!

motion!of!th

sation!is!tha

ion!of!shops!

sed!to!contin

rd!as!a!shopp

sts!

re!we!are!hol

ew!ways!of!w

INITIATIVE!

De

!face,!teleph

Budget!Info

!

Years!–!NB!C

13/14

!£2.6

ngs!Items!De

ed!via!a!Coun

ose!!

omer!channe

dded!to!cust

d!services!fac

of!doing!busin

optimise!tele

er!these.!

vings!propos

he!borough!d

at!the!bulk!of

in!the!town!

nue!to!work!w

ping!destinat

lding!some!a

working!are!e

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

hone!and!we

rmation!

CST!programm

4!

m!

escription!

ncil!wide!tra

el!shift!to!usi

tomer!service

ce!to!face!an

ness.!!We!wi

ephony!tech

sals!

during!the!

f!the!

centre.!

with!the!

tion!but!to!

agency!

embedded.!!

Service!Area

b!customer!c

me!

nsformation

ng!the!web!a

es!and!capac

d!telephone

ll!aim!to!stre

nology.!!The

Valu

TOTAL:!£1

!

15/16!

100k!

a!

contact!serv

14/15!

!£2.6m!

!programme

and!other!va

city!is!require

e!contacts!wi

eamline!the!d

erefore!suffic

ue!of!Saving!

100k!

16/17!

!

ices!

e,!covering!fr

alue!channels

ed!to!facilita

ll!always!be!

delivery!of!fa

cient!resourc

and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

!

ront!

s!

te!

a!

ace!

ce!

/19!

!

Page 33



!

These

!

!Chan

The!c

custo

delive

comm

effect

simila

famil

In!ord

wher

availa

onlin

For!th

rema

defau

for!th

!

The!s

will!re

!

The!PA

propo

accom

!

TOTA

Reaso

recom

propo

!

Kiosk!

1.

2.

e!staff!will!be

nnel!Shift!

customer!ser

omers!and!ar

ery.!!!This!mo

munication!(f

tive!self!serv

ar!to!a!retail!

iar!with!the!

der!to!assist!

re!they!can!b

able.!!In!addi

e!communic

hose!custom

in!for!the!tim

ult!as!far!as!p

he!Council.!

service!curre

ealise!saving

ASC!and!Con

osed!that!as!t

mmodation.!

AL!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

!

. That!the!t

shopper!v

. That!it!is!n

e!removed!o

rvices!strateg

reas!where!t

oves!custom

face!to!face!

ve!model!wh

online!mode

concept.!

customers!m

be!assisted!by

ition,!many!c

cations!or!ha

mers!who!are

me!being.!Ho

practicable!a

ntly!has!a!ch

gs!from!that!

ntact!Centre!

the!service!c

BY!YEAR!

Kiosk

! W

p

Agen

! W

p

Chan

! T

re

a

town!centre!

visits!to!Romf

not!possible!

once!the!proc

gy!is!based!o

hat!is!the!mo

mers!from!the

followed!by!

ereby!they!c

el!and!theref

move!to!onlin

y!staff!and!a

customers!ar

ve!families!w

!less!able!to!

owever,!we!m

nd!therefore

hannel!shift!t

move.!!

currently!oc

contracts!it!m

k!

Whilst!Custom

purpose!and!!

cy!workers!

We!wish!to!re

permanent!st

nel!shift!

The!strategy!i

ealise!saving

ccommodat

partnership!

ford!

to!re"let!the

cesses!are!fin

on!a!self"!serv

ost!appropri

e!most!expen

telephone)!t

can!transact!

fore!many!cu

ne,!we!have!

lso!access!in

re!already!kn

who!can!assis

adapt,!the!c

must!endeav

e!to!obtain!b

target!of!20%

cupies!lease

moves!into!m

mer!Services

there!are!m

educe!the!re

taff!

is!designed!t

gs!from!it.!!It!

ion.!

Ide

does!not!pro

!part!of!the!K

nalised!

vice!model!fo

ate!form!of!s

nsive!forms!o

to!the!much!

with!us!onlin

ustomers!are

kiosks!in!the

n!libraries!wh

nowledgeabl

st!them.!

current!chan

vour!to!be!di

better!value!f

%!and!this!re

ed!premises.!

mainstream!c

s!provide!staf

more!importa

liance!on!ag

to!deliver!cha

should!be!p

entified!Risk

ovide!sufficie

Kiosk!used!b

or!those!

service!

of!

more!cost!

ne.!This!is!

e!already!

e!PASCs!

here!help!is!

le!about!

nels!will!

gital!by!

for!money!

structure!

!It!is!

council!

ff!and!suppo

nt!priorities!

ency!worker

annel!shift!to

ossible!to!re

ks!

ent!informat

by!the!Counc

TOTAL!£3

15/16!

!

TOTAL!£4

15/16!

100k!

ort!for!the!Kio

for!funding!

rs!in!favour!o

o!most!cost!e

locate!the!se

tion!on!shopp

il!!

00k!

16/17!

£300k!

400k!

16/17!

£300k!

osk,!it!has!se

of!embeddin

effective!cha

ervice!to!cou

ping!destina

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

erved!its!initi

g!skills!in!

annels!and!to

uncil!owned!

tions!!to!sec

/19!

!

/19!

!

al!

o!

ure!

Page 34



!

Chann

1.

2.

3.

4.

!

!

Numb

Antici

nel!Shift!

. That!!cust

. That!easie

. That!inabi

the!front!o

. That!insuf

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

tomers!do!no

er!availability

ility!to!respo

office!and!im

fficient!space

area!

ction!in!FTE!a

ot!change!to!

y!of!services!

ond!to!deman

mpacts!poten

e!is!freed!up!

as!a!result!of

using!on!line

increases!cu

nd!in!the!bac

ntial!savings!

elsewhere!t

f!proposals

e!and!autom

ustomer!expe

ck!offices!lea

achievemen

to!facilitate!a

Kio

Cha

Kio

Ag

Cha

!

The

rev

mated!channe

ectation!and

ads!to!increa

t!or!leads!to

a!relocation

osk!!2!

annel!Shift!!

osk!!2!

ency!worker

annel!shift!!c

ese!are!curre

view!and!con

els!

!demand!

sed!face!to!f

!diminished!

91!

rs!!2.5!

c.!16!tbc!!

ent!estimate

nsultation.!

face!or!telep

levels!of!cus

es!and!are!su

hone!deman

stomer!servic

bject!to!furt

nd!in!

ce!!

her!

Page 35



Cultur

Simon

!

Activi

AB101

AB101

AB102

AB102

AB103

AB103

AB104

AB104

AB105

AB105

AB106

AB106

AB107

AB107

AB108

AB108

AB109

AB109

AB110

AB110

!

Service!&

re!&!Leisure!–

n!Parkinson!

!

ity 

10 Allotments. 

10 Allotments. 

20 Arts Services

20 Arts Service

30 Entertainmen

30 Entertainme

40 Indoor Sports

40 Indoor Spor

50 Parks & Outd

50 Parks & Out

60 Queen's The

60 Queen's The

70 Historic Build

70 Historic Bui

80 Grounds Mai

80 Grounds Ma

90 Social Halls &

90 Social Halls

00 Sports Dev &

00 Sports Dev 

!

&!Service!Hea

–!!

Total 

s

es Total 

nts

ents Total 

s & Recreation 

rts & Recreatio

door Sports 

tdoor Sports To

eatre 

eatre Total 

dings

ildings Total 

intenance DSO 

aintenance DSO

& Comm Ctrs 

s & Comm Ctrs 

& Outdoor Ctrs 

& Outdoor Ctrs

BU

ad!

Subj T

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

Incom

Expen

Non-
Contro

on Total 

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

otal 

Expen

Non-
Contro

Expen

Non-
Contro

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

O Total 

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

Total

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

s Total 

UDGET!SAVI

Sports!and

,MyPlace!M

!

Curren

Type FY Re

nditure 

me

ollable

nditure 

me (

ollable

me

nditure 

ollable
1

2

nditure 2

me (

ollable

2

nditure 

ollable

nditure 

ollable

nditure 3

me (3

ollable

nditure 

me

ollable

nditure 

me

ollable

NGS:!INITIA

d!Leisure!Con

Management

t!Budget!Info

evised Budget 

5,000 

(15,380) 

670

(9,710) 

361,810 

(128,790) 

177,680 

410,700 

0

0

460,921 

1,631,439 

2,092,360 

2,430,590 

(453,850) 

824,170 

2,800,910 

535,275 

127,240 

662,515 

77,200 

12,390 

89,590 

3,626,520 

,023,250) 

250,130 

853,400 

1,030 

(32,020) 

53,140 

22,150 

146,230 

(11,710) 

92,420 

226,940 

ATIVE!TEMP

Descripti

ntract!retend

t!!and!Music!

ormation!

LATE!

!

ion!of!Servic

ering,!Stubbe

School!

ce!Area!

ers!Outdoor!Activity!Centtre!

Page 36



AB110

AB110

AB111

AB111

AB112

AB112

AB113
Admin

AB113

AB116

AB116

AE215

AE215

Grand

11/12

!

!

!

!

!

Re"te

This!

savin

more

inclu

Mar

The!

prop

out!i

leisu

!

!

!

05 My Place Ce

05 My Place Ce

10 Supervision M

10 Supervision

25 Health and W

25 Health and W

35 Policy, Marke
nistration 

35 Policy, Mark

60 Countryside 

60 Countryside

50 Music Servic

50 Music Servi

d Total 

:!!!0K!

Re!tender!

Moving!St

New!busin

My!place!s

!

ender!of!the

is!underway

ngs!given!imp

e!commercia

usion!of!RLD!t

ket!rent!–!St

rent!on!this!f

posal!is!to!ren

in!2015/16an

ure!centre!co

entres 

entres Total 

Management & 

n Management 

Wellbeing 

Wellbeing Tota

eting and 

keting and Adm

Services 

e Services Tota

ces 

ces Total 

of!the!Sport

ubbers!onto!

ness!model!"M

savings!!

e!Sports!and!

y!and!will!be!

proved!perfo

al!approach!f

to!achieve!£2

tubbers!Outd

facility!has!b

negotiate!for

nd/or!take!th

ntract!!!!

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

Supp Expen

Non-
Contro

& Supp Total 

Expen

Non-
Contro

al

Expen

Non-
Contro

ministration Tot

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

al

Expen

Incom

Non-
Contro

12

s!and!Leisure

a!market!ren

Music!school

Savi

Leisure!man

let!part!way!

ormance!of!t

from!Contrac

200k!of!the!s

door!Centre!!

een!at!peppe

r!a!market!re

he!facility!bac

nditure 

me (

ollable

nditure 

ollable

nditure 

ollable

nditure 

ollable

tal 

nditure 

me

ollable

nditure 

me (

ollable

8

Sav

2/13:!!!50K!

Main!Sav

e!Manageme

nt!!

l!

S

ing!

nagement!co

through!16/

he!current!co

ctors.!The!sav

savings.!

ercorn!level!

ent!for!the!fa

ck!in!house!a

445,080 

(183,600) 

56,270 

317,750 

165,630 

45,060 

210,690 

109,840 

32,190 

142,030 

290,920 

71,810 

362,730 

172,500 

(14,380) 

38,460 

196,580 

652,330 

(567,800) 

144,100 

228,630 

8,607,265 

vings!Last!4!Y

vings!Items!D

ent!contract

Savings!prop

ntract!

17.!Opportu

ontract!and!b

ving!proposa

for!the!last!1

cility!when!t

and!manage!

Years!

13/14:!!!2

Description

osals!

nity!to!make

by!facilitating

al!assumes!th

18!years.!This

he!lease!run

it!via!the!

265K!

V

e!

g!a!

he!

TOTA

!

15/1

!

s!

s!

TBA!–

14/

Value!of!Sav

L:!£500k!

16! 16/17!

£200k!

–!Commercia

/15:!!338K!

ving!and!Year

17/18!

£300k!

l!!in!confiden

r(s)!

18/19!

nce!!

Page 37



Mus

The!

succ

over

cont

My!p

Thes

spor

TOTA

What

servic

Reaso

propo

!

Reten

1

2

3

!

sic!School!

music!schoo

essfully!triall

rhead!costs!a

trollable!cost

place!!efficie

se!are!efficie

rts!and!leisur

AL!SAVINGS!

!

t!is!protected

ce!

ons!for!recom

osals!

nder!of!the!S

1. RLD!deve

2. Competit

3. Contract!

l!has!introdu

led!in!school

and!increase!

ts!

encies!

ncies!in!the!m

e!manageme

BY!YEAR!

d!within!

mmending!

Sports!and!le

elopment!is!n

tion!and!/!or!

does!not!del

uced!a!new!b

s!and!is!bein

income!furth

management

ent!retender

Arts!and

! Thes

!

!Allotme

! The!

!

Re"tend

! This!

man

!

Music!sc

! This!

for!t

cove

!

MyPlace

! This!

cost!

exte

man

Stubbers

! This!

!

eisure!manag

not!on!site!an

the!market!f

liver!savings!

usiness!mod

g!rolled!out.

her.!The!serv

t!of!my!place

!!

d!Sports!Deve

se!are!very!sm

ents!

small!cost!ce

der!of!the!Sp

is!an!opport

nagement!con

chool!

is!an!opport

the!music!ser

er!its!controll

e!efficiencies

is!non"statu

of!running!t

ernalising!its!

naging!the!ce

s!Outoor!cen

is!applying!t

gement!cont

nd!therefore!

for!these!ser

!

del!that!has!b

!Opportunity

vice!would!th

e!by!including

elopment!co

mall!teams!w

entre!for!this

ports!and!Leis

tunity!to!save

ntract.!

tunity!based!

rvice,!which!e

lable!costs.

s!

tory!provisio

he!facility!pr

managemen

ntre!in!the!fu

ntre!

the!Council’s!

Identified!Ri

!

tract!

income!estim

vices!change

been!

y!to!reduce!

hen!recover!i

g!it!in!the!

ore!teams!

which!manag

s!service!reco

sure!manage

e!money!thro

on!the!succe

enables!it!to!

on!for!young!

rior!to!includ

t.!This!is!judg

uture.!

current!poli

isks!

mates!are!no

es!!

ts!

TOTA

!

15/1

£100
!

TOTA

!

15/1

TOTA

!

15/1

£100

ge!contracts!a

overs!its!cost

ement!contra

ough!the!ten

essful!introdu

both!increas

people!and!t

ing!it!in!the!c

ged!to!be!the

cy!at!the!end

otional!

L:!£200k!

16! 16/17!

0k! £100k!

L:!£100k!

16! 16/17!

£50k!

L:!£800k!

16! 16/17!

0k! £350k!

and!network

ts!

act!

dering!of!the

uction!of!a!ne

se!its!music!t

these!efficien

contract!rete

e!most!cost!e

d!of!the!exist

17/18!

17/18!

£50k!

17/18!

£350k!

ks!

e!sports!and!

ew!business!

tuition!offer!

ncies!reduce

ender!and!

effective!way

ting!lease;!

18/19!

18/19!

18/19!

0!

leisure!

model!

and!

!the!

y!of!

Page 38



Musi

1

2

My!p

1

2

!Stub

1

2

Num

Antic

!

c!school!!

1. Roll!out!o

2. New!serv

place!efficien

1. Increased

2. Leisure!co

bbers!outdoo

1. Current!t

2. No!detail!

!

ber!of!FTE!in

cipated!redu

!

of!new!mode

vice!for!adult

ncies!

d!income!ma

ontract!may!

or!centre!

enant!may!n

available!on

n!area!

ction!in!FTE!

el!falters!and!

s!does!not!p

y!not!materi

not!realise!fu

ot!renew!lea

n!potential!yi

as!a!result!o

income!targ

rove!to!be!su

alise!

urther!saving

ase!on!propo

eld!!as!a!furt

of!proposals

ets!not!met!

ustainable!!

gs!

osed!terms!!

ther!part!of!the!Leisure!co

Retend

contra

TUPE!a

Music!

equiva

My!Pla

Retend

contra

Music!

My!Pla

!

These!

furthe

!

ontract!if!tha

der!of!the!sp

act!:!None!in!

applies.!!

school!:!92!s

alents)!

ace!efficienci

der!of!the!sp

act:!!N/A!!

school!:!Non

ace!efficienci

are!current!e

r!review!and

at!fall!back!ut

ports!and!leis

relation!to!le

staff!(not!clea

ies:!!7!FTEs!

ports!and!leis

ne!

ies:!1–2!!FTE

estimates!an

!consultation

tilised!!

sure!manage

eisure!centre

ar!how!many

sure!manage

s!

nd!are!subjec

n.!

ement!

es!as!

y!FTE!

ement!

t!to!

Page 39



!

Se

Housi

!

Cost

A5350
Contr

A5350

!

!

!
!

11/12

!

!

!

What!

within

CCTV

We!w

housi

mana

!

Supp

Fund

Coun

Servic

more

paid!f

!

!

ervice!&!Ser

ng,!Sue!With

Centre 

00 CCTV 
ol Room 

00 CCTV Contr

2!!!!£256k!

!

CCTV!Mer

Supportin

is!protected

n!service!

V!!

will!merge!th

ing!estates!a

agement!cos

orting!Peop

ing!for!Supp

cil’s!overall!G

ce!will!exam

e!cost!effectiv

for!out!of!th

rvice!Head!

herspoon!

Subjective 

Expenditur

Income Tot

Non-Contro

rol Room Total

!

!

!

rger.!

ng!People!Rev

d! CCTV

!

Supp

!

!

!

e!CCTV!for!t

at!Waterloo!R

sts.!!

le!Review!

orting!Peopl

General!Fun

ine!what!the

ve!way!of!pr

e!Adults’!bud

BUDGET

Housing

re Total 

tal 

ollable Total 

l

12/13!!!!£0k

view!–!Revie

V!in!Romford

CCTV!for!the

porting!Peop

The!Housing

such!as!a!Go

Mobile!Supp

identified.!

Saving

he!town!cen

Road.!This!w

le!is!no!longe

d!resources.

e!needs!of!th

roviding!that

dget.!!

T!SAVINGS:!

g!General!Fu

Current!

FY Revised Bud

452

452

!

!

!

Savi

k!

Main!Savin

ew!funding!a

!Town!Centr

e!Town!cent

ple!Review!

g!Service!is!im

ood!Neighbo

port!Service!

Sav

g!

tres!with!the

will!produce!a

er!ring!fence

!The!review!

he!current!cli

!support.!!Th

INITIATIVE!

De

und!

Budget!Info

dget ! Cost

2,130 ! A340
Peop
Adm0 !

0 ! A340

2,130 ! A340
Peop

!

! A340

! Sup

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

nd!provision

re!

res!to!aid!cri

mplementing

our!Scheme,!

for!vulnerab

vings!propos

e!CCTV!cove

a!saving!on!t

d,!and!is!par

of!the!Mobi

ients!are,!an

he!service!is!

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

rmation!

t Centre 

000 Supporting 
ple

ministration

000 Supporting

010 Supporting 
ple

010 Supporting

porting People

ears!

4!!!!£0k!

escription!

n!of!Mobile!S

ime!reductio

g!a!series!of!

Befriending!

ble!adults!if!a

sals!

ring!the!

he!

rt!of!the!

le!Support!

d!look!for!a!

currently!

Service!Area

Subjective 

Expenditure

Non-Contro

g People Admi

Expenditure

Non-Contro

g People Total 

e  Total 

Support!Servi

on!and!detec

other!preve

Schemes!an

alternative!m

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£45k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£516k!
!

a!

re Total 

ollable Total 

in Total 

re Total 

ollable Total 

14/15!!!!£0

ice.!

ction.!!

ntative!initia

d!Job!Clubs.!

methods!of!fu

ue!of!Saving

£45k!

16/17!

!

£516k!

16/17!

!

FY Revised Bud

225,

63,

288,

2,497,

38,

2,536,

2,825,

k!

atives!this!ye

unding!are!

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

dget

,240 

,040 

,280 

,890 

,970 

,860 

,140 

ear!

)!

/19!

/19!

Page 40



!

!

!

TOTAL

!

!

Reaso

recom

propo

!

!

CCTV!

1.

!

Suppo

1.

2.

!

!

Numb

Antici

FTE!as

propo

!

L!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

in!Romford!

. Any!reduc

who!have

orting!People

. Disbandin

Help,!Inte

. There!cou

replaced!w

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!a!result!of!

osals!

Y!YEAR!!

CCTV

!

!

Supp

!

!

Town!Centr

ction!in!servi

!a!vested!int

e!Review!

ng!the!Mobile

rvention!and

uld!be!criticis

with!someth

area! CC

Te

Su

!

ction!in! CC

Su

nu

!

Th

!

V!in!Romford

The!service!

despite!bein

Co"location!

orting!Peopl

Funding!for!

overall!Gene

preventative

this!service.

e!

ce!could!har

terest!in!crim

e!Support!Se

d!Prevention

sm!from!fam

ing!that!ade

CTV:!2!FTE!S

elecare:!1!M

upporting!Pe

CTV!in!Romf

upporting!Pe

umbers.!

hese!are!cur

!Town!Centr

is!popular!w

ng!a!low!crim

saves!£45k.

le!Review!

Supporting!

eral!Fund!res

e!initiatives!t

!!

Ide

rm!our!reput

me!preventio

ervice!could!i

n!Strategy!(du

ilies!and!reci

quately!supp

enior!officer

anager!+!15!

eople!Review

ford!Town!Ce

eople!Review

rent!estimat

re!

with!the!publ

me!borough.

People!is!no

sources.!The

this!year!tha

entified!Risk

tation!with!o

on!and!tacklin

impact!on!ou

ue!in!Decem

ipients!of!th

ports!and!pro

rs,!and!17!FT

Installers!an

w:!Mobile!Su

entre:!Appro

w:!Until!the!r

tes!and!are!s

ic!and!fear!o

!longer!ring!

e!Housing!Se

at!could!help

ks!

our!residents

ng!the!fear!o

ur!ability!to!s

mber)!and!our

e!Mobile!Sup

otects!these

E!operatives

nd!Responde

upport!1!FTE!

ox.!3!FTEs!

review!is!com

ubject!to!fur

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£561k!
!

of!crime!is!sti

fenced,!and!

rvice!is!imple

mitigate!the

,!partners!(e

of!crime.!!

successfully!d

r!demand!ma

pport!Service

vulnerable!a

s!

ers!+!0.4!supp

Manager!+!6

mplete!it!is!n

rther!review!

£561k!

16/17!

!

ill!high!on!th

is!part!of!the

ementing!a!s

e!impact!from

e.g.!Police,!lo

deliver!the!(

anagement!s

e!if!the!servi

adults.!

port!FTEs!!

6!FTE!front!l

not!possible!t

and!consult

17/18! 18/

!

eir!priority!li

e!Council’s!

series!of!othe

m!disbanding

ocal!business

proposed)!E

savings!targe

ce!is!not!

ine!officers

to!give!exact

ation.!

/19!

ist!

er!

g!

ses)!

arly!

ets.!

t!

Page 41



!

Se

Housi

Learn

Mary!

!

! Activ

! AE76
Cate

!

!

! AE76

!

NB.!Priv

!

11/12!!!

!

!

!

!

What!is

within!s

Priva

There

curre

agent

housi

look!t

to!pro

accom

Cater

The!M

chang

costly

small

mode

volun

!

ervice!&!Ser

ng,!Sue!With

ing!and!Achi

Pattinson!

vity 

630 Borough 
ering Total 

630 Borough C

vate!Sector!L

!£0k!

Private!Sect

Catering!–!R

s!protected!

service!

te!Sector!Le

e!is!scope!to!

ently!directly

t!role!in!resp

ing!need!and

to!increase!t

ovide!direct!

mmodation.!

ring!!

Meals!on!Wh

ge!of!service

y!process,!an

l!amount!of!s

el,!with!a!sav

nteers!to!ass

rvice!Head!

herspoon;!

evement,!

Subjective 

Expenditure

Income Tota

Non-Contro

Catering Total 

Leasing!"!this

1

tor!Leasing!(P

Review!the!c

Priva

!

Cater

!

!

!

asing!

increase!the

y!lease!and!m

pect!of!a!furt

d!ensure!cos

the!number!o

assistance!fo

!!

heels!service!

e!provider!(w

nd!a!loss!of!in

savings.!We!

vings!target!o

ist!the!paid!s

BUDGET

Income

e Total 

al

ollable Total 

!service!aims

12/13!!!!£0k!

PSL)!–!Mana

urrent!opera

te!Sector!Le

N/A.!

ring!!

In"house!se

Current!serv

Saving

e!activity!in!t

manage!895!p

ther!150!prop

ts!of!housing

of!units!we!m

or!more!resid

delivers!app

which!would!

nternal!staff!

will!review!t

of!£100k.!We

staff.!!

T!SAVINGS:!

e!Generation

Current!B

FY Revised B

5,31

-5,74

76

34

s!to!cover!its

Savin

Main!Savin

ge!more!pro

ating!and!fin

asing!

rvice!/!staff.

vices!for!exis

Sav

g!

the!private!re

properties,!a

perties.!!To!r

g!activities!ar

manage!–!wh

dents!to!sec

prox.!110,000

involve!a!pro

and!control

the!current!o

e!will!also!ex

INITIATIVE!

De

!

Budget!Infor

Budget

6,970 

41,290 

69,420 

45,100 

s!costs!

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

operties!and!

ancial!mode

sting!service!

vings!propos

ented!sector

and!have!a!m

reduce!the!im

re!covered,!w

hich!would!a

ure!rented!

0!meals!per!

ocurement!e

)!might!only!

operating!an

xplore!the!ide

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

rmation!

ears!

4!!!!£0k!

escription!

increase!act

el.!

users.!

sals!

r.!!We!

managing!

mpact!of!

we!would!

lso!allow!us!

year.!A!

exercise,!a!

deliver!a!

d!financial!

ea!of!using!!

Service!Area

ivities.!

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£350k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£100k!
!

a!

14/15!!!!£0

ue!of!Saving

£500k!

16/17!

£150k!

£100k!

16/17!

!

k!

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

)!

/19!

/19!

Page 42



!

!

!

TOTAL

!

Reaso

recom

propo

Privat

1.

2.

3.

4.

!

Cateri

1.

2.

3.

!

!

Numb

Antici

FTE!as

propo

L!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

te!Sector!Lea

. The!Counc

not!purely

. With!rent!

properties

. Volume!of

. There!may

and!there

ing!!

. Increasing

result!in!a

. Demand!f

pressure!f

. Undertaki

require!ex

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!a!result!of!

osals!

Y!YEAR!!

Priva

!

!

!

Cater

!

!

asing!

cil!needs!to!e

y!for!a!comm

prices!rising

s!with!rents!

f!complaints

y!come!a!po

fore!the!acti

g!the!charge!

a!net!reductio

for!the!Meals

for!the!Cater

ing!a!full!rev

xpertise!and!

area! Pr

in

Ca

!

ction!in! Pr

Ca

te!Sector!Le

There!is!suff

more!of!the

Unlike!othe

Havering!re

a!savings!ta

Any!increas

activities,!an

ring!

Demand!for

is!essential!a

sustainable!

Outsourcing

strain!on!Ha

meeting!the

!

ensure!that!t

mercial!purpo

g!above!Loca

within!the!LH

s!will!increase

int!at!which!

ivity!should!n

for!meals!m

on!in!income

s!on!Wheels!

ring!Service.!

iew!of!the!op

an!in"depth!

rivate!Sector

n!this!team,!i

atering!:!18!p

rivate!Sector

atering!(Scho

asing!

ficient!scope

e!borough’s!h

r!savings!pro

sidents,!and!

rget.!

e!in!the!Priva

nd!therefore

r!Meals!on!W

and!timely!to

in!the!longe

g!the!service!

avering’s!pen

e!savings!targ

Ide

the!activity!f

ose.!!

l!Housing!Al

HA!limits.!!

e!as!the!num

we!will!have

not!be!relied

ight!lead!to!

e.!

service!cont

!

perating!and

understandi

r!Leasing:!No

f!this!propos

part"time!sta

r!Leasing:!0!F

ools!and!Me

e!(supply!and

housing!need

oposals,!this!

!therefore!in

ate!Sector!So

e!is!not!an!ad

Wheels!is!red

o!undertake!

er!term.!

!would!have

nsion!fund)!a

get.!

entified!Risk

falls!within!le

lowance!(LH

mber!of!prop

e!to!exit!from

d!upon!indef

a!disproport

tinues!to!red

d!financial!m

ing!of!the!m

o!staff!are!at

sal!goes!ahea

aff.!

FTEs.!

eals!on!Whee

d!demand)!fo

d,!and!ensur

initiative!do

ncome!gener

olutions!Tea

dditional!bud

ucing!(as!are

a!full!review

e!many!negat

and!should!b

ks!

egal!requirem

A)!limits!it!w

erties!increa

m!the!activity

initely.!

tionate!reduc

duce!over!tim

odel!of!the!C

any!variable

t!threat!of!re

ad.!!Current!

els):!0!FTEs.

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£450k!
!

or!expanding

e!all!costs!ar

es!not!lead!t

ration!is!a!mu

m!will!be!fun

dget!pressure

e!the!numbe

w!of!the!servi

tive!connota

e!considered

ments,!and!m

will!become!in

ases.!

y,!especially!a

ction!in!dem

me!which!wo

Catering!Serv

s!associated!

edundancy.!!T

team!is!1!Ma

£600k!

16/17!

£150k!

g!this!service

re!recovered

to!a!reductio

uch!better!w

nded!within!

e.!!

er!of!routes)!

ice!to!ensure

tions!(not!le

d!the!least!fa

meets!a!socia

ncreasingly!d

as!the!marke

mand!that!wo

ould!likely!res

vice!is!very!c

!with!the!ser

There!will!be

anager!and!1

17/18! 18/

!

e!to!help!mee

!

on!in!service!

way!of!addres

the!increase

and!therefor

e!that!it!is!

ast!an!additi

avoured!way

al!need,!and!

difficult!to!fi

et!is!so!volat

ould!actually!

sult!in!a!budg

omplex,!and

rvice.!!

e!an!expansio

15!FTEs.!

/19!

et!

for!

ssing!

e!in!

re!it!

ional!

y!of!

is!

nd!

ile,!

get!

d!will!

on!

Page 43



!

Se

Adults

!

Cost

A3412
Suppo
Care

A3412

Servi

AE60
Servic

AE60

!

NB.!Th

!

11/12

!

!

!

!

What!

within

Bette

In!20

aime

servic

enab

shari

prote

!

For!th

!

ervice!&!Ser

s!–!Barbara!N

Centre 

20 NHS 
ort for Social 
(BCF) 

20 NHS Suppo

ce 

00 Adult 
ces

00 Adult Servi

he!Adult!Serv

2!!!!£1,037k!

!

Better!Car

Older!Peo

average!co

Royal!Jubi

is!protected

n!service!

er!Care!Fund

15/16!the!ne

d!at!support

ces!to!work!m

ling!improve

ng,!seven"da

ection!of!soc

he!Council!th

rvice!Head!

Nicholls!

Subjective 

Expenditur

Non-Contro

ort for Social Ca

Subjective 

Expenditur

Income Tot

Non-Contro

ces Total 

vices!budget

re!Fund!(BCF

ople!–!Introd

ost!of!reside

ilee!Court!(R

d! Bette

!

!

!

!

Olde

!

d!

ew!Better!Ca

ting!health!an

more!closely

ed!collaborat

ay!working!a

ial!care!servi

his!means!th

BUDGET

Older!A

re Total 

ollable Total 

are Total 

re Total 

tal 

ollable Total 

t!includes!a!£

12/13!!!!£7

F)!–!£2.5m!he

uce!a!cap!on

ential!and!nu

RJC)!–!Closure

er!Care!Fund

Joint!Comm

Reablement

Assistive!tec

Sign"posting

er!People!

Statutory!se

!

Saving

are!Fund!will

nd!social!car

y!together!in

tion!work,!jo

cross!health!

ices.!

at!some!serv

T!SAVINGS:!

Adults!

Current!

FY Revised Bud

4,609

70

4,680

FY Revised Bud

66,628

-10,575

3,292

59,345

£17m!net!bu

Savi

760k!

Main!Savi

ealth"related

n!the!total!co

rsing!care.!

e!of!the!reab

d!

missioning!and

t!/!enableme

chnology.!

g!services.!

ervices!for!ol

Sav

g!

!launch.!This

re!integration

local!areas.!

int!commiss

and!social!c

vices!will!be!

INITIATIVE!

De

Budget!Info

dget Cost

9,380 A319
Jubil

0,980 

0,360 

A319

dget Fam

8,228 Fam

5,624 Roy

2,560 

5,164 

udget!for!old

ings!Last!4!Y

13/1

ings!Items!D

d!spend!into!

ost!of!a!care!

blement!serv

d!integrated

ent.!

der!people!a

vings!propos

s!pooled!bud

n,!through!tr

The!focus!w

sioning,!bette

are!services,

funded!via!t

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

ormation!

t Centre 

910 Royal 
lee Court 

910 Royal Jubi

mily Mosaics 

mily Mosaics RJ

al Jubilee Cou

er!people!co

ears!

14!!!!£3,641k

escription!

the!Better!C

package!/!pe

vice!and!poss

!services!wit

and!their!car

sals!

dget!is!

ransforming!

will!be!on!

er!data"

,!and!the!

the!Better!

Service!Area

Subjective

Expenditu

Income To

Non-Cont

ilee Court Tota

Expenditu

JC Reablement

rt Total 

ommissioning

Care!Fund.!

ersonal!budg

sible!re"use!o

th!health.!

ers.!

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£2,500k!
!

a!

e

ure Total 

otal 

trollable Total 

al

ure Total 

t Total 

g.!

14/15!!!!£

get!that!is!no

of!building.!

ue!of!Saving

£2,500k!

16/17!

! !

FY Revised Bu

25

-2

2

25

15

15

41

£875k!

ot!more!than

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

udget

56,916 

25,000 

27,300 

59,216 

50,784 

50,784 

0,000 

!the!

)!

/19!

Page 44



!

Care!

Asses

reabl

The!f

throu

!

Older

We!w

receiv

focus

care!

reside

the!sa

agein

!

The!s

savin

Roya

!

Roya

Roya

suppo

down

!

We!a

servic

woul

the!c

!

!

!

TOTAL

!

Reaso

recom

propo

Fund!to!help

ssment!and!D

ement!/!ena

und!will!also

ugh!sustainab

r!People!

will!review!ou

ving!maximu

ssed.!In!addit

package!/!pe

ential!and!nu

avings!and!h

ng!population

successful!re

gs!items!suc

l!Jubilee!Cou

l!Jubilee!Cou

l!Jubilee!Cou

orted!housin

n!service!that

re!proposing

ce!and!will!lo

d!have!acces

ommunity!te

L!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

p!achieve!the

Discharge,!an

ablement,!as

o!be!used!to!

ble!service!d

ur!operating!

um!value!for!

tion,!we!will!

ersonal!budg

ursing!care.!T

help!mitigate

n.!

alisation!of!t

ch!as!the!Volu

urt.!

urt!

urt!provides!s

ng!for!older!p

t!is!provided

g!to!close!the

ook!at!altern

ssed!reablem

eams.!!

Y!YEAR!!

Bette

!

!

!

!

Olde

!

ese!aims.!The

nd!Integrate

sistive!techn

support!the!

delivery!mod

model!for!o

money!and!

look!to!intro

get!that!is!no

This!may!be!

e!against!futu

these!savings

untary!Secto

sheltered!ho

people.!Ther

d!through!a!c

e!reablemen

ative!uses!fo

ment!through

er!Care!Fund

Central!Gov

Maximising!

Improved!o

Services!tha

er!People!

Increasing!d

unsustainab

o Haverin

o People

o Haverin

faster!r

o The!65+

increas

increas

o We!are

ese!services!

d!Cluster!Co

nology,!and!s

implementa

els.!

lder!people,

that!services

oduce!a!cap!o

ot!more!than

necessary!in

ure!demand!

s!are,!in!part

or!Review,!th

ousing,!retire

re!is!also!a!re

contract!with

nt!element!of

or!Royal!Jubi

h!RJC!will!acc

d!

vernment!dri

tax!payer!m

utcomes!for!

at!add!the!mo

demographic

ble!in!the!fut

ng!has!the!hi

are!living!lo

ng’s!populat

rate!than!the

+!population

sing!by!16%!b

se!by!70%!by

e!anticipating

include!the!

ommunity!tea

sign"posting!

ation!of!the!C

!and!ensure!

s!are!outcom

on!the!total!

!the!average

n!order!to!bo

pressures!fro

t,!reliant!on!o

he!Better!Car

ement!housin

eablement!an

h!an!external

f!this!Counci

lee!Court.!Pe

cess!this!inst

ve!towards!i

money!throug

service!user

ost!value!in!t

c!pressures!m

ure.!For!exa

ighest!propo

nger!and!are

ion!is!predic

e!England!av

n!in!Havering

by!2021.!The

y!2021;!

g!an!increase

new!Joint!

ams,!

services.!

Care!Act!

that!we!are!

mes"

cost!of!a!

e!cost!of!

oth!deliver!

om!an!

other!

re!Fund,!and!

ng,!and!

nd!step"

l!provider.!!

l"run!

eople!who!

ead!from!

integrated!h

gh!integratio

rs!and!patien

terms!of!kee

mean!that!th

mple:!

ortion!of!olde

e!entering!th

ted!to!rise!b

erage;!

g!is!expected

e!fastest!grow

e!in!the!num

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£500k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£200k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£3,200k!
!

ealth!and!so

n.!

nts.!

eping!people

e!current!op

er!people!in!

he!system!wit

y!13.5%!by!2

!to!grow!the

wth!is!in!the!

bers!of!peop

£1,000k!

16/17!

£500k!

£410k!

16/17!

£210k!

£3,910k!

16/17!

£710k!

ocial!care!ser

e!independen

perating!mod

London;!

th!more!com

2021,!and!is!g

e!fastest!ove

90+!age,!exp

ple!requiring

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

vices.!

nt.!

del!is!

mplex!needs;

growing!at!a

rall!in!the!fut

pected!to!

a!statutory!

/19!

/19!

/19!

;!

!

ture,!

Page 45



!

Bette

1.

2.

3.

4.

Older

1.

2.

3.

Roya

1.

2.

!

Numb

Antici

FTE!as

propo

er!Care!Fund

. The!Trust'

. Integratio

. Additiona

. The!functi

towards!b

If!this!is!no

health!and

r!People!

. The!propo

. Improving

pressures!

. The!increa

l!Jubilee!Cou

. If!no!alter

use!as!she

. Demand!f

provision,

pressure!o

agenda!an

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!a!result!of!

osals!

Roya

!

!

d!

's!Improvem

on!is!difficult!

l!demand!re

ion!and!com

being!a!key!d

ot!successfu

d!the!commu

osed!cap!is!a!

g!services!for

!for!the!Coun

ased!demand

urt!

rnative!use!fo

eltered!accom

for!RJC!increa

,!this!deman

on!the!‘Olde

nd!outcomes

area! Be

O

Ro

!

ction!in! Be

O

sa

Ro

!

Th

!

assessm

al!Jubilee!Co

Better!Care!

ent!Plan!cou

and!comple

sulting!from

position!of!t

river!of!posi

lly!achieved!

unity!might!b

!reputationa

r!carers!is!a!t

ncil.!!

d!due!to!dem

or!the!prope

mmodation.!

ases!as!a!res

d!would!lead

r!People’!sav

s!for!service!

etter!Care!Fu

Older!People:

oyal!Jubilee!

etter!Care!Fu

Older!People:

avings!here!a

oyal!Jubilee!

hese!are!cur

ment!of!need

urt!

Fund!integra

Ide

uld!put!their!

x,!and!requir

!the!Care!Ac

the!Health!an

tive!change!

then!future!

be!at!risk.!

al!risk!for!the

theme!within

mographic!pr

rties!at!RJC!i

ult!of!the!Ca

d!to!an!incre

vings!item).!T

users.!!

und:!N/A!as!

:!N/A!as!FTEs

Court:!3.83!

und:!0!FTEs.

:!N/A!as!FTE!

are!likely!to!b

Court:!3.83

rent!estimat

d!with!the!in

ated!services

entified!Risk

BCF!commit

res!long"term

ct!could!defle

nd!Wellbeing

and!transfor

integration!

e!Council.!

n!the!Care!Ac

ressures!cou

is!identified!

are!Act!and/o

ase!in!reside

This!would!h

FTEs!are!cou

s!are!counte

FTEs.!

savings!are!c

be!on!the!co

FTEs.!

tes!and!are!s

troduction!o

s!could!lead!

ks!

tments!at!ris

m!commitme

ect!attention

g!Board!is!be

rmation!with

plans!and!m

ct,!and!this!c

ld!negate!an

by!Adult!Soc

or!an!ageing!

ential!and!nu

have!a!negati

unted!elsewh

d!elsewhere

counted!else

mmissioning

ubject!to!fur

of!the!Care!A

to!a!drop!in!

k.!

ent!from!all!a

n!and!resourc

eing!reviewed

hin!the!health

ore!innovativ

could!lead!to

ny!savings!ma

cial!Care,!the

population.!

rsing!care!sp

ive!impact!on

here!in!Staffi

in!the!Staffi

ewhere!in!th

g!side.!

rther!review!

Act!in!April!20

demand!at!R

agencies.!

ces!away!fro

d!in!order!to

h!and!social!

ve!joint!solu

o!additional!f

ade!from!the

ey!will!revert!

If!unmet!fro

pend!(puttin

n!the!person

ing!template

ing!template

e!Staffing!te

and!consult

015.!

RJC.!

om!this!agend

o!move!it!

care!econom

tions!with!

financial!

e!item.!

to!their!orig

om!alternativ

g!additional!

nalisation!

e.!

e.!

mplate,!and!

ation.!

da.!

my.!

ginal!

ve!

the!

Page 46



!

Se

Adult!

Workf

Childr

Bundr

Childr

Disab

Disab

Withe

!

Activ

Adult

Childr

Childr

Disab

Workf

Relev

!

NB.!Se

!

11/12

!

!

!

!

What!

within

Adult

We!a

statu

To!pr

curre

efficie

that!i

Child

We!a

the!b

Looke

introd

!

ervice!&!Ser

Social!Care!a

force!–!Barb

ren’s!Social!C

red!

ren!and!Adul

ilities!!–!Mar

led!Facilities

erspoon!

ity 

Social Care 

ren's Social Car

ren and Adults w

bled Facilities Gr

force

vant Staffing To

ervice!for!Dis

2!!!!£135k!

Reduction

There!is!a!

therefore!

is!protected

n!service!

t!Social!Care

re!anticipati

tory!assessm

repare!for!th

ently!reviewi

ency.!The!sa

in!addition!to

ren’s!Social!

re!experienc

borough!chan

ed!After!Chil

ducing!more

rvice!Head!

and!

ara!Nicholls!

Care!–!Kathy!

ts!with!

ry!Pattinson!!

!Grant!–!Sue

re

with Disabilities 

rant 

otal 

sabled!Child

n!in!staff!num

national!sho

need!to!focu

d! !

!

!

e!!

ng!an!increa

ment!of!need

is!and!ensur

ng!the!worki

vings!target!

o!the!cashab

Care!

cing!a!rise!in!

nges.!We!hav

dren.!In!orde

e!efficient!wo

BUDGET

!

e!

Review!

Salary 

Salarie

Salarie

Salarie

Salarie

Salarie

ren!&!Adults

12/13!!!!£23

mbers!throug

ortage!of!soc

us!this!scarce

Statutory!se

Resources!t

Saving

ase!in!the!nu

d!with!the!int

re!we!can!ab

ing!practices

here!is!cash

ble!saving!we

child!protec

ve!22%!more

er!to!meet!th

ork!practices

T!SAVINGS:!

of!Work!Pra

Current!

Budgets 

es Total 

es Total 

es Total 

es Total (approx

es & Training T

s!includes!sal

Savi

3k!

Main!Savin

gh!introducti

cial!workers!

e!resource!o

ervices!for!ch

hat!provide!

Sav

g!

mbers!of!peo

troduction!o

sorb!the!new

s!in!this!area!

able!but!it!m

e!are!meeting

ction!cases!as

e!children!on

his!demand!w

s!focussing!o

INITIATIVE!

De

actices!and!R

Budget!Info

FY Rev

x.) 

Total 

laries!funded

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

ion!of!more!

and!we!are!c

on!the!key!ar

hildren!and!a

statutory!ret

vings!propos

ople!requirin

of!the!Care!Ac

w!demands!w

in!order!to!i

must!be!reme

g!more!dem

s!the!demog

n!a!plan!and!

we!are!looki

n!reducing!t

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

Reduction!in!

rmation!

ised Budget 

2,434,649 

4,268,295 

3,685,276 

339,364 

497,250 

11,224,834 

d!by!DSG.!

ears!

4!!!!£100k!

escription!

efficient!wor

currently!car

eas!that!nee

adults.!

turns!and!su

sals!

ng!a!

ct!in!15/16.!

we!are!

improve!

embered!

and.!!

graphy!of!

8%!more!

ng!at!

he!

Service!Area

Head!Count!

rking!practic

rrying!high!n

ed!qualified!s

pport!centra

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£100k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£100k!
!

a!

14/15!!!!£0

ces.!

umbers!of!a

staff!such!as!

al!governme

ue!of!Saving

£100k!

16/17!

!

£200k!

16/17!

£100k!

k!

gency!staff.!W

safeguardin

nt!inspection

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

We!

g.!!

ns.!

)!

/19!

/19!

Page 47



!

admi

casha

Child

With!

servic

are!p

socia

deve

the!te

roles!

!

Disab

Curre

two!se

can!le

provid

!!

Workf

The!D

to!sup

2014!a

assura

Gover

this!ha

review

develo

spend

!

!

!

TOTA

!

!

Reaso

recom

propo

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

nistrative!bu

able!but!the!

ren!and!Adu

the!new!Chi

ces!and!impr

roposing!to!

l!workers,!nu

lop!the!role!o

eam.!!It!is!an

we!will!be!a

led!Facilities

ntly,!adaptat

eparate!team

ead!to!confus

de!the!servic

force!

irectorate!is

pport!change

and!Children

ance!of!pract

rnment!fund

as!led!to!an!i

w!workforce!

opment!com

d!will!need!to

L!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

. The!trade!

. Staff!may!

. The!new!m

and!skilled

. Enabling!d

skill!mix!is

. Potential!f

resource.!

urden!on!the

service!is!als

ults!with!Disa

ildren!and!Fa

roving!the!lif

merge!disab

urses!and!ed

of!key!worki

nticipated!tha

able!to!reduc

s!Grant!

tions!to!prop

ms,!one!with

sion!for!disab

ce.!We!are!pr

!proposing!t

es!needed!in!

n!&!Families!

tice!and!wor

ing!for!work

increased!bu

developmen

mmissioner!w

o!be!absorbe

BY!YEAR!!

!

!

!

!unions!may

be!opposed

models!may!

d!staff!could

disabled!peo

s!wrong!it!co

for!reduced!

e!qualified!sta

so!absorbing

abilities!(CA

amilies!Act!w

fe!journey!of

bled!children

ducation!staf

ng,!building!

at!by!introdu

ce!spend.!!

perties!for!di

in!housing!a

bled!people!

roposing!tha

o!introduce!

!social!work!

Act!2014.!!Th

rkforce!deve

kforce!develo

udget!pressu

nt!requireme

who!will!over

ed!within!tea

In!order!to!p

most!efficie

There!is!a!na

numbers!of!

areas!that!n

y!challenge!th

!to!the!chan

not!be!popu

!lead!to!safe

ople!to!be!as!

uld!lead!to!p

resilience!an

aff.!As!in!adu

g!increasing!d

D)!

we!are!requir

f!young!peop

’s!and!adults

ff!such!as!psy

on!the!expe

ucing!a!revise

sabled!peop

nd!one!with

and!is!not!th

t!we!review!

the!role!of!P

practice!aris

his!function!

lopment!com

opment!is!no

re!within!the

ents!and!may

see!all!relate

am!budgets.

protect!front

nt!working!p

ational!short

agency!staff

need!qualifie

Ide

he!proposals

ge!in!their!jo

ular!leading!t

ty!issues.!

independen

people!acces

nd!business!c

ults!the!budg

demand.!!!!

red!to!look!a

ple!into!adult

s!services!to!

ychologists.!W

ertise!that!ex

ed!structure

ple!are!under

in!adult!soci

he!most!effic

the!two!tea

Principal!Soci

sing!from!the

will!include!

mmissioning

o!longer!ring"

e!Directorate

y!create!a!wo

ed!spend.!Tr

t!line!service

practices.!

tage!of!socia

f.!We!therefo

d!staff!such!

entified!Risk

s.!

ob!roles!and!

to!recruitmen

nt!as!possible

ssing!more!ex

continuity!as

get!saving!is!

t!integrated!

thood.!We!

include!

We!will!

ists!within!

and!new!

rtaken!by!

al!care.!This!

cient!way!to!

ms.!!!!

ial!Worker!

e!Care!Act!

quality!

.!Central!

"fenced,!and

e.!We!will!

orkforce!

aining!

es!for!the!mo

al!workers!an

ore!need!to!f

as!safeguard

ks!

become!disa

nt!difficulties

e!requires!sk

xpensive!ser

s!services!be

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£110k!
!

!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£300k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£610k!
!

ost!vulnerabl

nd!we!are!cu

focus!this!sc

ding.!!

affected!and

s.!!Failure!to!

illed!and!ass

vices.!

come!leaner

£400k!

16/17!

£400k!

£110k!

16/17!

!

£300k!

16/17!

!

£1,110k!

16/17!

£500k!

e!we!have!to

rrently!carry

arce!resourc

!disengaged

!recruit!suita

ertive!key"w

r!in!terms!of!

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/

!

o!develop!th

ying!high!

ce!on!the!key

.!

ably!qualified

working.!If!the

staffing!

/19!

/19!

/19!

/19!

e!

y!

d!

e!

Page 48



!

!

Numb

Antici

FTE!as

propo

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!a!result!of!

osals!

area! A

Ch

Ch

D

W

!

ction!in! A

!

Th

!

dult!Social!C

hildren’s!Soc

hildren!and!

isabled!Facil

Workforce:!0!

pprox.!15!FT

his!is!a!curre

Care:!82.44!F

cial!Care:!15

Adults!with!

lities!Grant:!

FTEs!(posts!

TEs!

nt!estimate!

FTEs!

0!FTEs!

Disabilities:

6.2!FTEs!(Ad

covered!by!a

and!is!subjec

!N/A!as!FTEs

dult!Social!Ca

agency)!

ct!to!further!

s!included!els

are)!2.5!FTEs!

review!and!

sewhere!

!(Housing)!

consultationn.!

Page 49



!

Se

Adults

!

Cost

AE60
Servic

AE60

!

NB.!Th

Counc

!

11/12

!

!

!

What!

within

Youn

Servic

tradit

We!w

and!d

that!s

!

We!w

throu

levels

!

As!we

apply

provi

includ

recom

availa

!

!

ervice!&!Ser

s!–!Barbara!N

Centre 

00 Adult 
ces

00 Adult Servi

he!majority!o

cil!also!spend

2!!!!£298k!

!

Younger!A

requireme

is!protected

n!service!

nger!Adults!

ces!for!youn

tional,!expen

will!review!al

day!care)!to!e

services!are!

will!re"comm

ugh!personal

s!of!service!u

e!complete!p

y!eligibility!cr

sion.!We!wil

de!full!consu

mmendation

able.!!

rvice!Head!

Nicholls!

Subjective 

Expenditure

Income Tota

Non-Contro

ces Total 

of!spend!on!

ds!£4m!on!ph

Adults!–!Revi

ents!through

d! !

!

!

ger!adults!(b

nsive!and!do!

l!areas!of!spe

ensure!that!w

outcomes"fo

ission!where

lised!services

using!the!new

person!centr

riteria!it!is!lik

ll!ensure!any

ultation!and!i

ns!being!final

BUDGET

Younge

e Total 

al

ollable Total 

younger!adu

hysical!disab

12/13!!!!£48

ew!services,

h!personalise

Statutory!se

Outcomes"f

Saving

between!the!

not!offer!th

end!(e.g.!res

we!are!recei

ocussed.!!

e!necessary!t

s,!and!will!lo

w!national!el

red!plans,!mo

kely!that!we!

y!changes!to!

impact!asses

lised,!and!en

T!SAVINGS:!

er!Adults!

Current!

FY Revised Bud

66,628,2

-10,575,6

3,292,

59,345,

ults!is!on!lear

bility!services

Savi

80k!

Main!Savin

!with!a!view

ed!services.

ervices!for!yo

focussed,!per

Sav

g!

ages!of!18!a

e!personalis

sidential!care

ving!maximu

to!meet!statu

ok!to!apply!t

ligibility!crite

ove!to!perso

will!not!requ

how!service

ssment!prior

sure!viable!a

INITIATIVE!

De

Budget!Info

dget

228 

624 

560 

164 

rning!disabili

s,!and!£3m!o

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

w!to!shaping!m

ounger!adult

rsonalised!se

vings!propos

and!64)!are!v

ed!provision

e,!care!packa

um!value!for

utory!require

the!minimum

eria!within!th

onal!budgets!

uire!some!of!

es!are!offered

r!to!any!

alternatives!

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

rmation!

ity!commissi

on!mental!he

ears!

4!!!!£1,445k

escription!

more!cost!ef

ts!and!their!c

ervices.!

sals!

very!

n!required.!

ages,!respite!

!money!and!

ements!

m!statutory!

he!Care!Act.

and!strictly!

the!current!

d!will!

are!

Service!Area

oning!(£16m

alth!services

ffective!servi

carers.!

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£1,000k!
!

a!

m!net!for!201

s.!

14/15!!!!£7

ices!and/or!m

ue!of!Saving

£4,450k!

16/17!

£1,450k! £

14/15).!The!

00k!

meeting!stat

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

£1,000k! £1,0

utory!

)!

/19!

000k!

Page 50



!

Have

other

place

highe

!

The!s

items

Disab

!

!

!

TOTA

!

Reaso

recom

propo

!

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

!

!

Numb

Antici

FTE!as

propo

ring!spends!

r!local!autho

ements!and!s

er!than!avera

successful!re

s!such!as!the

bilities,!and!t

AL!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

. There!is!li

. Re"provisi

. Improving

could!lead

. Enabling!d

skill!mix!is

. Further!sa

demograp

. Our!curre

shift!will!b

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!a!result!of!

osals!

relatively!mo

rities.!The!re

services,!as!w

age.!

alisation!of!t

e!Voluntary!S

he!Better!Ca

BY!YEAR!

!

!

!

!

kely!to!be!a!

ion!could!cos

g!services!for

d!to!addition

disabled!peo

s!wrong!it!co

avings!on!no

phic!forecast

nt!operating

be!difficult!to

area! N

!

ction!in! N

ar

!

ore!on!servic

eview!will!pa

well!as!servic

these!savings

Sector!Review

are!Fund.!

The!current

personalised

Comparativ

Demand!for

disabilities!r

continue!to!

strong!and!v

st!more!than

r!carers!is!a!t

al!financial!p

ople!to!be!as!

uld!lead!to!p

n"statutory!s

ts)!for!statuto

g!model!is!ve

o!achieve!and

/A!as!FTEs!a

/A!as!FTE!sav

re!likely!to!b

ces!for!young

articularly!foc

ces!where!un

s!is,!in!part,!r

w,!Children!a

operating!m

d!provision!r

e!spend!and

r!learning!dis

reach!adulth

live!longer.

Ide

vocal!campai

n!anticipated

theme!within

pressures!for

independen

people!acces

services!coul

ory!services!

ry!traditiona

d!could!resu

re!counted!e

vings!are!cou

e!on!the!com

ger!adults!co

cus!on!high!c

nit!costs!are!

reliant!on!ot

and!Adults!w

model!is!very

required.!

!unit!costs!a

sability!servic

ood,!carers!b

entified!Risk

ign!to!keep!t

d!which!wou

n!both!the!Ca

r!the!Council

nt!as!possible

ssing!more!ex

ld!lead!to!an

which!would

al!and!will!re

lt!in!good!sta

elsewhere!in

unted!elsew

mmissioning!

ompared!to!

cost!

much!

ther!savings!

with!

y!traditional,!

re!high!relat

ces!will!cont

become!olde

ks!

he!status"qu

ld!reduce!the

are!Act!and!t

l.!!

e!requires!sk

xpensive!ser

!exponentia

d!lead!to!a!ne

quire!a!radic

aff!leaving!d

!the!Staffing

here!in!the!S

side.!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£1,000k!
!

expensive!an

ive!to!other!

inue!to!incre

er,!and!adult

uo.!

e!net!saving!

the!Children!

illed!and!ass

vices.!

l!increase!in!

et!increase!in

cal!change!in

uring!a!time!

template.!

Staffing!temp

£4,450k!

16/17!

£1,450k! £

nd!does!not!

local!author

ease!as!more

ts!with!a!lear

from!this!ite

!and!Familie

ertive!key"w

demand!(ov

n!budget!pre

n!working!pra

!of!instability

plate,!and!th

17/18! 18/

£1,000k! £1,0

offer!the!

rities.!

e!children!wi

rning!disabili

em.!

es!Act,!and!th

working.!If!the

ver!and!abov

essures.!

actices.!Such

y!and!ambig

e!savings!he

/19!

000k!

th!

ty!

his!

e!

ve!

h!a!

uity.!

ere!

Page 51



!

Se

oneSo

Caroli

!

!

11/12

!

What!

within

Chan

paym

!

!

!

!

TOTAL

!

Reaso

recom

propo

!

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Numb

Antici

FTE!as

propo
!

!

ervice!&!Ser

ource!HR!&!O

ne!Nugent!

Current!co

2!!!!£0k!

Changes!t

is!protected

n!service!

ges!to!(non"

ments/allowa

L!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

. Reduced!p

. Increased

. Proposals

. Proposals

. Increase!i

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!a!result!of!

osals!

rvice!Head!

OD!

orporate!(no

to!(non"scho

d! Pay!a

schools)!em

ances.!

Y!YEAR!!

To!mo

paybi

productivity!

!number!of!E

!compromise

!do!not!satis

n!employer!c

area! Co

ction!in! N

BUDGET

Strateg

on"schools)!p

12/13!!!!£0k

ols)!employe

nd!payment

Saving

ployee!basic

odernise!the

ill!by!£500k.!

due!to!lowe

Employment

ed!by!change

sfy!equalities

contribution

orporate!em

il!

T!SAVINGS:!

ic/Operation

Current!

paybill!c!£80m

Savi

k!

Main!Savin

ee!basic!pay!

s!covered!by

Sav

g!

c!pay!and!var

e!Council’s!ap

Ide

r!employee!

t!Tribunal!cla

es!in!nationa

s/equal!value

!rate!to!pens

mployee!(non

INITIATIVE!

De

nal!HR!&!OD

Budget!Info

m!pa!

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

and!variable

y!Part!2!of!th

vings!propos

riable!

pproach!to!R

entified!Risk

morale/indu

aims!

al/provincial!

e!obligations

sion!fund!

n"schools)!FT

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

rmation!

ears!

4!!!!£0k!

escription!

e!payments/a

he!NJC!Agree

sals!

Reward!&!Re

ks!

ustrial!action

t&cs!

s!

E!2190!

Service!Area

allowances!

ement!for!Loc

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

0!

!

!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

0!
!

cognition!an

!

a!

14/15!!!!£0

cal!Governm

ue!of!Saving

£500k!

16/17!

500!

£500k!

16/17!

£500!

nd!to!reduce!

k!

ment!Services

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

0! 0

17/18! 18/

0! 0

the!overall!

s!

)!

/19!

0!

/19!

0!

Page 52



one
Tra
Sar

11/

 Co
At
Co
Sch
fun
Ref
The
has
no
the
The
Co
pen
affe
Afte
cha
Opt
red
gro
pro
the
cap
Sup
The
on
Fol
Co
pub
com

Wh
wit

Service &

eSource Ex
ansactiona
rah Bryant

/12    £0k 

ouncil Tax
a Full Cou
uncil Tax S
heme and 

nding from 
forms.
e CTS gra
s been red
amendme

e Council’s 
e review 
uncils exis
nsionable
ect working
er much c
anges that 
tion 1 is r

duction in 
oup.  This
ovides reba
e taxpayer’
pital limit fo
pport wher
e net savin
20% to the
lowing Me
uncil will c
blic and oth
mmencing

hat is prot
thin servic

BUDGE

& Service 

xchequer a
l Services 
t

12/

x Support 
uncil meet
Support Sc
came into
Central G

nt has sinc
duced in 14
ents were m

financial s
has highl

sting schem
age in acc
g age appl
considerat
will reduce

recommen
CTS and 

s option a
ates of up 
s income 
or working
re their cap
ngs in each
e Greater L
embers’ ap
consult with
her interes
Septembe

ected
ce

C
t

ET SAVING

Head 

and

Curre

Sa

13    £0k 

Main Sa

(CTS) Opt
ting In Jan
cheme (CT
o effect on
overnment

ce rolled in
4/15 in-line
made to the
strategy.
ighted opt
mes which
cordance w
icants.
tion, eight 
e expendit
ded for co
does not

lso propos
to 25% of 
is too high
 age appli

pital excee
h proposal
London Au
pproval of 
h the Grea
sted parties
er 2014 in r

Claimants 
the propos

GS: INITIA

Council T

ent Budget

avings Las

avings Item

tions  
nuary 2013
TS) which r
n 1 April 20
t which wa

nto the Se
e with the c
e CTS sch

tions for 
h have dul
with law.  

options
ture by var
onsultation
t dispropo
ses the re
the Counc

h to qualify
icants who

eds £6,000
l assumes 
uthority.
an option 

ater London
s.  The con
readiness

of pension
ed change

ATIVE TEM

Descript

Tax Suppo

t Informat

st 4 Years

13/14  £0

ms Descri

3, Council 
replaced th
013. We r
as offset by

ttlement F
core fundin

heme; inste

change in
y consider
Therefore

have been
rying degre
n because
ortionately
emoval of
cil tax liabi
y for CTS.
o would no
.
a bad deb

to revise 
n Authority
nsultation
for Decem

nable age w
es.

MPLATE 

tion of Ser

ort

tion 

k

iption

Members
he Nationa
eceived a 
y savings f

unding Allo
ng reductio
ead this wa

n line with
red and pr
the propo

n put forw
ees.   

it evenly 
impact an

f Second 
lity for the 
  Finally O

o longer qu

bt provision

the CTS s
y in advanc
period is p

mber 2014 C

will not be 

rvice Area

14/15

s approved
al Council T

10% redu
from the C

ocation (S
on. For 14
as covered

h other s
rotected cl

osals for ch

ward whic

distribute
ny single 
Adult Reb
second ad

Option 1 re
ualify for C

n of 10% a

scheme in
ce of mem
planned for
Cabinet.

affected by

a

d the Loca
Tax Benefi
uction in its
Council Tax

FA), which
/15 budge

d as part o

surrounding
laimants o
hange only

ch propose

s the 15%
vulnerable

bate which
dult, where
educes the

Council Tax

and passes

n 2015, the
bers of the
r six weeks

y any of 

al
t
s
x

h
et
of

g
of
y

e

%
e
h
e
e
x

s

e
e
s

Page 53



O

N
G
B
G

W
a)
65
£9
39
ye
Sc
b)

2A
th
Th
is
cl
N
of
c)

It
al
U
lia

O

R

N
G
B

Option 1  (R

a) Redu
15%.

b) Aboli
c) Redu

£16,0

et Savings
LA elemen
DP  £172,8
ross Savin

Who is affec
) All worki
534 JSA(Jo
993,195 Av
964 All oth
ear/£2.96 p
cheme ado
) 177 work

Gross sa
AR is awar
he ‘second 
his would b
a complic

aimants.
eighbourin
f their sche
) 89 Non J

saving £
savings
aligns wi
administ

is fair top s
ready awa
sed by Thu

ability.

Option 2 

educe Cou

et Saving
LA elemen
DP  £ 213,

Recomme

uce Counci

sh Second
uce capital 
000 to £6,0

s £1,244, 3
nt £311,09
831
ngs £1,728

cted:
ng age cla
ob Seeker
verage £15

her working
p/w per cla
opted by G
king age cl
aving £44,6
rded to the
adult’ (No

be an oppo
cated calcu

ng borough
emes.
JSA/Incom
80,152. Th
but alters t
ith Housing
tering & co
slice becau

arded for vu
urrock in c

uncil Tax li

: £1,537,7
nt £384,43
,573

S

S

nded)

il Tax liabil

d Adult Reb
amount fo

000.

384
6

8,311

aimants wil
r’s Allowan
52 per yea
g age claim
aimant
Greenwich,
laimants a
649.
e claimant b
n Dependa
ortunity to 
lation that 

hs Newham

me Support 
his option d
the schem
g Benefit. G
nveying to
use extra i
ulnerable g

conjunction

ability for W

28
1

Savings pr

Saving 

lity for Wor

bate (2AR)
or Working 

ll be affecte
nce)/Incom
ar/£3 p/w p
mants: £610

 Barking &
re affected

but based 
ant).  
streamline
affects a m

m & Thurro

t claimants
does not g
e so the ca
Greater co

o customer
income an
groups.

n with 25% 

Working A

roposals

rking Age c

).
Age claim

ed by the 1
e Support 
er claiman
0,315 Ave

& Dagenha
d by the re

on the circ

e the CTS s
minimal am

ock have ad

 only affec
enerate sig
alculation i

omplication
rs.
d higher p

reduction

ge claiman

claimants b

mants from 

15% reduc
claimants:

nt
rage £154 

m.
moval of 2

cumstance

scheme as
mount of 

dopted as 

cted. Gross
gnificant 
is no longe

n for 

remiums a

in maximu

nts by 20%

by

ction.
:

per

2AR.

es of 

s this 

part

s

er

are

um

%

Value of 
Saving

and
Year(s)

Page 54



G

W
pr
65
ye
39
ye
Sc
25

O

Ba
ev

N
G
B
G

W
Al
65
pe
39
ye

O

Ba
ev

N
G
B
G

W
Al
69
ye
39
ye

O

Al

Sa
G
B
G

W
65
(P
pr

ross Savin

Who is affe
rotected)
534 JSA/In
ear/£3.90 p
964 All oth
ear/£3.90 p
cheme ado
5%)

Option 3 

aseline red
very workin

et Saving
LA elemen
DP  £189,2
ross Savin

Who is affec
ll working a
534 JSA/In
er year/£3.
964 All oth
ear/£2.90 p

Option 4 

aseline red
very workin

et Saving
LA elemen
DP  £141,5
ross Savin

Who is affec
ll working a
934 JSA/In
ear/£2.68 p
964 All oth
ear/£2.18 p

Option 5 

ll Working 

aving: £97
LA elemen
DP  £135,6
ross Savin

Who is affe
521 workin
Pension ag
roperties c

ngs £2,135

ected: All w

ncome Sup
p/w per cla

her working
p/w per cla
opted by N

duction. Ca
ng age cla

: £1,362,3
nt £340,59
217
ngs £1,892

cted:
age claima
ncome Sup
.78 p/w pe

her working
p/w per cla

duction. Ca
ng age cla

: £1,018,9
nt £254,72
515
ngs £1,415

cted:
age claima
ncome Sup
p/w per cla

her working
p/w per cla

Age calcu

76,360
nt £244,08
605
ngs £1,356

ected:
ng age hou
ge protecte
compared t

5,732

working a

pport claim
aimant
g age claim
aimant
Newham, B

alculate CT
imant’s aw

67
1

2,175

ants
pport claim
r claimant

g age claim
aimant

alculate CT
imant’s aw

16
8

5,159

ants
pport claim
aimant.
g age claim
aimant.

lated for C

9

6,054

useholds liv
ed). Will ge
to single ho

age claima

mants: £1,3

mants: £807

Bromley & 

TS entitlem
ward by 20%

mants: £1,2

mants: £60

TS entitlem
ward by 15%

mants: £966

mants: £449

CTS as occ

ving in ban
enerally affe
ouseholds

ants (Pens

27,775 Av

7,957 Ave

Brentwood

ment and th
%.

91,093,17

1,082 Ave

ment and th
%.

6,106 Aver

9,053 Ave

cupying a B

nds C, D, E
ect families
.

sion age 

verage £20

rage £203 

d (Thurrock

hen reduce

5 Average

rage £151 

hen reduce

rage £139 

rage £113 

Band B pro

E, F, G & H
s in larger 

03 per 

per

k

e

e £197 

per

e

per

per

operty

H

Page 55



O

R

Sa
G
B
G

W
pr
65
ye
39
ye
Sc

O

Ba
ev

Sa
G
B
G

W
pr
65
ye
39
ye

O

Al

Sa
G
B
G

W
28
(P
pr

Rea
rec
pro

Option 6 

educe Cou

aving: £77
LA elemen
DP  £107,
ross Savin

Who is affe
rotected):
534 JSA/In
ear/£1.95 p
964 All oth
ear/£1.99 p
cheme ado

Option 7 

aseline red
very workin

aving: £67
LA elemen
DP  £94,23
ross Savin

Who is affe
rotected):
534 JSA/In
ear/£1.90 p
964 All oth
ear/£1.45 p

Option 8 

ll Working 

aving: £35
LA elemen
DP  £48,70
ross Savin

Who is affe
820 workin
Pension ag
roperties c

asons for 
commendi
oposals

uncil Tax li

71,685
nt £192,92
178
ngs £1,071

ected: All w

ncome Sup
p/w per cla

her working
p/w per cla
opted by B

duction. Ca
ng age cla

78,520
nt £169,63
38
ngs £942,3

ected: All w

ncome Sup
p/w per cla

her working
p/w per cla

Age calcu

50,670
nt £87,667
04
ngs £487,0

ected:
ng age hou
ge protecte
compared t

ing
I
a
o
e
i

ability for W

0

,783

working a

pport claim
aimant
g age claim
aimant
Bexley

alculate CT
imant’s aw

0

388

working a

pport claim
aimant
g age claim
aimant

lated for C

041

useholds liv
ed). Will ge
to single ho

ndicative f
and beyon
of reductio
earliest, ho
n full but g

Working A

age claima

mants: £661

mants: £409

TS entitlem
ward by 10%

age claima

mants: £643

mants: £298

CTS as occ

ving in ban
enerally affe
ouseholds

figures sug
d which in

on will not 
owever the
grouped wi

ge claiman

ants (Pens

1,925 Aver

9,858 Ave

ment and th
%.

ants (Pens

3,617 Aver

8,771 Ave

cupying a B

nds D, E, F
ect families
.

ggest furth
ncludes the

be known
e precise f
ith the core

nts by 10%

sion age 

rage £101 

rage £103 

hen reduce

sion age 

rage £98 p

rage £75 p

Band C pro

F, G, & H 
s in larger 

her reductio
e rolled in C
n until De
figures ma
e funding. 

%

per

per

e

per

per

operty

on in RSG
CTS grant

ecember 2
ay not be e

As a resu

G for 15/16
t. The leve
014 at the
exemplified
lt, a review

6
el
e
d
w

Page 56



Nu
are

An
red
as
pro

mber of F
ea

ticipated
duction in 
a result o

oposals

o
t

FTE in N

FTE
f

of the CTS
these redu

N/A

S scheme
ctions.

Identified

e is now r

d Risks 

equired ass a conseequence oof

Page 57



!

Stre

!

!!!!!

!

Ac

Pa
Ro
Se

Pa
To

Gr
!

!

11/1

!

!

!

Par

!

The

add

par

the

!

The

Wha

with

Service!&!Se

etcare!"!Rob

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

ctivity Sub

arking & 
oad Safety 
ervices 

Exp

Inco

Non
Con

arking
otal 

rand Total 

12:!!!903K!

! Parking!s

business!

rking!strateg

e!Council!will

dress!issues!r

king!regime,

main!eleme

e!proposals!in

! Redesig

require

! Revisio

at!is!protecte

hin!service!

!

ervice!Head!

bert!Wenman

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

bj Type FY Rev

penditure 2

ome (3,8

n-
ntrollable

1

services!–!To!r

operation!int

gy!!

l!consult!on!a

raised!by!the

,!other!parki

ents!of!the!pa

nclude!:!!

gn!of!the!enf

ements!and!e

on!to!charges

ed!

BUD

n! Parkin

!

!!!!Current!B

vised Budget 

,619,995 

867,973) 

,305,125 Includ

57,148 

57,148 

12/13:!!1,609

review!the!fee

to!line!with!ne

Savi

a!new!Parkin

e!DCLG’s!legi

ng!priorities!

arking!regim

forcement!se

enforce!effec

s!for!permits

! The!ca

static!c

! We!ha

change

DGET!SAVIN

ng!!!

Budget!Inform

!

!

des notional acc

!

!

Sav

9K!

Main!Sav

es,!charges!an

ew!legislative!

S

ng!

ng!Strategy!in

slative!chang

and!a!revise

e!.!!

ervice!to!me

ctively!.!!!

!to!bring!the

r!parking!ser

car!parks!

ve!proposed

es!proposed!

NGS:!INITIAT

D

mation!

counting entries

vings!last!4!Ye

13/14:!!!

vings!Items!D

nd!operationa

requirements

avings!propo

n!September

ges!to!the!ex

ed!set!of!cha

eet!new!legis

em!into!line!w

rvice!remain

d!changes!in!

above!3hrs!

TIVE!TEMPL

Description!o

ears

1,809K

Description

l!model!for!pa

s!and!services

osals!

r!2014.!It!wil

xisting!

rges!for!!!!

lative!

with!other!

s!in!place.!!N

all!areas!up!

given!the!co

LATE!

!

of!Service!Ar

14/

arking!services

elsewhere.!!

Va

l!

TOTAL:!

!

15/16!

£1m!
!

No!changes!a

to!and!includ

nsistency!of!

rea!

15:!!!1,899K!

s!and!bring!ch

alue!of!Savin

!

16/17!

!

are!proposed

ding!the!3hr!

f tariffs.!

harging!and!

ng!and!Year(

17/18! 18

d!to!the!num

tariff.!!No!

s)!

8/19!

ber!of!

Page 58



!

Resi

Othe

Outl

!

On!s

!

Rom

!

Ado

!

Add

TOT

!

charges

dent!permit

! 1!car!fro

! 2!car!fro

! 3!car!fro

er!permits!in

! Visitor!p

! Business

! Amende

! Health!&

! Home!C

! Waiver!p

! Commut

lying!car!par

! A!new!c

20!mins!

30mins!t

1"2!hrs!=

2"3!hrs!=

!

street!Pay!&!

! A!new!c

20!mins!

30mins!t

1"2!hrs!=

2"3!hrs!=

mford!town!c

! Proposa

ption!of!the!

! To!enab

itional!schem

! The!dev

Extensio

!

!

TAL!SAVINGS

s!in!!Outer!E

s!increase:!

om!£20!to!£2

om!£25!to!£5

om!£60!to!£7

ncrease:!

permits!from

s!permit!from

ed!permit!fro

&!Home!Care

are!(Non!Bus

permit!from!

ter!!from!£30

ks!tariff!

harging!regim

+!10mins!gr

to!1hr!=!£1!

=!£1.50!

=!£2.00!

Display!!

harging!regim

+!10mins!gr

to!1hr!=!£1!

=!£1.50!

=!£2.00!

charging!!

als!to!follow!

Moving!Traf

le!the!Borou

mes!!

elopment!of

ons!!

S!BY!YEAR!

ast!London!!

25!

50!

75!

!£10!to!£12.

m!£71.05!to!

om!£15!to!£2

e!from!(Busin

siness)!stays

£12.70!to!£2

00!to!£450!p

me!for!the!fi

race!free!

me!for!the!fi

race!free!

ffic!Offences

ugh!to!enforc

f!26!Pay!and!

50!

£106.58!

22.50!

ness!sector)!£

!same!@!£36

20!

per!yr!

rst!3!hours!

rst!3!hours:

s!powers!!

ce!for!moving

Display!loca

£36!to!£54

6!

g!traffic!offe

tions,!10!CPZ

ences!!

Z’s!and!5!

TOTAL:!

!

15/16!

£1m!

!

£1m!

16/17!

!

17/18! 188/19!

Page 59



!

!

Park

!

Num

Anti

!

!

Reas

reco

prop

king!strategy

1. DCLG!pu

untenab

2. Political!

3. Utilisatio

4. P!and!D!

agreeme

5. Revised!

!

mber!of!FTE!i

icipated!redu

sons!for!

ommending!

posals!

y!

ublish!furthe

ble!

risk!–!despit

on!risk"!risk!t

and!CPZ!ext

ent!–!risk!of!

business!mo

in!area!

uction!in!FTE

!

Par

!

!

r!requireme

te!current!lo

that!custome

ensions!all!s

non"!agreem

odel!for!enfo

E!as!a!result!

king!strategy

! Reviews

below!t

! Latent!d

! Moving

! Risk!mit

operatio

I

nts!which!m

w!levels!of!c

ers!!will!be!d

ubject!to!con

ment!!

orcement!"!co

of!proposals

y!

s!of!fees!and

hat!in!adjace

demand!exis

!traffic!offen

tigation!on!p

on!–!work!un

dentified!Ri

ake!some!!cu

charges!incre

deterred!by!a

nsultation!an

ost!comparis

P

s! P

d!charges!dem

ent!borough

sts!for!P!and!

nces!powers!

potential!DCL

nderway!

sks!

urrent!and!p

eases!may!be

an!increase!in

nd!then!cons

son!underwa

Parking!strate

Parking!strate

monstrate!th

s!

D!schemes!a

not!adopted

LG!changes!is

roposed!ele

e!deemed!to!

n!charging!!

sideration!by

ay!but!not!co

egy!N/A!

egy!N/A!

hat!charging!

and!CPZ!exte

d!at!moment

s!to!remodel

ments!!of!th

!be!unaccep

y!HAC!and!Ca

omplete!yet!.

in!this!area!

ensions!!

t!!!!

l!the!!CEO!an

is!strategy!

table!!

abinet!memb

.!

is!substantia

nd!challenge!

ber!

ally!

Page 60



!

Se

Regul

Patric

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

11/12

!

!

!

!

What!

within

!

ervice!&!Ser

atory!Service

k!Keyes!

2!£197k!

! To!reduc

! To!devel

is!protected

n!service!

rvice!Head!

es!

ce!staffing!in!

op!a!pet!cem

d! !Strat

!

! W

M

le

p

O

ti

BUDGET

Strateg

services

Services

12/13!£237

trading!stan

metery!!!

tegic!Plannin

Within!Develo

Major,!Minor

ed!service,!st

powers!deleg

October!2103

imescales!wi

T!SAVINGS:!

ic!Planning!!a

s,!Emergency

s!

Current!

Savi

k!

Main!Savin

ndards!by!£1

ng!and!Deve

opment!&!Bu

r!and!Other!a

tatutory!in!ro

gated!to!offic

3,!the!Govern

ith!penalties!

INITIATIVE!

De

and!Transpo

y!Planning,!!

Budget!Info

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

50k!

lopment!&!B

uilding!Contr

applications!

ole!and!the!C

cers!is!the!on

nment!introd

!in!terms!of!

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

ortation!team

Public!Protec

rmation!

ears!

4!£340k!

escription!

Building!Con

rol!the!Plann

(42!Majors!d

Council,!via!R

nly!body!able

duced!new!r

return!of!fee

Service!Area

m,!Developm

ction,!and!Re

trol!

ning!Service!i

decisions!issu

Regulatory!Se

e!to!decide!p

equirements

es!and!loss!o

a!

ent!&!Buildi

egistration!a

14/15!£353

is!responsibl

ued!in!13/14

ervices!Com

planning!app

s!to!meet!qu

of!control!ove

ng!Control!

nd!Bereavem

3k!

e!for!proces

4).!It!is!a!dem

mittee!and!

lications.!In!

uality!and!

er!major!

ment!

sing!

mand!

Page 61



!

!

Publi

This!i

enfor

help!

this!a

Pet!C

This!i

crem

will!re

!

TOTA

!

Reaso

recom

propo

c!Protection

s!reducing!th

rcement!acti

prevent!frau

area.!!!!!

Cemetery!/Cr

s!a!proposal

atory!to!be!e

equire!capita

AL!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

d

S

!!!

Emer

!

! T

!

Publi

!

! E

h

th

!

Regis

!

! S

re

e

!

! M

g

B

!

!

n!(Trading!sta

he!service!to

vities.!!Whils

ud!they!are!n

rematory!

!to!develop!a

established.!

al!investmen

BY!YEAR!

!Trad

! T

st

! T

in

!

ecision"mak

trategic!plan

rgency!Plann

This!2!person

c!Protection

nvironmenta

ousing!,!foo

he!Licencing!

stration!and!

tatutory!serv

egistrations,

xisting!incom

Management

enerator!for

Brentwood.!

Saving

andards).!!

o!statutory!m

st!the!curren

not!as!essent

a!business!ca

!Such!faciliti

nt.!!

ing!Standard

The!work!und

tatutory.!!

The!pet!ceme

ncome!strea

ing!should!a

nning!team!a

ning!!

!team!!provi

n!"!Environme

al! Health! m

d,!noise,!pol

process!!

Bereavemen

vices!with!fix

civil!partner

me!targets!!

t!of!the!crem

r!the!Council

Sav

g!

minimum!ope

nt!range!of!p

ial!as!other!s

ase!for!a!pet

es!are!run!su

ds!

dertaken!by!t

etery/possibl

m!for!the!bo

n!authority!b

are!under!rev

des!the!!eme

ental!Health

meets! statuto

llution!and!h

nt!Services

xed!fees!and

rships,!and!c

matorium!and

.!Income!pre

vings!propos

erational!and

reventative!

statutory!act

t!cemetery/o

uccessfully!e

the!advisory

le!crematory

orough.!Ther

be!designate

view!to!meet

ergency!plan

h!!

ory! responsi

health!and!sa

!processes!c

itizenship!ce

d!the!Counci

essures!from

sals!

d!

activities!do!

tivities!in!

or!possible!

elsewhere.!It!

!arm!of!trad

y!is!a!standal

e!is!no!simila

ed!as!poor!pe

t!current!dem

nning!functio

bilities! for! i

afety!in!busin

arrying!out!B

eremonies.!!C

l’s!cemeterie

!new!Cemet

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£150k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£10k!
!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£160k!

ing!standard

one!initiative

ar!facility!her

erforming.!!T

mand!pressu

on!!

inspection! o

nesses,!as!w

Births!Death

Cost!pressur

es.!It!is!a!larg

tery!and!Crem

ue!of!Saving

£150k!

16/17!

£20k!

16/17!

£10k!

£170k!

16/17!

£10k!

ds!is!very!ben

e!and!could!

re.!!!

This!service!a

ures.!

of! private! se

well!as!suppo

and!Marriag

es!against!

ge!income!

matorium!at

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

17/18! 18/

17/18! 18/

neficial!but!n

generate!an

and!

ector!

rting!

ge!

!

)!

/19!

/19!

/19!

not!

!

Page 62



!

!

Tradin

1.

2.

3.

!

Pet!Ce

1.

2.

3.

!

!

Numb

Antici

ng!Standards

. No!proact

. This!would

. Resources

scheme!an

emetery/Cre

. The!detail

. Once!esta

. Same!repu

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!!

tive!advisory

d!mean!relyi

s!would!no!lo

nd!Operation

ematory!

led!business!

ablished!the!

utational!risk

area!:!Tradi

ction!in!FTE!a

y!work!would

ing!on!nation

onger!be!abl

n!Scaffold!w

case!may!no

Council!wou

ks!as!with!all

ng!standard

as!a!result!of

Ide

d!be!underta

nal!and!regio

e!to!support

hich!tackles!

ot!support!pr

ld!need!to!m

l!burials!!!

s!!

f!proposals

entified!Risk

ken!

onal!!advisory

t!preventativ

rogue!builde

roceeding!w

maintain!the!

11

5!–

rev

!

ks!

y!services!fo

ve!initiatives!

ers.!

ith!the!initia

facility.!

–!this!is!a!cur

view!and!con

r!consumer!c

such!as!the!

tive.!!

rent!estimat

nsultation.!

complaints!!

Buy!with!Co

te!and!is!sub

nfidence!

ject!to!further!

Page 63



!

Se

Corpo

Mana

!

Head!

Comm

Nicho

!

Head!

Kathy

!

In!201

includ

!

!

!

Not!al

to!be!

!

Tota

Tota

Tota

Tota

GRA

!

The!co

comm

!

The!C

subsid

!

It!is!re

includ

!

!

ervice!&!Ser

orate!Policy!&

ger!–!Claire!T

of!Adult!Soc

missioning!–!

lls!

of!Childrens

Bundred!

13/14,!the!Co

ding:!

Core!fund

Small!gran

Larger!con

ll!the!£8.7m!

spent!on!spe

al!General!fu

al!Earmarked

al!HRA!

al!External!fu

ND!TOTAL!

ouncil!also!su

mercial!rents,

ouncil!also!p

dy!of!£223,80

ecognised!th

ded!as!part!o

rvice!Head!

&!Communit

Thompson!

cial!Care!and!

Barbara!

!Services!–!

ouncil!spent!

ding!grants!to

nts!for!comm

ntractual!arr

comes!from

ecific!purpos

nd!

d!reserve!

unding!

upports!the!

,!to!19!comm

provides!disc

02!in!2013/1

at!these!initi

of!the!review

BUDGET

ty! Volunta

at!a!ser

sector!w

Adults!S

approximate

o!organisatio

munity!projec

angements!f

!the!Council’

ses!or!projec

voluntary!se

munity!organ

retionary!rat

14.!

iatives!provi

!at!this!time

T!SAVINGS:!

ary!Sector!gr

vice!level.!!T

will!be!led!by

Social!Care!a

Current!

ely!£8.7m!fu

ons!(eg.!HAVC

cts!!

for!specific!c

’s!general!fu

ts!(eg.!MOPA

7,559,865

10,136

12,400

1,161,385

8,743,786

ector!by!ways

nisations!rent

te!relief!to!9

de!vital!subs

.!

INITIATIVE!

De

rants!and!com

The!review!of

y!the!Corpor

and!Commiss

Budget!Info

unding!servic

CO!and!Citiz

commissione

nd!"!£1.2m!o

AC!grant).!

s!of!subsidise

ting!Council!

4!organisatio

sidy!to!comm

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

mmissioning

f!the!grants!a

ate!Policy!&!

sioning.!!The

rmation!

es!from!the!

ens!Advice!B

ed!services!(m

of!this!is!exte

ed!“equitabl

premises,!am

ons!with!cha

munity!organ

Service!Area

budgets!are

and!contract

Community!

CCG!will!als

voluntary!an

Bureau)!

mainly!in!chil

ernal!funding

e!rents”,!set

mounting!to!

aritable!statu

isations!and!

a!

e!held!both!c

ts!in!place!w

!Manager!an

o!be!involve

nd!communit

ldren’s!and!a

g!that!comes

t!at!one"third

£300,000!pe

us.!This!amou

!therefore!th

corporately!a

ith!the!volun

nd!the!Head!

d!in!the!revi

ty!sector,!

adults!social!

s!into!the!Co

d!of!open!ma

er!annum.!

unted!to!a!

hey!will!not!b

and!

ntary!

of!

ew.!

care)

uncil!

arket!

be!

Page 64



!

The!co

accom

future

Over!t

volunt

11/12

!

!

What!

within

!

With

Servi

HAVC

secto

on!st

Volun

The!C

the!v

includ

Coun

impro

!

We!w

mone

terms

mana

!

Effect

line!s

comm

comm

on!ou

!

The!r

allow

ouncil!does!r

mmodation!a

e!as!part!of!a

the!last!four!

tary!and!com

2!£0k!

Redesign!

dependen

maximum

Removal!o

now!close

is!protected

n!service!

drawal!of!th

ce!

CO!decided!t

or!in!2013/14

aff!or!Counc

ntary!Sector

Council!is!in!t

oluntary!and

des!moving!a

cil!towards!c

ovements!in!

will!review!vo

ey,!services!a

s!of!both!ear

agement.!!

tive!spend!in

services.!We!

missioning!se

munity,!and!t

ur!front"line!

review!will!lik

w!for!proper!c

recognise!tha

and!back!offi

a!new!model!

years,!the!C

mmunity!sect

12/1

of!the!appro

ncy!towards!

m!value!in!ter

of!the!budge

ed!

d! Fund

!

Volun

outco

!

he!grant!to!H

to!stop!provi

4.!!This!is!the

il!services.!

r!Review!

the!process!o

d!community

away!from!o

commissioni

outcomes!a

oluntary!sect

are!outcome

rly!help,!inte

n!the!volunta

will!not!be!s

ervices,!as!th

this!would!li

services.!!

kely!lead!to!a

consideratio

at!it!can!sup

ce!services!a

!of!working!t

Council!has!la

tor,!and!as!s

13!£37k!

oach!to!fundi

outcomes"le

rms!of!both!e

et!set!aside!fo

ding!Volunta

ntary!sector!

omes,!and!de

Saving

HAVCO!for!th

ding!their!ac

erefore!a!stra

of!reviewing

y!sector!to!b

organisations

ng!arrangem

nd!reduced!

tor!spend!to!

es"focussed,!

ervention!and

ary!sector!he

seeking!to!m

his!would!hav

kely!lead!to!

a!significant!

n!of!cost!avo

port!the!volu

and!proposes

together.!

Savi

argely!manag

uch!its!overa

Main!Savin

ing!voluntary

ed!commissio

early!help,!pr

or!the!grant!

ary!and!Comm

organisation

emand!mana

Sav

g!

he!Communi

ccountancy!s

aightforward

its!arrangem

uild!commun

s!being!relian

ments!to!brin

demand!on!

ensure!we!a

and!are!addi

d!prevention

elps!alleviate

ake!the!savin

ve!a!damagin

exponentiall

change!in!sp

oidance!savin

untary!and!c

s!to!review!w

ngs!Last!4!Ye

ged!to!cushio

all!investmen

13/14!£37

!

ngs!Items!De

y!and!comm

oning,!ensur

revention!an

to!HAVCO!fo

munity!Sect

ns!that!add!th

agement.!

vings!propos

ity!Accounta

service!to!the

d!saving!with

ments!for!wo

nity!resilienc

nt!on!grants!f

ng!about!tang

Council!serv

are!receiving

ing!maximum

n,!and!deman

e!demand!on

ngs!by!simpl

ng!impact!on

ly!increased!

pending!patt

ngs.!For!exam

ommunity!se

whether!it!ca

ears!

on!the!impac

nt!figure!has!

7k!

escription!

unity!organi

ing!services!

nd!demand!m

or!the!Comm

or!Organisat

he!greatest!v

sals!

ancy!

e!voluntary!

!no!impact!

orking!with!

ce,!which!

from!the!

gible!

ices.!!

g!value!for!

m!value!in!

nd!

!our!front"

y!de"

n!the!

demand!

erns!to!

mple,!one!

ector!throug

an!provide!m

ct!of!its!budg

remained!ro

£1

sations!"!mo

are!outcome

management

munity!Accou

tions!–!Corpo

value!in!term

Valu

TOTAL!£4

15/16!

£45k!

TOTAL:!£1

!

15/16!

!

gh!assistance

more!such!sup

get!reduction

oughly!the!sa

14/15!£50k!

oving!away!fr

es"focussed,!

t.!

untancy!Serv

orate!Fundin

ms!of!ROI,!im

ue!of!Saving!

45k!

16/17!

!

1100k!

16/17! 1

£1100k!
!

e!with!

pport!in!the!

ns!on!the!

ame.!

rom!grant!

and!are!add

ice,!which!ha

ng!!

proving!

and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

!

17/18! 18/1

!

ding!

as!

/19!

!

19!

Page 65



!

provi

highe

propo

front

budg

!

The!a

volun

!

!

!

!

The!re

to!the

establ

TOTA

!

Reaso

recom

propo

!

The!ke

volunt

in!a!le

!

There

led!se

!

A!robu

and!ev

addre

!

That!a

relativ

!

der!may!del

er!impact!and

ortionally!mo

"line!services

et!reduction

aim!of!the!re

ntary!sector.!

Adds!the!

Provides!

Clearly!m

eview!will!als

e!voluntary!s

lish!what!the

AL!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

ey!risk!in!this

tary!organisa

egal!challeng

!is!also!a!risk

ervices!does!n

ust!cost!avoi

vidence.!The

essed!or!if!the

a!large!propo

ve!impact!on

iver!against!t

d!is!more!eff

ore!into!this!

s.!Cost!avoid

n!within!our!f

view!is!to!im

We!will!look

greatest!val

the!greatest

mitigate!again

so!look!at!ho

ector,!which

e!sector!actu

BY!YEAR!

!

!

!

s!saving!is!en

ations!and!th

e!which!carr

k!to!future!b

not!bring!ab

idance!financ

ere!is!a!dange

ere!is!a!lack!

ortion!of!the!

n!outcomes!a

the!same!ou

ficient!and!ef

provider!cou

dance!saving

front"line!ser

mprove!the!w

k!to!prioritise

ue!to!Haveri

t!value!for!m

nst!future!de

ow!we!provid

h!will!involve!

ually!needs,!a

The!Council!

community!

towards!imp

it!is!most!ne

It!has!been!1

Since!then,!m

infrastructu

is!provided.!

The!commu

service!can!t

nsuring!that!

heir!users,!an

ries!reputatio

udgets!if!the

out!the!requ

cial!model!is

er!that!the!C

of!confidenc

spend!is!loc

and!indicator

utcome!as!an

ffective.!The

uld!reduce!o

s!could!there

rvices.!

way!that!we!s

e!investment

ing’s!outcom

oney!and!RO

emand!pressu

de!infrastruc

consultation

and!which!m

needs!to!mo

organisation

proved!comm

eeded,!and!w

13!years!sinc

much!has!ch

re!services!in

nity!account

therefore!be

Ide

throughout!t

nd!are!robus

onal!and!fina

e!proposed!‘d

uired!reducti

!urgently!ne

Council!will!re

ce!in!the!mod

ked!in!to!/!co

rs.!

nother,!but!it

erefore,!inves

overall!dema

efore!result!

spend!mone

t!that!either

mes!and!indic

OI;!and/or!!

ures!on!our!s

ture!support

n!being!carri

model!!

ove!to!a!new

ns,!away!from

missioning!th

which!allows!

ce!the!Counc

hanged!and!it

n!Havering,!i

tancy!service

ecome!an!im

entified!Risk

the!process,

stly!analysed

ancial!risks!fo

demand!avo

ons!on!dema

eeded!as!cost

evert!to!mor

del.!

ontinues!to!

t!has!a!

sting!

nd!for!our!

in!a!base"

y!in!the!

:!!

cators;!!

services.!

t!services!

ed!out!to!

w!model!for!w

m!grant!depe

hat!brings!tan

the!voluntar

cil!last!review

t!is!an!oppor

n!terms!of!w

e!has!been!cl

mediate!sav

ks!

!proposals!a

!for!equality

or!the!Counc

idance’!inves

and!for!coun

t!avoidance!s

re!traditiona

be!committe

TOTAL!£1,

15/16!

£45k!

working!with

endency,!wh

ngible!outco

ry!sector!to!t

wed!infrastru

rtune!time!to

what!the!sect

osed!by!HAV

ing!!

nd!decisions

!impact.!!Fai

cil.!

stment!in!pr

ncil!services.!

savings!are!d

l!ways!of!sav

ed!irrespectiv

,145,000!!

16/17!

£1100k!

h!the!commu

ich!is!not!su

omes!for!loca

thrive!in!new

ucture!provis

o!review!the!

tor!actually!n

VCO!and!the!

s!are!consult

ilure!to!do!th

reventative!v

difficult!to!ca

ving!money!i

ve!of!value!f

17/18! 18/

!

unity!and!

stainable,!

al!people,!wh

w!markets.!!

sion!in!Haver

provision!of

needs!and!ho

budget!for!t

ed!on!with!

his!could!resu

voluntary!sec

alculate,!trac

f!this!is!not!

for!money!or

/19!

!

here!

ring.!!

f!

ow!it!

this!

ult!

ctor"

ck!

r!

Page 66



!

!

Numb

Antici

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

area!

ction!in!FTE!aas!a!result!off!proposals

Vo

It!is

em

rec

pot

Vo

red

vol

sto

luntary!sect

s!difficult!to!

mployed!by!th

cent!research

tentially!100

luntary!sect

ductions!in!fu

luntary!secto

opped!as!a!re

or!!!

quantify!how

he!voluntary

h!suggests!ov

00s!more!givi

or!!!No!staffi

unding!may!b

or!organisatio

esult!of!the!r

w!many!peo

y!sector!in!Ha

ver!600!peop

ing!their!tim

ing!implicati

bring!about!j

ons!whose!f

review.!

ple!are!

avering,!but!

ple,!with!

e!for!free.!

ons!on!LBH!b

job!losses!in

unding!is!

but!

!the!

Page 67



Cultur

Simon

!

Activi

AB101

AB101

AB102

AB102

AB103

AB103

AB104

AB104

AB105

AB105

AB106

AB106

AB107

AB107

AB108

AB108

AB109

AB109

AB110

AB110

AB110

!

Service!&

re!&!Leisure!–

n!Parkinson!

!

ity 

10 Allotments. 

10 Allotments. 

20 Arts Services

20 Arts Service

30 Entertainmen

30 Entertainme

40 Indoor Sports

40 Indoor Spor

50 Parks & Outd

50 Parks & Out

60 Queen's The

60 Queen's The

70 Historic Build

70 Historic Bui

80 Grounds Mai

80 Grounds Ma

90 Social Halls &

90 Social Halls

00 Sports Dev &

00 Sports Dev 

05 My Place Ce

!

&!Service!Hea

–!!

Total 

s

es Total 

nts

ents Total 

s & Recreation 

rts & Recreatio

door Sports 

tdoor Sports To

eatre 

eatre Total 

dings

ildings Total 

intenance DSO 

aintenance DSO

& Comm Ctrs 

s & Comm Ctrs 

& Outdoor Ctrs 

& Outdoor Ctrs

entres 

BU

ad!

Subj Typ

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

Income 

Expendit

Non-
Controlla

on Total 

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

otal 

Expendit

Non-
Controlla

Expendit

Non-
Controlla

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

O Total 

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

Total

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

s Total 

Expendit

UDGET!SAVI

Libraries,!P

!

Curren

pe FY Revised

ture 

able

ture 

(1

able

ture 

able
1,

2,

ture 2,

(4

able

2,

ture 

able

ture 

able

ture 3,

(3,0

able

ture 

able

ture 

able

ture 

NGS:!INITIA

Parks,!Queen

t!Budget!Info

d Budget 

5,000 

(15,380) 

670

(9,710) 

361,810 

128,790) 

177,680 

410,700 

0

0

460,921 

,631,439 

,092,360 

,430,590 

453,850) 

824,170 

,800,910 

535,275 

127,240 

662,515 

77,200 

12,390 

89,590 

,626,520 

023,250) 

250,130 

853,400 

1,030 

(32,020) 

53,140 

22,150 

146,230 

(11,710) 

92,420 

226,940 

445,080 

ATIVE!TEMP

Descripti

ns!Theatre!an

ormation!

LATE!

!

ion!of!Servic

nd!Fairkytes!

ce!Area!

Page 68



AB110

AB111
Supp 

AB111

AB112

AB112

AB113
Admin

AB113

AB116

AB116

AE215

AE215

Grand

AB13

AB13

11/12

!

!

!

!

!

What!

service

!

05 My Place Ce

10 Supervision M

10 Supervision

25 Health and W

25 Health and W

35 Policy, Marke
nistration 

35 Policy, Mark

60 Countryside 

60 Countryside

50 Music Servic

50 Music Servi

d Total 

300!Library!S

300!Library!S

:!!!108K!

Redesign!o

Reduction

Fairkytes!r

Events!(!se

is!protected

e!

entres Total 

Management & 

n Management 

Wellbeing 

Wellbeing Tota

eting and 

keting and Adm

Services 

e Services Tota

ces 

ces Total 

ervice!

Service!Total

of!Library!ser

!in!Queens!T

removal!of!su

ee!Communic

d!within!

Income 

Non-
Controlla

Expendit

Non-
Controlla

& Supp Total 

Expendit

Non-
Controlla

al

Expendit

Non-
Controlla

ministration Tot

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

al

Expendit

Income 

Non-
Controlla

!

12

rvice!

Theatre!Gran

ubsidy!and!re

cations!temp

Libraries

! All!1

! Budg

Cons

!

Operatio

of!the!gr

! This!

!

(1

able

ture 

able

ture 

able

ture 

able

tal 

ture 

able

ture 

(5

able

8,

!

!

Expen

! Incom

! Non"

contro

!

Sav

2/13:!!!609K

Main!Sav

t!!

eduction!in!t

plate)!

s!

10!buildings!w

gets! to! run

sortium!!

onal!Parks!se

rounds!main

is!a!key!fron

183,600) 

56,270 

317,750 

165,630 

45,060 

210,690 

109,840 

32,190 

142,030 

290,920 

71,810 

362,730 

172,500 

(14,380) 

38,460 

196,580 

652,330 

567,800) 

144,100 

228,630 

,607,265 

nditure 2,8

me! (34

ollable!

6

3,1

vings!Last!4!Y

vings!Items!D

he!outreach!

will!remain!o

n! the! comp

ervices:!park

ntenance!ope

ntline!service

40,779

43,770)

73,060

70,069

Years!

13/14:!!!7

Description

programme!

pen.!

puter! system

ks!client!offic

erations!

!delivered!in

766K!

!

ms,! including

cers,!parks!pr

!108!parks!a

14/

g! links! to! t

rotection!tea

nd!open!spa

/15:!!819K!

the! London

am!and!the!m

ces!!

! Library!

majority!

Page 69



Librar

This!is

numb

librar

the!co

Studie

includ

a!rede

Parks

These

car!pa

invest

opera

Quee

This!is

consid

mana

Fairky

This!is

charg

enhan

includ

progr

Revie

TOTA

Reaso

propo

!

ry!Service!

s!a!statutory

ber!of!savings

ies!with!redu

ore!opening!

es!and!Famil

des!the!intro

esign!of!the!s

s!

e!reflect!an!in

arks!it!applie

tments!and!a

ations!(eg!mo

ens!Theatre!

s!a!phased!g

dered!and!th

agement!bus

ytes!remova

s!a!change!to

ges!(up!to!20%

nced!program

des!reducing!

rammes!in!th

ew.!

AL!SAVINGS!B

!

ons!for!recom

osals!

y!service!and!

s!options!hav

uced!opening

hours,!mana

y!History!Cen

duction!of!ch

service!withi

ncrease!in!bo

es!to;!an!incre

achieving!eff

ore!local!com

rant!reductio

his!may!inclu

iness!models

l!of!subsidy!

o!the!busines

%!increase!"5

mme,!linked!

support!to!a

he!borough.!!

BY!YEAR!

mmending!

Arts!and

! Thes

!!!

!Allotme

! The!

Savi

proposals!w

ve!been!cons

g!hours!and!a

age!a!reduced

ntre!and!the!

harges!for!co

in!the!new!bu

oth!the!charg

ease!in!incom

ficiencies!thro

mposting!and

on!for!the!the

de!a!formal!r

s.!!!!!!

and!reductio

ss!operation!

5%!youth!ser

to!planned!c

a!number!of!

This!will!be!m

Libraries!

! This!is!a

the!stat

geogra

encour

reduce

!

d!Sports!Deve

se!are!very!sm

ents!

small!cost!ce

Sa

ng!

ill!require!fo

sidered.!This!

a!greater!use

d!Reader!Dev

Housebound

omputers!in!L

udget!envelo

ges!for!car!pa

me!arising!fro

ough!reorga

d!reduced!tra

eatre.!Other!

review!of!Tru

on!in!the!out

of!Fairkytes!

rvices!10%!&

capital!invest

arts!organisa

managed!as!

a!statutory!s

tutory!minim

phical!spread

raged!to!incre

d!

elopment!co

mall!teams!w

entre!for!this

!

avings!propo

rmal!consult

!option!retai

e!of!voluntee

velopment!o

d!Service.!Th

Libraries.!!Ot

ope!!could!be

arking!and!th

om!recent!ca

nising!groun

ansport!costs

options!hav

ust!against!ot

treach!progra

resulting!in!i

!20%!room!h

tment.!!The!p

ations!delive

part!of!the!V

ervice!but!it!

mum!provisio

d!of!provisio

ease!library!o

ore!teams!

which!manag

s!service!reco

osals!

tation.!A!

ns!all!10!

ers,!to!increa

offer,!the!Loc

he!proposal!a

her!options!f

e!considered

he!number!of

apital!

ds!maintena

s).!!

e!been!

ther!theatre!

amme!

increased!

hire)!and!an!

proposal!also

ring!outreac

Voluntary!Sec

is!provided!a

on!to!be.!This

n!and!avoids

opening!hou

ge!contracts!a

overs!its!cost

V

se!

al!

also!

for!

!.!

TOTA

!

15/1

!

f!

nce!

TOTA

!

15/1

£100
!

TOTA

!

15/1

£100

o!

h!

ctor!

TOTA

!

15/1

£100
!

TOTA

!

15/1

£300

at!a!level!abo

s!reduces!it!t

s!any!building

rs!and!run!ot

and!network

ts!

Value!of!Sav

L:!£1.138m!

16! 16/17!

£1.138m

L:!£300k!

16! 16/17!

0k! £200k!

L:!£200k!

16! 16/17!

0k! £100k!

L:!£100k!

16! 16/17!

0k!

L:!£1.738m!

16! 16/17!

0k! £1.438m

ove!that!whic

o!that!level!w

g!closures.!V

ther!library!s

ks!

ving!and!Year

17/18!

m!

17/18!

17/18!

17/18!

17/18!

m!

ch!we!have!a

whilst!preser

olunteers!wi

services!that!

r(s)!

18/19!

18/19!

18/19!

18/19!

18/19!

0!

assessed!

rving!a!

ill!be!

will!be!

Page 70



!

Libra

1

2

3

Parks

1

2

3

Quee

1

2

3

4

Fairk

1

2

Num

Antic

!

ries!service!

1. Reputatio

2. Process!r

3. Voluntee

s!income!and

1. Reputatio

2. Risk!that!

3. Efficiencie

ens!theatre!

1. Reputatio

2. Income!ri

3. Theatre!t

4. Theatre!n

kytes!remova

1. Reputatio

2. Market!w

!

ber!of!FTE!in

cipated!redu

!

onal!risk!–!cu

isk"!!ultimate

ring!risk"!cur

d!efficiencies

onal!risk!–pa

additional!in

es!risk!if!grou

onal!Risk!–!Q

isk!–!reductio

rust!cannot!c

needs!to!mov

al!of!subsidy!

onal!risk"!serv

will!not!sustai

n!area!

ction!in!FTE!

Parks!!inco

! The!Co

a!way!o

provisio

!

Queens!the

! This!is!a

years.!

!

Fairkytes!re

! This!is!w

greater

will!also

urrent!service

e!risk!is!that!s

rrent!large!vo

s!

rking!charge

ncome!may!n

unds!mainte

QT!popular!fac

on!in!Council

cover!the!inc

ve!new!busin

vices!valued!

in!higher!cha

as!a!result!o

me!and!effic

uncil!has!a!v

of!reducing!s

on.!Car!Parki

eatre!

a!grant!to!an

emoval!of!su

well!used!no

r!percentage

o!be!required

e!well!used!a

secretary!of!

olunteer!cont

s!!

not!materialis

nance!opera

cility!

l!grant!may!i

come!loss!an

ness!model!to

by!those!wh

arges!

of!proposals

ciencies!

ery!large!net

pend!pressu

ing!charges!w

n!important!b

ubsidy!and!re

on"statutory!p

!of!its!contro

d!to!achieve!

Identified!Ri

and!enjoys!hi

state!uphold

tingent!beco

se!

tions!cannot

mpact!on!Art

d!closes!!

o!continue!tr

ho!use!them!!

L

s

P

Q

F

L

P

Q

F

T

r

twork!of!park

re!without!im

will!be!introd

but!non!statu

eduction!of!t

provision!and

ollable!costs.!

the!full!savin

isks

gh!levels!of!c

ds!challenges

ome!dissatisf

t!be!reorgani

ts!Council!fu

rading!!!!

!

Libraries:!94!

staff)!

Parks!income

QT:!None!as!

Fairkytes!rem

Libraries:!50

Parks!income

QT:!N/A!

Fairkytes!rem

These!are!cu

review!and!c

ks!and!open!

mpacting!on!

duced!in!all!P

utory!body.!T

the!outreach

d!this!moves

A!reduction!

ng.!!

customer!sat

s!to!the!proce

ied!and!stop

ised!!

nding!!

staff,!53!FTE

e!and!efficie

all!staff!are!e

moval!of!sub

staff!(23!FTE

e!and!efficie

moval!of!sub

rrent!estima

onsultation.!

spaces!and!!t

the!quality!o

arks!and!Ope

This!reduces!

h!programme

s!it!to!a!point

!in!the!arts!o

tisfaction!!

ess!!

!volunteering

E!(includes!a!

ncies:!86!FTE

employed!by

bsidy:!!4!FTEs

E)!

ncies:!!1"2!!F

bsidy:!None!

tes!and!are!s

these!propos

of!the!parks!

en!spaces!ca

the!grant!ov

e!

t!where!it!rec

outreach!prog

g!

lot!of!part!tim

E!

y!the!Trust!!

!

FTEs!

subject!to!fu

sals!are!

r!parks.!

er!two!

covers!a!

gramme!

me!

rther!

Page 71



Cultur

Simon

!

Activity

AB1115

AB111

Grand 

11/12

!

!

!

!

What

servic

Yout

!This

yout

integ

A!pro

mutu

work

is!via

!

!

TOTA

!

Service!&

re!&!Leisure!–

n!Parkinson!

!

y

5 Youth Facilitat

5 Youth Facilit

Total 

:!!!0!k!

Redesign!o

t!is!protected

ce!

th!Service!re

s!is!a!complet

th!facilitation

grated!with!e

oposal!has!be

ual!to!take!on

ked!through!i

ble!!!

AL!SAVINGS!

!

!

&!Service!Hea

–!!

tion 

tation Total 

of!Youth!Serv

d!within!

edesign!

te!redesign!o

n!service!!tran

existing!servi

een!put!forw

n!aspects!of!t

n!detail!duri

BY!YEAR!

BU

ad!

Subj

Expe

Incom

Non-

12

vice!

The

cur

wit

peo

Savi

of!the!youth!

nsferring!to!C

ices.!!Childre

ward!by!a!mem

the!services!w

ng!the!budge

UDGET!SAVI

Youth!Serv

!

Curren

j Type FY 

enditure 

me

-Controllable

Sav

2/13:!!!0!k!

Main!Sav

e!Youth!Facil

rrently!work!w

hin!Children

ople!!

S

ing!

service.!The!

Children’s!Se

n’s!services!w

mber!of!staff

work.!This!pr

et!consultatio

NGS:!INITIA

vice!

t!Budget!Info

Revised Budget

910,617

-73,290

188,810

1,026,137

1,026,137

vings!Last!4!Y

vings!Items!D

itation!Servic

with!some!vu

’s!Services!!w

Savings!prop

proposal!wil

ervices!where

will!also!mak

f!for!an!empl

roposal!will!n

on!process!to

ATIVE!TEMP

Descripti

ormation!

Years!

13/14:!!!6

Description

ce!is!primaril

ulnerable!yo

will!focus!on!!

osals!

l!result!in!th

e!the!it!will!b

ke!100k!savin

loyee!led!

need!to!be!

o!establish!if

LATE!

!

ion!of!Servic

600!k!

ly!a!universa

ung!people!.

early!interve

V

e!

be!

ngs.!

f!it!

TOTA

!

15/1

£250
!

TOTA

!

15/1

£250

ce!Area!

14/

l!service!alth

.!The!!new!ov

ention!!with!

Value!of!Sav

L:!£866k!

16! 16/17!

0k! £616k!

L:!£866k!

16! 16/17!

0k! £616k!

/15:!!600!k!

hough!it!does

ver!12’s!servi

!vulnerable!y

ving!and!Year

17/18!

17/18!

!

s!

ice!

young!

r(s)!

18/19!

18/19!

Page 72



Reaso

propo

!

Youth

1

2

3

Num

Antic

!

ons!for!recom

osals!

h!service!red

1. Reputatio

2. Displacem

3. Commiss

!

ber!of!FTE!in

cipated!redu

!

!

mmending!

design!

onal!risk!–!se

ment!risk!–!se

ioning!risk!–!

n!area!

ction!in!FTE!

!

Youth!Se

This!is!n

Youth!F

The!focu

!

rvices!valued

ervice!users!

ensuring!rig

as!a!result!o

ervice!Redes

non"statutory

acilitation!se

us!of!the!sup

d!by!those!w

do!not!find!o

ht!mix!of!act

of!proposals

sign!

y!youth!servi

ervice!to!Chil

pport!would!

Identified!Ri

who!use!them

other!positive

ivities!comm

ce!!provision

dren’s!Servic

be!on!early!i

isks!

m!!

e!activities!to

missioned!in!f

!

Youth!

!

Youth!

–!this!i

review

!

n.!!The!propo

ces!and!it’s!in

ntervention.

o!participate

future!

services:!!33

services:!28!

is!a!current!e

w!and!consult

osal!results!in

ntegration!ba

!

!in!!

3!staff!(16.5!F

staff!(propo

estimate!and

tation.!!

n!the!transfe

ack!into!a!ne

FTE)!

rtionately!is!

!is!subject!to

r!of!the!

w!offer.!!

14!FTE)!

o!further!

Page 73



!

Se

Childr

Bundr

!

Activ

Early 
Troub

Early 

!

!

NB.!W

NB.!Th

!

11/12

!

!

What!

within

Early

We!n

the!se

need

asset

avoid

acros

progr

Comm

(e.g.!

noted

poten

help,!

There

minim

!

ervice!&!Ser

ren!Services,!

red!

ity 

Help and 
bled Families 

Help and Trou

We!will!receiv

he!Early!Help

2!!!!£0k!

!

Early!Help

some!child

is!protected

n!service!

!Help!and!Tr

now!only!hav

ervice!has!ju

to!be!found

ts!(e.g.!co"loc

dance!saving

ss!other!serv

ramme!whic

munity!Secto

nursery!plac

d!that!50%!o

ntial!to!provi

intervention

efore,!any!sa

mise!the!rela

rvice!Head!

!Kathy!

Subjective 

Expenditure

Income

Non-Contro

ubled Families 

ve!£156k!gra

p!and!Troubl

p!and!Trouble

dren!centres

d! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

roubled!Fam

ve!six!childre

ust!undergon

d!through!a!c

cation,!use!d

s,!improved!

ices,!maximi

h!is!grant"fu

or!and!the!co

ces),!and!incr

of!these!servi

ide!immense

n!and!preven

avings!must!b

ative!fallout!a

BUDGET

Prevent

e

llable

Total 

nt!for!Troub

led!Families!

12/13!!!!£10

ed!Families!–

s.!

Troubled!Fa

Minimum!o

Statutory!se

Some!respit

Support!for!

Careers!adv

Saving

milies!!

n!centres!(re

ne!a!restructu

combination!

uring!out"of

partnership!

ising!potenti

nded,!closer

ommunity,!e

reasing!the!n

ices!are!non"

e!value!in!ter

ntion,!and!st

be!fully!unde

and!social!im

T!SAVINGS:!

tion!–!Childre

Current!

FY Revised Bud

3,654,

133,

3,788,

bled!Families!

budget!is!a!p

Savi

00k!

Main!Savin

–!Review!ser

amilies!progr

f!three!child

ervices!for!ch

te!for!disable

children!not

vice!in!school

Sav

g!

educed!from

ure.!Howeve

of!maximisin

f"hours!etc.),

working!in!t

al!through!th

r!working!wit

xploring!way

number!of!vo

"statutory,!b

rms!of!mana

rengthening

erstood!and!

mpact.!

INITIATIVE!

De

en!

Budget!Info

dget

977 

0

120 

097 

this!year,!in

part!of!the!o

ngs!Last!4!Ye

13/14

ngs!Items!De

rvice!for!way

ramme.!

ren!centres.

hildren.!

ed!children.

t!in!educatio

ls.!

vings!propos

m!13)!in!the!b

er,!further!sa

ng!Council!(a

,!clearly!evid

the!children!

he!Troubled!

th!the!Volun

ys!of!generat

olunteers.!It!

but!they!do!h

ging!demand

g!communitie

mapped!out

TEMPLATE

scription!of!

rmation!

cluding!£100

verall!Childre

ears!

4!!!!£1,748k

escription!

ys!of!maximis

on,!employm

sals!

orough!and!

vings!will!

and!partner)!

enced!cost"

centres!and!

Families!

tary!and!

ting!income!

should!be!

have!the!

d,!early!

es.!

t!to!

Service!Area

0k!for!a!co"o

en!Services!b

sing!resource

ent!or!trainin

Valu

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£300k!
!

a!

ordinator!pos

budget.!

14/15!!!!£0

es!and!possib

ng.!

ue!of!Saving

£900k!

16/17!

£300k! £

st.!

k!

ble!closure!o

g!and!Year(s)

17/18! 18/

£300k!

of!

)!

/19!

Page 74



!

!

The!E

delive

servic

addre

!

Futur

revie

!

!

!

TOTAL

!

Reaso

recom

propo

!

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

!

!

Numb

Antici

FTE!as

propo

!

Early!Help!se

ery!of!univer

ce!encompas

essing!schoo

re!use!of!the

w!of!Council

L!SAVINGS!B

ons!for!

mmending!

osals!

. Further!re

(proposed

savings!ta

. Savings!on

demograp

. The!servic

leaving!an

. Aspiration

number!o

. Savings!re

numbers!o

. There!is!n

ber!of!FTE!in!

ipated!reduc

s!a!result!of!

osals!

rvice!aims!to

rsal!services,

sses!the!Gov

ol!absence,!a

!children!cen

l!assets!durin

Y!YEAR!!

!

!

!

eductions!in!

d)!Early!Help

rgets.!

n!non"statut

phic!trends)!f

ce!has!just!go

nd/or!change

ns!relating!to

of!children!ce

elating!to!uti

of!(suitable)!

o!guarantee

area! 81

!

ction!in! 25

!

Th

!

o!support!ch

,!through!to!

vernment’s!T

nti"social!be

ntres!will!be!

ng!this!year.!

50%!of!thes

for!children!

statutory!se

The!Trouble

practice!wo

central!Gove

the!number!

,!Interventio

ory!services!

for!statutory

one!through!

e!fatigue.!!

o!increased!p

entres!is!redu

lising!/!incre

volunteers.!

e!that!the!Tro

1.45!FTEs.!

5!FTEs.!

his!is!a!curre

ildren!and!fa

the!social!ca

Troubled!Fam

haviour,!and

considered!f

e!services!ar

where!poss

ervices!or!on!

ed!Families!p

rk!could!lead

ernment.!

Ide

of!children!c

on!and!Preve

could!lead!to

y!services!wh

a!restructur

partnership!w

uced.!!

asing!the!nu

oubled!Famil

nt!estimate!

amilies!throu

are!threshold

milies!outcom

d!worklessne

following!an

re!non"statut

ible.!Hence!t

statutory!se

programme!h

d!to!even!be

entified!Risk

centres!could

ention!Strate

o!exponentia

hich!would!le

re!and!furthe

working!and!

umber!of!volu

lies!Grant!wi

and!is!subjec

ugh!the!

d.!The!

mes!of!

ess.!

n!internal!

tory,!and!we

this!is!a!trade

ervices.!

has!been!ver

tter!outcom

ks!

d!impact!on!

gy!(due!in!De

ally!increase

ead!to!a!net!i

er!changes!to

income!gene

unteers!will!

ll!continue!b

ct!to!further!

TOTAL:!£

!

15/16!

£300k!
!

e!must!aim!to

e"off!betwee

y!successful!

es,!as!well!as

our!ability!to

ecember)!an

d!demand!(o

increase!in!b

o!the!service

eration!wou

not!be!made

beyond!2015

review!and!

£900k!

16/17!

£300k!

o!protect!sta

en!making!sa

and!building

s!additional!

o!successfull

nd!our!dema

over!and!abo

budget!press

e!might!lead!t

ld!be!impact

e!if!there!are

5/16.!

consultation

17/18! 18/

£300k!

atutory!servic

avings!on!non

g!on!this!best

grant!from!

y!deliver!the

nd!managem

ove!the!

ures.!

to!good!staff

ted!if!the!

e!insufficient!

n.!

/19!

ces!

n"

t!

e!

ment!

f!

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENTS 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: Proposal to amend the Council Tax Support Scheme 2015 

Type of activity: 

 
This is a scheme which provides assistance to people on low 
incomes to help them pay their Council Tax. 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Chris Henry, Council Tax & Benefits Manager, Exchequer & 
Transactional Services, oneSource 

 
Approved by: 
 

Sarah Bryant, Director of Exchequer & Transactional Services 

 
Date completed: 
 

September 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

September 2016 

 

 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes  

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

 No 

Page 79



2 

 

1. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity 
Proposal to amend the Council Tax Support Scheme 
2015 

2 Type of activity 

 
This is a scheme which provides assistance to people on 
low incomes to help them pay their Council Tax. 
 

3 Scope of activity 

Many people on low incomes can get Council Tax 
Support to help them pay their council tax bills.  
The Council Tax Support Scheme is mainly funded by the 
Government although the Council help pay towards the 
scheme as well. 
 
The Government plan to reduce the money to pay for the 
scheme from 2015/2016. The CTS grant has been rolled 
into the Settlement Funding Allocation  which has been 
reduced in 14/15 in-line with core funding reduction.  The 
Council’s budget cannot cover a further shortfall in 
Government funding.  This means changes must be 
made to the current scheme to help bridge the funding 
gap.  
 
The proposed scheme will continue to protect pensioners 
who will get the same level of council tax support as they 
do now.  
 
The proposals for 2015/2016 are to: 
 

· Reduce Council Tax Support for working age 

claimants by 15%. This means that every working 

age household would have to pay a minimum 

charge of 15% of their Council Tax Bill. 

 

· Reduce the amount of savings and investments 

people are allowed to have and still be entitled to 

claim from £16,000 to £6,000. 

 

· Abolish Second Adult Rebate. Second Adult 

Page 80



3 

 

Rebate supports working age tax payers whose 

income is too high in their own right for Council 

Tax Support but who have other adults living in the 

household whose income is low. 

 
 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? 

Yes – changing 
 
 
 
Yes 4b 

Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

5 If you answered yes:  

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Chris Henry, Council Tax & Benefits Manager 

 
Date: 
 

September 2014 

 
 
 

2. Equality Impact Assessment  
 
The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
For more details on the Council’s ‘Fair to All’ approach to equality and diversity, please 
visit our Equality and Diversity Intranet pages.  For any additional advice, please contact 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 
Please note that EIAs are public documents and must be made available on the Council’s 
EIA webpage.  
 

Understanding the different needs of individuals and groups who use or 
deliver your service 
 
In this section you will need to assess the impact (positive, neutral or negative) of your 
activity on individuals and groups with protected characteristics (this includes staff 
delivering your activity). 

Currently there are nine protected characteristics (previously known as ‘equality groups’ or 
‘equality strands’): age, disability, sex/gender, ethnicity/race, religion/faith, sexual 

Page 81



4 

 

orientation, gender reassignment, marriage/civil partnership, and pregnancy/ 
maternity/paternity. 
 
In addition to this, you should also consider socio-economic status as a protected 
characteristic, and the impact of your activity on individuals and groups that might be 
disadvantaged in this regard (e.g. carers, low income households, looked after children 
and other vulnerable children, families and adults). 
 
When assessing the impact, please consider and note how your activity contributes to the 
Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty and its three aims to: 
 

- eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimization; 

- advance equality of opportunity, and 
- foster good relations between people with different protected characteristics. 

 
  

Page 82



5 

 

 
The EIA 
 

Background/context: 

 
The Council proposes to amend the Council Tax Support Scheme from April 2015. The 
scheme provides assistance to people on low incomes to help them pay their Council Tax. 
 
The Council Tax Support Scheme is mainly funded by the Government although the 
Council help pay towards the scheme as well. 
 
The Government plan to reduce the money to pay for the scheme from 2015/2016. The 
CTS grant has been rolled into the Settlement Funding Allocation  which has been 
reduced in 14/15 in-line with core funding reduction.   The Council’s budget cannot cover a 
further shortfall in Government funding.  This means changes must be made to the current 
scheme to help bridge the funding gap.  
 
The proposed scheme will continue to protect pensioners who will get the same level of 
Council Tax Support as they do now.  
 
The proposals for 2015/2016 are to: 
 

· Reduce Council Tax Support for working age claimants by 15%. This means that 

every working age household would have to pay a minimum charge of 15% of their 

Council Tax Bill. 

· Reduce the amount of savings and investments working age claimants are allowed 

to have and still be entitled Council Tax Support from £16,000 to £6,000. 

· Abolish Second Adult Rebate. Second Adult Rebate supports working age tax 

payers whose income is too high in their own right for Council Tax Support but who 

have other adults living in the household whose income is low. 

The proposed changes will have an impact on low income working age households. This is 
with the exception of the removal of the Second Adult Rebate where the taxpayer’s income 
is too high for Council Tax Support and a rebate is paid in respect of another low-earning 
adult in the household. 

 
 

Council Tax Support Case Group Descriptions 

 

Count 

 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Carer 165 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Child Under 5 1 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Enhanced Disability 2 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Family Premium 6 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 1 Child 9 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 2 Child 2 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 4 Child 1 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Non Dependant 378 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Other 2130 

Page 83



6 

 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Severe Disability 388 

Elderly - Non-Passported - War Pensioners 29 

Elderly - Non-Passported - Working 92 

Elderly - Passported - Carer 160 

Elderly - Passported - Child Under 5 3 

Elderly - Passported - Enhanced Disability 1 

Elderly - Passported - Family Premium 16 

Elderly - Passported - Family Premium - 1 Child 25 

Elderly - Passported - Family Premium - 2 Child 4 

Elderly - Passported - Family Premium - 3 Child 2 

Elderly - Passported - Family Premium - 4 Child 1 

Elderly - Passported - Non Dependant 544 

Elderly - Passported - Other 3120 

Elderly - Passported - Severe Disability 821 

Elderly - Passported - Working 11 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Carer 71 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Child Under 5 469 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Disability 211 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Disabled Child Premium 20 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Enhanced Disability 226 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Family Premium 175 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 1 Child 778 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 2 Child 508 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 3 Child 160 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 4 Child 39 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Family Premium - 5 and 

above 6 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Lone Parent Child Under 5 470 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Non Dependant 88 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Other 131 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Severe Disability 79 

Working Age - Non-Passported - War Pensioners 4 

Working Age - Non-Passported - Working 535 

Working Age - Passported - Carer 314 

Working Age - Passported - Child Under 5 206 

Working Age - Passported - Disability 261 

Working Age - Passported - Disabled Child Premium 31 

Working Age - Passported - Enhanced Disability 996 

Working Age - Passported - Family Premium 143 

Working Age - Passported - Family Premium - 1 Child 620 

Working Age - Passported - Family Premium - 2 Child 354 

Working Age - Passported - Family Premium - 3 Child 120 

Working Age - Passported - Family Premium - 4 Child 29 

Working Age - Passported - Family Premium - 5 and Above 2 

Working Age - Passported - Lone Parent Child Under 5 1229 

Working Age - Passported - Non Dependant 351 

Working Age - Passported - Other 1432 

Working Age - Passported - Severe Disability 425 

Page 84



7 

 

Working Age - Passported - Working 25 

  

Grand Total Working Age & Elderly) 18419 

 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Whilst the proposed changes will impact negatively on working age 
Council Tax Support claimants, we consider the changes will not cause 
undue hardship. This can be seen in other London authorities who 
have implemented the same or higher reductions. Within the scope of 
the scheme there is a policy to enable us to consider cases of 
hardship.  
 
Pension age claimants (currently men and women aged 62½ and over) 
will not be affected by the change. 
 
At present approximately 57% of Council Tax Support claimants are 
working age and 43% are pension age. 
 
This compares with the figures for the population for the borough as a 
whole where 76% are aged 18 – 64 years and 24% aged 65 and over.  
 
The proposed changes mean that all working age Council Tax Support 
claimants will have to pay at least 15% towards their Council Tax. 
 
We have identified the number of working households affected. Youth 
unemployment is at a higher rate than that of the general population, 
therefore the more working households impacted the older the profile 
of applicants affected. 
 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
 
Council Tax Support caseload data 

 

Sources used:  
 
Council Tax Support caseload data 
 
Diversity Profile for EIAs August 2014 
 
Demographic, Diversity and Socio-economic Profile of Havering’s Population March 2014 

 

 

 

Page 85



8 

 

 

 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is a slight negative impact for disabled people who are of 
working age. This is because they are disproportionately represented 
amongst those who will receive a reduction in Council Tax support. 
Support is in place for those who suffer hardship as a result of this 
change. 
 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
In terms of Council Tax Support disabled household are those where the claimant (or any 
partner, or child) receives a state disability benefit payment or is seriously sick or 
disabled.  
 
Approximately 24% of working age Council Tax Support claimants meet the above 
definition compared with 21% of the working age population of Havering. 
 
Pension age Council Tax Support claimants are not affected by these proposals. 
 
Disabled people are historically disadvantaged and face greater barriers when accessing 
(information about) services and therefore disabled households are considered to be 
more vulnerable than other households. However, people with disabilities who are unable 
to work receive higher levels of state benefits and therefore, whilst will be subject to the 
15% liability reduction, are likely to have a higher income than other working age 
claimants whose council tax support will also be reduced. With the calculation for council 
tax support additional premiums are also used to increase payment. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

 

Sources used:  
 
Council Tax Support caseload data 
 
Diversity Profile for EIAs August 2014 
 
Demographic, Diversity and Socio-economic Profile of Havering’s Population March 2014 
 

 

 

 

Page 86



9 

 

 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
It is difficult to fully measure the implications the changes will have o on 
this protected characteristic due to the fact that only one claim is 
submitted per household. It is therefore difficult to measure the claim.  
 
Equalities monitoring indicates that a higher number of claims are 
made by females (married and single titles) compared with males and 
therefore the changes appears to have a negative impact more upon 
women. 
 
Support is in place for those who suffer hardship as a result of this 
change. 
 
As lone parents, part-time workers and carers are most likely to be 
women, the impact of the proposed changes is considered to be 
disproportionately higher on women than on men. 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
Council Tax Support caseload data: 
 

Title on claim No. 

Mr Count 2153 

MRS Count 1327 

MS/Miss Count 2346 

Other  8 

  

  

 
 

Sources used:  
 
Council Tax Support caseload data 
 
Diversity Profile for EIAs August 2014 
 
Demographic, Diversity and Socio-economic Profile of Havering’s Population March 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



10 

 

 

 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There could be a negative impact for people of different ethnicities or 
races. This is because there is a slight disproportionate representation 
of black and minority ethnicity communities receiving Council Tax 
Support. 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 
 

  
 
 
 

Evidence:  
 
From the data provided below, it would appear that there is a slight disproportionate 
impact for Black and Minority ethnicities. 85.7% of Havering’s population are defined as 
White, while 80.9% of benefit claimants define themselves as White. 
 
The tables below show the projected figures for the breakdown of Havering by 
ethnicity/race and for Benefits claimants where they have supplied this information. The 
data is difficult to compare due to the different classifications of ethnicity used. 
 

2014 (projection) Number 
Percentage of population 

(%) 

All ethnicities 246,269  100.00 

White 211,126 85.7 

Black Caribbean 3,335 1.4 

Black African 9,485 3.9 

Black Other 4,524 1.8 

Indian 5,813 2.4 

Pakistani 1,820 0.7 

Bangladeshi 1,205 0.5 

Chinese 1,662 0.7 

Other Asian 4,467 1.8 

Other 2,833 1.2 

BAME
1
 35,144 14.3 

 
Council Tax Support/Housing Benefit Claimants where Equalities information 
provided 

                                                 
1
The GLA define BAME differently to the ONS. The GLA does not include a ‘White Other’ Group.  Instead 

they have one category ‘White’ that includes ‘White British’ and ‘White Other’. 
 

Page 88



11 

 

 

 Number 
Percentage of claimants who  

provided information  

White/British  4249 72.8% 

White/Irish  91 1.6% 

White/Other  381 6.5% 

White & Black Caribbean 66 1.1% 

White & Black African 43 0.7% 

White & Asian 16 0.3% 

Mixed/Other 43 0.8% 

Asian/Asian British Indian 71 1.2% 

Asian/Asian British Pakistan 69 1.2% 

Asian/Asian British 
Bangladesh 54 0.9% 

Asian/Asian British: Any 
Other 32 0.6% 

Asian/Other 14 0.2% 

Black/Black British Caribbean 154 2.6% 

Black/Black British African 381 6.5% 

Black/Black British Other 53 0.9% 

Chinese 8 0.1% 

Gypsy/Traveller  1 0.1% 

Other Ethnic Group 86 1.5% 

Declined  22 0.4% 

Total  5834 100% 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
 
Council Tax Support caseload data 
 
Diversity Profile for EIAs August 2014 
 
Demographic, Diversity and Socio-economic Profile of Havering’s Population 
March 2014 

* 

 

Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact 
of the review on this protected characteristic. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:  
There is little information available at national and local levels to make an assessment on 
the impact of the review on this protected characteristic. 

Page 89



12 

 

Sources used:  

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

 

 

There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact 
of the review on this protected characteristic. 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:  

Sources used:  

 

Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact 
of the review on this protected characteristic. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Evidence:  
 
There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact of the review on 
this protected characteristic. 
 

Page 90



13 

 

Sources used:  

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is insufficient information available to make an assessment on 
the impact of the review on this protected characteristic. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:  
 
There is insufficient information available to make an assessment on the impact of the 
review on this protected characteristic. 
 

Sources used:  

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
 
There is no evidence available to indicate there is an adverse impact to 
this group as a consequence of the proposed changes. 
 
However, the reduction in Council Tax support will have a negative 
impact on parents with young children and babies 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:  

Page 91



14 

 

Sources used:  
Council Tax Support data 

 

 
 
  

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Council Tax Support is a means tested scheme available to 
households on a low income. Therefore all recipients would be 
considered to be at a socio-economic disadvantage, particularly lone 
parents (most likely to be women), part-time workers (most likely to be 
women), working-age couples on low income, large households (more 
likely to be from BME backgrounds) and carers (most likely to be 
women). 
 
Pension age Council Tax Support claimants will not be affected and will 
continue to receive similar levels of support with their council tax bills 
as they do at present. 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 

 

Sources used:  
 
Council Tax Support caseload data 
 
Diversity Profile for EIAs August 2014 
 
Demographic, Diversity and Socio-economic Profile of Havering’s Population 
March 2014 
 

 

Page 92



A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

 In
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
g
e

 
 

ü
 

W
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

4
 

a
n

d
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 
re

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

to
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r.

 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

ill
 

h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

p
p
e

a
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
y
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
ri
te

ri
a

 a
n
d

 
m

e
th

o
d
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 
th

e
y
 n

e
e
d

. 
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 c

h
e

c
k
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

T
h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 
c
o

lla
te

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

re
g
u

la
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
 

 

   

   

Page 93



1
6
 

 

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
 

ü
 

W
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

  
O

c
to

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4
 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 t

o
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
in

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r.

 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

ill
 

h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

p
p
e

a
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
y
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
ri
te

ri
a

 a
n
d

 
m

e
th

o
d
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 
th

e
y
 n

e
e
d

. 
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 c

h
e

c
k
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

T
h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 
c
o

lla
te

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

re
g
u

la
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
 

 

   

    

S
e

x
/g

e
n

d
e

r 
 

ü
 

W
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4
 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 t

o
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
in

 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

ill
 

h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

p
p
e

a
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
y
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
ri
te

ri
a

 a
n
d

 
m

e
th

o
d
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 

 
 

Page 94



1
7
 

 

D
e
c
e

m
b

e
r.

 
th

e
y
 n

e
e
d

. 
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 c

h
e

c
k
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

T
h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 
c
o

lla
te

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

re
g
u

la
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
 

 

E
th

n
ic

it
y
/r

a
c
e

 
  

 

ü
 

W
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r  
a

n
d

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4
 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 t

o
 

C
a
b

in
e

t 
in

 
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r.

 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

s
 w

ill
 

h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 f
o

rm
a

l 
a

p
p
e

a
l 
a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
y
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
ri
te

ri
a

 a
n
d

 
m

e
th

o
d
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 
th

e
y
 n

e
e
d

. 
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 c

h
e

c
k
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

T
h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 
c
o

lla
te

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

n
d

 

 
 

Page 95



1
8
 

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

re
g
u

la
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 s
e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
 

 

R
e
lig

io
n

/f
a

it
h
 

N
o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 

 
 

 
 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

N
o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 

 
 

 
 

G
e

n
d
e

r 
re

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t  

N
o

n
e
 

 
 

 
 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

/c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

a
n

d
 

N
o
n

e
 

 
 

 
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
/ 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
/p

a
te

rn
it
y
 

N
o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 

 
 

 
 

   * 
Y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

a
n

y
 f

u
tu

re
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

s
 y

o
u

 w
ill

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 n
e

g
a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 
 **

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
: 

Y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 s

ta
te

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n
it
o

re
d

; 
h

o
w

 r
e
g
u

la
rl

y
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

; 
a
n

d
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

it
 (

if
 t
h

is
 i
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 l
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r)

. 
  

  

Page 96



1
9
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

 In
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 h
o

w
 f

re
q
u

e
n

tl
y
 t

h
e

 E
IA

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
; 

th
e
 d

a
te

 f
o

r 
n
e

x
t 
re

v
ie

w
; 

a
n

d
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 i
t.

 
 T

h
e

 E
IA

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
t 

b
i-

a
n
n

u
a

l 
in

te
rv

a
ls

 o
r 

e
a

rl
ie

r 
if
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
th

a
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
6

. 
  

 

Page 97



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: Proposed changes to parking Fees and Charges 

Type of activity: Budget Proposals 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Tina Brooks, Assistant Group Manager, Traffic & Parking 
Services, Streetcare, Culture, Community & Economic 
Development directorate 

 
Approved by: 
 

Bob Wenman Head of Streetcare, Culture, Community & 
Economic Development directorate 

 
Date completed: 
 

September 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

Will be reviewed on each occasion significant changes are 
made to the charging policy 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes  

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

 No 

Page 98



 

21 

 

3. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity Proposed changes to parking fees and charges 

2 Type of activity 
Budget Proposals 
 

3 Scope of activity 

 
To amend charges for parking activities within the 
authority.  To provide the amenity of parking spaces for 
business and residents, to ensure adequate turnover of 
parking space and to maintain road safety.  
 
Changes to price and to allow some limited free parking 
time to support local business. 
 
To review parking payment mechanisms, to upgrade pay 
and display machines and to consider the introduction of 
cashless parking facilities. 
 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? Yes  

 

Yes 
4b 

Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 
 
N/A 
 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Tina Brooks, Assistant Group Manager, Traffic & Parking 
Services 

 
Date: 
 

September 2014

Page 99



 

22 

 

4. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background/context: 

 
The Council provides 8422 parking spaces borough wide, off street (2643) on street (779 
a number of which are dedicated for use of blue badge holders in accordance with the 
recommended ratio given by the Office for National Statistics) and 5000 resident only 
parking spaces. 
 
Parking spaces are provided to accommodate either long or short stay parking suitable 
for each specific area e.g. long stay commuter parking or short stay shopping either on or 
off street. 
 
Short stay parking charges are designed to promote the responsible use of the available 
parking spaces by shoppers to ensure turnover of space and to promote the local 
economy. 
 
Permit parking reserves spaces for specific parts of the community e.g. local business or 
residents who would otherwise be unable to have reasonable access to parking close to 
their properties if space was not controlled through means of a permit system due to 
commuter or retail activities.  
 
Increases in charges will ensure the costs of providing these services are met; any 
surplus income derived from the on street parking service may only be used in 
accordance with section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. 
 
It is proposed to review parking charges and the payment mechanisms through upgrading 
existing pay and display equipment and to consider the introduction of cashless parking 
facilities for all that use parking facilities within the borough. Upgrading the machines is 
essential to facilitate free parking sessions to be offered for limited time periods. This will 
require motorists to input vehicle registration numbers at the machines and to place pay 
and display tickets within the windscreen of their vehicles.  
 
Cashless parking system will provide an alternative payment mechanism as an 
enhancement to customer service. Payment by phone, text or online  will eliminate the 
need for the driver to have the correct change available upon parking and will provide the 
additional facility of allowing a top up payment to be made without the need to return to 
the vehicle if the driver is delayed.  This service has proven successful in other authorities 
where increasing usage of this payment method has led to reduced costs in respect of 
machine maintenance and cash collection. The reduced volume of cash collection 
improves security of both staff and Council income.   
 
Currently Blue Badges issued to disabled persons may be used without charge on all 
permitted parking bays in the Borough with the exception of specific voucher bays which 
are specifically signed.  There is no anticipated change to the existing Blue Badge 
arrangements at this time. 

 
 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Page 100



 

23 

 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
It is envisaged the proposals will impact positively on all age groups 
who wish to visit the town centres. The free parking time permitted will 
allow for short stay parking with greater turnover of parking space 
availability which will particularly benefit people with disabilities and 
parents/ carers with young children, who will have improved 
opportunities to park. 
 
 

 

Positive ü 

Neutral  

Negative  

 
As the current parking mechanisms will remain in place there is no anticipated change to 
any age group  from the introduction of mobile phones as an extra means of payment 
which is being introduced as a customer care initiative 
 
 

 

 
Sources used:  
 
 

 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant 
box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Currently Blue Badges issued to disabled persons may be used without 
charge on all bays in the Borough with the exception of specific 
voucher bays which are specifically signed.  There is no anticipated 
change to the existing arrangements at this time. 
 

However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay 
parking with greater turnover of parking space availability which will 

particularly benefit people with disabilities who will have improved 
opportunities to park. 

Positive ü 

Neutral  

Negative  

 
Evidence:   
 
No data on disabled usage is currently available and comments are based on anecdotal 
information only. 
 
As the current parking mechanisms will remain in place there is no anticipated change to 
any group  from the introduction of mobile phones as an extra means of payment which is 
being introduced as a customer care initiative 
 
 
 

Page 101



 

24 

 

 

 
Sources used:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant 
box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data is collected on users of parking services. 
There is no indication that the proposal will have any disproportionate 
impact on this protected characteristic.  
However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay 
parking with greater turnover of parking space availability which will 
particularly benefit people by having improved opportunities to park. 
 
 
 

 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 
Evidence:   
 
No data on sex/gender usage is currently available.  
 
 

 

 
Sources used:  
 
London Councils report The Relevance of Parking in the Success of Urban Town 
Centres, 2012  
 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant 

Overall impact:  
 

Page 102



 

25 

 

box: No data available. 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposals will have a 
disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic 
 
 
 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:  
 
No data on ethnicity or national group usage is currently available  
 
However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay parking with greater 
turnover of parking space availability which will particularly benefit people by having 
improved opportunities to park. 
 
 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
London Councils report The Relevance of Parking in the Success of Urban Town 
Centres, 2012  
 
 
 
 

 

 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data available. 
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposals will have a 
disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic. 
 
 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
No data usage based on different religions or beliefs, including those with no religion or 
belief is currently available. 
 
However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay parking with greater 
turnover of parking space availability which will particularly benefit people by having 
improved opportunities to park. 

Page 103



 

26 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data available 
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposals will have a 
disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic.  
 
However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay 
parking with greater turnover of parking space availability which will 
particularly benefit people by having improved opportunities to park. 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
No data usage based on sexual orientation is currently available 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data available 
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposals will have a 
disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic. 
 
However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay 
parking with greater turnover of parking space availability which will 
particularly benefit people by having improved opportunities to park. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 104



 

27 

 

 

 

Evidence:   
 
No data usage based on gender identity is currently available 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data available. 
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposals will have a 
disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic. 
  
However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay 
parking with greater turnover of parking space availability which will 
particularly benefit people by having improved opportunities to park. 
 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
  
No data usage based on this protected characteristic is currently available 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
 
 

 
 

Page 105



 

28 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data available. 
 
There is no evidence to suggest that the proposal will have a 
disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic. 
 
 
However the free parking time permitted will allow for short stay 
parking with greater turnover of parking space availability which will 
particularly benefit people by having improved opportunities to park 
 
 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 
No data usage based on this protected characteristic is currently available 

 

Sources used:  
 
 
 
 
 

*Expand box as required 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds  
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
The increased charges for longer term parking may have a negative 
effect on those on low income or financially excluded backgrounds, 
however, the short free parking periods available may assist with the 
cost of short term visits to town centres. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 
 

Evidence:   
 
No data usage in respect of parking usage based on socio-economic groups currently 
available  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 106



 

29 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
 
 
 

 

 

  

Page 107



  A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
g
e

 
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 

 G
e

n
d
e

r 
 P

re
g
n

a
n

c
y
 /

 
M

a
te

rn
it
y
 /

 
P

a
te

rn
it
y
 

 S
o

c
io

-e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

T
h
e

 d
a

ta
 w

e
 h

o
ld

 
is

 v
a

ri
e

d
 a

n
d

  
 

lim
it
s
 u

s
 t
o

 f
u

lly
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e

rs
 w

it
h

 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 g

a
p

s
 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

r 

d
a

ta
 

U
s
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
 t
o

 
in

fo
rm

 f
in

a
l 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
a

v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
     

F
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 

d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

 
   

    

S
o

c
io

-
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
g
ro

u
p

s
 

lo
w

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
r 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

lly
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
 

A
re

a
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 

to
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 

p
a

rk
in

g
 p

a
tt
e

rn
s
 

a
n

d
 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

p
a

rk
in

g
 u

s
a

g
e

. 

 

   

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 b

a
s
is

 

  

B
o

b
 W

e
n
m

a
n

 

  

 * 
Y

o
u

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

a
n

y
 f

u
tu

re
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

s
 y

o
u

 w
ill

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 n
e

g
a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 

Page 108



 

3
1
 

  **
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
: 

Y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 s

ta
te

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n
it
o

re
d

; 
h

o
w

 r
e
g
u

la
rl

y
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

; 
a
n

d
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

it
 (

if
 t
h

is
 i
s
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 l
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r)

. 
  

  R
e
v
ie

w
 

 G
ro

u
p

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r 
P

a
rk

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
. 

    
 

Page 109



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: Budget proposals for Fairkytes Arts Centre  

Type of activity: 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Approved by: 
 

Cynthia Griffin, Group Director, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date completed: 
 

September 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

Following a review of the proposals, the EIA will be revised in 
January 2015.  

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes  

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 110



 

33 

 

5. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity Budget proposals for Fairkytes Arts Centre 2014 

2 Type of activity 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

3 Scope of activity 

 
Budget proposals for Fairkytes Arts Centre in order for 
them to move towards a Cost Recovery business model 
(receiving no subsidy from the Council).  
 
Whilst several changes are proposed, the existing offer to 
the community will be preserved as much as possible and 
savings realised through wholesale reductions in services 
are not being considered.  
 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? Yes - changing 

 
Yes  

4b 
Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 
 
N/A 
 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date: 
 

10th September 2014 

 
 

 

 

Page 111



 

34 

 

6. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background/context: 

 
As part of the Council’s budget reductions, Fairkytes Arts Centre is considering proposals 
to move towards a Cost Recovery business model so that it can operate without subsidy 
from the London Borough of Havering, to sustain its long term future. This will mean 
changes to the existing business model and changes to the nature and style of available 
activities.   
 
As part of the changes, the way Fairkytes operates is being reviewed, moving from 
‘service delivery’ to a more commercially oriented approach. This will be achieved 
through: 
 

· Operational savings and efficiencies 
(For example, changes to the contracting arrangements for drinks machines and 
ground maintenance) 
 

· Savings realised through changes to, and development of, the cultural offer of 
Fairkytes and the wider Arts service 
(Changes to the way in which annual exhibitions and competitions are managed 
and delivered, reduction in funding to events and projects, introduction of ticketed 
events and providing more services through Fairkytes Arts Centre rather than 
commissioning from external providers)  

 

· Additional income realised through existing programmes 

(Increases in Fees and Charges for room and hall hire, studio lets and adult 

workshops. No plans to increase fees for children’s workshops) 

· Big Ideas – income realised through new or additional activities and programmes 
(A series of new ticketed events to be introduced) 

 
The cultural offer available to the community will be impacted and the Arts Service as a 
whole needs to become a more event-oriented and a commercially aware organisation, 
with less subsidy for developmental work, in order to develop a sustainable future. 
However, at this stage, the existing offer to the community will be preserved as much as 
possible and savings realised through wholesale reductions in services are not being 
considered. 
 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Fairkytes Arts Centre runs a number of workshops for Adults (16+ or 
18) and Children (5+), as well as being used by independent groups 
and making rooms available for hire for regular and one off events.  
 
From April-July 2014/15 there have been 1395 attendances at Adult 
Workshops (41%) and 2029 attendances at Children’s Workshops 
(59%). No increases in charges are proposed for Children’s 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

Page 112



 

35 

 

Workshops, so the changes will have a disproportionate impact on the 
existing adult users (these figures do not take into account the use of 
Fairkytes for private hire or events).  
 
The Fairkytes Survey 2014 (completed by Adults only) shows that the 
age profile of Fairkytes adult users is predominantly older residents 
aged 55-84 (87%). This is disproportionately higher than the number of 
residents aged 55-84 living in the Borough at 27% and the percentage 
of residents aged 55-84 in St Andrews Ward at 30%, where Fairkytes 
Arts Centre is located (Census 2011).  
 
Changes to the way in which exhibitions and competitions are 
managed (particularly if there is a rationalisation of these) may impact 
this age group disproportionally. Increases in fees and charges for 
room hire and tickets for events may also make some activities less 
affordable and again this may impact this age group more than others.  
At the same time, however, the development of the adults’ cultural offer 
available in the centre may also benefit this group.  
 
The Arts Service has funded many groups and projects in recent years 
aimed at young people (13-19) and reduction and/or removal of these 
may be perceived as negatively impacting this age group. However, 
the groups that received this funding achieved relatively small outputs. 
Therefore, by reallocating resources and running events and activities 
through Fairkytes Arts Centre, we believe we will reach and benefit a 
greater number of young people.  
 
In the case of Romford Contemporary Arts Programme (RCAP), 
funding over the last 3 years has enabled the group to become 
established and they are in the process of moving to an independent 
Community Interest Company status with considerable external funding 
opportunities via private sector and Economic Development 
partnerships. RCAP’s sustainability and legacy are therefore assured 
and there is little necessity for Cultural Services funding to continue at 
this level.  
 

 

Evidence:   
 
Service level performance data illustrates that 41% of attendances for workshops so far in 
2014/15 were Adults (16+ or 18+ dependant on the workshop). The 2014 Fairkytes 
Survey (competed by adults only) showed that the age profile of Fairkytes adult users is 
predominantly older residents aged 55-84 (87%). (Data from those that completed the 
survey only). This is disproportionately higher than the number of residents aged 55-84 
living in the Borough at 27% (64,600 residents) and the percentage of residents aged 55-
84 in St Andrews Ward at 30%, (3951 residents) where Fairkytes Arts Centre is located 
(Census 2011).  
 
The Fairkytes Survey is completed by adults only and the small number of surveys 
completed means that the figures are not representative of all Fairkytes users, providing 
an indication only. Future Fairkytes Surveys will be reviewed so that they include the 
questions that will provide us with the data we need. The distribution of the survey will 
also be reviewed so that we get a higher number of respondents and the data is therefore 

Page 113



 

36 

 

more representative. 

 

Sources used:  
 
Service level performance data 2014/15 
Fairkytes Survey 2014 
Census 2011, Office of National Statistics 
 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Fairkytes Survey data 2012 and 2014 illustrates that a number of 
Fairkytes survey respondents have a disability. However the survey is 
only completed by adults who partake in workshops and not those that 
use the centre for private hire and / or events. It is therefore likely that 
the number of Fairkytes users with a disability is proportionally higher, 
particularly as there are activities that take place at the centre that are 
aimed at disabled participants who may experience difficulties 
responding to a written survey. 
 
Whilst this group will be impacted negatively by increases in fees and 
charges, the development of the adults’ cultural offer available in the 
centre may also benefit this group. The future programmes of work 
could also be developed in a way that is more inclusive for disabled 
and all users. 
 
In light of the limited evidence from the Fairkytes Survey the impact on 
this group is not yet known. This gap in information will be addressed.   

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
7% (or 12 people) of the 163 people who answered a question on disability as part of the 
Fairkytes Annual Survey 2014 stated they had a disability. This is lower than the figure for 
the 2012 Survey at 16% (22 of 138 who answered this question in 2012). These figures 
are lower than the  percentage of working age people (16-64) with a disability or long term 
health condition in Havering (21%) and lower than the figure for the percentage of older 
people (65+) with a disability or long term health condition in Havering (52%).  
 
While based on this data there doesn’t appear to be a disproportionate impact on this 
group compared to other groups, we recognise that the data we hold has its limitations 
and gaps.  
 
The Fairkytes Annual Survey is completed by adults only and the small number of surveys 
completed means that the figures are not representative of all Fairkytes users, providing 
an indication only. It is also recognised that people with learning difficulties and 
disabilities, BSL users and service users with sight difficulties/disabilities might be under-
represented in the respondents’ profile due to barriers in completing this survey. 
 
Other than the Fairkytes Annual Survey, no data on disability is currently collected. 
Therefore the impact on this group is not yet known.  

Page 114



 

37 

 

 
Future Fairkytes Surveys will be reviewed so that they include the questions that will 
provide us with the data we need. The distribution of the survey will also be reviewed so 
that we get a higher number of respondents and the data is therefore more 
representative. 

 

Sources used:  
 
2012/13 Annual Population Survey, Office of National Statistics 
2011 Census, Office of National Statistics 
Fairkytes Annual Survey 2014 and 2012 
 
 

 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
In total more women attend Fairkytes Arts Centre than men. Women 
will therefore be disproportionally affected by the proposals to change 
the nature and style of available activities, increase fees and charges 
and ticket events. Conversely there will be the opposite affect for men. 
 
At the same time, however, the development of the adults’ cultural offer 
available in the centre may also benefit this group. 
 

Positive  

Neutral ü 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
In 2013/14 of the 83,458 attendances at Fairkytes Arts Center, 66,416 provided their 
gender (non- unique). Of these 45,869 (69%) were women and girls and 20,547 (31%) 
were men and boys.  
 
As of July 2014, in 2014/15 there have been 21,308 attendances to Fairkytes (non-
unique). Of these 11,720 (55%) were women and girls and 9,588 (45%) were men and 
boys.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
Service level performance data 2013/14 and 2014/15 

 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  

Page 115



 

38 

 

Positive  

 
In 2014 96% of Fairkytes Survey respondents were White British, a 
significantly higher figure than the percentage of White British residents 
in the Borough (83%) and higher than the percentage of White British 
residents living in St Andrews Ward (89%) where Fairkytes is located 
(2011 Census). 
 
It should be noted, however, that the Fairkytes Annual Survey is 
completed by adults only and the small number of surveys completed 
means that the figures are not representative of all Fairkytes users, 
providing an indication only.  Furthermore, the survey is not completed 
by those who hire the centre to run their own groups and there are 
currently many minority and faith groups that use Fairkytes on a regular 
basis.  
 
Based on the Fairkytes Survey there doesn’t appear to be a 
disproportionate impact on Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) residents, 
however we recognise that the data we hold has its limitations and 
gaps. We also recognise that BME service users might be under-
represented in the respondents’ profile due to language barriers in 
completing this survey. 
 
In light of the limited about evidence from the Fairkytes Survey the 
impact on this group is not yet known. This gap in information will be 
addressed.   
 

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:  
 
The 2014 Fairkytes survey showed that 96% of respondents were White British, which is 
disproportionate to the 83% of White British residents in the borough and the 89% of 
White British residents in St Andrews Ward where Fairkytes Arts Centre is located. The 
remaining 4% of Fairkytes users were White Irish (0.6%), White Other (1.1%), Asian or 
Asian British / Indian (0.6%), Black or Black British/ Other (0.6%), Other Ethnic Group 
(0.6%) and prefer not to say (0.6%).    
 
Figures for the 2012 Fairkytes Survey are very similar, with 96% of respondents White 
British, 1% White Irish, 1% Mixed/Other, 1% Asian or Asian British/Indian and 1% Black or 
Black British/African.  
 
Based on the Fairkytes Survey there doesn’t appear to be a disproportionate impact on 
Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) residents, however we recognise that the data we hold 
has its limitations and gaps. We also recognise that BME service users might be under-
represented in the respondents’ profile due to language barriers in completing this survey. 
The impact on this group is therefore not yet known. Tis gap in information will be 
addressed.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
Fairkytes Annual Survey 2012 and 2014  
2011 Census 
 

 

Page 116



 

39 

 

Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known  

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on the Religion of Fairkytes Users. However, it is known that 
one religious group uses the centre for group meetings and they are likely to be affected 
by the increased charges and fees of hire. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 

 
Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on the sexual orientation of Fairkytes Users but there is no 
local or national evidence to suggest that this group might be disproportionately affected. 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A  

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 

Positive  

Neutral  

Page 117



 

40 

 

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on the gender reassignment of Fairkytes Users but there is no 
local or national evidence to suggest that this group might be disproportionately affected. 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on the marital status of Fairkytes Users but there is no local or 
national evidence to suggest that this group might be disproportionately affected. 
  
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
Although a small number of activities are run for parents and young children, no data on 
pregnancy, maternity and paternity is collected. However, as we are not considering to 
increase fees for children’s workshops and activity, the impact on this groups is likely to 
be neutral. 

Page 118



 

41 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
The proposals to increase fees and charges for room and hall hire, 
studio lets and adult workshops as well as an increase in ticketed 
events may mean that Fairktyes will be less accessible to those who 
are from low income or financially excluded backgrounds.  
 
However, the majority of Fairkytes users come from relatively affluent 
parts of the Borough and it is believed that price increases should be 
affordable for most users.  
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
Of those that completed the Fairkytes Survey 2014, the majority came from the more 
affluent parts of the borough: RM11 (18%), RM12 (22%), RM14 (15%) (primarily made up 
of wards Emerson Park, St Andrews, Hacton, Upminster, Hylands, Squirrels Health, Elm 
Park and Cranham). It is therefore believed that price increases should be affordable to 
most users.  
 
However, 8% of those who responded came from RM2 and 7% from RM3 which include 
some of the more deprived wards in the Borough (Heaton and Gooshays). Residents who 
live in these areas of the borough are more likely to be affected by the proposals.  
 

Ward 
 

Deprivation 
Rank 

Gooshays 1 

Heaton 2 

South Hornchurch 3 

Havering Park 4 

Brooklands 5 

Romford Town 6 

Harold Wood 7 

Rainham and Wennington 8 

Mawneys 9 

Elm Park 10 

St Andrew's 11 

Hylands 12 

Pettits 13 

Squirrel's Heath 14 

Hacton 15 

Emerson Park  16 

Cranham 17 

Upminster 18 

NB. Rank 1 = Most deprived ward, Rank 18 = least deprived ward. 
 

Page 119



 

42 

 

Table of Index of Multiple Deprivation by Lower Super Output Area in Havering Wards. 
Department of Communities and Local Government, 2011 
 

 

Sources used:  
 
Fairkytes Annual Survey 2014  
JSNA Demographics Update - Table of Index of Multiple Deprivation by Lower Super 
Output Area in Havering Wards, Department of Communities and Local Government, 
2011 
 

 

Page 120



  A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a
c

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 

m
it

ig
a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
ll 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
e
 h

o
ld

 i
s
 

in
c
o
m

p
le

te
 s

o
 

d
o
e
s
n
’t
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 

fu
lly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 

w
it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 

F
a
ir
k
y
te

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 u

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

d
a
ta

 w
e
 n

e
e
d
. 
A

ls
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 
w

e
 

g
e
t 

a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 m

o
re

 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
. 

E
x
p
lo

re
 o

th
e
r 

w
a
y
s
 

to
 c

o
lle

c
t 
d
a
ta

. 
 

B
e
tt

e
r 

d
a
ta

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 

  

2
0
1
5
 

  

M
a
rk

 E
th

e
ri
n
g
to

n
 

  

A
ll 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
e
 h

o
ld

 i
s
 

in
c
o
m

p
le

te
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 

u
n
k
n
o
w

n
 i
f 

th
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

is
 f

u
lly

 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 

a
n
d
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 t

o
 a

ll 

R
e
v
ie

w
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

fo
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 n

e
w

 

o
ff

e
rs

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
in

g
 n

e
w

 

B
e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 n

e
e
d
s
 

B
e
tt

e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 
o
ff

e
r 

v
e
rs

e
s
 n

e
e
d
 

2
0
1
5
 

M
a
rk

 E
th

e
ri
n
g
to

n
 

Page 121



 

4
4
 

 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

n
o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

s
in

g
 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

  
 

Page 122



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: Budget Proposals for the Library Service  

Type of activity: 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Approved by: 
 

Cynthia Griffin, Group Director, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date completed: 
 

September 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

Following a review of the proposals, the EIA will be revised in 
January 2015.  

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes 

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 123



 

46 

 

7. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity Budget Proposals for the Library Service  

2 Type of activity 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

3 Scope of activity 

 
A proposal for a new delivery model for the Library 
Service in a context of significant budget reductions. 
Changes will include a reduction in staffing and opening 
hours for libraries, introduction of a 50p charge per hour 
for the use of computers and a greater use of volunteers 
to deliver services, including the Local Studies and Family 
History Service, the Housebound Service and the work of 
the Reader Development team.  
 
New ways to generate income will also be explored as 
part of the new model, such as new membership 
arrangements, philanthropy, donations and sponsorship.   

 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? Yes - changing 

 
Yes 

4b 
Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 
 
N/A 
 

 

 
Completed by: 
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date: 
 

10th September 2014 

Page 124



 

47 

 

8. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background/context: 

 
Significant reductions to the Library Service budget are required as the Council faces up 
to the challenge of finding £60m of savings (representing a third of its controllable 
budget). This means that the Library service will be working in an entirely new context in 
the next three years.  The Council is proposing to retain all 10 libraries but with reduced 
opening hours and a greater use of volunteers.  
 
Havering Council has decided to avoid building closures and prioritise the continued 
opening of the existing 10 library buildings, for the following reasons: 
 

· The importance of retaining Libraries buildings in the town centres and 

communities in which they are based; 

· The importance of ensuring that the current accessibility of the Libraries is 

maintained, particularly for disabled people, for those people who have mobility 

problems and for those people who do not have access to a car; 

· Avoiding building closures (which could result in the disposal of those buildings) 

means that future investment in those services remains possible, assuming greater 

levels of funding become available at some point in the future. Closing Library 

buildings means that they will almost certainly be lost forever. 

 
If all of the buildings are to be retained, the only realistic way of making significant budget 
savings is to reduce the staffing budget and reduce the opening hours of the Libraries. 
However, it is the Council’s intention to retain as much of the existing service as possible, 
through adopting a “co-produced libraries” model. Through this model, the service will still 
be Council led and funded, with professional staff employed, but with significant support 
from volunteers. In Havering we propose to call the Library service the “Partnership 
Library Service”, so that the vital role that is to be played by both volunteers and Council 
employed staff is recognised.  
 
The new delivery model envisages the four strategically most important Libraries 
(Romford, Hornchurch, Harold Hill and Rainham) opening at least 50 hours a week and 
the remaining six Libraries (Upminster, Elm Park, South Hornchurch, Collier Row, Harold 
Wood and Gidea Park)  opening  at least 25 hours a week. The opening hours would 
include evening periods and Saturday opening. As set out above, these hours would be 
the “core opening hours” (i.e. the minimum opening hours); but the intention would be to 
increase those opening hours, with the help of trained volunteers.      
 
It is intended that the “Partnership Library Service” model will be extended to include the 
delivery of the Local Studies and Family History Service, the Housebound Service and 
the work of the Reader Development team by volunteers.  
 
The proposed new delivery model for the Library service retains the existing book stock 
and computer budgets, so Library users will have access to the same range of book stock 
and computer services as they do now; plus users will also be able to access the same 
level of service through the London Library consortium. The new delivery model also 
includes users paying a small sum to use computers, to help achieve the required budget 

Page 125



 

48 

 

savings and to help manage usage at busy times. A charge of 50p per hour is proposed. 
 
The new delivery model also envisages the Library service developing new ways to 
generate income through new membership arrangements, philanthropy, donations and 
sponsorship.   
 
Havering also now has an excellent online library service that provides downloadable 
audio and e-books, access to the library catalogue (which includes the catalogues of the 
other London Library Consortium members), and facility to renew and reserve items 
online.  In addition, there is a wide range of online resources, courses and materials - 
these include encyclopaedias, magazines and newspapers, business resources, online 
languages, business, educational and leisure courses. The online service will continue to 
be promoted to increase accessibility of the library. 
 
It is very likely that the proposed delivery model will affect staff currently working in the 
libraries, including people in supported employment via the Rose Program (Realistic 
Opportunities for Supported Employment). The impact on staff members will be subject to 
a separate equality impact assessment. 
 

 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Whilst the proposals will impact Library users of all ages, there may be 
a disproportionate impact on some age groups.  
 
Across all Library branches, the age group with the most active library 
users is 5-9 (15.7%) , followed by 0-4 (12.7%) and then 10-14 (10.8%), 
representing almost one third of all library users.  
 
This is disproportionately higher compared to the number of residents 
in these age groups living in the Borough, respectively: 5-9 (5.6%), 0-4 
(4.7%) and 10-14 (6.0%). The proposals are therefore likely to 
disproportionately affect these age groups.  
 
Although there is no quantitative evidence, anecdotal evidence 
suggests Libraries are used by older residents during week days. A 
reduction in weekday opening hours in some branches will occur 
unless that is mitigated by the involvement of volunteers to extend 
opening hours back to the current levels. This may mean that these 
residents stop using that library as frequently as before, although there 
will still be a range of opening hours available across the borough.  In 
addition, a reduction in opening hours in some libraries could mean a 
reduction in activities run in libraries, such as Knit and Natter, Baby 
Bounce, Young at Heart etc., which are primarily attended by older 
residents and parents with younger children.  This will depend on the 
involvement and role of volunteers which may mitigate the reduction in 
opening hours. The proposals may negatively impact small children 
and their parents, as well as older residents.  
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

Page 126



 

49 

 

The Housebound Service is for people who are housebound either for 
a temporary period of time (i.e. coming out of hospital) or as an 
ongoing service for people who meet the criteria (people who cannot 
get to a library based on age, illness or disability). The primary users of 
this service are older people. Whilst the proposal envisages volunteers 
delivering this service, or a scaled down version, it likely that the 
proposals will have a negative impact on this group.  
 
The Reader Development Team is primarily used by younger residents 
and the team interacted with 50,858 children in 2013/14 to assist them 
with their reading – for example the Summer Reading Challenge 
(There is also an adult outreach team that interacted with 6216 Adults 
in 2013/14). Volunteers already help deliver this service and this 
volunteer role could be expanded, but a reduction in paid staff in this 
area will have a negative impact particularly on young service users.  
 
The virtual or online library has seen an increase in virtual visits in 
recent months. This service will continue to be promoted as it 
increases accessibility of the library for all age groups. 
  

 

Evidence:   
 
Across all Library branches, the age group with the most active library users is 5-9 
(15.7%) , followed by 0-4 (12.7%) and then 10-14 (10.8%) (Data from Library Profiles 
2012). This is disproportionate to the number of residents in these age groups across the 
borough; 5-9 (5.6%), 0-4 (4.7%) and 10-14 (6.0%). The proposals may therefore 
negatively impact these age groups. (2011 Census data) 
 
In total there are 22,218 residents aged 0-15 registered with the Library Service. This 
represents 25% of all those registered (service level data). Again, this is disproportionate 
to the percentage of young people in this age group in the borough (0-14 - 16.3%) 
(Census data 2011) 
 
There has been a significant increase in the number of people visiting the online library – 
375,446 hits in Quarter 1 of 2014/15 compared to 103,290 hit in Quarter 1 of 2013/14. 
The intention is to further promote the online access to the library services as it is 
available 24/7. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
Library Profiles 2011 based on local service data, national population statistics and 
Mosaic Customer Profiling.  
 
Census 2011 
 
Service level data 2013/14 and 2014/15 

 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  

Page 127



 

50 

 

Positive  
 
A reduction in opening hours and staff will mean a reduction in 
activities that are currently run in libraries.  This will be mitigated if 
volunteers are able to support some activities.  The Library Service 
does have some activities directly aimed at residents with a disability, 
for example the reading group for deaf people, a ‘listening’ reading 
group for visually impaired or blind people and events such as 
"Celebrates" and “Make A Noise in Libraries Fortnight” which again are 
for visually impaired or blind people.  
 
The Reader Development Team works with pupils from Corbets Tey 
School and Dycorts School, which are both schools for pupils with 
special education needs. The Team also works with the Romford 
Autistic Group to offer better access to our services and support to 
young people, parents and their carers. A reduction in opening hours 
and staff will limit the Service’s ability to work with these groups in the 
future.   
 
The Housebound Service is primarily used by disabled service users 
and older residents who would not otherwise be able to access library 
services. One of the criteria for using the service is that a resident is 
not able to get to a library because of disability. Whilst the proposal 
envisages volunteers delivering this service, or a scaled down version, 
the proposals may have a negative impact on this group.  
 
The Library Service has 8 people in supported employment via the 
Rose Program (Realistic Opportunities for Supported Employment).  As 
part of the proposal the impact on these members of staff will be 
reviewed along with all Library staff.  
 
 
 
 

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
No data on Library users with disabilities is collected. Evidence used is anecdotal.   
   
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
The Library service has significantly more users who are female than 
male. This can be seen across all libraries across the borough and all 
age groups. The proposals are therefore likely to have a 
disproportionate impact on girls and women. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Page 128



 

51 

 

Negative ü 
 
 

 

Evidence:   
 
The percentage of female Library Users is 63%, compared to males at 37%. This is 
disproportionate to the number of females (52%) and males (48%) in the borough (2013 
Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics). The proposals will therefore 
have a disproportionately high impact on girls and women.  

 

Sources used:  
 
Library Profiles 2011 based on local service data, national population statistics and 
Mosaic Customer Profiling.  
 
2013 Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics 
 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
The majority of service users are White British (86%) so this group is 
more likely to be affected by the proposals, particularly those from 
deprived background. However, the proportion of Library users who are 
White British is broadly comparable to the proportion of White British 
residents living in the Borough.  
 
There is an underrepresentation of other ethnic groups who are Library 
users compared to the wider ethnic profile of the Borough.  
 
While based on the service level data we hold there doesn’t appear to 
be a disproportionate impact on Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) 
residents, there might be libraries where certain BME groups could be 
negatively affected, particularly in the more ethnically diverse wards 
that tend to also be more deprived (see also the section on socio-
economic groups).  
 
 

Positive  

Neutral ü 

Negative  

 

Evidence:  
 
Of the 16,366 Library users who have provided their ethnicity, 86% are White, the same 
proportion of White residents in the borough, also 86%. The number of Black Library 
users (3.7%) is an underrepresentation of Black residents in the borough (7%). This is 
also true of Asian Library Users (3.1%) and Asian residents (5.4%). However, there is a 
time lag between the two data sets; Library profiles 2011 and 2012 Round SHLAA ethnic 
group projection - final, Greater London Authority respectively.  

  

Page 129



 

52 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
Library Profiles 2011 based on local service data, national population statistics and 
Mosaic Customer Profiling.  
 
2012 Round SHLAA ethnic group projection - final, Greater London Authority 

 

 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known  
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on the religious profile of libraries’ service users but it is envisaged 
that the proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this group. 
 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known  
 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on the sexual orientation profile of libraries’ service users but it is 
envisaged that the proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this group. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Page 130



 

53 

 

Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on the gender identity of libraries’ service users but it is envisaged 
that the proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this group. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on the marital status of libraries’ service users but it is envisaged that 
the proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this group. 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
The Library Service has no data on service users’ pregnancy, maternity 
or paternity status.  

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 131



 

54 

 

 

Evidence:   
 
The Library Service has no data on service users’ pregnancy, maternity or paternity 
status. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
  
No data on socio-economic status is measured. 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
As the table below shows, the most active library users are in Upminster at 17%, which is 
the least deprived ward in the Borough. However other wards with a high percentage of 
active users include Gooshays, the most deprived area of the Borough and Romford 
Town, which is ranked 6th in terms of deprivation. Residents in these wards from low 
income or financially excluded backgrounds are likely to be most affected by the 
proposals.  
 

Ward 

% of 
Population 

who are 
active 
library 
users 

 
Deprivation 

Rank 

Gooshays 14% 1 

Heaton 10% 2 

South Hornchurch 12% 3 

Havering Park 12% 4 

Brooklands 9% 5 

Romford Town 13% 6 

Harold Wood 12% 7 

Rainham and Wennington 11% 8 

Mawneys 12% 9 

Elm Park 14% 10 

St Andrew's 13% 11 

Hylands 12% 12 

Pettits 12% 13 

Squirrel's Heath 14% 14 

Hacton 12% 15 

Emerson Park  13% 16 

Cranham 13% 17 

Upminster 17% 18 

Page 132



 

55 

 

NB. Rank 1 = Most deprived ward, Rank 18 = least deprived ward. 

 
Table of Index of Multiple Deprivation by Lower Super Output Area in Havering Wards, Department of  
Communities and Local Government, 2011 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
Table of Index of Multiple Deprivation by Lower Super Output Area in Havering Wards, 
Department of Communities and Local Government, 2011 
 
Library Profiles 2011 based on local service data, national population statistics and 
Mosaic Customer Profiling  
 

 
  

Page 133



  A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

 In
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
ll 

L
ib

ra
ry

 P
ro

fi
le

s
 

2
0
1
1
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

o
u
td

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

a
ta

 

is
 p

a
tc

h
y
 s

o
 

d
o
e
s
n
’t
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 

fu
lly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 

w
it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
  

U
p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

P
ro

fi
le

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

re
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
.  

U
s
e
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 

re
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

o
f 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
 

  

C
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 n

e
w

 p
ro

fi
le

s
. 
It
 w

ill
 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 h

o
w

 

o
ft

e
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
ill

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 P

o
lic

y
, 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

in
 C

u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

o
lic

y
 T

e
a
m

. 
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

  

A
n
a
ly

s
t 

in
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
o
lic

y
 

  

  
 

Page 134



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 

Document control  
 

Title of activity: Budget Proposals for Havering Music School 

Type of activity: 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Approved by: 
 

Cynthia Griffin, Group Director, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date completed: 
 

August 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

Following a review of the proposals, the EIA will be revised in 
January 2015. 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes  

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 135



 

58 

 

9. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity Budget Proposals for the Music School 

2 Type of activity 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

3 Scope of activity 

 
Havering Music School has revised and refreshed the 
way it operates and a new charging policy has been 
successfully trialled in schools. The policy offers the same 
tuition packages wherever lessons take place but charges 
all parents directly (historically schools have collected 
parental fees). This presents an opportunity to reduce 
overhead costs and increase income further. Following 
the trial, the model is now being rolled out across the 
borough.  
 
It is proposed that the new model is now rolled out to all 
schools in the borough.  
 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? Yes - changing 

 
Yes  

4b 
Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 
 
N/A 
 

 

 
Completed by: 
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date: 
 

September 2014 

Page 136



 

59 

 

10. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background/context: 

 
The Council has reduced its subsidy to Havering Music School (HMS) in the last two 
years and the Music School have responded positively by revising their operating 
arrangements and pricing structure. This has now been successfully trialled in schools. 
The revised arrangements offer the same tuition packages wherever lessons take place, 
but charges all parents directly (historically schools have collected parental fees). This 
presents an opportunity to reduce overhead costs and increase income further. Following 
the trial, the model is now being rolled out across the Borough.  
 
HMS services are available to any and all children living and/or in education in the 
Borough so all families and children may potentially be considered to be affected.   In 
practice, our present customer base within the Borough is around 3,000 for weekday 
school tuition and about 460 at the Saturday and Weekday Music Centres. 

 
It should be noted that under the proposed direct charging scheme overall annual costs 
will rise to fund the considerable increase in activity offered to HMS students. HMS 
currently invoices schools for 37 weeks’ tuition a year and schools mostly pass this 
charge onto parents in three termly payments.  The proposed scheme will charge parents 
directly for 52 weeks per year but partners/carers will have the option to pay monthly 
thereby spreading the costs over twelve months.   
 
The new charging policy has also standardised the packages available, making it much 
easier for both students and parents to understand. Although as stated there will be a rise 
in cost, there has been a considerable increase in the offer provided. Parents are now 
able to choose from the three packages available, as shown below. 
 

 

Lesson 
Musician-
ship Class 

Ensemble 
Summer 
School 

Cost 
per 
week 

BRONZE 
20 minutes 
paired (or 3 
in 30 mins) 

30 minutes 
per week 

30 minutes 
per week 

- £  6.50 

SILVER 

30 minutes 
paired (or 
individual 
15 mins) 

30 minutes 
per week 

60 minutes 
per week 

1 week £10.50 

GOLD 
30 minutes 
individual 

30 minutes 
per week 

unlimited 1 week £16.00 

 

Page 137



 

60 

 

 
The Council therefore anticipates that, despite the annual costs increase, both HMS 
students and parents/carers will benefit from the proposed scheme: HMS students will 
enjoy a much wider and improved HMS programme offer and their parents/carers will be 
able to spread the costs over twelve payments which will make tuition more affordable 
and easier to budget for.  

 
Schools will continue to operate policies for remission of fees and cover the cost of tuition 
for students who qualify.  Eligibility criteria, level of funding, process and funding source 
are discussed with each school and agreed before the school converts to the Direct Debit 
scheme (or before HMS tuition starts for the first time).  In most cases schools choose to 
fund this provision from the Pupil Premium but this is at their discretion and some may 
choose to pay for it from other budgets.  HMS will review remission of fees with each 
school periodically. 
 
One of the drivers for introducing this charging scheme is the fact that the council is 
currently dependent on schools for the promotion of the services and collection of fees 
and have in the past relied on their taking an inclusive approach.  In consequence we 
have, at an organisational level, a limited understanding of who our customers actually 
are. 
 
Consultation has been undertaken with primary and secondary schools, who largely 
welcome the move, although secondaries have by and large been more cautious in their 
support.  School staff we have consulted all agree that monthly payments will be popular 
with parents.  Feedback from parents who are already invoiced termly (for Saturday and 
Weekday Music Centres) is that monthly payment options would be welcome. 
 
HMS is constantly looking for new ways of improving access and increasing participation 
in our activities and services so that everyone can flourish, particularly children from 
vulnerable and disadvantaged groups, and thereby is actively promoting equality of 
opportunity and fostering good community relations. Participation in music and other 
culturally related community projects provides a focus for social activity, reducing 
isolation, and bringing together people of diverse cultures, ages and backgrounds in a 
context of mutual understanding and sharing.  
 
The new charging scheme is an opportunity to explain directly to parents/carers the 
educational and social benefits that children enjoy as a result of participation in musical 
activity.  We will exploit this and the closer links with our paying customers, to effectively 
communicate the opportunities we can offer through our wide range of partnerships, with 
the aim of maximising positive impact, by transforming people’s quality of life through 
participation in and enjoyment of culture. 
 
As the proposal will increase ensemble and theory opportunities during the week, groups 
who may be unable to participate on Saturdays will have increased opportunities at other 
periods. Furthermore, the new scheme will result in new ensembles and theory classes in 
schools all over the Borough, making these opportunities more accessible to less well-off 
families, who may otherwise have difficulty travelling to our Saturday and Weekday 
Centres in Hornchurch. 

 
 

 

Page 138



 

61 

 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known  
 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
HMS services are available to any and all children up to the age of 18 living and/or in 
education in the Borough so all families and children may potentially be considered to be 
affected.  In practice, our present customer base within the Borough is around 3,000 for 
weekday school tuition and about 460 at the Saturday and Weekday Music Centres.  
 
At present there is no detailed data available on the age breakdown of HMS users.   
 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known  Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information on disability is currently available. The Borough’s datasets do not permit 
us to cross-reference against Special Educational Need information.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box:

Overall impact:  

Page 139



 

62 

 

Positive  
 
More girls are members of HMS compared to boys (ages 0-18). Girls 
are therefore more likely to benefit from the proposed changes than 
boys. Conversely less boys will benefit so an overall neutral score has 
been given  
 

 

Neutral ü 

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
HMS’s data return to the DfE for the academic year 2011-12 shows that 42% of our 
students were boys and 58% girls, compared to 51% boys and 49% girls in this age group 
across the borough (ONS Mid-year population estimates Custom Age Tool 2013).   
 
Although more recent statistics are not available, anecdotally we believe the percentage 
of girls has increased further over the last few years.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
DfE data 2011/12 
 
ONS Mid-year population estimates Custom Age Tool 2013 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Some groups will benefit and others be disproportionately affected. The 
majority of HMS students are White British (73%) which is lower than 
the percentage of this age group living in the Borough (82%) (Those 
aged 0-19 Census 2011). There will therefore be no disproportionate 
impact on White British children and their families.  
 
Ethnicity information is collated from the Borough’s central student 
records and shows that engagement is high among children of non-
White origin.  
 
Black children stand out, making up 13.94% of our students compared 
to the percentage of Black residents in the borough (7%). There is also 
a higher percentage of Chinese students at HMS (1.65%) compared to 
the percentage of Chinese residents in the borough (0.7%).  
 
Chinese, Other and Mixed origin children appear to out-perform the 
average at all levels, but especially at NQF level 3.  Black children 
appear to underperform at NQF2 and NQF3 particularly, although this 
may reflect a bulge in the number of beginners.  
 
The proposals therefore are also likely to benefit ethnic minority 
groups, particularly Black and Chinese, in the Borough.  
 

Positive  

Neutral ü 

Negative  

Page 140



 

63 

 

 

Evidence:  
 
The tables below show the breakdown of ethnicity for HMS, and achievement by different 
ethnic group (Borough’s central student records).  
 

 Total  Pre NQF 
level 1 

NQF 
level 1 

NQF 
level 2 

NQF 
level 3 

 

White 73.20%  62.24% 28.96% 6.11% 2.69% 100.00% 

Mixed 6.27%  64.04% 25.28% 6.18% 4.49% 100.00% 

Asian 4.23%  65.00% 29.17% 3.33% 2.50% 100.00% 

Black 13.94%  74.75% 21.46% 2.78% 1.01% 100.00% 

Chinese 1.65%  38.30% 31.91% 23.40% 6.38% 100.00% 

Other 0.70%  70.00% 15.00% 10.00% 5.00% 100.00% 

 100.00%       

 
These figures have been compared to the ethnic profile of the borough (2012 Round 
SHLAA ethnic group projection - final, Greater London) 
 

2014 (projection) 
Percentage of 
population (%) 

Percentage 
breakdown of 

Ethnicity for HMS 
(%) 

White 85.7% 73.20% 

Black  7% 13.94% 

Asian 5.40% 4.23% 

Chinese 0.7% 1.65% 

Other 1.2% 0.70% 

 
Although not directly comparable (SHLAA projections do not account for ‘Mixed’), the 
figures illustrate that HMS has a disproportionally lower number of White British Students 
compared to the percentage of White British residents in the Borough and 
disproportionally higher number of Black and Chinese Students that Black and Chinese 
residents in the borough.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
Borough’s central student records 
 
2012 Round SHLAA ethnic group projection - final, Greater London 

 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Page 141



 

64 

 

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No data is currently available.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on sexual orientation.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on gender reassignment.  
 
 

Sources used: 
 
N/A 

 

Page 142



 

65 

 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on marriage/civil partnership.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
No information is collected on pregnancy, maternity and paternity.  
 

 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
It should be noted that under the proposed direct charging scheme 
overall annual costs will rise to fund the considerable increase in 
activity offered to HMS students. HMS currently invoices schools for 37 
weeks’ tuition a year and schools mostly pass this charge onto parents 

Positive  

Neutral ü 

Page 143



 

66 

 

Negative  

in three termly payments.  The proposed scheme will charge parents 
directly for 52 weeks per year but partners/carers will have the option 
to pay monthly thereby spreading the costs over twelve months.   
 
The Council therefore anticipates that, despite the annual costs 
increase, both HMS students and parents/carers will benefit from the 
proposed scheme: HMS students will enjoy a much wider and 
improved HMS programme offer and their parents/carers will be able to 
spread the costs over twelve payments which will make tuition more 
affordable and easier to budget for, particularly for lone parents and 
families on low incomes.  
 
School staff we have consulted all agree that monthly payments will be 
popular with parents.  Informal feedback from parents whom we 
already invoice termly (for Saturday and Weekday Music Centres) is 
that monthly payment options would be welcome. 
 
At present, HMS is also not aware which of its students are eligible for 
the Borough’s remission of fees scheme, as families apply directly and 
confidentially to the relevant Borough department and schools fund 
remissions.  We will become more aware of this as we roll out the new 
scheme throughout the Borough. 
 
As the proposal will increase ensemble and theory opportunities during 
the week, groups who may be unable to participate on Saturdays will 
have increased opportunities at other periods. Furthermore, the new 
scheme will result in new ensembles and theory classes in schools all 
over the Borough, making these opportunities more accessible to less 
well-off families, who may otherwise have difficulty travelling to our 
Saturday and Weekday Centres in Hornchurch. 

 
 

Evidence:   
 
No data currently available.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 
  

Page 144



   A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
g

e
 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

R
e
lig

io
n

 
S

o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 p

a
tc

h
y
 s

o
 

d
o
e
s
n
’t
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 

fu
lly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

w
it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
s
 w

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 c
h
a
rg

in
g

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
, 
m

o
re

 
d
a
ta

 o
n
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

    

D
a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 

to
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
It
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

2
0
1
5
 

  

G
a
ry

 G
ri
ff

it
h
s
 

   

    
 

Page 145



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: 
Older Adults (Better Care Fund, Older Adults and Royal 
Jubilee Court) 

Type of activity: 

Better Care Fund - Protection of adult social care spending in 
areas that support the delivery of improved health-related 
outcomes. 
Older Adults - Ensure that we are receiving maximum value 
for money and that services are person-centred and outcomes-
focussed. Also, we will look to introduce a cap on the total cost 
of a care package / personal budget that is not more than the 
average cost of residential and nursing care. 
Royal Jubilee Court - Closure of the reablement and step-
down service. 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Barbara Nicholls, Head of Service, Children, Adults and 
Housing 

 
Approved by: 
 

Joy Hollister, Group Director, Children, Adults and Housing  

 
Date completed: 
 

18th August 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

January 2016 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes 

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 146



 

69 

 

11. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity 
Older Adults (Better Care Fund, Older Adults and Royal 
Jubilee Court) 

2 Type of activity 

Better Care Fund - Protection of adult social care 
spending in areas that support the delivery of improved 
health-related outcomes. 
Older Adults – Ensure that we are receiving maximum 
value for money and that services are person-centred and 
outcome-focused. Also, we will look to introduce a cap on 
the total cost of a care package / personal budget that is 
not more than the average cost of residential and nursing 
care. 
Royal Jubilee Court - Closure of the reablement and 
step-down service. 

3 Scope of activity 

Better Care Fund - In 2015/16 the new Better Care Fund 
will launch. This pooled budget is aimed at supporting 
health and social care integration, through transforming 
services to work more closely together in local areas. The 
focus will be on enabling improved collaboration work, 
joint commissioning, better data-sharing, seven-day 
working across health and social care services, and the 
protection of social care services. 
 

For the Council this means that some services will be 
funded via the Better Care Fund to help achieve these 
aims. These services include the new Joint Assessment 
and Discharge, and Integrated Cluster Community 
Teams, reablement / enablement, assistive technology, 
and sign-posting services. The fund will also be used to 
support the implementation of the Care Act through 
sustainable service delivery models. 
 
Older Adults - We will review our operating model for 
older adults, and ensure that we are receiving maximum 
value for money and that services are person-centred and 
outcomes-focussed. In addition, we will look to introduce 
a cap on the total cost of a care package / personal 
budget that is not more than the average cost of 
residential and nursing care. This may be necessary in 
order to both deliver savings and help mitigate against 

Page 147



 

70 

 

future demand pressures from an ageing population. 
 
Royal Jubilee Court - Royal Jubilee Court (RJC) 
provides sheltered housing, retirement housing, and 
supported housing for older adults. There is also a 
reablement and step-down service that is provided 
through a contract with an external provider.  
 

We are proposing to close the reablement element of this 
Council-run service and will look at alternative uses for 
Royal Jubilee Court. People who would have accessed 
reablement through RJC will access this instead from the 
community teams.  
 

Also, it should be noted that improved integrated services 
resulting from the Better Care Fund could result in a drop 
in demand for Royal Jubilee Court. 
 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? 

Yes - changing 
 
 
Better Care Fund – No 
Older Adults – Yes 
Royal Jubilee Court – No 
 

4b 
Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 

 
Better Care Fund - Health-related spend will be funded 
via the Better Care Fund. It is anticipated that this activity 
will have no impact on individuals or groups. 
 
Royal Jubilee Court - People who would have accessed 
reablement through Royal Jubilee Court will access this 
instead from the community teams i.e. they will still 
receive the same level of service but not at this setting. 
For instance, they might receive reablement at their own 
home. It is anticipated that this activity will have no impact 
on individuals or groups. 
 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Barbara Nicholls, Head of Service, Children, Adults and 
Housing 

 
Date: 
 

18th August 2014 

Page 148



 

71 

 

12. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background/context: 

Increasing demographic pressures mean that the current operating model for older adults 
is unsustainable in the future. For example: 

· Havering has the highest proportion of older people (18%) in London; 

· People are living longer and are entering the system with more complex needs; 

· Havering’s population is predicted to rise by 13.5% by 2021, and is growing at a 
faster rate than the England average; 

· The 65+ population in Havering is expected to grow the fastest overall in the 
future, increasing by 16% by 2021. The fastest growth is in the 90+ age, expected 
to increase by 70% by 2021; 

· We are anticipating an increase in the numbers of people requiring a statutory 
assessment of need with the introduction of the Care Act in April 2015. 

Our role is to focus on the person and their needs, their choices and what they want to 
achieve. We must improve the uptake and quality of personalised services by ensuring 
that personal budgets, direct payments, outcomes-based and needs-led assessment, 
self-directed support, health and well-being, family and community support, and care and 
support plans, are all prioritised in-line with the national agenda. 
 
Within the Care Act - due to be implemented in April 2015), carers will (for the first time) 
be recognised in the law in the same way as those they care for, including carers’ rights 
to assessments and support. Currently, carers do not have a legal right to receive 
support, although local authorities can provide support (e.g. respite care) at their 
discretion. This means that access to assessment and the range of support on offer can 
vary considerably. 
 
The Care Act will, for the first time, establish national eligibility criteria. The guidance is 
currently in draft, and sets out the national minimum threshold for eligibility, which will be 
consistent across England. At the moment, each local authority sets its own eligibility 
threshold based on guidance. This means that the amount, and type, of care that is 
provided by a local authority can vary depending on where a person lives.  While 
assessments tend to focus on what service should be provided, rather than on what the 
person actually needs or wants. 
 
Havering is committed to reviewing our operating model to ensure that it is sustainable in 
the future, and supports as many people as possible to live independently in the 
community. We will focus on improving the outcomes and wellbeing of older adults living 
in Havering, and will work in partnership with other agencies to implement the Care Act.  
 
However, we will look to introduce a cap on the total cost of a care package / personal 
budget that is not more than the average cost of residential and nursing care. This may 
be necessary in order to both deliver savings and help mitigate against future demand 
pressures from an ageing population (and during a time of unprecedented financial 
austerity across local government).  
  
We will review this Equality Impact Assessment in January 2016, by which time the Care 
Act will be in the implementation phase, and we will start to see evidence and the impact 
of these changes.
 

Page 149



 

72 

 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
The age groups that are most likely to be affected by this project are 
older adults (65+) who receive Adult Social Care services (5,545 
people), The carers of these service users, many of whom are older 
adults will also be impacted (1,670 people).  
 
Of the affected age groups, older adults who are between the ages of 
80-84 (23% of current service users), 85-89 (26%) and 90+ (22%) are 
more likely to receive a service from Adult Social Care, and will be 
disproportionately affected compared to other older adults from other 
affected groups (between the ages of 65-79). In total, 71% (3,937 
people) of older adult service users are 80+, which is 28% of the total 
80+ population living in Havering.  
 
It is anticipated that personalised services (such as personal budgets) 
will have a positive impact and will provide service users and their 
families/carers with choice and control over their services. However, for 
some people the proposed introduction of a cap on a care package / 
personal budget will result in them either meeting the difference in the 
cost themselves (if they would like the care package / personal budget 
to continue), or will mean they will need to move into a residential or 
nursing care home. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:  
 

· There is a 5.7% projected growth in the overall Havering population between 2012-
2017. 

· The 65+ population in Havering is expected to grow the fastest overall in the future, 
increasing by 16% by 2021. The fastest growth is in the 90+ age, expected to 
increase by 70% by 2021. 

· 80% of carers are aged 65+. 

· Breakdown of service users and residents by age group: 
  

Age Range % of Residents 65+ % Service Users 65+ 

65-69 29% 6% 

70-74 21% 7% 

75-79 19% 16% 

80-84 16% 23% 

85-89 10% 26% 

90+ 5% 22% 

 
The table clearly shows that service users aged 80+ are significantly over-represented 
compared to the 80+ older adults population living in Havering. 
  
Relevant benchmarking data shows that Havering is in the: 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘overall satisfaction of people who use services with 
their care and support.’ 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘social care-related quality of life.’ 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘proportion of people who use services who have 

Page 150



 

73 

 

control over their daily life.’ 
· Lowest quartile in England for ‘proportion of people using social care who receive 

self-directed support, and those receiving direct payments.’ 
Havering has the highest proportion of older people (18%) in London, and as such 
providing support for carers is critical to the successful delivery of this project  
 
The aim of this project is to support as many as people as possible to live independently 
in the community, and help them to maintain/improve their health and wellbeing. These 
are major themes within the Care Act and the Better Care Fund. 
 
The negative impact of this project will be mitigated by ensuring that: 

· We focus on strengthening communities; 

· We maximise the opportunities for improving services, outcomes and wellbeing 
through greater integration with Health via the Better Care Fund; 

· We provide services for our most vulnerable older adults and those who have an 
assessed need, as well as supporting carers who meet the criteria for respite 
services to have a break from their caring role (improving support for carers is an 
important theme throughout the Care Act); 

· We focus on maximising the quality of our personalised services; and 

· We ensure that assessments and care and support plans (support plan in the case 
of carers) are person-centred, outcomes-focused, and completed using an asset-
based approach, where the needs and wellbeing of the individual are paramount.  

It is also worth noting that other concurrent projects are looking at how we can support 
and enable communities to become more resilient and self-sufficient, as well other 
projects that are focusing on early help, intervention and prevention initiatives. This is an 
acknowledgement that it is normally far better for the wellbeing of people to avoid entering 
the social care system in the first place. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· 2013 Round SHLAA population projections (based on Havering population of 
241,289 in 2012), Greater London Authority 

· 2011 Census 

· Current list of older adults service users from Swift 

· Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 2012/13 

· 2013 Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics 
There is a great deal of evidence and research nationally around the positive impacts of 
the personalisation agenda in social care (and why traditional services often hinder 
people’s ability to improve their outcomes and wellbeing), and we have used this to inform 
elements of this project. There are too many examples of evidence to list here, but the 
‘Care and Support Statutory Guidance’, issued under the Care Act 2014, provides a 
comprehensive evidence base and case studies.  
 

Page 151



 

74 

 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
87% of older adult service users have a physical disability (including 
83% of older adult service users who are either frail or have a 
temporary illness), while 10% have a mental health problem (including 
8% of older adult service users who have dementia) and 1% have a 
learning disability. 
 
As regards ‘Disability’, all older adults who receive Adult Social Care 
services have met the Council’s eligibility criteria, and are considered 
to have a disability as defined by the Equality Act 2010. We will 
continue to provide services to individuals who are assessed as having 
needs that meet the new national eligibility criteria within the Care Act. 
 
80% of carers are 65+ and are themselves likely to require support 
themselves to continue in their caring role. As stated previously, 
however, improving support for carers is an important theme 
throughout the Care Act. For the first time, carers will be recognised in 
the law in the same way as those they care for, including carers’ rights 
to assessments and support. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
Havering has the highest proportion of older people in London (18% or 44,815 people), 
and a significant number of people providing unpaid care (25,214 people), and as such 
providing support for carers is critical to the successful delivery of this project and any 
changes to our operating model. 
 

· 22,320 (52%) of older adults (aged 65+) have a disability or long term illness/health 
condition. 

· 87% of older adult service users have a physical disability. Of these, 96% are frail 
or have a temporary illness, 3% have a visual impairment, and 1% have a hearing 
impairment. 

· 80% of carers are aged 65+. 
Relevant benchmarking data shows that Havering is in the: 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘overall satisfaction of people who use services with 
their care and support.’ 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘social care-related quality of life.’ 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘proportion of people who use services who have 
control over their daily life.’ 

As evident above, people are living longer and are entering the system with more 
complex needs. This trend is likely to continue, hence the need to review our operating 
model in-line with the recommendations of the Care Act. The negative impact of this 
project will be mitigated by ensuring that:

· We focus on strengthening communities; 

· We maximise the opportunities for improving services, outcomes and wellbeing 
through greater integration with Health via the Better Care Fund; 

· We provide services for our most vulnerable older adults and those who have an 

Page 152



 

75 

 

assessed need, as well as supporting carers who meet the criteria for respite 
services to have a break from their caring role; 

· We focus on maximising the quality of our personalised services; and 

· We ensure that assessments and care and support plans (support plan in the case 
of carers) are person-centred, outcomes-focused, and completed using an asset-
based approach, where the needs and wellbeing of the individual are paramount.  

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘proportion of people using social care who receive 
self-directed support, and those receiving direct payments.’ 

 

Sources used:  
 

· Current list of older adult service users from Swift 

· 2011 Census 

· Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 2012/13 
 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
67% of older adult service users are women, compared to 52% of the 
total female population of Havering. This means that female service 
users will be disproportionately affected by the project compared to 
male service users. 
 
Furthermore, 68% of carers of older adult service users are again 
female, which means that the negative impact of the project will 
disproportionately affect women both as service users and carers of 
service users. 
 
As stated previously, however, improving support for carers is an 
important theme throughout the Care Act. For the first time, carers will 
be recognised in the law in the same way as those they care for, 
including carers’ rights to assessments and support. It is therefore 
envisaged that female carers will be positively impacted by the 
proposed legal changes related to carers. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
52% of Havering’s current population (125,848 people) are girls and women, while 48% of 
Havering’s current population (116,232 people) are boys and men. 
 
The larger percentage of females in Havering may in part be explained by the longer 
female life expectancy: 84.1 years for women compared to 79.1 years for men. 
 
67% of older adult service users and 68% of carers of older adult service users are 
women, which means that the negative impact of the project will disproportionately affect 
women both as service users and carers of service users. 
 

· Breakdown of older adult service users by gender: 
  

Service User Group % Male % Female 

Physical Disability 86% 87% 

Page 153



 

76 

 

Learning Disability 1% 1% 

Mental Health 10% 11% 

Other 3% 1% 

 
The negative impact of this project will be mitigated by ensuring that: 
 

· We focus on strengthening communities; 

· We maximise the opportunities for improving services, outcomes and wellbeing 
through greater integration with Health via the Better Care Fund; 

· We provide services for our most vulnerable older adults and those who have an 
assessed need, as well as supporting carers (two thirds of which are female) who 
meet the criteria for respite services to have a break from their caring role; 

· We focus on maximising the quality of our personalised services; and 

· We ensure that assessments and care and support plans (support plan in the case 
of carers) are person-centred, outcomes-focused, and completed using an asset-
based approach, where the needs and wellbeing of the individual are paramount. 

Havering has a significant number of people providing unpaid care (25,214 people), and 
as such providing support for carers is critical to the successful delivery of this project and 
any changes to our operating model. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· 2011 Census 

· 2013 Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics  

· Current list of older adult service users from Swift 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
The comparative statistics (below) suggests that older adults who are 
White British are more likely to receive a service from Adult Social 
Care. Therefore White British older adults may be impacted 
disproportionally more as a result of this project. 
 
Although only 7% of current service users are from Black and Minority 
Ethnic backgrounds, including White Other, these groups are also likely 
to be affected by this project, particularly in the context of a projected 
increase in ethnic diversity in the Borough. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
Havering is one of London’s least diverse Boroughs, with 85.7% of Havering’s population 
being White British.  
 
93% of older adult service users are White British, which is disproportionately higher than 
the Borough profile.  
 
The comparative statistics therefore suggests that older adults who are White British are 
more likely to receive a service from Adult Social Care. 
 

Page 154



 

77 

 

However, as stated above, although only 7% of current service users are from Black and 
Minority Ethnic backgrounds, including White Other, these groups are also likely to be 
affected by this project, particularly in the context of projected increase in ethnic diversity 
in the Borough. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· 2012 Round SHLAA ethnic group projection - final, Greater London Authority  
· Current list of older adult service users from Swift 

 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
According to the 2011 Census, 66% of Havering’s population has stated that they are 
Christian, followed by 23% who declared that they have no religion and just below 7% 
who preferred not to state their religion. Other religions in the borough are Muslim (2%), 
Hindu (1.2%), Sikh (0.8%), Jewish (0.5%) and Buddhist (0.3%). 
 
Due to lack of service level data we cannot fully assess the impact on this protected 
characteristic. However, it is not expected that service users with this protected 
characteristic will be negatively affected. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

·  2011 Census 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
There is no sufficient information on sexual orientation at national or local level. 
 
We cannot fully assess the impact on this protected characteristic due to lack of data. 

Page 155



 

78 

 

However, it is not expected that service users with this protected characteristic will be 
negatively affected. 
 

 

Sources used:  
 

· There is no sufficient information on gender reassignment at national or local level. 

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
There is no sufficient information on gender identity at national or local level. 
 
We cannot fully assess the impact on this protected characteristic due to lack of data. 
However, it is not expected that service users with this protected characteristic will be 
negatively affected. 
  
 

Sources used:  
 

· There is no sufficient information on gender reassignment at national or local level. 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
According to the 2011 Census, 49% of Havering residents are married while 33% are 
single (never married or never registered a same-sex civil partnership), 8% are divorced 
or formerly in a same-sex civil partnership which is now legally dissolved, 8% are 
widowed or a surviving partner from a same-sex civil partnership, 2% are separated (but 
still legally married or still legally in a same-sex civil partnership) and 0.1% are in a 
registered same-sex civil partnership. 
 
Due to the lack of service level data we cannot fully assess the impact on this protected 

Page 156



 

79 

 

characteristic. However, we recognise married people, civil partners and couples are 
more likely to be affected by this project as carers. 
  

 

Sources used:  
 

·  2011 Census 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We cannot fully assess the impact on this protected characteristic due to lack of data. 
However, it is not expected that service users with this protected characteristic will be 
negatively affected given that the project affects older adults aged 65+. 
  
 

Sources used:  
 

· N/A 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
Multiple disadvantage is a new measure in the Census and there is not 
sufficient information on socio-economic status at a service level. 
However, there may be a disproportionately negative impact on socio-
economic status from this project (see below). 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 157



 

80 

 

 

Evidence:   
 
There is not sufficient information on socio-economic status at a national or service level.  
 
Multiple disadvantage was a new 2011 Census measure defined as the proportion of 
households who have one or more of the following deprivation characteristics 
(dimensions): no qualifications, a long-term illness, unemployment, overcrowded housing.  
 

· 35% of the population were recorded as having 1 dimension, 21% with 2 
dimensions, 4% with 3 dimensions and 0.4% with 4 dimensions. 

 
We recognise that this project might have a disproportionately negative impact on older 
adults, particularly women and disabled people, from disadvantaged backgrounds and 
deprived areas, particularly given that: 

· 67% of older adult service users are women; 

· 71% of older adult service users are aged 80+; 

· 16% (or 6,960 people) of Havering’s population of pensionable age claim 
Attendance Allowance in 2013; 

· A significant number of people living in Havering provide unpaid care (25,214 
people); 

· 4% (or 9,855 people) of Havering’s population claim Disability Living Allowance in 
2013;   

· 2% (or 2,825 people) of Havering’s population claim Incapacity Benefits in 2013;   
· 80% of carers are aged 65+; and 

· 68% of carers of older adult services are women. 
The negative impact of this project will be mitigated by ensuring that: 

· We focus on strengthening communities; 

· We maximise the opportunities for improving services, outcomes and wellbeing 
through greater integration with Health via the Better Care Fund; 

· We provide services for our most vulnerable older adults and those who have an 
assessed need, as well as supporting carers (two thirds of which are female) who 
meet the criteria for respite services to have a break from their caring role; 

· We focus on maximising the quality of our personalised services; and 

· We ensure that assessments and care and support plans (support plan in the case 
of carers) are person-centred, outcomes-focused, and completed using an asset-
based approach, where the needs and wellbeing of the individual are paramount. 

 

Sources used:  
 

· 2011 Census   
· Current list of older adult service users from Swift 
· DWP data, Q02 2013 

 
  

Page 158



  A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

 In
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
ll 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
e
 h

o
ld

 i
s
 

p
a
tc

h
y
 s

o
 d

o
e
s
n
’t
 

a
llo

w
 u

s
 t

o
 f
u
lly

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

w
it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
s
 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

d
a
ta

 

U
s
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

fi
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

F
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

’ 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

p
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

E
IA

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
 

1
6
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

-s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

E
IA

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
s
 f
u
tu

re
 p

la
n
s
 

a
re

 f
u
rt

h
e
r  

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 J

a
n
 1

5
 

  E
IA

 r
e
v
ie

w
 J

a
n
 1

6
 

 A
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 

 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o
lls

 

  B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o
lls

 

 B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o
lls

 

  

  
 

Page 159



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: Budget Proposals for the Parks Service  

Type of activity: 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Approved by: 
 

Cynthia Griffin, Group Director, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date completed: 
 

September 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

Following a review of the proposals, the EIA will be revised in 
January 2015. 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes  

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 160



 

83 

 

13. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity Budget Proposals for the Parks Service  

2 Type of activity 
 
Budget Proposals 
 

3 Scope of activity 
The savings proposals for the Parks Service include the 
proposal to increase the charges for car parking and the 
number of car parks this applies to in the Borough.  

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? 

Yes - changing 
 
Yes 

4b 
Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

Yes 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 
 
N/A 
 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Kayleigh Pardoe, Policy, Marketing and Administration 
Manager, Culture and Leisure, Culture, Community and 
Economic Development 

 
Date: 
 

September 2014 

Page 161



 

84 

 

14. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background/context: 

 
The savings proposals for the Parks Service include the proposal to increase the charges 
for car parking and increase the number of car parks where the charging arrangements 
apply to in the Borough as set out below. 
 
The Borough has over 100 parks and open spaces with many being amenity parks that 
are accessed primarily on foot by residents in neighbouring areas. This analysis focuses 
on the impact of those who choose or need to drive to a park  
 
Parking restrictions in unrestricted car parks are designed to prevent long term parking by 
residents, commuters or shoppers which could be to the determent of parks users. 
However, we recognise that parking restrictions do have the potential to displace parking 
to adjacent areas and also have cost implications attached to them, if people wish to park 
and visit the park for more than 30 minutes.  This may be detrimental to others, 
particularly to disabled residents and people from specific socio-economic groups.  

 
In July 2012, parking charges were introduced in Cottons Park, Lodge Farm Park (in both 
Carlton Road and Main Road car parks) and at Upminster Park (in both the New and Old 
Windmill Hall car parks) at the following times:  

 
Cottons Park Car Park (Cottons Approach): 
Monday – Friday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Saturday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Lodge Farm Park (Main Road end): 
Monday – Friday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Saturday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Lodge Farm Park (Carlton Road end): 
Monday – Friday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Saturday (8:00 – 13:00 hours) 
New Windmill Hall Car Park (St. Mary’s Lane): 
Monday – Friday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Saturday (8:00 – 13:00 hours) 
Old Windmill Hall Car Park (St. Mary’s Lane): 
Monday – Friday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Saturday (8:00 – 13:00 hours) 
 
Charges start at 20p for 0-2 hours and go up to £8.00 for 8-12 hours. There is no charge 
from 6pm to 8am. Saturday afternoons are free from 1pm (due to sporting events) apart 
from Main Road Lodge Farm Park. Sundays are free of charge.  

 
It is proposed that parking charges are applied consistently  to the four car parks  
mentioned above and to the car parks listed below at the following times. 
Monday – Friday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
Saturday (8:00 – 18:00 hours) 
 

Page 162



 

85 

 

Charges start with no charge for 20 minutes and a 10 minute grace period, then up to 3 
hours for £1 and go up to £8 for 8-12 hours.  
 
The purpose of the revised tariff is to provide affordable parking for those who visit parks 
for a short visit or to play sport.  
 
The car parks in the following parks and open spaces would be affected by the proposals: 
 
Bedfords Park 
Bretons Outdoor Recreation Centre (main) 
Bretons Outdoor Recreation Centre (overflow) 
Brittons (Ford Lane) 
Brittons (Rainham Rd) 
Broxhill Centre 
Central Park 
Cranham Brickfields 
Dagnam Park 
Gidea Park Sports Ground Depot 
Gidea Park Bowls 
Hacton Parkway and Playsite 
Harold Wood Park (Harold View) 
Harold Wood Park (Recreation Ave) 
Harrow Lodge Park (Sports Centre) 
Harrow Lodge Park (Rainham Rd) 
Harrow Lodge Park (Warren Drive) 
Haynes Park (Slewins Lane) 
Haynes Park (Northumberland Ave) 
Hornchurch Country Park (Sqn App) 
Hornchurch Country Park (South end Rd 
Hylands Park 
King Georges Playing Field (r/o café) 
King Georges Playing Field (f/o café) 
Parklands 
Rise Park 
Rainham Recreation Ground 
The Dell 
Tylers Common 
Upminster Hall Playing Field 
Westlands Playing Fields 

 
 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data on the age of users is held. 
Parking restrictions in unrestricted car parks are designed to prevent 
long term parking by residents, commuters or shoppers which could be 
to the determent of parks users.  
 
It is envisaged that the proposals will impact positively on all age 
groups who wish to use the Borough’s parks, but particularly older 

Positive 

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 163



 

86 

 

people, people with disabilities and parents / carers with young 
children; as they will have greater chance of being able to park their 
cars in the parks where charges are to be introduced.  

 
 

Evidence:   
 
No data on the age of park users in available – comments are based on anecdotal 
evidence only. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
No data on use of parks by people with disabilities is kept. 
Parking restrictions in unrestricted car parks are designed to prevent 
long term parking by residents, commuters or shoppers which could be 
to the determent of parks users.  
 
It is envisaged that the proposals will impact positively on all age 
groups who wish to use the Borough’s parks, but particularly older 
people, people with disabilities and parents / carers with young 
children; as they will have greater chance of being able to park their 
cars in the parks where charges are to be introduced.  
 
Disabled Badge Holders must pay for parking unless the vehicle is 
exempt from road tax and has a tax classification DISABLED in which 
case 3 hours free parking is permitted with normal charges applying 
after 3 hours. 
  

Disabled customers are not restricted to using disabled bays only and 
may use any car parking bay in a car park, excluding of course, 
motorcycle bays if not used for the purpose of parking such a vehicle, 
or bays set aside for permit holders only. 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
No data on the disability of park users in available – comments are based on anecdotal 
evidence only. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Page 164



 

87 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 

 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on the sex / gender of park users. 

 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
 
 

 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:  
 
We do not hold data on the ethnicity / race of park users but it is envisaged that the 
proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on ethnic groups. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
 
 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 165



 

88 

 

 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on the religion / faith of park users but it is envisaged that the 
proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on the sexual orientation of park users but it is envisaged that the 
proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic. 
 

 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on gender reassignment of park users but it is envisaged that the 
proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this protected characteristic.

Page 166



 

89 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 
 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known 
 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
We do not hold data on marriage/civil partnership of park users but it is envisaged that the 
proposals will not have a disproportionate impact on this group.  

 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Parking restrictions in unrestricted car parks are designed to prevent 
long term parking by residents, commuters or shoppers which could be 
to the determent of parks users.  
 
It is envisaged that the proposals will impact positively on all age 
groups who wish to use the Borough’s parks, but particularly older 
people, people with disabilities and parents / carers with young 
children; as they will have greater chance of being able to park their 
cars in the parks where charges are to be introduced.  
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
No data on the pregnancy, maternity and paternity of park users in available – comments 
are based on anecdotal evidence only.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
N/A 

 

 

Page 167



 

90 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
An introduction or increase of charges for car parking and the number 
of car parks this applies to in the Borough could have a negative 
impact on people on low incomes or who are from financially excluded 
backgrounds.  The introduction of a free period  could mitigate this for 
those that live and visit parks using cars as a means of  transport  in 
the most deprived areas of the Borough, including older and disabled 
residents and their carers.   
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
The table below lists the new parks and open spaces (in addition to those that already 
have car parking charges) to be affected, the ward of the park and the Ward’s deprivation 
rank. Residents who live and visit parks  using a car as a means of transport, rather than 
walking or cycling ,in the more deprived areas of the borough such as Gooshays, Heaton, 
Havering Park and Brooklands, may be disproportionately affected by the proposal if they 
stay for more than 30 minutes.  
 

Park Ward 
Deprivation Rank of 

Ward 

Central Park Gooshays 1 

Dagnam Park Gooshays 1 

Broxhill Park Heaton 2 

Bedfords Park Havering Park 4 

Westlands Playing Fields Brooklands 5 

Harold Wood Park Harold Wood 7 

Tylers Common Harold Wood 7 

Rainham Recreation Ground 
Rainham and 
Wennington 

8 

King Georges Playing Field Mawneys 9 

Bretons Outdoor Recreation 
Centre 

Elm Park 10 

Brittons Elm Park 10 

The Dell St Andrews 11 

Harrow Lodge Park Hylands 12 

Hylands Park Hylands 12 

Gidea Park Sports Ground 
Depot 

Pettits 13 

Rise Park Pettits 13 

Page 168



 

91 

 

Haynes Park Squirrels Heath 14 

Hacton Parkway and 
Playsite 

Hacton 15 

Hornchurch Country Park Hacton 15 

Cranham Brickfields Cranham 17 

Upminster Hall Playing Field Cranham 17 

Parklands Upminster 18 

N.b. Rank 1 = Most deprived ward, rank 18 = least deprived ward. 
 
Table of Index of Multiple Deprivation by Lower Super Output Area in Havering Wards. Department of 
Communities and Local Government, 2011 

 
No further data on the socio-economic status of park users is available.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
Table of Index of Multiple Deprivation by Lower Super Output Area in Havering Wards. 
Communities and Local Government, 2011 
 

 
  

Page 169



   A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

S
o

c
io

 –
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
s
ta

tu
s
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

h
ig

h
e

r 
c
h
a

rg
e

s
 

a
ft

e
r 

a
n

 i
n

it
ia

l 
fr

e
e

 

p
e

ri
o

d
  
a

n
d

 a
n

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
  

th
e

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

r 

p
a

rk
s
 t
h

is
 a

p
p

lie
s
 

to
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 

m
a

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 l
o

w
 

in
c
o

m
e

s
 o

r 
w

h
o

 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

lly
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 

b
a

c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 u

s
e

 o
f 

P
a

rk
 C

a
r 

P
a

rk
s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

m
o

re
 d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h
 

    

F
ro

m
 t

h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n

 P
a

rk
s
 

s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 g
a
u
g
e

 

if
 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

/o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 h

a
s
 

le
d

 t
o
 a

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 c
a
r 

p
a

rk
 u

s
a

g
e

. 

  

1
 y

e
a

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
 

  

M
a

rt
in

 S
ta

n
to

n
 

  

  
 

Page 170



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Review 

Type of activity: 

 
The Review will incorporate the development of a new 
strategy, a review of Council’s VCS grants allocation 
arrangements and also a review of its commissioning 
practices. 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Claire Thompson, Corporate Policy and Community Manager, 
Culture, Community & Economic Development 

 
Approved by: 
 

Cynthia Griffin, Group Director Culture, Community & 
Economic Development 

 
Date completed: 
 

August 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

Following an initial 3 month consultation period, this EIA will be 
revised and updated to reflect consultation feedback. 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes  

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 171



 

94 

 

15. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Review 

2 Type of activity 

 
The Review will incorporate the development of a new 
strategy, a review of Council’s VCS grants allocation 
arrangements and also a review of its commissioning 
practices. 
 

3 Scope of activity 

It is likely that the review will incorporate four 
workstreams addressing the following: 
 
1. A new Voluntary Sector Strategy – this will set out the 

outcomes the Council wants to achieve in terms of 

how it works with the VCS 

2. A review of Infrastructure (support provided to the 

voluntary sector for capacity building, funding, training, 

strategic engagement, etc.) – outputs will include a 

recommendation on how infrastructure services are 

provided in future, and to what specification 

3. A review of the Council’s VCS grants allocation 

arrangements  

4. A review of the Councils’ VCS commissioning 

arrangements (mainly within social care where 

services are commissioned the most). 

The review needs to achieve savings of £1.145m (as set 
out in the Cabinet report of 3rd September 2014). 
 
The review will not seek to change the discretionary 
rate relief or equitable rents policy at this time. 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? Yes - changing  

 
Yes 

4b 
Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

Page 172



 

95 

 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Claire Thompson, Corporate Policy and Community 
Manager, Culture, Community & Economic Development 

 
Date: 

August 2014 

 
  

Page 173



 

96 

 

16. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background 
 
The Council is undertaking a review of its strategic and funding relationship with the 
voluntary and community sector (VCS), to ensure that the investments it makes into 
community projects and voluntary sector services address residents’ needs, reduce 
demand on public services and provide value for money for the taxpayer.  This will include 
reviewing the grants and contracts currently in place with community groups and voluntary 
sector organisations, including the services provided by Havering Association of 
Community and Voluntary Organisations (HAVCO). A new voluntary sector strategy will 
also be developed, and consulted on as part of this review.   
 
The review will aim to save the Council at least £1m.  The review may also result in 
changes to the way infrastructure support is provided to the voluntary sector, depending 
on the outcome of consultation with the sector. 
 
Once the review is completed, further Equality Impact Assessments will be carried 
out before any recommendations are submitted to Members for consideration. 
 
 
Funding 
 
In 2013/14, the Council spent approximately £8.7m funding services from the voluntary 
and community sector, including: 
 

· Core funding grants to organisations (e.g. HAVCO and Citizens Advice Bureau) 

· Small grants for community projects 

· Larger contractual arrangements for specific commissioned services (mainly in 

social care). 

Not all the £8.7m comes from the Council’s general fund – £1.2m of this is external funding 
for specific purposes (e.g. MOPAC grant) that it uses to commission voluntary sector 
providers to deliver specific services.  As well as grants and other funding arrangements, 
historically, the Council has also provided subsidies to the voluntary sector, by way of: 
 

· “equitable rents”, set at one-third of open market commercial rents, amounting to 

a subsidy of £300,000 per annum, to 19 community organisations renting 

Council premises.  

· £223,802 in discretionary rate relief to 94 organisations with charitable status. 

The review will not seek to change the discretionary rate relief or equitable rents 
policy at this time. 
 
 
Strategy 
 
During the consultation that will be taking place as part of this review, the voluntary sector 
will have an opportunity to develop a new vision and shape the strategic outcomes we 
want to achieve in the new Voluntary Sector Strategy. 
 

Page 174



 

97 

 

It is envisaged that the strategy will have a focus on responding to pressures caused by 
the national policy agenda, such as the Care Act implications, and the continued public 
sector funding reductions. 
 
The strategy is intended to articulate the transformation required in the way that the 
Council works with the voluntary sector, and indeed how the sector itself currently 
operates – away from traditional models of grant dependence towards income generation 
and tapping into new markets and new income streams. 
 
 
Consultation 
 
The first phase of the voluntary sector review will be a period of at least three months’ 
consultation, in line with our commitment to the Voluntary Sector Compact. 
 
The consultation will seek to reach as many community groups and voluntary sector 
organisations as possible – including those that the Council has a funding relationship with 
and some of those that it does not. 
 
Consultation will be carried out in a range of ways including: 
 

· Face-to-face interviews with voluntary organisations 

· Focus groups 

· Online surveys 

· Meetings with Boards of Trustees 

We will also seek the views of users of voluntary and community sector services. 
 

Page 175



 

98 

 

The EIA 
 

It is difficult at this stage to determine the potential impact that the review might have on 
individuals and groups with protected characteristics.  However, the Council will need to 
reduce its funding to the sector by over £1m, which represents an 11% reduction on 
current expenditure.  Whilst this is proportionate (and indeed a lot less) than the funding 
cuts which the Council is facing over the next four years, it is inevitable that some 
organisations may see their funding withdrawn. 
 
Therefore the Council needs to be able to understand what the likely impact might be of an 
11% funding reduction on VCS services that cater for people with different protected 
characteristics.    
 
Until detailed consultation and assessment has been carried out on the criteria that will be 
used to determine which grants will be affected, it is difficult to say what the likely impact 
will be.  The assessments below are based on data that we have on the current picture of 
the voluntary sector in Havering, taken from HAVCO’s community portal, as well as a 
recent study carried out by the National Council for Voluntary Organisation (NVCO) to 
compile data on the Voluntary Sector in London.  This study included a breakdown for 
each borough, although it only captured organisations that are registered charities.  Also 
included is evidence from the 2010 National Survey of Charities and Social Enterprises 
(NSCSE) carried out by Ipsos MORI on behalf of The Office for Civil Society.  440 
charities, voluntary groups and social enterprises within Havering were asked to take part 
in the 2010 NSCSE, of that, 186 organisations responded to the survey (a 42% response 
rate). 
 
Local Context: Havering’s Voluntary Sector 

Havering has a fairly large voluntary sector, believed to be in excess of 800 organisations. 
These range from larger voluntary organisations, such as the Citizens Advice Bureau, Age 
Concern Havering, the Carers Trust, YMCA, etc., through to small neighbourhood-level 
groups of residents - local people giving up their spare time to make a difference in their 
neighbourhood.  It is estimated that around £200m each year is brought into the local 
economy by Havering’s VCS2.   

Because of the informal nature of much of the community sector, it is very difficult to get a 
complete picture of how many organisations there are and what types of services they 
provide.  

· Number of Organisations registered on Charities Commission website 
 

 Local National 
National 
& 
Overseas 

Overseas 
Not 
Known 

Total 

Number  242 25 10 16 26 319 

Income  £39.9m £3m £2.4m £1.4m £0 £46.9m 

Expenditure £38.6m £3.1m £2.4m £1.5m £0 £45.6m 

Employees 579 25 57 9 0 670 

 

 

 

                                                 
2
 This includes larger organisations who may also operate outside the borough as well as within Havering 

Page 176



 

99 

 

The figures for assets and employees are based only on those 
organisations with incomes greater than £500,000 per year, so will be 
lower than for the whole sector. Local includes organisations working at 
any level below national – i.e. regional, cross-borough, single borough 
or smaller.  

 

· Overview of charities registered on Charities Commission website 
 

Type of charitable organisation Number 

Charities 319 

Community Interest Companies 6 

Industrial and Provident Societies 6 

Companies Limited by Guarantee 146 

Total charitable organisations 477 

 

 

· Finances    
   
   
   
         

      
 

 
 

·  Charities based outside of Havering that operate in the Borough 

 

Item Number 

Count (Havering only) 44 

Income (Havering only) £6.1m 

Count (throughout London) 896 

Income (throughout London) £346.6m 

 
http://data.ncvo-vol.org.uk/areas/london/intro. 

 

· Organisations listed on the HAVCO Community Portal 

 
We know that the research carried out into organisations listed on the Charities 
Commission is not the full picture of, particularly, some of the smaller organisations 
working at a community level.  Havering Association of Community and Voluntary 
Organisations (HAVCO), has 597 organisations on its Community Portal database.   
 
 
 

Item Number 

Income £46.9m 

Expenditure £45.6m 

Assets* £54.5m 

Employees* 670 

Organisations 319 

Trustees 1,736 

The registered charities data used in all tables 
have been filtered using a ‘third sector test’. 
Included are organisations generally considered 
to be part of the third sector, we have removed 
organisations not traditionally seen as third 
sector but still registered as charities, such as 
housing associations, independent schools, 
government bodies, trade associations and faith 
groups whose main objective is the promotion of 
religion.  
 
The list of Companies Limited by Guarantee has 
been filtered to remove registered charities (to 
avoid double counting) as well as organisations 
not traditionally viewed as third sector, such as 
management companies of blocks of flats. 

Page 177



 

100 

 

The information contained on the Portal tells us that these organisations operate in the 
following fields: 
 

 
 
 
And their beneficiaries are of the following ages and ethnicities: 
 

 

4.5% 

7.9% 

3.4% 

5.9% 

14.6% 

32.8% 

2.8% 

0.8% 

9.5% 

1.7% 

5.2% 

3.0% 
0.5% 

7.4% 

Type of Organisation 

Animals (27)

Arts (47)

BME (20)

Community (35)

Disability (87)

Elderly (196)

Environmental (17)

Faith (5)

Health (57)

Other (10)

Sports (31)

Substance Misuse (8)

Support & Development (3)

22.2%

4.8% 

34.6% 

13.2% 

9.7% 

7.8% 

7.7% 

6.6% 

Age 

All (162)

0-4 (35)

5-13 (252)

14-19 (96)

20-25 (71)

25+ (57)

50+ (56)

60+ (48)

Page 178



 

101 

 

 
 

Race 

African (2.5%, 12)

All (87.9%, 428)

Bangladeshi (0.6%, 3)

Black (1.4%, 7)

British (0.6%, 3)

Caribbean (1.6%, 8)

Eastern European (0.4%, 2)

Page 179



 

102 

 

And have bases located fairly evenly across the borough: 

  

  

Page 180



 

103 

 

· The Findings of the 2010 National Survey of Charities and  

Social Enterprises (NSCSE) 

The 2010 NSCSE asked organisations to identify the main clients, users or beneficiaries of 
their organisation. Of the 440 charities, voluntary groups and social enterprises in Havering 
invited to take part in the survey, 186 responded (a 42% response rate). 
 
Users or beneficiaries of organisations 
 
Havering 

Rank  Main clients, users or beneficiaries % 

1st  The general public / everyone 38 

2nd  Children (aged 15 or under) 31 

3rd  Young people (aged 16 to 24) 23 

4th  Women 16 

5th  Older People 14 
 

Main areas that organisations work in 
 

Havering 

Rank  Main areas for organisations % 

1st  Education and Lifelong Learning 27 

2nd  Leisure (including sport and recreation) 26 

3rd  Religious / Faith-based Activity 25 

4th  Community Development and Mutual Aid 17 

5th  
Health and Well-being (e.g. medical, health, sickness, disability, 
mental health, counselling) 

15 

 

The top five main areas identified by organisations in Havering mirrored that of our nearest 
statistical neighbours in London. Organisations in Bexley, Hillingdon and Bromley all 
documented the same main areas in the 2010 NSCSE - the only exception being 
Hillingdon who also listed culture (including arts and music) as a main area of their 
organisations in the 2010 NSCSE. 
 
Main roles undertaken 
 

Havering 

Rank  Main roles your organisation undertakes % 

1st  
Delivery of other services (e.g. business services, financial 
services, leisure, retail, manufacturing, community support, 
sports coaching/club, and recreation), 

28 

2nd  
Advancing religion and / or spiritual welfare by supporting 
religious or spiritual practice 

24 

3rd  
Delivery of public services (e.g. social housing, health care, 
day centre, counselling, community safety, education, childcare) 

22 

4th  Community development and mutual aid 13 

5th  Provides advice to individuals 12 
 
 

 

Page 181



 

104 

 

Geographic areas of operation 
  

Havering 

Rank  Top five geographic areas % 

1st  Your local authority area 40 

2nd  Your neighbourhood 31 

3rd  Regionally 12 

4th  Nationally 11 

5th  Internationally 7 
 

Approximate number of full-time equivalent employees  
 

Over half of the organisations in Havering reported no full-time equivalent employees 
currently in their organisation. This is either due to mostly part-time staff or a large 
proportion of volunteer workers or both. 
 
Havering 

Rank  Number of full-time equivalent employees % 

1st  None  56 

2nd  No answer provided  10 

3rd  One  9 

4th  Two  8 

5th  Three to Five 6 
 

Approximate total number of volunteers, including committee / board members  
 

Havering 

Rank  Volunteers, including committee / board members % 

1st  1 to10  36 

2nd  11 to 20 32 

3rd  No answer provided  11 

4th  21-30 / 31-50 / 101 to 500  6 

5th  51 to 100 2 
 

Approximate annual turnover or income from all sources 
 
Havering 

Rank  Annual turnover / income % 

1st  £10,001 - £30,000 19 

2nd  £5,001 - £10,000 17 

3rd  £100,001 - £500,000 12 

4th  More than £500,000 9 

5th  £30,001 - £60,000 8 

 
  

Page 182



 

105 

 

Top five sources of income  
 

Havering 

Rank  Sources of income % 

1st  Donations and fundraising activities 75 

2nd  Membership fees / subscriptions 43 

3rd  Grants from non-statutory bodies 23 

4th  Earned income from training including retail 20 

5th  Earned income from contracts 10 

 

  

Page 183



 

106 

 

 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
At this moment in time it is not possible to fully assess the impact of the 
review on age groups as no recommendations have yet been made. 
However, based on the data currently available we have identified that 
further work is needed to stimulate the provider market in the 
older people’s sector. 
 
This will be explored further during consultation. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
Havering’s age profile is as follows: 
 

2013 Number 
Percentage of 

population (%) 

All persons 242,080 100.0 

0-4 years 14,808 6.1 

5-10 years 16,867 7.0 

11-17 years 20,445 8.5 

18-24 years 21,048 8.7 

25-64 years 124,097 51.3 

65-84 years 38,306 15.8 

85+ years 6,509 2.7 

 
The HAVCO Community Portal suggests that the organisations listed with HAVCO work 
with users across all age groups, but that more organisations work with younger people 
than older residents.  
 
This evidence is also supported by the 2010 National Survey of Charities and Social 
Enterprises (NSCSE), which showed that 31% of organisations in Havering work with 
younger people and only 14% with older people. 
 
The number of children and young people (0-17) in Havering is expected to grow by 22% 
by 2019, so it could be seen as an encouraging sign that this age group is well 
represented across and catered for by Havering’s voluntary sector.  
 
However the evidence also suggests that further work needs to be done to stimulate 
the provider market in the older people’s sector, particularly as the 65+ population in 
Havering is expected to grow the fastest overall in the future, increasing by 18.5% by 
2019, and that that there will be a sharp increase in the over 85s – from 6,975 (in 2014) to 
8,040 (in 2019). 

Page 184



 

107 

 

 

Sources used:  

2013 Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics 

HAVCO Community Portal (data accessed 12/8/14) 

2013 Round SHLAA population projections (based on Havering population of 241,289 in 
2012), Greater London Authority  

2010 National Survey of Charities and Social Enterprises (NSCSE) 
 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
At this moment in time it is not possible to fully assess the impact of the 
review on people disabilities or long-term health conditions as no 
recommendations have yet been made. However, based on the data 
currently available we have identified that more work needs to be 
done to stimulate the voluntary sector market in this area.   
 
This will be explored further during consultation. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
According to the definition of ‘disability’ under the Equality Act 2010, a person has a 
disability if they have a physical or mental impairment; and the impairment has a 
substantial and long-term adverse effect on their ability to perform normal day-to-day 
activities. 
 
Havering’s disability profile is as follows: 

· 31,400 (21%) working age (16-64) people living in Havering have a disability or long 
term illness/health condition 

· 22,320 (52%) of older people (65+ years old) have a disability or long term illness/ 
health condition 

 
According to the HAVCO Community Portal, 18 of their member organisations (only 3%) 
work in the disability sector.  
 
According to the 2010 National Survey of Charities and Social Enterprises (NSCSE), 15% 
of organisations work in the health and wellbeing sector (including medical, health, 
sickness, disability, mental health, counselling, etc.). 
 
The above data clearly shows there are gaps in VCS provision that need to be addressed 
for the disability sector. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

2012/13 Annual Population Survey, Office of National Statistics 
2011 Census, Office of National Statistics 
HAVCO Community Portal (data accessed 12/8/14) 
2010 National Survey of Charities and Social Enterprises (NSCSE) 
 

Page 185



 

108 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
At this moment in time it is not possible to fully assess the impact of the 
review on this protected characteristic as no recommendations have 
yet been made. However, a basic analysis of the evidence indicates 
that there are many more organisations working with women than men 
in Havering.  This could reflect a higher support needs for women, or it 
could reflect differences in service uptake, or demand for community-
based services, between men and women. 
 
This will be explored further as part of the consultation. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence: 
 
The gender profile of Havering is as follows: 
   

2013 Number 
Percentage of 

population (%) 

All persons 242,080 100.0 

Male 116,232 48.0 

Female 125,848 52.0 

 
According to the HAVCO portal, 303 organisations have stated that they work with both 
sexes, 12 specifically with men and 129 with women, while the 2010 National Survey of 
Charities and Social Enterprises (NSCSE) suggests that 16% of organisations from 
Havering who responded to the survey work with women.   
 
This could reflect a higher support needs for women, or it could reflect differences in 
service uptake, or demand for services, between men and women. 
 
This will be further explored during the consultation period. 
  
 

Sources used:  
 
Source: 2013 Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics 
2010 National Survey of Charities and Social Enterprises (NSCSE) 
HAVCO Community Portal (data accessed 12/8/14) 
 

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
It is not possible to fully assess the impact of the review on different 
ethnic groups as no recommendations have yet been made. However, 
at this moment in time there does not appear to be a disproportionate 
provision of VSC services targeted specifically at ethnic minorities.  

Positive

Neutral  

Page 186



 

109 

 

Negative  

Given that Havering’s Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) population has 
grown significantly and is expected to continue to grow during the next 
five years, this may be an area of growth for the voluntary sector in 
future. 
 
The provision of voluntary sector services for people of different 
ethnicities will be explored further as part of the consultation. 

 

Evidence:   
 
Havering’s ethnicity profile is as follows: 
 

2014 (projection) Number 
Percentage of 

population (%) 

All ethnicities 246,269  100.00 

White 211,126 85.7 

Black Caribbean 3,335 1.4 

Black African 9,485 3.9 

Black Other 4,524 1.8 

Indian 5,813 2.4 

Pakistani 1,820 0.7 

Bangladeshi 1,205 0.5 

Chinese 1,662 0.7 

Other Asian 4,467 1.8 

Other 2,833 1.2 

BAME
3 35,144 14.3 

 
According to the HAVCO Portal, which is the only local data source we have on ethnicity, 
organisations working specifically with ethnic minorities are fairly well represented in 
Havering’s voluntary sector.  However, given that Havering’s Black and Minority Ethnic 
(BME) population has grown by 20% since 2011, and is expected to grow further 25% by 
2019, this may be an area of growth for the voluntary sector in future. 
 
As the GLA projection data incorporates the White: Other groups (such as Eastern 
Europeans, Gypsies, Roma and Irish Travellers) within the wider ‘White’ category, it is 
difficult to analyse VCS services provision and take-up by White: Other groups. For 
example, according to 2011 Census at least 3% (or 7,580 people) of the population living 
in Havering belong to the White: Other category, and yet, only 2 organisations cater for 
Eastern European residents. It is therefore required to carry out specific focus groups with 
these communities and use School Census data to inform our proposals and ensure that 
their needs are met.  

                                                 
3
The GLA define BAME differently to the ONS. The GLA does not include a ‘White Other’ Group.  Instead 

they have one category ‘White’ that includes ‘White British’ and ‘White Other’. 
 

Page 187



 

110 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
2012 Round SHLAA ethnic group projection - final, Greater London Authority 
HAVCO Community Portal (data accessed 12/8/14) 

 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
At this moment in time it is not possible to fully assess the impact of the 
review on people with this protected characteristic as no 
recommendations have yet been made. 
 
The data available on beneficiaries by faith is very limited. However, 
based on the data currently available to us there does not appear to be 
any under-representation. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
In the 2011 Census, Havering’s religious profile was: 
 

2011 Number 
Percentage of 

population (%) 

All religions 237,232 100.0 

Christian 155,597 65.6 

Muslim 4,829 2.0 

Hindu 2,963 1.2 

Sikh 1,928 0.8 

Jewish 1,159 0.5 

Buddhist 760 0.3 

Other religion 648 0.3 

No religion 53,549 22.6 

Religion not stated 15,799 6.7 

 
According to the 2010 NCSCE, 25% of respondents from Havering stated that their main 
purpose was religious / faith-based activity. 
 
According to the HAVCO portal, the majority of organisations said they worked with ‘all’ 
faiths, with a small number (32) being Christian, 3 Jewish, 3 Muslim, and 2 Sikh. 
 
This is unlikely to be a full and accurate picture of Havering’s faith sector. 
 
There does not appear to be any significant under-representation in terms of faith. 
However, we will further explore this during the consultation period. 
 

Page 188



 

111 

 

 

Sources used:  
 
2011 Census, Office of National Statistics 
HAVCO Community Portal (data accessed 12/8/14) 
CET faith database 

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is little information available at national and local levels to make 
an assessment on the impact of the review on this protected 
characteristic. 
 
This apparent gap will be explored further as part of consultation. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
There is no sufficient information on sexual orientation or gender identity at national or 
local level. 
 
There is no local data on this protected characteristic, in terms of voluntary sector 
provision. 
 
There are no organisations listed on the HAVCO portal which specifically work with LGBT 
people living in Havering. 
 
 

Sources used:  

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact 
of the review on this protected characteristic. 
 
This apparent gap will be explored further as part of consultation. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
There is no local data on this protected characteristic, in terms of voluntary sector 
provision. 
 
There are no organisations listed on the HAVCO portal which specifically work with LGBT 
people living in Havering. 

Page 189



 

112 

 

 

Sources used:  

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact 
of the review on this protected characteristic. 
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:  
  
According to the 2011 Census, Havering’s profile at a Borough level is: 
 

2011 Number 
Percentage of 

population (%) 

All persons 192,844 100.0 

Single (never married or never 
registered a same-sex civil 
partnership) 

63,549 33.0 

Married 93,587 48.5 

In a registered same-sex civil 
partnership 

196 0.1 

Separated (but still legally 
married or still legally in a 
same-sex civil partnership) 

4,699 2.4 

Divorced or formerly in a same-
sex civil partnership which is 
now legally dissolved 

15,492 8.0 

Widowed or surviving partner 
from a same-sex civil 
partnership 

15,321 7.9 

 
There is no information available to make an assessment on impact against this group. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

2011 Census 

  

Page 190



 

113 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact 
of the review on this protected characteristic. 
 
This will be explored further as part of the consultation. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence: 
 
There is very little evidence available on the number of organisations falling under this 
category. An internet search unveils community support groups around breastfeeding e.g. 
http://www.latchon.org.uk/about-us/ .  The Community Centre-based Breastfeeding Café’s 
are run by Children’s Services. 
  
Home-Start Havering caters for children under five and their families. Home-Start recruits 
and trains volunteers from the London Borough of Havering, then carefully matches the 
volunteer with an appropriate family.  All of the families they support must have at least 
one child under five.  The volunteer visits the family in their own home once a week. They 
run groups in conjunction with children centres; including messy play and music and 
movement and multicultural sessions. 
    
There may be other groups without an online presence, however this is unknown at this 
time. This area should therefore be further explored during consultation.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 
LatchOn 
 
Netmums.org 
 
Home-Start Havering 
 
 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
There is no information available to make an assessment on the impact 
of the review on people from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

Page 191



 

114 

 

 

Evidence:   
Multiple disadvantage was a new 2011 Census measure defined as the proportion of 
households who have one or more of the following deprivation characteristics 
(dimensions):  
 

· No qualifications 

· A long-term illness 

· Unemployment 

· Overcrowded housing 

 

2011 Number 
Percentage of 

population (%) 

1 Dimension 33,711 34.68 

2 Dimensions  20,248 20.83 

3 Dimensions  4,272 4.4 

4 Dimensions  401 0.41 

 
Havering has relatively low levels of deprivation. Havering is ranked 177th out of 326 
local authorities (1st being most deprived, 326th being least deprived) 
 
However there are pockets of deprivation - two small areas of Havering falling into the 
10% most deprived areas in England (an area in Gooshays and an area in South 
Hornchurch) 
 
Overall, Gooshays remains the most deprived ward in Havering, with Hylands ward 
being the least deprived. 
 
An analysis of the map of organisations listed on the HAVCO Community Portal suggests 
that both areas are covered by voluntary and community sector organisations. 
 
In addition to the HAVCO portal, other local intelligence shows that there are groups who 
specifically work with people living in poverty, such as the three Food Banks. 
 
The consultation will ensure that these groups are represented and involved. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 
HAVCO Community Portal (data accessed 12/8/14) 
 
Index of Multiple Deprivation, Communities and Local Government, released 2011 

Local knowledge 

 
  

Page 192



  A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 
th

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
ll 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
e
 h

o
ld

 i
s
 

p
a
tc

h
y
 s

o
 d

o
e
s
n
’t
 

a
llo

w
 u

s
 t

o
 f
u
lly

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
s
 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

d
a
ta

 

U
s
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

fi
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

  

F
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

’ 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

p
ro

fi
le

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

u
n
s
 2

4
th
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

–
 2

4
th
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

  

C
la

ir
e
 T

h
o
m

p
s
o
n
 /
 

A
n
it
a
 M

c
D

a
d
e
 

  

   
 

Page 193



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

(EIA) 

 

 
Document control  
 

Title of activity: 
Younger adults - minimum statutory levels of service for 
younger adults (18-64) 

Type of activity: 

 
Statutory review of current service provision for younger adults 
(18-64) 
 

 
Lead officer:  
 

Barbara Nicholls, Head of Service, Children, Adults and 
Housing 

 
Approved by: 
 

Joy Hollister, Group Director, Children, Adults and Housing  

 
Date completed: 
 

18th August 2014 

 
Scheduled date for 
review: 
 

January 2016 

 

Did you seek advice from the Corporate Policy & Diversity team? Yes 

Does the EIA contain any confidential or exempt information that 
would prevent you publishing it on the Council’s website? 

No 

Page 194



 

117 

 

17. Equality Impact Assessment Checklist 
 

The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool to ensure that your activity meets the 
needs of individuals and groups that use your service.  It also helps the Council to meet its 
legal obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Please complete the following checklist to determine whether or not you will need to 
complete an EIA.  Please ensure you keep this section for your audit trail.  If you have any 
questions, please contact the Corporate Policy and Diversity Team at 
diversity@havering.gov.uk 
 

About your activity 
 

1 Title of activity 
Younger adults - minimum statutory levels of service for 
younger adults (18-64) 

2 Type of activity 

 
Statutory review of current service provision for younger 
adults (18-64) 
 

3 Scope of activity 

We will review services for younger adults, with a view to 
shaping more cost effective services and/or meeting 
statutory requirements through personalised services. 
 
Services for younger adults (between the ages of 18 and 
64) are very expensive and do not offer the personalised 
provision required. We will review all areas of spend (e.g. 
residential care, care packages, respite and day care) to 
ensure that we are receiving maximum value for money 
and that services are person centred and outcomes-
focussed.  
 
We will re-commission where necessary to meet 
statutory requirements through personalised services, 
and will look to apply the minimum statutory levels of 
service using the new national eligibility criteria within the 
Care Act. 
 
As we complete person centred plans, move to personal 
budgets and strictly apply eligibility criteria it is likely that 
we will not require some of the current provision. We will 
ensure any changes to how services are offered will 
include full consultation and impact assessment prior to 
any recommendations being finalised, and ensure viable 
alternatives are available. 
 
Havering spends relatively more on services for younger 
adults compared to other local authorities. The review will 
particularly focus on high cost placements and services, 
as well as services where unit costs are much higher than 
average. 
 

Page 195



 

118 

 

4a 
Is the activity new or 
changing? 

Yes -changing 
 
 
Yes  4b 

Is the activity likely to 
have an impact on 
individuals or groups? 

5 If you answered yes: Please complete the EIA on the next page. 

6 If you answered no: 
 
N/A 
 

 

 
Completed by:  
 

Barbara Nicholls, Head of Service, Children, Adults and 
Housing 

 
Date: 
 

18th August 2014 

 
  

Page 196



 

119 

 

18. Equality Impact Assessment  
 

Background/context: 

Despite the national drive towards personalisation since the turn of the century (starting 
with Valuing People in 2001, Putting People First in 2007, and now the Care Act in 2014 - 
due to be implemented in April 2015), services in Havering for younger adults (between 
the ages of 18 and 64) are very traditional, expensive and do not offer the personalised 
provision required.  
 
As a result Havering spends relatively more on services for younger adults (particularly 
people with a learning disability) compared to other local authorities. Yet comparative 
benchmarking data shows that service users and carers are relatively unhappy with the 
services they receive. Some of this can be explained by the relatively low numbers of 
people who receive self-directed support, and those who are receiving direct payments. 
 
Our role is to focus on the person and their needs, their choices and what they want to 
achieve. We must improve the uptake and quality of personalised services by providing 
service users and their families with personal budgets, direct payments, outcomes-based 
and needs-led assessment, self-directed support, health and well-being, family and 
community support, and care and support plans, in-line with the national agenda. 
 
Within the Care Act, carers will (for the first time) be recognised in the law in the same 
way as those they care for, including carers’ rights to assessments and support. 
Currently, carers do not have a right to receive support, although local authorities can 
provide support (e.g. respite care) at their discretion. This means that access to 
assessment and the range of support on offer can vary considerably. 
 
The Care Act will, for the first time, establish national eligibility criteria. The Guidance is 
currently in draft, and sets out the national minimum threshold for eligibility, which will be 
consistent across England. At the moment, each local authority sets its own eligibility 
threshold based on guidance. This means that the amount, and type, of care that is 
provided by a local authority can vary depending on where a person lives.  While 
assessments tend to focus on what service should be provided, rather than on what the 
person actually needs or wants. 
 
Havering is committed to applying the minimum statutory levels of service using the new 
national eligibility criteria within the Care Act. This will both help to improve the 
personalisation of services, and to tackle our high spend areas during a time of increasing 
demographic demand and unprecedented financial austerity across local government.  
 
We will review this Equality Impact Assessment in January 2016, by which time the Care 
Act will be implemented or in its implementation phase, and we will start to see evidence 
and the impact of these changes. 
 

Age: Consider the full range of age groups 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 

The age groups that are most likely to be affected by this statutory 
review are younger adults (between the ages of 18 and 64) who 

Positive  

Page 197



 

120 

 

Neutral  
receive adult social care services. The carers of these service users, 
many of whom are older people will also be impacted.  
 
For some service users and carers the application of the new national 
eligibility criteria within the Care Act will either result in no service, or a 
reduced service compared to what they have been used to.  
 
It is expected that personalised services (such as personal budgets) 
will have a positive impact and will provide service users and their 
carers with choice and control over their services. However, for some 
people such a change is likely to be seen as a negative impact and/or 
a significant reduction in service, as they have become accustomed to 
receiving more traditional services from the Council over the years. 
 

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:  
 

Havering spends relatively more on services for younger adults (particularly people with a 
learning disability) compared to other local authorities. Yet the comparative benchmarking 
data shows that service users and carers are relatively unhappy with the services they 
receive. 
 

Relevant benchmarking data shows that Havering is in the: 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘overall satisfaction of people who use services with 
their care and support.’ 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘social care-related quality of life.’ 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘proportion of people who use services who have 
control over their daily life.’ 

· Lowest quartile in England for ‘proportion of people using social care who receive 
self-directed support, and those receiving direct payments.’ 

Havering has the highest proportion of older people (18%) in London, and as such 
providing support for carers is critical to the successful delivery of this project. Currently, a 
very small proportion of carers in Havering receive support compared to the average 
nationally. Support given to carers includes advice services or receiving a carer’s break.  
 

· 11% (or 25,214 people) of Havering’s residents provide unpaid care. 7% (or 16,094 
people) of those people provide care of between 1-19 hours of unpaid care per 
week and further 3% (5,835 people) provide 50 hours and over of unpaid care per 
week. Both categories are higher than England and London averages. 

The aim of this project is to support people to live as independently as possible in the 
community and help them to maintain/improve their health and wellbeing.  
 
The negative impact of applying the minimum statutory levels of service will be mitigated 
by ensuring that: 

· We focus on strengthening communities; 

· We provide services for our most vulnerable younger adults and those who have 
an assessed need, as well as supporting carers who meet the criteria for respite 
services to have a break from their caring role (improving support for carers is an 
important theme throughout the Care Act); 

· We focus on maximising the quality of our personalised services; and 

· We ensure that assessments and care and support plans (support plan in the case 
of carers) are person-centred, outcomes-focused, and completed using an asset-
based approach, where the needs and wellbeing of the individual are paramount. 

Page 198



 

121 

 

It is also worth noting that other concurrent projects are looking at how we can support 
and enable communities to become more resilient and self-sufficient, while other projects 
that are focusing on early help, intervention and prevention initiatives. This is an 
acknowledgement that it is normally far better for the wellbeing of people to avoid entering 
the social care system in the first place. 

 

Sources used:  
 

· 2011 Census, Office of National Statistics 

· 2013 Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics 

· Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 2012/13 
There is a great deal of evidence and research nationally around the positive impacts of 
the personalisation agenda in social care (and why traditional services often hinder 
people’s ability to improve their outcomes and wellbeing), and we have used this to inform 
this project. There are too many examples of evidence to list here, but the ‘Care and 
Support Statutory Guidance’, issued under the Care Act 2014, provides a comprehensive 
evidence base and case studies.  
 

 

Disability: Consider the full range of disabilities; including physical mental, sensory and 
progressive conditions 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 

This project will have a negative impact on people with disabilities. 
Many of the services we currently provide to this group are very 
traditional and are not personalised, and therefore it is expected that 
this group will be the most impacted. 
 
We recognise, however, that service users with a learning disability will 
be disproportionately affected compared to other disabled service 
users, as the majority of Adult Social Care expenditure on younger 
adults is spent on people with a learning disability. 
 
By moving to more personalised services it is anticipated that the 
performance in these relevant indicators will improve over time. Having 
said that, some younger adults with a mild or moderate learning 
disability could end up with no statutory services as a result of the 
national eligibility criteria introduced by the care Act. We therefore must 
ensure that we support those people to find suitable alternatives locally 
and within the community. This is where our strengthening 
communities, and early help, intervention and prevention initiatives will 
be key in enabling younger adults to be as independent as possible. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 

· It is estimated that more than 31,400 (21%) working age (16-64) people living in 
Havering have a disability or long term illness/health condition.  

· More than 1,100 residents are registered as being blind or partially sighted in 
Havering.

· It is estimated that more than 14,000 adults (aged 18 - 64) in Havering have a 

Page 199



 

122 

 

moderate or severe disability, with the number of adults with learning disabilities 

increasing by roughly the same amount. The number of adults (aged 18 – 64) with 

moderate or severe disabilities will rise by around 7% in the next ten years, with 

more than 15,000 adults in Havering having a physical disability by 2021. 

· The most common categories of learning disability are Moderate Learning 

Disability (30%), Behaviour, Emotional and Social Difficulties (19%), and Speech, 

Language and Communication Needs (17%).  

· There are approximately 20,000 adults in Havering who have a common mental 

health issue. It is estimated that there are more than 600 adults in Havering with a 

Borderline Personality Disorder, nearly 600 people with Psychotic Disorder and 

around 500 people with Antisocial Personality Disorder. Predicted future population 

growth means that the number of adults (aged 18-64) experiencing each of these 

mental illnesses is expected to increase by 6% in the next ten years (by 2021) in 

Havering. 

· Adults in Havering that are receiving treatment for severe mental health problems 

are less likely to be in employment or in stable accommodation: less than 4% are in 

employment and less than 50% are in stable accommodation. These percentages 

are below the average in England and London. 

Currently, there are 723 service users with a physical disability, 304 service users with 
mental health problems and 591 services users with a learning disability. It is therefore 
estimated that Adult Social Care provide a service to 1 in 20 younger adults with a 
disability or long term illness/health condition. 
 
Havering spends relatively more on services for younger adults (particularly people with a 
learning disability) compared to other local authorities. Yet the comparative benchmarking 
data shows that service users and carers are relatively unhappy with the services they 
receive. 
 
Although the proportion of service users with a learning disability is lower than the 
proportion of services users with a physical disability or mental health problem, the 
majority of spend on younger adults in Havering is on learning disability services (£16m 
net for 2014/15). Average gross weekly cost (2012/13) on supporting adults with a 
learning disability in residential and nursing care (incl. full cost paying and preserved 
rights residents) is £1,489 per adult in Havering, which is slightly higher than the London 
average of £1,439 and the England average of £1,341. 
 
The proportion of adults with a learning disability in paid employment is 8% in Havering, 
compared to 9.3% across London and 7.1% across England. 
 
The aim of this project is to support people to live as independently as possible in the 
community and help them to maintain/improve their health and wellbeing. For example, 
we will encourage and support younger adults to gain employment, and to take full 
advantage of opportunities so as to be able to fully participate in their communities.  
 
The negative impact of applying the minimum statutory levels of service will be mitigated 
by ensuring that: 

· We focus on strengthening communities; 

· We provide services for our most vulnerable younger adults and those who have 
an assessed need, as well as supporting carers who meet the criteria for respite 
services to have a break from their caring role (improving support for carers is an 
important theme throughout the Care Act); 

Page 200



 

123 

 

· We focus on maximising the quality of our personalised services; and 

· We ensure that assessments and care and support plans (support plan in the case 
of carers) are person-centred, outcomes-focused, and completed using an asset-
based approach, where the needs and wellbeing of the individual are paramount. 

 

Sources used:  
 

· 2012/13 Annual Population Survey, Office of National Statistics  

· Current list of younger adult service users from Swift  
· 2014/15 Budgets Social Care PPSEX1 2012/13 Benchmarking Tool  
· Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 2012/13  
· 2011/12 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment data 

 

Sex/gender: Consider both men and women 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Overall, there is an even 50-50 split of male and female younger adult 
service users.  
 

The majority of current service users with a physical disability are 
women (60%), while the majority of current service users with a 
learning disability (60%) or mental health problem (57%) are men.  
 
Also, due to the new national eligibility criteria adults with mild or 
moderate learning disabilities could end up with no statutory services. 
This will have an impact on their carers, the majority of whom are 
women (76%), particularly older women.  
 
As stated previously, however, improving support for carers is an 
important theme throughout the Care Act. For the first time, carers will 
be recognised in the law in the same way as those they care for, 
including carers’ rights to assessments and support. 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
52% of Havering’s current population (125,848 people) are girls and women, while 48% of 
Havering’s current population (116,232 people) are boys and men. 
 
The larger percentage of females in Havering may in part be explained by the longer 

female life expectancy: 84.1 years for women compared to 79.1 years for men. 

50% of younger adults who receive a service are female; 50% are male. 76% of carers of 
these service users are female. 
 
A significant number of people living in Havering provide unpaid care (25,214 people), 
and as such providing support for carers is critical to the successful delivery of this 
project. 

Page 201



 

124 

 

 

Sources used:  
 

· 2011 Census 

· 2013 Mid-year population estimates, Office of National Statistics  

· Current list of younger adult service users from Swift  

 

Ethnicity/race: Consider the impact on different ethnic groups and nationalities 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
While the comparative statistics (below) suggests that White British 
service users are likely to be disproportionately affected by the 
proposed changes, their proportion is comparable to the ethnic profile 
of the Borough.   
 
 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative ü 

 

Evidence:   
 
86.4% of service users are White British which is comparable to the ethnic profile of the 
Borough (85.7%).  
 
13.6% of current service users are from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) backgrounds, 
including White Other which is slightly lower than the proportion of BME communities in 
the Borough (14.3%). However, in light of the projected increase in ethnic diversity in the 
Borough, BME groups are also likely to be affected by the new national eligibility criteria. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· 2012 Round SHLAA ethnic group projection - final, Greater London Authority  
· Current list of younger adult service users from Swift  

 
Religion/faith: Consider people from different religions or beliefs including those with no 
religion or belief 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
According to the 2011 Census, 66% of Havering’s population has stated that they are 
Christian, followed by 23% who declared that they have no religion and just below 7% 
who preferred not to state their religion. Other religions in the borough are Muslim (2%), 
Hindu (1.2%), Sikh (0.8%), Jewish (0.5%) and Buddhist (0.3%). 
 
Due to lack of service level data we cannot fully assess the impact on this protected 

Page 202



 

125 

 

characteristic. However, it is not expected that service users with this protected 
characteristic will be negatively affected. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· 2011 Census  

 

Sexual orientation: Consider people who are heterosexual, lesbian, gay or bisexual 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
There is no sufficient information on sexual orientation at national or local level. 
 
We cannot fully assess the impact on this protected characteristic due to the lack of data. 
However, it is not expected that service users with this protected characteristic will be 
negatively affected. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· There is no sufficient information on sexual orientation at national or local level. 

 
Gender reassignment: Consider people who are seeking, undergoing or have received 
gender reassignment surgery, as well as people whose gender identity is different from 
their gender at birth 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:  
  
There is no sufficient information on gender identity at national or local level. 
 
We cannot fully assess the impact on this protected characteristic due to the lack of data. 
However, it is not expected that service users with this protected characteristic will be 
negatively affected. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· There is no sufficient information on gender reassignment at national or local level. 

Page 203



 

126 

 

 

Marriage/civil partnership: Consider people in a marriage or civil partnership 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
According to the 2011 Census, 49% of Havering residents are married while 33% are 
single (never married or never registered a same-sex civil partnership), 8% are divorced 
or formerly in a same-sex civil partnership which is now legally dissolved, 8% are 
widowed or a surviving partner from a same-sex civil partnership, 2% are separated (but 
still legally married or still legally in a same-sex civil partnership) and 0.1% in a registered 
same-sex civil partnership. 
 
Due to the lack of service level data we cannot fully assess the impact on this protected 
characteristic. However, we recognise married people, civil partners and couples are 
more likely to be affected by the statutory review as carers.  
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· 2011 Census 

 

Pregnancy, maternity and paternity: Consider those who are pregnant and those who 
are undertaking maternity or paternity leave 
Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known  Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  
 

Evidence:   
 
Due to the lack of service level data we cannot fully assess the impact on this protected 
characteristic. However, we recognise that parents, particularly mothers and lone parents 
are more likely to be affected by the statutory review as carers. 
 
 

Sources used:  
 

· There is no sufficient information on gender reassignment at national or local level. 

 

Socio-economic status: Consider those who are from low income or financially excluded 
backgrounds 

Page 204



 

127 

 

Please tick (ü) 
the relevant box: 

Overall impact:  
 
Not known.  
 
Multiple disadvantage is a new measure in the Census and there is not 
sufficient information on socio-economic status at a service level. 
However, there may be a disproportionately negative impact on socio-
economic status from this project. For instance, only 8% of people with 
a learning disability who receive a service are in paid employment, and 
many of our service users will receive some form of benefits. 
 
Also, due to the new national eligibility criteria adults with mild or 
moderate learning disabilities could end up with no statutory services. 
This will again have an impact on their carers, the majority of whom are 
women, particularly older women.  
 
As stated previously, however, improving support for carers is an 
important theme throughout the Care Act. For the first time, carers will 
be recognised in the law in the same way as those they care for, 
including carers’ rights to assessments and support. 

Positive  

Neutral  

Negative  

 

Evidence:   
 
There is not sufficient information on socio-economic status at a national or service level.  
 
Multiple disadvantage was a new 2011 Census measure defined as the proportion of 
households who have one or more of the following deprivation characteristics 
(dimensions): no qualifications, a long-term illness, unemployment, overcrowded housing.  
 

· 35% of the population in Havering were recorded as having 1 dimension, 21% with 
2 dimensions, 4% with 3 dimensions and 0.4% with 4 dimensions.  

· Proportion of adults with a learning disability in paid employment is 8% in Havering, 
9.3% across London and 7.1% across England. 

· A significant number of people living in Havering provide unpaid care (25,214 
people). 

· 4% (or 9,855 people) of Havering’s population claim Disability Living Allowance in 
2013.   

· 2% (or 2,825 people) of Havering’s population claim Incapacity Benefits in 2013.   
 

Sources used:  
 

· 2011 Census  
· Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 2012/13 

· DWP data, Q02 2013  

 

Page 205



 

1
2
8
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 In

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o
n

 y
o

u
 s

h
o
u

ld
 l
is

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 
in

 t
h

is
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

 

P
ro

te
c

te
d

 
c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s

ti
c

 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c

t*
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
**

 
T

im
e

s
c
a

le
 

L
e
a

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

A
ll 

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
e
 h

o
ld

 i
s
 

p
a
tc

h
y
 s

o
 d

o
e
s
n
’t
 

a
llo

w
 u

s
 t

o
 f
u
lly

 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

w
it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
s
 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

d
a
ta

 

U
s
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

fi
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

F
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g

e
t 
s
a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

’ 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 

p
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

E
IA

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
 

1
6
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

-s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

E
IA

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
s
 f
u
tu

re
 p

la
n
s
 

a
re

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 J

a
n
 1

5
 

  E
IA

 r
e
v
ie

w
 J

a
n
 1

6
 

  A
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o
lls

 

  B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o
lls

 

 B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
ic

h
o
lls

 

  

 

Page 206



 

1 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

DRAFT PARKING STRATEGY  
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
 

This draft strategy sets out proposed arrangements for the future management 
of the Council’s Parking Services and associated operations. The Parking 
Strategy is initiated in recognition of the importance of parking in Havering as 
reflected in increasing levels of car ownership and high usage and the nature of 
public transport provision in the borough. 
 

The Council adopted a Parking Strategy in 2007. This document  builds on that 
and considers the Council’s general approach to available parking, through 
both its own parking stock and other privately owned car parks and the broad 
principles of how Council operated parking is delivered on the ground. It 
concentrates on key themes that have emerged out of recent consultations, 
recent initiatives from regional and central government and other research, and 
describes a series of actions that the Council can deliver mainly through its 
roles as a highway authority and parking provider.  

 
 

This consultation focuses on ensuring that the Council’s parking strategy is 
based on the following principles:   

 
 

Parking will be a positive tool to support the Council’s wider economic, social 
and environmental objectives for the borough; 
As far as possible, the needs of local residents and businesses will be 

prioritised over other parking requirements; 

As far as possible, the right parking will be provided in the right place, at the 

right time, at the right price and of the right quality for our customers; 

Value for money will be obtained for Council Tax payers; 

The borough’s parking will be managed in the most effective way; 

Council car parks will be provided only where they are the only practical way of 

effectively meeting the parking demand in the area and the available land is 

used in the most efficient way; 

Local residents and businesses will be informed about and, as much as 

possible, be encouraged to support the Council’s approach to parking. 

 

 

It then moves on to considering how best to put these into practice in terms of a 

range of measures that would support the achievement of these objectives.  

 

  

Page 207



 

2 
 

Summary of key issues for consultation 

 

As part of this consultation Residents and Businesses are asked for: their 
views on the proposed parking tariffs for parking on street, in car parks 
and in parks; their views on proposed changes to parking permits; their 
opinion on parking restrictions and enforcement around schools; 
suggestions for new parking schemes or amendments to existing 
schemes and their general comments on the parking proposals and 
strategy.  

 
It is noted that there areas of on-going work in this strategy:   

 
A review of the permit system will be carried out to reduce the overall number of 

types of permits and to explore the introduction of “virtual” permits. 
 

The provision of parking for disabled persons to be reviewed to ensure space is 

optimised and to reduce fraud. 

 
Negotiations with the town centre partners in Romford about appropriate 

charging regime  

 
Investment in technology and hardware to support the proposed changes. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 208



 

3 
 

 
 

 
REPORT DETAIL 

 
 

Background 

Parking Law and Regulations 

There are two main areas of legislation that are relevant to parking and which 
Havering must comply with. They deal with what parking should aim to achieve, 
what form it takes and how it is operated. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 
(1984) places a duty on Local Authorities to secure the provision of suitable and 
adequate parking facilities on and off the highway and the Traffic Management 
Act (2004) which places a duty on Local Authorities to ensure the free flow of 
traffic on the roads they manage. 

 

The 1984 Act also enables councils to impose controls on where and for how 
long vehicles may park, including through the provision of kerbside restrictions 
and car parks. 

 

The setting of parking charges for all public roads and Council-owned car parks 
is the responsibility of the Council. These charges are not limited by law but 
they should be proportionate and based solely on the need to manage parking 
and traffic locally. 

 

The private parking industry is not regulated in this manner however, Section 
106 agreements forming part of development agreements may control the fees 
that must be charged in the Town Centre. Other planning restrictions may also 
be applied during the planning process to ensure adequate off street parking is 
provided where necessary or indeed where car ownership for some 
developments is positively discouraged. 

 
 

Havering is responsible for parking enforcement on all adopted roads in the 
borough except the A127, A12 and parts of the A13 which are governed and 
controlled by Transport for London. Prior to July 1994, parking enforcement was 
the responsibility of the police and traffic warden service. 

 

The level of fee for Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) is set by London Councils, 
and is as approved by the Mayor of London. 

 

The Council must report annually on on-street and off-street enforcement 
activities, including total on-street income from parking fees and parking fines, 
expenditure and the outcomes of policies. It should be noted that any additional 
income generated from parking fines can only be applied to transport related 
matters as set out in s55 Road Traffic Regulation Act and that such fines should 
not be income generating according to guidance. This is done through the 
Council’s Annual Parking Services Performance Report which can be found at 
the following link:  
www.havering.gov.uk/Pages/SearchResults.aspx?k=Parking annual 

Page 209



 

4 
 

performance report 
 

The Council is required by law to formally advertise any changes to parking 
restrictions. Where changes are proposed to either the location, hours of 
operation or general terms of use of parking bays, this involves publishing 
notices in certain newspapers and fixing notices on site, writing to certain 
statutory bodies and ensuring relevant documents are made available and 
publicised to persons likely to be affected.  

 

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) launched a 
consultation in December 2013 which proposed a change in the general 
approach to the enforcement of parking with the aim of ensuring parking 
strategies complement and enhance efforts to improve high streets and town 
centres. The main proposed changes to legislation and guidance included: 
 

• Restricting the use of CCTV for parking enforcement, 

• A right for local communities to require councils to review aspects of their 

parking strategies, 

• A statutory requirement for authorities to allow a grace period before 

issuing a penalty charge notice in some circumstances. 

• The encouragement of a less heavy-handed approach to enforcement 

• The consideration of changes to the payment regime after appeal 

The remainder of this consultation report sets out the details of the Parking strategy 

and the specific issues being addressed during the forthcoming consultation. 

National Guidance 

Government guidance on how councils should deal with parking in new 
developments is provided in the National Planning Policy Framework. This 
states that, in setting local parking standards, councils should take into account 
accessibility, the type, mix and use of development, current and future public 
transport, local car ownership and the need to reduce emissions.  

 

They should also seek to improve the quality of parking in town centres and set 
appropriate charges that do not undermine the health of town centres as well as 
ensuring enforcement is proportionate. 

 

National guidance, provided primarily through the Department for Transport 
(DfT) also provides advice to councils on how they may best deliver their own 
parking. The guidance states that a good parking regime is one that uses 
quality-based standards that the public understands, which are enforced fairly, 
accurately and promptly, and which contribute to ensuring the free flow of traffic 
on the road network. 

 
Regional and Local Parking Policies and Guidance 

At the regional level the Mayor of London sets out his policies on parking, and 
what he expects local authorities to do in their policies, in his London Plan (July 

Page 210



 

5 
 

2011) and Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2010). The Mayor’s strategic approach 
to parking in new development is that he wants to see an appropriate balance 
between encouraging developments and preventing excessive car parking 
which could undermine more sustainable ways to travel, the Council is working 
towards delivering these outcomes where appropriate. 

 

Parking standards for various kinds of new development across the Capital are 
set out in the London Plan and it is expected that these should be used by 
boroughs to set their own standards, although the need for flexibility is 
recognised in some circumstances such as struggling town centres. 

 

The Mayor also seeks to ensure fair and consistent enforcement of parking and 
loading restrictions across the capital and parking charges which encourage 
vehicles with lower emissions through partnership working with London 
Boroughs. 

 
London Councils and other stakeholders. 

The Council works with other London Councils to share practice and 
procedures. In terms of guidance there is a London-wide code of practice for 
enforcement that covers issues such as the training and equipping of CEOs to 
ensure they carry out their duties professionally and competently. There is also 
a code of practice for the use of CCTV enforcement. All of these documents are 
publicly available on London Councils website at:  
www.londoncouncils.gov.uk/policylobbying/transport/parkinginlondon/default.ht
m 

 
Havering Council - Policy Context, Estate and Management Arrangements  
 
The backdrop for consideration of any parking strategy is the Council’s Local 
Plan and approach to its Transport Infrastructure and network management. 
This plan is currently being revised and any implications for parking strategy 
from that review will be fed into this consultation 
 
Havering is a large outer London Borough, with high levels of car ownership. It 
is the boundary of Zone 6 for those who wish to use the tube or train system 
and therefore attracts commuter parking from adjacent areas. 

 

Parking needs to contribute to the competitiveness, regeneration and 
environmental quality of the borough through the right amount, location and 
design of parking facilities.  This contributes to managing the road network and 
reflects land use and transportation planning policies. 
 
The framework that the Council has adopted to enable it to manage parking in 
the Borough has a number of key elements:  
 
These include: 
 

• The design consultation and implementation of minor traffic and parking 
schemes  

Page 211



 

6 
 

 

• A policy for the creation of new or extension of existing controlled parking 
zones (CPZs). The adopted approach is to introduce consistent controls 
where there is a shortage of kerb side parking for residents and 
businesses, defined traffic problems have been identified and there is 
local community support. The consideration of CPZs by the Council can 
be triggered through new development proposals or residents putting 
forward areas for change provided there is support for the development 
and implementation of such. 

 

• A policy of introducing Pay and Display parking schemes in smaller 
shopping parades and high streets. This has improved turnover and there 
is a demand for the introduction of similar schemes. 

 

• The management of car parking in Council owned car parks and in car 
parks in parks.  The council manages 27 sites and 2800 paid for spaces, 
in addition the council has over 110 parks and green spaces, and whilst 
many are local amenity parks, in walking distance of many residents, 
other have sporting facilities, or are near transport hubs and attract 
commuters as well as park users. 

 

• Working in partnership with the private sector where there are privately 
owned car parks to ensure adequate provision and consistent charging. 
There are 4509 private parking spaces in the Borough, mainly in Romford 

 

• Maintain the provision of an enforcement service and back office 
processing of permits, season tickets and appeals. The Council has 
consistently been ranked in the bottom 3 in London for PCN ticket issue 
and income generation, reinforcing the approach to strategic Traffic and 
Parking control.  

 

• The adoption of a charging and permit regime for parking that balances 
the needs of local economy and residents with practical traffic 
management and cost recovery issues. 

 

• The provision of a large number of free bays including on and off street 
spaces which are free of charge to disabled blue badge holders and on-
street bays which have short stay for general use. 

 
 

The Council’s Annual Parking Services Performance Report sets out a number 
of operational policy aims for its parking service. These can be summarised as : 
 

• to ensure that the public highway can be used by all and that parking 
space is shared between competing demands through regulation and 
pricing 

 

• maintain safety on the public highway and in the borough’s car parks; 

• ensure that traffic is able to flow through the borough freely 

Page 212



 

7 
 

• provide accessible parking for the disabled and elderly; 

• monitor parking demand and provide adequate parking facilities for all; 

• maintain access to services and amenities; and provide a fair and 
consistent enforcement service 

 

 
Consultation on a new Parking Strategy  
 
 
The strategic aim of parking is to improve all aspects of the quality of life of 
residents while helping local businesses flourish. 

 

The following section sets out the proposed objectives which will achieve this 
aim. Some of the previous objectives of the Parking Strategy 2007 have been 
modified to reflect the findings of the in house review and these changes are 
referenced where relevant. 

 

The key objectives are; 
 

Objective 1: Meet statutory requirements 
Objective 2: Prioritise local residents and businesses and provide the right 
parking 
Objective 3: Provide effective management and value for money 
Objective 4: Monitor and improve traffic Management Operations 
Objective 5: Deliver effective customer service, information, compliance and 
support 

 
 

Objective 1:  Meet statutory requirements 
 

In undertaking all its parking functions, the Council will ensure that it meets its 
statutory requirements in the most efficient and effective way and contribute 
positively to all the Council’s identified objectives. The latter will be an iterative 
process including considering the consequences of changes in the operation of 
parking on the Council’s statutory duties and identified corporate objectives and 
vice versa. 

 

 
Objective 2: Prioritise local residents and businesses and provide the 
right parking 

 
The Council will seek to prioritise the parking needs of local residents and 
businesses through: 
 

• The nature and operation of its parking charges and service 
 

The Council has carefully considered how best changes to its charging 
regime can meet the respective needs of residents and businesses.  It is 
therefore proposing to consult on a new charging regime for Pay and 
Display and Outlying car parks based on a premise of 30 minutes free 

Page 213



 

8 
 

(made up of 20 mins free parking, and a 10 minute grace period) – then 
a charging regime of £1 for 1 hour, £1.5 for 2 hours and £2 for 3 hours 
as set out in “The Councils Financial Strategy” Cabinet report.   
 
This regime is designed to benefit both residents and businesses, 
encouraging the use of town centres and differentiating between charging 
for very quick visits whilst remaining affordable. The borough is still 
comparatively low cost against all of its neighbours.  
 
Charging has been introduced in 3 car parks in parks. The regime of 
outlying car parks has been applied with modification recognising that whilst 
many parks are primarily local amenities some are subject to commuter 
parking and contain a range of sporting facilities. For the majority of local 
residents their local park is an amenity that they walk to and car parking is a 
peripheral issue. 

 
The Council is proposing to consult on introducing charging into all 
Parks car parks with a similar principle of 30 minutes free (20 mins free 
parking, plus a 10 minutes grace period) , followed by a charge of £1 
for up to 3 hours.    

 
 

• The approach it takes to the allocation of parking facilities and the 
creation of new or modification of existing parking restrictions; 

 
 

The current arrangements for the design and implementation of parking 
schemes are that they are driven either by residents or the Council initiating 
a scheme design process and this being subsequently consulted on and 
considered by the Highways Advisory Committee before being determined 
by the Cabinet Member. A series of powers are delegated to the Head of 
Streetcare to implement minor changes. 
 
An informal review of traffic measures in a geographic area was undertaken 
last year and it identified that the consequences of dealing with issues 
piecemeal was that parking management in areas could be improved by 
adopting a more consistent approach to traffic restrictions and ensuring 
there were no unintended consequences of measures.  
 
The DCLG is also currently consulting on proposals for residents to 
challenge 
Charges and regulation if they think it is inappropriate. 
 
The proposal here is that as part of this consultation residents and 
businesses are asked to identify areas for schemes and changes to 
traffic regulation so that the Council can develop a plan of works for 
the next 4 years to improve parking measures.  It should be noted that 
the Council is already progressing works to extend some CPZ’s and to 

Page 214



 

9 
 

introduce more Pay and Display Parking these are set out in 
appendices A & B below. 
 
Clearly the Council has limited resources and this will need to be 
implemented over a period of time but strategically it enables all the 
measures for a particular area to be considered together so the parking and 
traffic impacts can be assessed.  

 
Another key issue that forms a fundamental part of this process is parking 
and traffic congestion around schools. This is a key priority, particularly 
in the context of population growth and increasing school rolls and the 
Council has to act positively to ensure these issues are effectively dealt 
with. This will be a priority for the parking service both in terms of scheme 
design and ensuring that an appropriate enforcement regime is in place. 
That process needs to be as effective as possible. This issue will be 
addressed within the consultation. 
 

 

   
The final key issue is the relationship with other car park operators, the private 
operators in Romford town centre car parks are obliged to charge customers at 
not less than the rates set by the Council. This condition is included within legal 
section 106 agreements signed as part of planning permissions.    
It is noted a number of private operators are not compliant with the 
existing agreements and it is proposed that the Council enter into a 
discussion with those operators with a view to re-establishing an agreed 
approach to charging for car parking in Romford Town Centre.   

 

 
 

• Other Parking considerations 

 
 

The Council will use its powers to ensure the right type, quantity, cost and 
quality of parking is provided in its facilities, as resources allow, and as part of 
any new development by:  

 

• taking into account Havering’s current and future characteristics in terms 

of public transport accessibility, car usage and ownership, parking 

capacity, 

• patterns of land uses and resulting travel behaviour 

• Considering the realistic opportunities available to change travel 

behaviour within particular areas and individual developments in the 

context of local constraints; 

• Having regard to other parking approaches within the borough and in 

neighbouring authorities to ensure that individual areas and the borough 

Page 215



 

10 
 

as a whole remains competitive and imbalances or inconsistencies do 

not have harmful consequences; 

• Requiring high standards of design to ensure parking is safe, convenient 

and accessible 

 

 

Objective 3: Deliver effective management and value for Money 

 
The Council will remain an owner and operator of public parking and will seek 
to maximise the effectiveness of the parking service while ensuring value for 
money for Council Tax payers by: 

 

• Continuing to develop appropriate and cost effective ways of improving 
the parking service particularly through the utilisation of modern 
technology and more efficient processes. This will include introducing 
pay by phone service in some car parks.   

• Changing the general parking charges to ensure the price of parking 
reflects the Council’s overall parking priorities and the cost of parking 
provision, including improving efficiency, so that the parking function 
remains self-financing 

• Reviewing the range of permits available and the charges for these.  
Resident’s views are sought on the proposed Permit charge 
changes in “The Councils Financial Strategy Report”.   

• Ensuring that any additional income generated from the Council’s 
parking function continues to be used for the appropriate statutory 
purposes to secure the maximum benefit for Council Tax payers 

• Ensuring that, where excess capacity is identified and/or acceptable 
development opportunities present themselves on Council car park sites 
a more efficient use of the land is pursued having regard to the car 
park’s function in the local area. 

• Ensuring that, where temporary spare capacity is identified within 
Council car parks at certain times, short term use of these facilities for 
other purposes is supported, provided the use results in a positive 
benefit to the wider area. 

 
In addition to this the Council will continue to review the delegation on 
decision making on minor and non-controversial traffic management issues 
and amend the delegation to the Head of Streetcare where this facilitates 
more cost effective management of the process 

 
Objective 4: Review and improve traffic management operations 

 

The Council will seek the authority to enforce moving traffic contraventions to 
improve driver behaviours in the London Borough of Havering and to improve 
Road safety and overall traffic management. 

 

Page 216



 

11 
 

The London Local Authorities and Transport for London Act 2003 gave the 
power to London authorities to take on the civil enforcement of certain moving 
traffic contraventions (MTCs) by decriminalising the offences, thereby 
transferring the enforcement responsibility from the Police to the Council. In 
2007 the Traffic Management Act 2004 consolidated this legislation.  

 

 
  

Objective 5; Deliver effective customer service, information, compliance 
and support 

 

The Council will seek to maintain high levels of customer service and 
communicate effectively with the public regarding the parking function to 
maximise understanding compliance and support by: 

 

• Developing and implementing a communications plan for parking 

• Continuing to identify opportunities to improve customer service through 
improved systems and staff training 

• Ensuring relevant information on the operation and performance of 
parking is made available in a clear and accessible way 

• Ensuring that appropriate performance indicators, standards are in place 
to encourage continued improvement. 

 
 

Consultation process 
 

Following a period of consultation with local residents, businesses, and other 
key stakeholders the Council will consider any feedback to help further develop 
the Parking Strategy, this parking strategy will be underpinned by a detailed 
consultation plan. This consultation closes on 29th December 2014 

 
Responses to the Parking Strategy consultation will be considered and 
appropriate amendments made to the document, amendments will be 
communicated back for final approval of the Parking Strategy and the Parking 
Strategy Action Plan as appropriate. Once finally agreed the Parking Strategy 
will then be formally adopted and published on the Councils website 

 
The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 sets out the process that must be 
followed when making changes to parking fees and charges.  There is no 
requirement for a formal consultation period and amendments are made by 
variation order which requires public notices to be displayed in the affected car 
parking locations and by public notices in the local press, however in light of the 
sensitivity around parking it is intended to consult on the total items contained 
within this parking strategy. 

 
The DCLG is currently in consultation and propose to introduce a requirement 
that in response to a petition from local residents and/or businesses, the 
Council will review its specific parking policy in a specified location, and 
produce a report for consideration and decision by councillors in an appropriate 
public council meeting.  These proposals have not yet come into law. Statutory 

Page 217



 

12 
 

Guidance will direct the methodology to be adopted by the Council to consider 
petitions raised.  

 
However it should be noted that petitions have a part to play in gauging the 
level of concern within the community as to whether parking strategy, 
restrictions or prices should be reviewed.  

 
Changes to parking restrictions or the introduction of new parking/traffic 
schemes requires a formal process to be followed as set down in the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, this includes the advertisement in the proposed 
location/s and notices placed in the London Gazette and local press.  The 
Councils process includes seeking approval from the Highways Advisory 
Committee (HAC) to proceed with the initial design and public consultation. 

 
Any objections are reported back to the Committee prior to sign off by the Lead 
Cabinet Member. The Councils Highway Advisory Committee (HAC) and 
Officers consider the suitability of an area for the introduction of permitted 
parking or waiting restriction schemes and a process as required by the Road 
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 is then initiated including a full statutory 
consultation. This involves drafting the experimental Traffic Management 
Orders (TMOs) and the Statutory Notices which must be published in the 
London Gazette and local press.   

 
Other organisations which the Council is required to consult with under the 
relevant legislation are groups including the Police, emergency services, road 
user groups and public transport operators. These groups are asked to submit 
their comments on the proposals and if there is no formal objection within the 
statutory time period the Traffic Management orders are made. 

 
Draft Action Plan and Monitoring  

 

To deliver the strategic aim of parking, its associated objectives and policies, a 
Draft Parking Action Plan will be developed which will be reviewed on an 
annual or as and when needed basis. It incorporates a range of proposed 
projects, initiatives or operational changes which the Council will seek to 
implement.  
 
The Draft Action Plan is a working document and will change over time as 
actions are progressed, completed or revised. The Draft Action Plan will, 
therefore, be monitored regularly to ensure it remains relevant and up to date 
and that issues are identified and effectively dealt with. The outcome of this 
monitoring will be published in the Council’s Annual Parking Services 
Performance Report. Specifically, the success of the Draft Action Plan will be 
measured against the objectives set out above. 

 
 
Equalities Impact Assessments 
 

Page 218



 

13 
 

Draft Equalities Impact Assessments have been produced for both this Parking 
Strategy and specifically for the extension of charging for car parking in Parks, 
these will be reviewed in light of comments made during the consultation.  

 

 
 

 
Appendices 
Appendix A – Proposed Pay & Display schemes 
Appendix B – Proposed CPZ extensions and or New CPZs 
Appendix C – Proposed Permit Charges & Permit types 
Appendix D -  Parking Charges extract from “The Councils Financial Strategy” 
Cabinet report dated 3rd September 2014.  
 
 
 

Appendix A 

Proposed Pay and Display Locations     

Road Name Ward 
Approx 

No of Bays 

Marks Road Brooklands 12 

London Road Brooklands 30 

Norfolk Road Brooklands 4 

Knighton Road Brooklands 4 

Longsdale Road Brooklands 4 

Cromer Road Brooklands 4 

Kensington Road Brooklands 4 

Crowlands Road Brooklands 4 

Crow Lane Brooklands 18 

Front Lane/Moor Lane Cranham 12 

Avon Road Cranham 23 

Station Parade Elm Park 60 

Butts Green Road Emerson Park 7 

Petersfield Avenue opposite Hucknall Close Gooshays 14 

Maylands Avenue Hacton 6 

Tadworth Parade Hacton 50 

Whitchchurch Road Harold Hill 15 

The Drive Harold Wood 4 

Bryant Avenue and Local Area Harold Wood 80 

Bates Road Harold Wood 29 

Oak Road Harold Wood 6 

Hampden Road Havering Park 9 

Gobians Avenue Havering Park 6 

Wingletye Lane in service road in turning head Hornchurch 4 

Roneo Corner Hylands 5 

Page 219



 

14 
 

Carter Drive Mawneys & Havering Park Mawneys 10 

Rise Park Parade/Pettit's Boulevard  Pettit's 19 

Oakland's Avenue Romford Town 8 

George Street/ Brentwood Road Romford Town 4 

Victoria Road Romford Town 15 

Kings Road O/s   St Alban's Church Romford Town 5 

St Andrews Road Romford Town 4 

Cotleigh Road Romford Town 6 

Eastbury Road Romford Town 6 

Kyme Road Romford Town 6 

Craigdale Road Romford Town 4 

Douglas Road Romford Town 4 

Willow Street near Mawney Road Romford Town 5 

Church Lane off Park Lane Romford Town 6 

Southend Road opposite Ford Lane South Hornchurch 5 

Hubert Road off Rainham Road South Hornchurch 5 

Farnes Drive Squirrels Heath 13 

Upper Brentwood Road (near Farnes Drive) Squirrels Heath 8 

Brentwood Road (Tesco) Squirrels Heath 5 

Heath Park Road Squirrels Heath 9 

Manor Avenue Squirrels Heath 5 

Birch Crescent Squirrels Heath 5 

Harwood Avenue Squirrels Heath 5 

Kingsley Gardens - Squirrels Heath Lane end Squirrels Heath 5 

Warriner Avenue ST.Andrews 6 

St Nicholas Avenue ST.Andrews 7 

Diban Avenue  ST.Andrews 4 

Mavis Grove ST.Andrews 12 

Highfield Crescent ST.Andrews 6 

Minster Way ST.Andrews 5 

Upminster Road ST.Andrews 5 

The Avenue ST.Andrews 8 

Sunnyside Gardens Upminster 4 

Branfill Road Upminster 5 

643 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 220



 

15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 221



 

16 
 

Appendix B 

  
ZONE Area 

Number of  
Roads in 

zone 

Proposed Extension or Conversion of CPZ 

  
 

No's Road 
Comments 

  GP1 
Gidea  
Park 

4 

1 Sq Heath   GP2 2 

  GP3 1 

  HWA 

Harold 
Wood 

12 

41 

Romleighs including Hospital site s106 = 
30 
Court Avenue = 1 
Extension to Harold Wood North of A12 
= 10 

  HWB 10 

  HWC 13 

  HWD 19 

  HWE 6 

  

HH1 Harold Hill 6 5 

Newbury Gardens 
Newbury Road 
Chippenham Road 
Chippenham Walk 
Hilldene Avenue 

  

HX1 HX Station 3 8 

Appleton Way 
Victor Gardens 
Dorrington Gdns 
Bruce Avenue eastern end 
Abbs Cross Gardens 
Sandown Avenue 
The Avenue 
Woodfield Way 

  LCT Lodge Court 1     

  RO1 

Romford 

14     

  RO2B 27     

  

RO3 37 6 

South Street 
Melton Gardens 
Rossall Close 
George Street 
Corbridge Mews 
Park Lane 

  RO5A 4     

  RO6 24     

  

ROR 4 7 

Rosemary Avenue (all) 
Woodlands Road 
Lake Rise 
Wayside Close 
Sorrel Walk 
Sydenham Close 
Brockton Close 

Page 222



 

17 
 

  

RO7 8 5 

Norwood Avenue 
Rom Cresent 
Hornford Way 
Rush Green Gardens 
Rush Green Road 
Dagenham Road 
East Road 
West Road 
Lillput Road 
Grosvenor Road 
Birbeck Road 
Wolsley Road 

R
O

2
A

 

ROB 

4 

17 

Jubilee Avenue 
Jubilee Close 
Marina Gardens 
Spring Gardens 
Recreation Avenue 
Richards Avenue 
Lonsdale Avenue 
Derby Avenue 
Lessington Avenue 
Kimberley Avenue 
Ainsley Avenue  
Waterloo Estate Housing areas 

ROS 

13 

ROST 

9 

   ROW 7 

  PROPOSED NEW CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES  

  

RA1 Rainham 
 

17 

Melville Road 
Cowper Road 
Ferro Road 
Wennington Road 
Anglesey Drive 
Ellis Avenue 
Findon Gardens 
Venette Close 
Wilfred Avenue 
Palliser Drive 
Ingrebourne Road 
East Close 
West Close 
Glenwood Avenue 
Upminster Road South 
St Helens Court 
Parkway 

UPM1     10 

Branfil Road 
Gaynes Road 
Champion Road 
Highview Gardens 
Crambourne Gardens 
Carlton Close 
Howard Road 
St Lawrence Road 
Aylett Road  
Garbutt Road 

  228 90   

 

Page 223



 

18 
 

Appendix C 

Last Full Year Figures   

2013 - 2014 Proposed 

Device Type   
Total 
sold Fee Total Fee 

            

Resident 1st 

      

3,345  £20.00 £66,900 £25.00 

(Permit) 2nd          906  £25.00 £22,650 £50.00 

  3rd          146  £60.00 £8,760 £75.00 

  Total 
       
4,397  Total £98,310 

  

            

Visitor   
      
10,161  £10.00 £101,610 £12.50 

(Permit)     Total £101,610   

            

Business   178 £71.05 £12,647 £106.58 

(Permit)     Total £12,647   

            

Amended   460 £15.00 £6,900 £22.50 

(Permit)     Total £6,900   

            

Health & HC   709 £36.00 £25,524 £54.00 

(Permit)     Total £25,524   

            

Home Care   12 £36.00 £432 £36.00 

(Permit)     Total £432   

            

Waiver   151.81 £12.70 £1,928 £20.00 

      Total £1,928   

            

Commuter   5.05 £300.00 £1,515 £450.00 

(Voucher 
Bay)     Total £1,515   

            

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 224



 

19 
 

Appendix D 

BUDGET SAVINGS: INITIATIVE TEMPLATE 
 

                                                     Current Budget Information 

 
Activity Subj Type FY Revised Budget 

  
Parking & 
Road Safety 
Services 

Expenditure 2,619,995    

 Income (3,867,973)    
 Non-
Controllable 

1,305,125 Includes notional accounting entries 

Parking 
Total 

 57,148    

Grand Total 57,148    
 

 

Savings last 4 Years 

11/12:   518K 12/13:  699K 13/14:   749K 14/15:   762K 

 
 

Main Savings Items Description 

• Parking services – To review the fees, charges and operational model for parking 
services and bring charging and business operation into line with new legislative 
requirements and services elsewhere.  

 

Savings proposals 

Saving Value of Saving and 
Year(s) 

Parking strategy  
 
The Council will consult on a new Parking Strategy in 
September 2014. It will address issues raised by the DCLG’s 
legislative changes to the existing parking regime, other parking 
priorities and a revised set of charges for    
the main elements of the parking regime .  

TOTAL:  
 

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 

£1m  
 

 

Service & Service Head 

 
Description of Service Area 

Streetcare - Robert 

Wenman 

Parking   

 

What is 
protected within 
service 

• The car parking service remains in place.  No changes are 
proposed to the number of static car parks 

• We have proposed changes in all areas up to and including the 3hr 
tariff.  No changes proposed above 3hrs given the consistency of 
tariffs. 

Page 225



 

20 
 

 
The proposals include :  

• Redesign of the enforcement service to meet new 
legislative requirements and enforce effectively .   

• Revision to charges for permits to bring them into line 

with other charges in  Outer East London   

Resident permits increase: 

• 1 car from £20 to £25 

• 2 cars from £25 to £50 per car 

• 3 cars from £60 to £75 per car 

Other permits increase: 

• Visitor permits from £10 to £12.50 

• Business permit from £71.05 to £106.58 

• Amended permit from £15 to £22.50 

• Health & Home Care from (Business sector) £36 to £54 

• Home Care (Non Business) stays same @ £36 

• Waiver permit from £12.70 to £20 

• Commuter  from £300 to £450 per yr 

Outlying car parks tariff 

• A new charging regime for the first 3 hours  
20 mins + 10mins grace free 
30mins to 1hr = £1 
1-2 hrs = £1.50 
2-3 hrs = £2.00 
 

 
On street Pay & Display  

• A new charging regime for the first 3 hours: 
20 mins + 10mins grace free 
30mins to 1hr = £1 
1-2 hrs = £1.50 
2-3 hrs = £2.00 

 
Romford town charging  

• Proposals to follow  
 
Adoption of the Moving Traffic Offences powers  

• To enable the Borough to enforce for moving traffic 
offences  

 
Additional schemes  

• The development of 26 Pay and Display locations, 10 
CPZ’s and 5 Extensions  
 

Page 226



 

21 
 

 

TOTAL SAVINGS BY YEAR TOTAL: £1m 
 

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 

£1m  
 

 

 

Identified Risks 

Parking strategy 
1. DCLG publish further requirements which make some  current and proposed elements  of 

this strategy untenable 
2. Political risk – despite current low levels of charges increases may be deemed to be 

unacceptable  
3. Utilisation risk- risk that customers  will be deterred by an increase in charging  
4. P and D and CPZ extensions all subject to consultation and then consideration by HAC 

and Cabinet member agreement – risk of non- agreement  
5. Revised business model for enforcement - cost comparison underway but not complete 

yet . 
 

 

Number of FTE in area Parking strategy N/A 

Anticipated reduction in FTE as a result of 
proposals 

Parking strategy N/A 

 
 

Reasons for 
recommending 
proposals 

 
Parking strategy 

• Reviews of fees and charges demonstrate that charging in this area 
is substantially below that in adjacent boroughs 

• Latent demand exists for P and D schemes and CPZ extensions  

• Moving traffic offences powers not adopted at moment    

• Risk mitigation on potential DCLG changes is to remodel the  CEO 
and challenge operation – work underway 

 
 

Page 227



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Draft Library Strategy, 2015-17 Appendix to Cabinet Report 

CONTENTS  

Chapter 1:  Introduction 
 Foreword by Cllr Melvin Wallace, Cabinet Member for Culture and Community Engagement 
 A changing Context 
 About the Library Strategy 
 Our Objectives & Principles 

 

PAGE 2 

Chapter 2:  Where are we now and how can we respond to the challenges?  
 What services do we currently provide? 
 Significant achievements since our 2013-15 Library Strategy 
 SWOT analysis (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats) 
 Responding to a changing Context – developing a partnership model 
 What will happen to each of our libraries? 
 Demographic changes 
 How does the partnership model measure up to our community’s needs 

 

 

PAGE 5 
 

 

Chapter 3:  The Value of Libraries in Havering  
 Intrinsic and Instrumental Value 
 Value of Libraries to Residents 
 How Libraries contribute to Health & Wellbeing  
 How Libraries contribute to Learning & Personal Development 

 

 

PAGE 13 

Chapter 4:  Our Action Plan (2015-2017) 
 

PAGE 20 

P
age 229



 

- 2 - 

CHAPTER 1:  Introduction 

1.1 Foreword by the Lead Member for Culture and Community Engagement 

 

We have to make some difficult decisions over the next few months, decisions that will impact on the services that we run and offer. But one 
thing that will not be lost is the importance that our libraries have in our communities. They allow teenagers extra space to study for their 
GCSEs and A-Levels, our elderly community a place to learn new skills such as IT, or just give people a quiet space to read. This is why in 
Havering, unlike many other places across the country, we don’t want to shut any of our libraries. Once they are closed they will be lost 
forever. 
 
Our proposals outline what we are calling, ‘partnership’ libraries, and mean that we will protect all 10 of our library buildings. They will 
remain libraries, to have the same amount of books and the same amount of computers that we all enjoy right now. However, to sustain 
this, in light of the considerable savings we must make, we need to make some changes.  So to keep our libraries as they are, we will need 
to make reductions in the opening hours and ask members of the community to help support our libraries through volunteering.  And we will 
support all of our volunteers with training and resources. Our commitment to libraries is outlined in the following document and I look 
forward to receiving views and ideas throughout this consultation on this strategy. 

 

 
 

 

Councillor Melvin Wallace 

  

P
age 230



 

- 3 - 

1.2 A changing context:   

Havering has a strong and highly successful library service. It offers value for money, is popular with residents and engages effectively with 
the community and a large number of volunteers. Over the last few years it has built a virtual presence and has a large following through its 
popular website and Twitter accounts. 

The existing library strategy is now being refreshed in the light of the Council’s financial position. Like many councils, Havering is facing 
significant budget reductions. The budget will need to reduce by £60m over the next four years. This comes on top of a reduction of £40m 
in the Council’s budget between 2010 and 2014. Together this represents approximately one third of the Council’s controllable expenditure. 
Under these circumstances the Council needs to review all of its expenditure, prioritise and review the method and level of service delivery. 

The libraries service is a statutory service in that councils have a legal duty to provide a “comprehensive and efficient” service under section 
7 of the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964; but there is no definition as to what this means in practice. What is clear, though, is a 
reduction in existing services does not necessarily mean that a council is no longer providing a comprehensive and efficient service, as the 
outcome of various challenges to service reductions across the country has shown.    

The scale of the budget reductions that are required in Havering makes it inevitable that the library service’s budget will become smaller, 
but this does not mean that the services enjoyed by users will inevitably reduce, albeit that libraries may be open for less hours than at 
present and we hope services beyond a “core offer” will be supported by trained volunteers. There are examples across the country where 
councils have used alternative delivery methods to reduce the impact of budget reductions and ensure that a comprehensive and efficient 
library service continues to be provided. This is the challenge for Havering Council: how can significant savings be achieved and the service 
offered to users be reduced as little as possible.  

Chapter 2 of this Strategy (section 2.4) sets out how this challenge can be addressed, by proposing a new delivery model for the Library 
Service in Havering.        

Chapter 3 sets out and reinforces the Council’s belief in the intrinsic value of libraries and in particular their contribution to the health and 
wellbeing of the community. Despite the changes set out in Chapter 2, the Council will continue to operate its library service the context of 
an understanding of the unique importance of the libraries in the life of our community. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 231



 

- 4 - 

1.3 About the Library Strategy 

 

The new Library Strategy 2015-17 has the same purpose, objectives and principles as the previous Library Strategy 2013-15. 
 
Reflecting the current Culture Strategy, our Library Strategy for 2015-17 remains driven by the very simple ambition:   

“To transform lives through participation in, and enjoyment of, reading and a wide range of library services” 

The purpose of the Library Strategy is to:  
 

‘Provide focus and added value to the efforts of everyone involved in the planning and provision of library services, linked to a 

very clear view of what will be achieved by 2017’. 

 

The Objectives and Principles of our strategy are also based on those of the Culture Strategy:  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

OBJECTIVE 1:  

Health and Wellbeing 
 

Support a high standard of mental, 
physical and emotional health for all by 
increasing engagement with the Library 
Service and develop initiatives to 
promote healthy lifestyles, reduce social 
isolation and increase wellbeing.  

OBJECTIVE 2:  

Learning and Development 
 

Support learning outcomes and personal 
development for all ages through our 
innovative Library Service, delivering 
informal learning opportunities, 
developing literacy and enhancing our 
digital offer.  

PRINCIPLE 3: Inclusion & Cohesion 
Be smarter about collecting information on our customers and 
communities. Target new audiences and broaden access to our 
services, breaking down barriers to engagement where these 
exist, facilitating social progress and improved quality of life.  
 

PRINCIPLE 1: Community Empowerment 
Promote more active engagement in service delivery, from 
consultation, to volunteering, to devolving services to the local 
community.  

PRINCIPLE 2: Work in Partnership 
Continue to work with our partners, internal and external, and 
regionally across borough boundaries, to achieve shared 
objectives.  
 

OBJECTIVE 3:  

Towns and Communities 
 

Enriching our local towns and communities 
by increasing engagement in libraries, as 
focal points for our communities.  
Reinforcing the role of libraries as 
community hubs for learning, social activity 
and enjoyment. 

PRINCIPLE 4: Good Value Services 
Continue to develop innovative, modern and efficient methods of 
service delivery, including through volunteers, thereby maintaining 
the high quality of our services against a backdrop of reduced 
budgets, and ensuring that activities are evaluated effectively to 
retain a focus on outcomes for local people. 
 

P
age 232



 

- 5 - 

CHAPTER 2:  Where are we now and how can we respond to the challenges?   
 

2.1 What services do we currently provide? 
 
The Library Service is currently responsible for the management and development of: 
 

· 10 library buildings – with each branch having an extensive physical book stock, free PC access for customers and free Wi-Fi 
access, and each running events and activities which are tailored to the local community. 

· 1 Virtual Library – providing  24/7 access to a wide range of on-line materials including dictionaries, art and music resources, 
driving and citizenship tests, encyclopaedias, study and homework help, family and local history resources, legal and business 
resources, online courses, foreign language courses, newspapers and magazine access, and access to e-books and audio 
books.  

· Reader Development Team – developing and promoting library services to children, young people and adults, managing 
safeguarding across the service, and working with the branches to deliver our event programme.  

· Housebound Service – for people who are housebound either for a temporary period of time (i.e. coming out of hospital) or as an 
on-going service for people who meet the criteria.   

· Links to schools on literacy work. 

· Local Studies and Family History Centre – providing access to local and family history collections, holding exhibitions and talks to 
the local community, and providing support for research.   

· Stock Team – managing the stock using a range of IT support systems, in order to provide the right stock at the right price at the 
right place.  We also share a Stock Manager with London Borough of Enfield.  

 
In addition, we are:  
 

· Well underway in our programme of building refurbishments, with nine buildings already completed, and a new library in  Harold Hill 
shortly to go into construction.  

· Involved in partnerships with several visiting services, i.e. Age Concern, Arthritis Care, CAB, JobNet, Community Police events, local 
sports groups and support groups.  

· Providing support to the Havering Museum.   

· Running a very well supported volunteer programme.  
 

P
age 233



- 6 - 

2.2 Achievements since the last strategy 

Just a few of our achievements in Libraries since our last strategy (2013-15) include:  
 

· Work about to start to construct the new Harold Hill library 

· The new library in Rainham opened (July 2014) 

· The Library Service was shortlisted in the Local Government Chronicle awards for its Volunteers programme;  

· Expanded our volunteering opportunities; 

· Assisted in expanding the London Libraries Consortium to 17 members 

· Delivered a series of events associated with the Olympic and Paralympic Games 

· Delivered a series of events associated with the commemoration of the centenary of WW1 

· Produced a Literacy Strategy 

· Digitised the Local Studies and Family History collections 

· Achieved the Customer Service Excellence award 

P
age 234



 

- 7 - 

  

2.3 SWOT analysis 
 

In preparing this new strategy we have prepared a SWOT analysis of our current position and the potential implications of reducing budgets 
over the next four years. 
 

Strengths Weaknesses 
 

· Location and condition of our buildings  

· Providing an inclusive service 

· We have 24/7 access to a large range of services including 
reference, training and educational support 

· Support of our Council and recognition of the intrinsic importance 
of and community value of our libraries 

· Strong leadership from Members and officers of the Council 

· Well trained and committed workforce 

· High customer satisfaction with our services 

· Delivering an extensive, popular and well attended event 
programme  

· Strong community engagement and volunteer support 

· Strong partnerships with internal services and external 
organisations using our buildings 

· An innovative and forward thinking service 

 

· Some of the income targets for room letting are challenging 

· Committed staff may feel demotivated by service changes 

· Anxiety from the community about the changes 

Opportunities Threats 
 

· Use of new technologies to attract new borrowers and expand our 
reach in the community 

· Our trained staff will improve the customer experience 

· How libraries respond to the ‘Digital Age’  

· Opportunities to generate new income through new charging 
arrangements, donations, philanthropy etc  

· Ability to build on our strong volunteering base 

· Ability to develop our good quality library buildings into community 
hubs 

· Opportunity to work more closely with communities around branch 
libraries in each local area 

· Benefit of experience of learning from co-operative library services 
delivered elsewhere 

 

 

· Requirements to make budget savings in an increasingly difficult 
economic climate 

· Maintaining the relevance of libraries to the local community, 
including through new technologies 

· Maintaining the current range of services, including events, in the 
context of the proposed reduced opening hours 

· Reduced ability to generate income as a result of the proposed 
reduced opening hours 

· Future of the housebound service pending a change in delivery 
model 

· Future of the local studies and family history service pending a 
change in delivery model 

P
age 235



 

- 8 - 

2.4 Responding to a changing context – developing a “Partnership” library service 

 
Significant reductions to the library service budget are required as the Council faces up to the challenge of finding savings. This means that 
the service will be working in an entirely new context in the next three years. In considering how to face the future the Council has 
considered changes made in other parts of the country and the latest advice from the Arts Council. 
 
The Arts Council, in their report: “Community Libraries: Learning from Experience: Summary Briefing for Local Authorities” (January 2013), 
have identified two main types of “community libraries” that have emerged across the country in the last few years: 
 
1. “Independent community libraries”, where there is no public sector involvement;  
 
2. “Co-produced Libraries”, where there is both public sector and community involvement.   
 
Havering Council propose to adopt the “co-produced libraries” model, believing it important that a core team of professional library staff are 
retained to provide a bed rock for the service. Their experience and skills are considered vital to underpinning the library service offer and to 
motivate, train and develop the increased number of volunteers who will be required to help run the service. In fact there are three types of 
“co-produced library” sub models identified in the Arts Council report: Havering Council proposes to adopt the “community supported” sub 
model, where the service is council led and funded, with professional staff employed, but with significant support from volunteers.   
 
In Havering we propose to call the library service the “Partnership Library Service”, so that the vital role that is to be played by both 
volunteers and council employed staff is recognised.  
 
Havering Council believes the current significant involvement of volunteers, the quality of that involvement and their commitment provides 
strong evidence that the “Partnership Library Service” model can work. The input of volunteers, however, cannot be assumed and the 
council will have to work hard to both retain the existing volunteers and encourage involvement from new volunteers. To ensure the new 
delivery model is a success and to ensure that this strategy is achieved, the council estimates that the number of volunteers will need to 
double in the next two years. A separate volunteer strategy for the library service will be written to ensure that this target is reached. The 
role of the partners will be set out in this strategy.  
 
The Volunteer Strategy will set out how the Council intends to:   
 

1. Learn from and apply best practice from around the country; 

2. Retain the existing volunteers working with the library service (there are currently approx. 380 volunteers); 

3. Work with the voluntary and community sector to encourage new volunteers to join the service;  

4. Market and communicate the volunteering opportunities that will become available; 

P
age 236



 

- 9 - 

5. Train and develop the volunteers so that they are able to help manage the library buildings; 

6. How the volunteers will be motivated to continue with their volunteering over an extended period of time; 

7. How the deployment of volunteers will be organised and managed across the service.       

 
The new delivery model proposes that the current library building managers are retained to provide leadership and management expertise 
in each library building (as they currently do) and that they are supported by a small team of staff, to ensure that there are always two library 
staff on duty at any one time, during the “core opening hours” (the core opening hours are highlighted below). It is proposed that a small 
central team of peripatetic staff are also employed to provide cover for annual leave, sickness etc. It is further proposed that trained 
volunteers work alongside paid staff during the “core opening hours” and, where they are willing to do so, they work by themselves to 
extend the opening hours beyond the core offer. 
 
The day to day management of the volunteers working in libraries will be the responsibility of the relevant library manager, but the overall 
responsibility for co-ordinating and developing the volunteer programme will be led by a retained post in the reader development team 
 
Havering Council has decided to avoid building closures and prioritise the continued opening of the existing 10 library buildings, for the 
following reasons: 
 

· The importance of retaining libraries buildings in the town centres and communities in which they are based;  

· The importance of ensuring that the current accessibility of the libraries is maintained, particularly for disabled people, for those 

people who have mobility problems and for those people who do not have access to a car; 

· Avoiding building closures (which could result in the disposal of those buildings) means that future investment in those services 

remains possible, assuming greater levels of funding become available at some point in the future. Closing library buildings means 

that they will almost certainly be lost forever. 
 

If all of the buildings are to be retained, which is proposed, the only realistic way of making significant budget savings is to reduce the 
opening hours, which in turn means reducing the number of staff employed by the library service and reducing the number of staff on duty 
at any one time. At first glance this sounds as if the service to users will significantly reduce, but this need not be the case: in fact, it is the 
council’s intention to retain as much of the existing service as possible through a new delivery model (or business model) for the library 
service. Increasing the number and involvement of volunteers, working alongside professional staff, is at the heart of the new delivery 
model. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 237



 

- 10 - 

2.5 What will happen to each of our libraries? 
 
The new delivery model proposes four of our libraries, Romford, Hornchurch, Harold Hill and Rainham open at least 6 days and 50 hours a 
week. These 4 libraries have been chosen to provide a good geographical spread across the borough, so that wherever people live, there 
will be a library open within a reasonable distance each day (Monday – Saturday). 
 
The remaining six libraries (Upminster, Elm Park, South Hornchurch, Collier Row, Harold Wood and Gidea Park) will open at least 25 hours 
a week. This will include evening periods and Saturday opening. As set out above, these hours would be the “core opening hours” (i.e. the 
minimum opening hours); but the intention would be to increase those opening hours, with the help of trained volunteers. It would also be 
the intention to further engage with the community to see what use they would like to make of the buildings. 
 
It is intended that the “Partnership Library Service” model will be extended to include the delivery of the Local Studies and Family History 
Service, the Housebound Service and the work of the Reader Development team with volunteers and local communities increasingly 
leading the development of these services with the support of professional staff. 
 
Under this model, the library service retains the existing book stock and computer resources, so library users will have access to the same 
range of book stock and computer services as now and users will be able to access the same level of service through the London Library 
Consortium (LLC). The Council’s leading role within the LCC will need to be reviewed in the light of reduced management resources. 
 
The new delivery model also includes users paying a small sum to use computers, to help achieve the required budget savings and to help 
manage usage at busy times. A charge of 50p per hour is proposed. 
 
The new delivery model envisages the Library Service developing new ways to generate income through new membership arrangements, 
philanthropy, donations and sponsorship, using the experience of library authorities, such as Northamptonshire, as a base to work from. A 
change of emphasis in the Culture and Leisure Marketing team will result in one post spending a significant amount of time on income 
generation in the library service.   
 
The library service will experience significant change in the next two years as it moves to a different delivery model. This transformation will 
have a significant impact on staff, as well as the services that can be provided to the public, during a period of transition. The Action Plan for 
the next three years, included as Chapter 4 of this strategy, therefore focuses on retaining as much of the current service offer as possible; 
albeit the service will take advantage of new opportunities to develop and transform where resources allow…..and the service can look 
forward to both the development of services at the new Rainham and Harold Hill Libraries in the next two years. 
 
The new model in retaining all library buildings, allows the continuation and development of the use of these buildings by the community, for 
the activities to promote the health and wellbeing of the local community.  

P
age 238



 

- 11 - 

 

2.6 Demographic Changes  
 

Havering’s Culture Strategy summarises the demographic changes facing the borough over the next few years, to which the Library 
Service, like all Council services and partners, need to respond. 
 

· An ageing population  
 

The 2011 census calculated the average age for residents in Havering as 40 – the highest average age in London and above the England 
average.  17.9% of residents were over 65 and 2.6% were over 85.  The percentage of older people is due to increase significantly over the 
next few years.  In 2011 there were 1,937 people over 90, by the end of this strategy (2015) there will be 2,496, and by 2021 there will be 
3,297 (a 70% increase).  
 

· Increasing numbers of children and young people 
 

The 2011 census found 5.8% of Havering’s population were under 5s – the lowest in London (though set to increase by 15% in 2015 and 
by 23% in 2021).  The 5-9 bracket is currently about average for London, but is set to increase significantly over the next few years (from 
13,307 in 2011 to 15,157 in 2015 and 18,424 in 2021 – a 38% increase).   
 

An estimated 19% of children are thought to live in poverty in Havering, 27% live in lone-parent families, and approximately 400 families 
have been categorised as having multiple complex needs, with a further 2,000 families categorised as ‘barely coping’.  
 

· Ethnicity 
 

The population of Havering is the least ethnically diverse in London, but it is becoming more diverse.  The number of overseas nationals 
registering to work who live in Havering has increased by 41.5% over the last five years, with Nigerian, Polish and Indian nationals as the 
predominant groups.  The highest ethnic diversity in Havering is amongst young people, with 23% of school pupils in 2011 coming from 
non-white ethnic backgrounds, primarily Black African descent.  Some estimates predict the current percentage of BME residents could 
grow 21% by 2016 and 40% by 2021i.  
 

· Disability 
 

Approximately 17.5% of working age residents in Havering are disabledii, and approximately 49% of Havering residents aged 65 or older 
have a limiting long term illnessiii.  Of these 65+ residents with a limiting long term illness, 7,742 also live aloneiv.  The JSNA states that this 
number of disabled people in Havering may increase by 7% over the next ten years, while the number of adults with learning disabilities 
may increase by the same amount.  
 
 
 

P
age 239



 

- 12 - 

2.7 How does the partnership model measure up to our community’s needs? 
 
How does the new partnership model deliver against the needs of our communities, our demographics and the SWOT analysis of current 
library services? 
 
The SWOT analysis establishes our major strengths as the current popularity of the service, its strong partnership culture and strong 
existing volunteer support, strong core staff values, diverse range of community support and wellbeing activities and its inclusive nature in 
that it provides safe and inclusive spaces for a range of different ages. 
 
These strengths provide the opportunities to build on the current strong partnership and values of the library service. 
 
Demographics show our population is ageing and therefore it is important to ensure locally accessible rather than just digital resources for 
this group (though many older people are very computer literate). 
 
Overall the population is growing and becoming more diverse, hence again, the need to ensure a ranges of facilities throughout the 
borough where a wide range of family and community groups can interact and gain access to learning, enjoyment and social interaction. 
 
Given the threats of budget reductions, this strategy retains and develops the best of our library service in that it: 
 

- Retains all buildings to be developed both as libraries and community hubs; 

- Provides core library resources open 6 days a week, to cover the key geographical areas of the borough; 

- Provide a minimum 3 day / professional services in all other libraries with the potential for additional opening hours if the 

community wish to partner with the Council; 

- Retains professional staff to resource in each library to assist in the recruitment and development of volunteers; 

- Builds on the existing strong partnership with volunteers and the local community; 

- Allows extension of library building for additional uses if the local community want to take advantage of these excellent spaces; 

- Retains access to the full range of excellent book stock and resources through the Council’s inter-borough book stock 

arrangements. 
 

 

 

P
age 240



- 13 - 

CHAPTER 3:  The value of libraries in Havering – why it is important to have thriving library 

services 

3.1 The intrinsic and instrumental value of libraries 

The intrinsic benefits of reading are both obvious and unique to every reader.  Some people read for the mental challenge and purpose of 
personal development; to learn new skills, develop their knowledge, and discover information.  Some read for the entertainment value; for 
the drama and suspense of a good story, or for the pleasures of escaping reality and becoming immersed in another world.  Some read for 
the personal enrichment it gives them; for relaxing the mind, inspiring their imagination and creativity, even finding spiritual enrichment or 
expanding their worldview.   

The instrumental benefits of reading logically follow from these intrinsic benefits.  For example, reading improves health and wellbeing 
through reducing stress, lowering blood pressure and improving mood.  Research shows that reading can reduce stress levels by 67% 
(University of Sussex), and social activities based on reading (e.g. reading groups and author events) help to combat isolation by bringing 
people together.   

Some research even suggests that reading may reduce the onset of dementia, with one piece of research suggesting reducing the 
likelihood by 35% (New Eng. Jnl Medicine) although this is not conclusive.  It is particularly interesting however given the ageing population 
and predictions that levels of dementia could rise by 61% by 2026 (Kings Fund).  

However, libraries are more than a book lending service. Our vision for modern public libraries  sees them providing access to information, 
learning and cultural content in shared and trusted spaces; inspiring and empowering people to lead active 
lives, enriched through cultural experience.  As such, public libraries have a much greater intrinsic and 
instrumental benefit than reading alone.  For example:   

· Increased social interaction - Libraries offer excellent spaces for people to come together to attend 
groups, activities or talks. As well as improving personal emotional health, such activities aid social 
inclusion and community cohesion.   

· Bridging the digital divide - the provision of PC access in our libraries ensures that people who do 
not have access to equipment / internet at home are not disadvantaged  

· Improving literacy and pleasure in reading  

· Improving knowledge, skills and qualifications  

· Increased community involvement  

· Increased self-confidence and self-esteem for individuals  

P
age 241



 

- 14 - 

· Improving health and wellbeing  

· Widening access to cultural opportunities  

· Providing information and promoting the borough 

· Access to historical resources through the Local Studies and Family History Centre.  

· Providing access to government benefits through the Peoples Network computers, ensuring people on low incomes with no access 
technology are not disadvantaged, though we are now proposing a 50p per hour charge for this service 

· Providing a trusted first point of contact and access to information about Council services 

· Helping to promote financial inclusion through the provision of information and IT support 

· Supporting business development and helping to boost the economy in Havering. 

 

3.2 The value of libraries to residents 
 

· Our library buildings are important as local hubs, for local people to find out information, learn new skills or read for pleasure.  The 
effective access to library services for local communities is of paramount importance, and the 11th ‘virtual library’ will continue to 
deliver to an even wider audience.   

· Library buildings remain a key asset for the local community; they provide a welcoming space for local groups, schools, 
community organisations and individuals.  Providing book stock will remain a key component of the service during the life of this 
strategy and this needs to be provided in buildings that are comfortable and welcoming.  Our buildings need to provide access to 
people with disabilities and the service will need to provide well trained staff and volunteers to support customers who may not be 
IT literate, or be able to afford computer access at home.  There is also a need for study space for people undertaking research 
and doing homework / course related studies across the borough.  We will continue to run a reduced events programme from our 
buildings, that could be augmented through volunteer and community led programmes. With increasing pressure on budgets we 
will look at opportunities for co-location with other services to ensure we are able to maintain our current service. We will balance 
the opening hours of our libraries to reflect these important and different needs of our community. 

· Although we already receive very high levels of satisfaction from our residents, we are always looking to improve on our services 

and actively seek feedback from users and non-users.  One way we do this is through our Annual Market Research Survey.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 242



 

- 15 - 

 
 
 

3.3 How libraries contribute to hHealth and wellbeing  
 

‘Five Ways to Wellbeing’ (commissioned by the Foresight Project) describes the kind of behaviour people can undertake which will lead to 
improvements in their mental health and wellbeing. In the table below we outline how libraries provide opportunities for each of these 
identified behaviours and activities.   

 

Positive behaviour and activity:  How Libraries provide opportunities for this:  

1. Connect… With the people around you. With family, 
friends, colleagues and neighbours. At home, work, 
school or in your local community. 

Courses and events available to encourage residents to connect with fellow 
residents.   
- Many of our customers are of an older generation who use the library as an 
opportunity to socialise. Libraries will continue to be available for use as 
community hubs.   
- There will also be opportunities for parents, children and whole families to 
bond through family activities. 
 

New media options have meant that our Facebook and Twitter pages provide 
spaces where people can connect and share like minded discussions about 
books and culture in the borough.  
 

The libraries TV Network has provided people with access to what happens at 
our events and has given people the confidence to connect with local groups 
which helps to reduce social isolation and depression.  
 

2. Be active…Discover a physical activity you enjoy 
and that suits your level of mobility and fitness. 

The Library service and library buildings provide ideal local, community hubs 
for the development of exercise and fitness activities. We will promote health 
and fitness in a range of settings, with the assistance of public health and NHS 
colleagues.   
 

We hold an extensive range of book stock and online magazines on a wide 
variety of sporting activities and Health and Wellbeing 
 

Observations contained in written form and in a variety of genres and media, 
sharpens our perception of the world and our ability to take notice.  
 

P
age 243



 

- 16 - 

3. Take notice… Be curious. Catch sight of the 
beautiful. Remark on the unusual. Notice the changing 
seasons. Savour the moment, whether you are walking 
to work, eating lunch or talking to friends. Be aware of 
the world around you and what you are feeling. 

Libraries are the perfect setting to instil and cultivate curiosity, through access 
to a range of resources in various forms.   
 

Libraries worked in partnership with the ‘Year of Living Gratefully’ project and 
Poetry and Creative Writing Groups and will continue to encourage young 
people to notice arts and culture in their day to day life.    

4. Keep learning… Try something new. Rediscover an 
old interest. Sign up for that course. Take on a different 
responsibility at work. Fix a bike. Learn to play an 
instrument or how to cook your favourite food. Set a 
challenge you enjoy achieving. Learning new things will 
make you more confident.  

Whether for pleasure or personal and professional development, libraries 
provide a valuable place for learning new skills and developing knowledge.   
Our libraries are available to hold temporary exhibitions and talks, offer a range 
of courses, and provide free and easy access to information. 
 

We run Reading Groups which encourage people to be able to read and 
analyse books in a sociable group setting.  
 

Libraries offer a wide range of online resources which include access to 
dictionaries, art and music, encyclopaedias, study and homework, family and 
local history, legal and business support.  
 

Libraries also offer online access to a range of newspapers and magazines, 
and have recently launched ‘Universal Class’ an online learning resource with 
hundreds of self-paced, tutor-led courses.  
 

5. Give… Do something nice for a friend, or a stranger. 
Thank someone. Smile. Volunteer your time. Join a 
community group. Seeing yourself, and your happiness, 
as linked to the wider community can be incredibly 
rewarding and creates connections with the people 
around you. 

Our library service is supported by a very strong base of volunteers.  We have 
in excess of 380 regular volunteers who support a wide range of activities 
As part of this new strategy we want to build on this volunteer programme and 
also encourage local communities to engage fully in the use of library buildings. 

 

Libraries can, and do, make a significant contribution to the health and wellbeing agenda.  The central role of libraries, reading and 
information sources and its contribution to health and well-being is recognised in the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board, in our Culture 

P
age 244



- 17 - 

Strategy, and by partners in the Health Service and other relevant bodies.  This provides us with excellent grounds in Havering to ensure 
maximum levels of health and wellbeing among residents by using the work of the public library service in the borough.   

Promoting Healthy Lifestyles 

Libraries have a Health and Wellbeing corner in every branch.  These include books on mood boosting, diet, exercise, medical issues, 
mental health issues, emotional health support, and more. We also hold leaflets from a range of services and will hold sessions in 
partnership with NHS and other providers to promote health and wellbeing. Libraries also often partner with other organisations to offer 
space for the delivery of health activities such as healthy eating advice, smoking cessation and blood 
pressure checks, and offer Books on Prescription (self-help books referred by their GP).   

Supporting Early Years Development 

The Frank Field Review in 2010 examined the nature and extent of poverty in the UK and presented 
recommendations for increasing the life chances of children which the report argues is the best way to 
tackle intergenerational disadvantage. The report proposes nine ‘life chance indicators which cover 
things like behavioural, social and emotional development, cognitive development, home learning 
environment, and maternal mental health.   

Libraries are and will continue to be important partners in supporting early years development.  
Libraries provide opportunities for play and all the benefits that come from this, i.e. cognitive, 
behavioural, physical and social development, stimulating enquiry and problem-solving, and developing 
emotional engagement between parents and children.  Libraries provide opportunities for learning, 
particularly early communication and literacy, and also provide opportunities for parents to socialise and 
build support networks.   

Combating social isolation and ensuring services are accessible to all 

Libraries make a significant contribution to combating social isolation.  We run our Housebound Service to support older people and people 
with particular disabilities which mean they cannot leave their homes.  We currently support 95 clients through a specific service that costs 
approx. £15,000, including some management costs. We will continue to support these clients in ways that offer better value for council tax 
payers, such as using volunteers. Activities for young mums and families will also continue to provide a neutral space for mums to share 
experiences and build confidence.  As community hubs we hope more local community members and groups will use the library for a wide 
range of activities to support socially isolated groups.   

P
age 245



- 18 - 

Libraries also work closely with Customers with Special Needs and Caring Organisations to make our services more accessible.  The 
service will continue to train staff and volunteers to enable them to recognise and be aware of clients with autism and dementia. 

3.4 How libraries contribute to learning and personal development 

Literacy  

Public libraries serve an important function in the literacy development, which in turn has a major 
impact on quality of life.  Poor literacy skills are part of a cycle of factors that lead to disadvantage 
and poverty of opportunity.  Research shows the links between low literacy and crime, poor health 
choices, low educational attainment and unemploymentv.  

Recent reviews of child poverty and the Early Years Foundation Stage have identified early language 
and literacy as building blocks for children’s lives, helping to narrow the gap in the life chances 
experienced by children from poorer homes.  

The development of literacy and reading form the core of the public library offer, and visiting libraries and library activities are generally 
viewed as enjoyable recreational activities by children and young people. This is important as both children’s reading attainment and their 
enjoyment of reading has declined in recent years; yet research studies have shown positive links between enjoyment, learning and 
academic success.  

Digital Access 

Public libraries have a vital role in bridging the digital divide and enabling people to get reliable 
information from the internet.  Not everyone has broadband access, let alone internet access, and 
many lack the skills or confidence to use the internet.  It is also more often those of an older 
generation or poorer background who do not have access.   

Havering libraries will provide low cost access to the internet (50p per one hour is proposed).   

Hosting training and development 

Libraries can provide even more opportunities for local people by being a ‘host’ for training and 
development, by partnering with organisations who are specialist in other areas to help people gain 
skills, become more employable, and build their confidence.   

P
age 246



- 19 - 

We already work with a number of agencies such as Learn Direct and The Sure Trust to deliver such courses in our branches.   

Informal Learning  

Libraries provide a safe and welcoming space for community groups or individuals to learn, explore, improve their skills and socialise.  We 
want to work more closely with local communities around our libraries for them to become community hubs and so build on the wide range 
of opportunities currently available. 

 

 

P
age 247



 

- 20 - 

  

CHAPTER 4:  Our Action Plan, 2015-17 

Objective 1: Health and Wellbeing 
 

Objective / Tasks Base line position 2015 Target 2017 Culture 
Strategy 
Principle 

Maintain and improve Health and Well being corners 
in all libraries  

5 in place Maintain the current provision  2,3,4 

Maintain the Books on Prescription stock and 
promote to a wider audience  

Stock currently at some branches 
but not well publicised  

Add stock to the Health Corners in 
libraries where resources allow 

4 

Run events focused on food, exercise and healthy 
living 

Each of our monthly themes will 
include one of these key areas 

Each of our monthly themes will 
include one of these key areas. 

2,3,4 

Continue to promote joining the library from birth to 
encourage reading and rhyme for children and 
investigate option for re engaging at reception age 

All children born in the borough to 
automatically  have a library card 

Maintain the current service 3 

Work with the Health & Wellbeing Board to explore 
new ways for public libraries to contribute to the 
Borough’s Health & Wellbeing priorities.  

A number of existing initiatives are 
already underway or being 
established, including Healthy 
Living Corners in all libraries.  

Implement new initiatives in 
libraries, in partnership with other 
services, which contribute to the 
health & wellbeing priorities.  

1,2,3,4 

Deliver the Literacy Strategy to improve opportunities 
for people in the borough 

Literacy Strategy agreed.  Take forward literacy work where 
resources allow.  

1,2,3,4 

 

Objective 2: Learning and Personal Development 
 

Objective / Tasks Base line position 2015 Target 2017 Culture 
Strategy 
Principle 

Engage with other partners and stakeholders to 
manage learning opportunities for the residents of 
Havering 
 

Partners currently delivering 
learning opportunities in Romford 
Library 

Maintain existing service and secure 
new partnerships in Rainham, 
Harold Hill and Hornchurch libraries. 

2,3 

Build on our Volunteer Strategy 
 

A draft strategy has been written, 
but will now need to be rewritten in 

New Strategy written and 
implemented 

1 

P
age 248



 

- 21 - 

the light of this strategy. 

Increase the number of volunteers working in the 
Library service 

380  volunteers 760 volunteers 1 

Continue to digitise the Local and Family History 
collections using volunteers, to create learning 
opportunities for the volunteer groups and the local 
community  

 Higher % of the collection digitised  1,4 

On-going training for staff and volunteers to promote 
our on line reference resources to help customers get 
the most from the wide range of resources 

 All staff  and volunteers trained  
 

4 

Promote basic IT skills training and run courses with 
our partners  

Currently courses are run in 
Hornchurch and Upminster 

Library to look at opportunities for 
running self help courses via on line 
resources to support partners. 
Courses run at Rainham and Harold 
Hill libraries.  

2,4 

Encourage children to start and finish the Summer 
Reading Scheme 

 Maintain as much of the current 
participation as possible taking 
account of reduced resources 

1,2,3,4 

Promote our new on line courses including on line  
languages to improve mental health and support 
learning 

 Increase hits by 10% 3 

 

Objective 3: Towns and Communities 
 

Objective / Tasks Base line position 2012 Target 2017 Culture 
Strategy 
Principle 

Maintain high resident satisfaction levels with 
Libraries 

81.5 % satisfaction Retain high satisfaction levels 4 

Use Community Profiles to maintain library 
membership, including a focus on increasing 
membership in our most deprived areas of the 
borough 

Increase the %  of the population 
currently has a library card. 
 

Maintain the current % of the 
population who have a card  
 

1,2,3,4 

Increase usage of the new library at Rainham 
 

New Library has recently opened Increase in the number of activities, 
partnerships and bookings, in 
comparison to the “old” Library. 

1,2,3,4 

P
age 249



 

- 22 - 

Deliver a new library at Harold Hill 
 

Tenders have been returned to 
construct the new library.  

New library opened  1,2,3,4 

Continue to support the annual Culture & Leisure 
Disability Forum 
 

Library presence and 
presentations given at forum 

Continue to actively support  1,2,3,4 

Actively work with local communities to develop 
libraries as community hubs 

380 volunteers already in place Branch libraries to be co-run with 
broad opening hours with help from 
the local community 

 

 
 

 
                                                 
i  Projected Ethnicity Growth in Havering, London & Outer London Boroughs 2011-2021. Round Population Group Projections, Greater London Authority, 2010 (14). 

ii  Working Age People with Disabilities, Annual Population Survey: Department for Work and Pensions, (2012). 

iii  Limiting Long Term Illness in Havering, Census: Office of National Statistics, (2001).  

iv  Residents Aged 65+, Living Alone with LTLI, POPPI, (2012). Available online at www.poppi.org.uk 

 

 

 

 
 

v  National Literacy Trust (2011) Local authorities improving life chances 

P
age 250



 

1 

 

 

APPENDIX E 
 
Summary of the proposed Council Tax Support Scheme for 2015 
 
 
 
Introduction    
 
Council Tax Benefit was abolished from 1 April 2013. In its place each local authority 
was required by Section 9 of the Local Government Finance Act 2012 to produce its 
own scheme to reduce the liability of working age applicants it considers to be in 
financial need. 
 
This document summarises the proposed Council Tax Support Scheme from April 
2015 which the Council has produced in accordance with of Schedule 4 of the Act. 
 
The Council adopted its own local scheme from April 2013 which has due regard to 
the Department for Communities and Local Government’s policy intentions and 
unequivocally protects pensioners.  
 
Havering’s Local Council Tax Support scheme has been interpreted and applied in 
accordance with the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) 
(England) Regulations 2012 which set out what must be included in the scheme. 
 
Summary of Council Tax Support Scheme changes from 2015 
 
The 2015 scheme will adopt the existing scheme as summarised in this document 
and subject to the following amendments:  
 

1. Reduce Council Tax Support for working age claimants by 15%. This means 

that every working age household would have to pay a minimum charge of 

15% of their Council Tax Bill. 

 

2. Reduce the amount of savings and investments people are allowed to have 

and still be entitled to claim from £16,000 to £6,000. 

 

3. Abolish Second Adult Rebate. Second Adult Rebate supports working age tax 

payers whose income is too high in their own right for Council Tax Support but 

who have other adults living in the household whose income is low. 

The above amendments will take effect from April 2015. 
 
In this document ‘the current scheme’ means Havering’s existing Local Council Tax 
Support scheme which was adopted in January 2013 and amended with effect from 
April 2014. 
 

Page 251



 

2 

 

Unless expressly stated otherwise the provisions outlined below relate solely to 
working age applicants under the Council Tax Support scheme. 
 
 
 
Havering’s Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

 
This document summarises the Council’s proposed Scheme for eligible working age 
Council Tax payers to receive council tax support. 
 
The scheme applicable to pensioners is defined in The Council Tax Reduction 
Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012, Part 3, Schedules 1 to 6, 
which is adopted within this scheme. 
 
The procedure for the operation of the Scheme summarised below is made in 
accordance with Schedules 7 and 8 of the Council Tax Reduction Schemes 
(Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012. 
 
The principles of the Local Council Tax Support Scheme are: 

• Local authorities will be expected to manage significant reductions in subsidised 
expenditure. 

• Regulations have been set to protect claimants of state pension credit age. 

• Local authorities will consult on their schemes with precepting authorities and the 
public. 

• The Council will adopt the final scheme before 31 January 2013 or the default 
scheme will apply.  

• Local authorities should aim to protect vulnerable groups. 

• In developing schemes, local authorities should consider incentivising claimants 
into work.   

 
The Local Council Tax Support Scheme includes the following: 

• Introduction and definitions 

• Prescribed of persons 

• Provisions relating to entitlement under the scheme 

• Applicable amounts 

• Maximum Council Tax Reduction 

• Alternative Maximum Council Tax Reduction 

• Amount of reduction under the scheme 

• Assessment of Income and Capital under the scheme 

• Students 

• Applications 

• Extended reductions 

• Period of entitlement and changes of circumstances 

• Schedules 
 

Page 252



 

3 

 

 

 

The Council Tax Support Calculation 

 

The starting point for all calculations of Council Tax Support is the claimant’s 
‘maximum benefit’. This is the claimant’s weekly eligible Council Tax less any non-
dependant deductions that apply. 

 

Income and capital are compared to the claimant’s applicable amount. Any income 
over the applicable amount is known as the Excess Income. 

  

The claimant qualifies for maximum support less 20% of any excess income figure. 
The 20% reduction to the maximum benefit is known as a taper. 

 

Claimants in receipt of Job Seeker’s Allowance and Income Support have already 
been assessed by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) as having income 
lower than their applicable amount and so will receive maximum council tax support 
less any non-dependant deductions. 

 

 

Page 253



 

4 

 

 

 
Non-dependant deductions from April 2013 

Paragraph 58 in Part 6 of the Council Tax Benefit Regulations 2006 shall be taken to 
read as follows:  
 
“58.  
 
(1) Subject to the following provisions of this regulation, the non-dependant 

deductions in respect of a day referred to in regulation 57 (maximum council tax 
benefit) shall be— 

 
(a) in respect of a non-dependant aged 18 or over in remunerative work, £20.00 x 

1/7;    
(b) in respect of a non-dependant aged 18 or over to whom sub-paragraph (a) 

does not apply, £6.00 × 1/7.   
 

(2) In the case of a non-dependant aged 18 or over to whom paragraph (1)(a) 
applies, where it is shown to the appropriate authority that his normal gross 
weekly income is— 
 

Assessment of Needs 
minus 

(Assessment of Income 
+ Assessment of Capital) 

Excess Income 

Weekly Eligible Council 
Tax 

Any non-dependant 
deductions 

LESS 

LESS 

20% of excess income 
(also known as taper) 

EQUALS 

Weekly CTB 

Calculating CTS 

Page 254



 

5 

 

(a) less than £183.00, the deduction to be made under this regulation shall be 
that specified in paragraph (1)(b);    

(b) not less than £183.00 but less than £316.00, the deduction to be made under 
this regulation shall be £9.00;   

(c) not less than £316.00 but less than £394.00, the deduction to be made under 
this regulation shall be £15.00.  

 
From April 2014 onwards, restrict the maximum council tax support award to 
the top of Council Tax band D 

That Paragraph 57 in Part 6 of the Council Tax Benefit Regulations 2006 shall be 
taken to read as follows:  
 
“57.  
 
(1)  Subject to paragraphs (2) to (5), the amount of a person´s maximum council tax 

benefit in respect of a day for which he is liable to pay council tax, shall be 100 
per cent of the amount A/B where— 

 
(a) A is the amount set by the appropriate authority as the council tax for the 

relevant financial year in respect of the dwelling in which he is a resident and 
for which he is liable, subject to any discount which may be appropriate to that 
dwelling under the 1992 Act; and    

(b) B is the number of days in that financial year, less any deductions in respect 
of non-dependants which fall to be made under regulation 58 (non-dependant 
deductions).   

(2) In calculating a person´s maximum council tax benefit any reduction in the 
amount that person is liable to pay in respect of council tax, which is made in 
consequence of any enactment in, or made under, the 1992 Act, shall be taken 
into account. 

(3) The level of any Council Tax Support awarded shall be restricted to the level of 
band D 

 (4) Subject to paragraph (5), where a claimant is jointly and severally liable for 
council tax in respect of a dwelling in which he is resident with one or more other 
persons but excepting any person so residing with the claimant who is a student 
to whom regulation 45(2) (students who are excluded from entitlement to council 
tax benefit) applies, in determining the maximum council tax benefit in his case 
in accordance with paragraph (1), the amount A shall be divided by the number 
of persons who are jointly and severally liable for that tax.   

(5) Where a claimant is jointly and severally liable for council tax in respect of a 
dwelling with only his partner, paragraph (4) shall not apply in his case. 

 
 

Page 255



 

6 

 

 
Applications for Council Tax Support 
 

This part applies to both pensioners and working-age applicants 

 
The following procedure is in accordance with the Council Tax Reduction Schemes 
(Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012, referred to as ‘the Regulations’ below 
and shall be implemented in accordance with those Regulations. 
 
Entitlement to CTS is dependent on an application being made in the following way: 
 
An application may be made: 
 
(a) In writing 
(b) By means of an electronic communication or 
(c) By telephone following publication by the Council of a number for this purpose. 
 
The form provided by the Council for this purpose must be properly completed, and 
the Council may require the applicant to complete the form in the proper manner, 
and may further require that further information and evidence is provided by the 
applicant. 
 
An application will be defective if the applicant does not provide all of the information 
the Council requires. 
 
Applications made by telephone will only be valid if the applicant provides a written 
statement of their circumstances in the format required by the Council. 
 
The Council will provide applicants making their applications with an opportunity to 
correct any defects in their application. 
 
Applications may be made by those persons set out in paragraph 6 of Schedule 8 of 
the Regulations. 
 
The Government has indicated that they intend to introduce legislation to the effect 
that people entitled to Council Tax Benefit on 31 March 2013 will be deemed to have 
made an application under the new scheme.  
 
Evidence and information 

 
Any person who makes an application or any person to whom a reduction under the 
Council’s scheme has been awarded shall furnish such certificates, documents, 
information and evidence in connection with the application or award, or question 
arising out of it as may reasonably be required by the Council in order to determine 
the person’s entitlement. Where the Council requests information it shall inform the 
applicant or person of their duty to notify the Council of any change of circumstances 
and shall indicate the kind of changes of circumstances which are to be notified. 
 

Page 256



 

7 

 

Matters related to the electronic communication of information, proof of delivery and 
content of information will be determined in accordance with Part 4 of Schedule 7 of 
the Regulations. 
 
Where the person is a pensioner paragraph 7(4) (5) (6) and (7) of Schedule 8 of the 
Regulations apply which specify matters relevant to evidence and information related 
to pensioners. 
 
Amendment and withdrawal of applications 
 
Any person who has made an application may amend it at any time before a 
decision had been made by serving a notice in writing to the Council in accordance 
with paragraph 8 of Schedule 8 of the Regulations. 
 
Decisions by the Council 
 
The Council will make a decision in respect of any application for a reduction under 
this scheme in accordance with the criteria set out within the Council Tax Benefit 
Regulations 2006 (subject to the amendments made to paragraphs 57 and 58 and 
Schedule 2 referred to above), and in accordance with Schedules 7 and 8 of the 
Regulations. 
 
The decision will be made within 14 days of the Council receiving at its designated 
office the properly completed application or the information requested to complete it 
or the evidence required. The date upon which the Council is deemed to have 
received the properly completed application shall be determined in accordance with 
paragraphs 6 of Schedule 1, paragraph 7 and Part 1 of Schedule 7 of the 
Regulations being satisfied, or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter. 
 
The Council will notify the applicant or any person affected by its decision under the 
scheme in writing forthwith, or as soon as reasonably practicable. 
Any person affected to whom the Council sends or delivers a notification of a 
decision to may, within one month of the notification of the decision, request in 
writing from the Council a statement setting out the reasons for its decision on any 
matter set out in the notice. 
 
Following receipt of a request for a written statement the Council will provide this 
within 14 days or as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter. 
 
Where an award or payment of reduction is made the time and manner of granting 
the reduction under the scheme will be in accordance with Part 5 of Schedule 8 of 
the Regulations. 
 
Change of circumstances 
 
For persons who are not pensioners the date on which changes of circumstances 
are to take effect will be determined in accordance with paragraph 4 of Part 2 of 
Schedule 8 of the Regulations. 
 

Page 257



 

8 

 

Procedure for making an appeal 
 
Any applicant who is not in agreement with the decision of the Council taken under 
this scheme may service a notice in writing on the Council setting out their reasons 
and grounds upon which they believe the Council has made the wrong decision. 
 
Following receipt of an appeal in writing the Council will: 
 

(1) Consider the appeal 
 
(2) Notify the applicant in writing of the following: 

(i) Any decision not to uphold the appeal and the reasons for that; or 
(ii) That steps are being taken to proceed with the appeal and set out what 
steps. 

 
Where an applicant remains dissatisfied following receipt of any written notice sent 
by the Council in response to their appeal, they may within two months of the service 
of that notice, appeal to the valuation tribunal. 
 
 
Applications for further discretionary reductions 
 
Under Section 13A(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and The  
Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) Regulations 2012, the 
Authority will consider applications for a further reduction in Council Tax. 
 
There will be financial implications in that the cost of any reduction will be a direct 
cost to the Council. The cost of any discretionary reduction will, therefore, have to be 
met by the rest of the council taxpayers. 

Applications must be made in writing or by prescribed electronic communications. 
 
The Council will, in making decisions for further discretionary reductions, have due 
regard to its duties under The Child Poverty Act 2010, The Housing Act 1996, and 
The Equality Act 2010.  
 
The Council will review all relevant matters when deciding whether to award a 
reduction including, but not limited to: 
 

• The circumstances of any other person with whom the applicant is jointly and 
severally liable for Council Tax. 

• The overall financial situation of the applicant and the applicant’s family. 

• The effect the council believes making an award will have on the applicant and any 
members of the applicant’s family. 

•  Protecting the public purse and maintaining financial budgets. 

A person who applies for a discretionary reduction may request that the Council 
review its decision. Any such request must be made in writing and be received within 
one month of the date the notification of the decision. 

Page 258



 

9 

 

 
If practicable, another more senior officer, will reconsider the decision in light of all 
available evidence and, if appropriate amend it. Any change may lead to either a 
reduction or an increase in any award. 
 
A further right of review will be available against the decision as reviewed which will 
be considered by a manager but only against the legality of the decision and not the 
actual outcome. 

Page 259



Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank



OUTTURN 2013/14 
12th JUNE 2014 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This report presents CMT with the outturn position for 2013/14.  Once approved revenue will 
show a balanced position.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

CMT is asked:- 

2.1 to note the outturn position for 2013/14 at Appendix A;

2.2 to note the utilisation of the earmarked reserves. 

3. REVENUE OUTTURN 

3.1 The 2013/2014 revenue outturn before the carry forwards of grants and the allocation to the 
Strategic Reserve is £17.5m. After the transfers are approved the revenue outturn will be 
balanced. 

3.2 The carry forwards amount to £10.3m whilst the level of underspend for allocating to the 
Strategic Reserve is £7.2m.  This position is detailed at Appendix A and summarised in the 
table below, alongside a comparison to the period 11 forecast: 

Revised 

Budget

Outturn Outturn Previous 

Forecast 

Outturn

Change in

Outturn

Variance Variance Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Culture, Community & Ecomonic 

Development
46,470  46,167  (303) 287  (590)

Public Health 200  200  0  0  0 

Childrens, Adults & Housing 188,975  189,538  563  558  5 

Resources (64,307) (70,346) (6,039) (8,328) 2,289 

Sub total 171,338  165,559  (5,779) (7,483) 1,704 

Contingency 1,446  0  (1,446) 0  (1,446)

Revenue Total 172,784  165,559  (7,225) (7,483) 258 

Dedicated Schools Budget 0  0  0  0  0 

Grand Total 172,784  165,559  (7,225) (7,483) 258 

Collection Fund 0  175  175  450  (275)

Housing Revenue Account 0  (1,310) (1,310) (776) (534)

Directorate 

3.3 Detailed information on the major variances, in excess of £25k, as reported at Service level 
can be found at Appendix B.  Once approved the revenue outturn will be balanced. 

3.4 The HRA outturn is £1.31m underspend with HRA balances at £6.9m. 

3.5 The year end of the Havering element of the Collection Fund is a £175k deficit. 

Page 261



4. CORPORATE CONTINGENCY 

4.1 Given the overall corporate underspend, and as previously agreed, the unallocated 
contingency balance of £1.45m is earmarked for transformation use. 

5. TREATMENT OF YEAR END BALANCES 

5.1 Services have requested the “transfer to” or “creation of” earmarked reserves for use in this 
financial year at £10.3m, summarised below: 

Outturn

!"One"Source"Reserve 750,000"

!"Public"Health"Reserve 1,059,294"

!"NHS"Support"for"Social"Care"Reserve 3,929,510"

!"Miscellaneous"Reserves 1,964,930"

!"Rolled"Forward"Specific"Projects 1,078,570"

!"Transformation 1,506,885"

!!!Total 10,289,189!

5.2 It was agreed the remaining overall corporate underspend £7.2m would be allocated to the 
Strategic Reserve to fund future transformation streams. 

6. EARMARKED RESERVES 

6.1 The year end update on the use of the earmarked reserves is summarised in the table 
below and includes the transfer of the year end surplus of £7.2m. 

Area Balance 
1

st
 April 

2013 
£000

Balance 
31

st
 March 

2014 
£000

Transformation (Strategic & Plusage) (21,313) (15,927) 

Corporate Items (13,223) (12,137) 

Service Items (14,154) (17,005) 

Total (48,690) (45,069)

Alison Umoh 

Corporate Support Manager

Page 262



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

 C
lo

s
e

d
o

w
n

F
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

D
J
1

-1
4

T
im

e
 r

u
n

: 
0

2
/0

6
/2

0
1

4
 0

8
:4

1
:2

4

S
e

rv
ic

e

F
Y

 R
e

v
is

e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l 
Y

T
D

F
in

a
l 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
P

e
ri

o
d

 1
1

C
h

a
n

g
e

 s
in

c
e

 

P
e

ri
o

d
 1

1
C

a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

s
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 b
e

fo
re

 

C
/f

w
d

s

A
B

1
0

0
0

 C
u

lt
u

re
 &

 L
e

is
u

re
 T

o
ta

l
1

4
,5

4
2

,9
5

5
1

4
,2

7
2

,4
4

8
.4

6
-2

7
0

,5
0

7
-5

9
,8

3
5

-2
1

0
,6

7
2

-9
9

,5
0

0
-3

7
0

,0
0

7

A
B

2
0

0
0

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 &
 C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 T
o

ta
l

3
,7

0
6

,3
5

4
3

,9
2

1
,4

4
4

.6
0

2
1

5
,0

9
1

2
1

4
,3

4
1

7
5

0
2

1
5

,0
9

1

A
B

4
0

0
0

 D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 T
o

ta
l

-3
5

8
,8

0
9

-3
7

9
,3

1
6

.7
3

-2
0

,5
0

8
-1

5
,7

4
1

-4
,7

6
7

-2
0

,5
0

8

A
B

5
0

0
0

 S
tr

e
e

tc
a

re
 T

o
ta

l
1

9
,7

9
8

,8
7

9
1

9
,6

4
2

,5
6

4
.9

4
-1

5
6

,3
1

4
-3

1
8

-1
5

5
,9

9
6

-1
5

4
,0

7
0

-3
1

0
,3

8
4

A
B

6
0

0
0

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
o

ta
l

2
1

3
,4

2
2

1
5

5
,6

0
5

.9
3

-5
7

,8
1

6
-3

4
,9

1
1

-2
2

,9
0

5
-5

7
,8

1
6

A
B

7
0

0
0

 E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
T

o
ta

l
3

,1
8

1
,2

7
0

3
,1

9
2

,2
8

8
.9

7
1

1
,0

1
9

1
,6

1
7

9
,4

0
2

-5
2

2
,2

4
0

-5
1

1
,2

2
1

A
B

9
0

0
0

 P
o

li
c

y
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
T

o
ta

l
1

,7
9

3
,8

8
0

1
,5

5
7

,0
3

3
.1

3
-2

3
6

,8
4

7
-2

4
1

,5
6

9
4

,7
2

2
-2

3
,5

1
0

-2
6

0
,3

5
7

A
F

9
0

0
0

 R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 T

o
ta

l
3

,5
9

2
,0

1
5

3
,8

0
4

,9
6

5
.4

2
2

1
2

,9
5

0
4

2
3

,0
5

9
-2

1
0

,1
0

9
-2

1
2

,0
0

0
9

5
0

A
B

0
0

0
0

 C
u

lt
u

re
, 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 &
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
o

ta
l

4
6

,4
6

9
,9

6
6

4
6

,1
6

7
,0

3
4

.7
2

-3
0

2
,9

3
2

2
8

6
,6

4
3

-5
8

9
,5

7
5

-1
,0

1
1

,3
2

0
-1

,3
1

4
,2

5
2

A
C

1
0

0
0

 P
u

b
li

c
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
o

ta
l

2
0

0
,5

4
0

2
0

0
,5

4
0

.0
0

0
0

0
-1

,0
5

9
,2

9
4

-1
,0

5
9

,2
9

4

A
C

0
0

0
0

 P
u

b
li

c
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
o

ta
l

2
0

0
,5

4
0

2
0

0
,5

4
0

.0
0

0
0

0
-1

,0
5

9
,2

9
4

-1
,0

5
9

,2
9

4

A
B

3
0

0
0

 H
o

m
e

s
 &

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 T
o

ta
l

2
,4

4
7

,6
5

7
2

,4
8

6
,4

5
2

.3
7

3
8

,7
9

5
-3

,9
5

7
4

2
,7

5
2

-1
6

5
,0

0
0

-1
2

6
,2

0
5

A
B

8
0

0
0

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 (
H

R
A

) 
T

o
ta

l
0

0
0

0
0

A
D

9
0

0
0

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
o

ta
l

3
,2

2
3

,6
7

0
3

,1
5

3
,8

2
2

.2
3

-6
9

,8
4

8
5

1
,4

7
4

-1
2

1
,3

2
2

-6
9

,8
4

8

A
E

2
0

0
0

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 A

c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

t 
T

o
ta

l
9

0
,5

4
0

,9
6

7
9

0
,5

1
0

,3
5

0
.9

1
-3

0
,6

1
6

-2
2

,9
2

2
-7

,6
9

4
-7

5
,0

0
0

-1
0

5
,6

1
6

A
E

3
0

0
0

 C
h

il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 T

o
ta

l
2

8
,5

3
9

,8
0

5
2

8
,7

2
4

,9
7

6
.9

2
1

8
5

,1
7

2
2

9
8

,6
5

7
-1

1
3

,4
8

5
-8

6
7

,0
0

0
-6

8
1

,8
2

8

A
E

4
0

0
0

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 T

o
ta

l
2

,0
9

9
,5

1
0

2
,0

3
3

,5
4

9
.8

0
-6

5
,9

6
0

-6
3

,8
5

3
-2

,1
0

7
-4

9
,0

0
0

-1
1

4
,9

6
0

A
E

6
0

0
0

 A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 T
o

ta
l

6
2

,1
1

9
,6

2
6

6
2

,6
2

4
,7

1
5

.7
2

5
0

5
,0

9
0

2
9

9
,0

5
4

2
0

6
,0

3
6

-3
,9

2
9

,5
1

0
-3

,4
2

4
,4

2
0

A
F

2
0

0
0

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 &
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 T

o
ta

l
3

,9
6

0
3

,9
6

0
.0

0
0

0
0

0

A
D

0
0

0
0

 C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
A

d
u

lt
s

 &
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 T

o
ta

l
1

8
8

,9
7

5
,1

9
5

1
8

9
,5

3
7

,8
2

7
.9

5
5

6
2

,6
3

3
5

5
8

,4
5

3
4

,1
8

0
-5

,0
8

5
,5

1
0

-4
,5

2
2

,8
7

7

A
F

1
0

0
0

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 &
 P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

T
o

ta
l

4
8

6
,3

6
0

5
1

9
,4

5
7

.0
0

3
3

,0
9

7
-6

6
,8

9
4

9
9

,9
9

1
3

3
,0

9
7

A
F

3
0

0
0

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
-1

4
3

,3
7

1
-3

7
,5

3
9

.0
0

1
0

5
,8

3
2

-2
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

5
,8

3
2

1
0

5
,8

3
2

A
F

4
0

0
0

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 T
o

ta
l

-6
6

,5
8

7
,5

7
4

-7
1

,7
9

4
,2

1
4

.9
6

-5
,2

0
6

,6
4

1
-6

,9
2

2
,2

3
4

1
,7

1
5

,5
9

3
-7

5
0

,0
0

0
-5

,9
5

6
,6

4
1

A
F

5
0

0
0

 C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

 T
o

ta
l

1
,4

4
6

,3
1

8
0

-1
,4

4
6

,3
1

8
0

-1
,4

4
6

,3
1

8
-1

,4
4

6
,3

1
8

A
F

6
0

0
0

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 S

y
s

te
m

s
 T

o
ta

l
-9

3
0

,6
3

0
-9

0
1

,3
3

3
.0

0
2

9
,2

9
7

7
2

7
2

8
,5

7
0

-1
0

5
,0

0
0

-7
5

,7
0

3

A
F

7
0

0
0

 A
s

s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

o
ta

l
4

6
1

,6
0

3
2

0
9

,4
2

2
.0

0
-2

5
2

,1
8

1
-4

5
3

,8
2

0
2

0
1

,6
3

9
-1

5
0

,0
0

0
-4

0
2

,1
8

1

A
F

8
0

0
0

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
R

 &
 O

D
 T

o
ta

l
-1

4
6

,3
5

0
-6

0
,6

2
1

.0
0

8
5

,7
2

9
4

6
2

0
5

3
9

,5
2

4
-2

,5
0

0
8

3
,2

2
9

A
G

2
0

0
0

 E
x

c
h

e
q

u
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 T

o
ta

l
2

,5
3

6
,8

5
0

1
,7

9
8

,7
2

0
.0

0
-7

3
8

,1
3

0
-5

6
7

,7
2

7
-1

7
0

,4
0

3
-5

8
7

,6
4

0
-1

,3
2

5
,7

7
0

A
L

1
0

0
0

 L
e

g
a

l 
&

 D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c

 S
v

s
 T

o
ta

l
2

,4
1

9
,5

2
0

2
,3

2
3

,8
7

6
.0

0
-9

5
,6

4
4

-1
6

4
,7

3
3

6
9

,0
8

9
-3

1
,0

4
0

-1
2

6
,6

8
4

A
L

2
0

0
0

 T
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 A
g

e
n

d
a

 T
o

ta
l

-2
,4

0
4

,1
3

0
-2

,4
0

4
,1

3
0

.0
0

0
0

0
-1

,5
0

6
,8

8
5

-1
,5

0
6

,8
8

5

A
F

0
0

0
0

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 T
o

ta
l

-6
2

,8
6

1
,4

0
4

-7
0

,3
4

6
,3

6
2

.9
6

-7
,4

8
4

,9
5

9
-8

,3
2

8
,4

7
6

8
4

3
,5

1
7

-3
,1

3
3

,0
6

5
-1

0
,6

1
8

,0
2

4

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

1
7

2
,7

8
4

,2
9

7
1

6
5

,5
5

9
,0

3
9

.7
1

-7
,2

2
5

,2
5

8
-7

,4
8

3
,3

8
0

2
5

8
,1

2
2

-1
0

,2
8

9
,1

8
9

-1
7

,5
1

4
,4

4
7

Page 263



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

A
0
0
0
0
0

T
o

ta
l

(7
,2

2
5
,2

5
7
)

(7
,2

2
5
,2

5
7
)

(7
,4

8
3
,9

4
4
)

2
5
8
,6

8
7

1
,1

4
2
,9

2
9

  
 A

B
0
0
0
0

C
u

lt
u

re
, 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

4
6
,5

8
9
,5

8
2

4
6
,2

8
6
,6

5
0

(3
0
2
,9

3
2
)

2
7
8
,6

8
9

(5
8
1
,6

2
0
)

2
7
0
,1

4
2

  
  

  
A

B
1
0
0
0

C
u

lt
u

re
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

1
4
,6

6
2
,5

7
1

1
4
,3

9
2
,0

6
4

(2
7
0
,5

0
7
)

(6
7
,7

9
0
)

(2
0
2
,7

1
7
)

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ru
d

e
n

t 
a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 f
ro

m
 C

&
L

 

m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

, 
o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o

n
s
 w

h
y
 t

h
e
re

 

w
a
s
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 w

a
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
te

 

a
n

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
rg

in
g

 o
f 

g
ro

u
n

d
s
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
(H

R
A

).

L
a
te

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 

£
2
1
5
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

G
ro

u
n

d
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 c

o
s
ts

.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

1
0
4
0

In
d
o
o
r 

S
p
o
rt

s
 &

 R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

2
,4

9
7
,9

4
0

2
,5

4
0
,5

0
0

4
2
,5

6
0

7
6
,3

7
4

(3
3
,8

1
4
)

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
3
k
) 

fo
r 

R
o
m

fo
rd

 I
c
e

R
in

k
 a

n
d
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 b

ill
s
 (

1
7
k
) 

fo
r 

R
o
m

fo
rd

 I
c
e
 

R
in

k
, 

w
it
h
 n

o
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t,

 a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 b

ill
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 1

4
 o

f 
£
2
3
k
.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

1
0
5
0

P
a
rk

s
 &

 O
u
td

o
o
r 

S
p
o
rt

s
2
,9

2
4
,0

2
0

3
,1

0
8
,5

5
4

1
8
4
,5

3
4

7
3
,5

3
2

1
1
1
,0

0
2

In
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

, 
th

e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 w

h
y
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

e
re

 p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 

s
a
la

ri
e
s
.

T
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
o
n
e
 o

ff
 p

a
rk

s
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

1
0
7
0

H
is

to
ri
c
 B

u
ild

in
g
s

9
4
,2

6
0

1
2
8
,5

5
3

3
4
,2

9
3

2
8
,3

2
1

5
,9

7
2

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

w
o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 a
t 

b
o
th

 

B
re

to
n
s
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 C

o
ro

n
a
ti
o
n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 £

3
1
k
.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

1
0
8
0

G
ro

u
n
d
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 D

S
O

1
,1

9
9
,5

0
0

7
3
8
,5

6
9

(4
6
0
,9

3
1
)

(1
6
1
,4

4
4
)

(2
9
9
,4

8
7
)

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 a
n
d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 l
a
n
d
.

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 

la
te

 a
n
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 l
a
n
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

1
0
9
0

S
o
c
ia

l 
H

a
lls

 &
 C

o
m

m
 C

tr
s

3
4
,2

6
0

6
,3

8
9

(2
7
,8

7
1
)

(2
0
,6

5
8
)

(7
,2

1
3
)

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 M

e
a
ls

 o
n
 

W
h
e
e
ls

, 
a
d
d
it
o
n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 a

n
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

a
y
 

o
u
t 

a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 b

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

1
1
3
5

P
o
lic

y
, 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

3
7
4
,6

6
0

3
4
5
,5

7
5

(2
9
,0

8
5
)

(1
,3

8
0
)

(2
7
,7

0
5
)

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

is
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 a

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 f
o
r 

s
a
la

ry
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 o

n
e
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
t 

in
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

.

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

is
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

a
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
a
m

 f
o
r 

s
a
la

ry
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 

o
n
e
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
t 

in
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

. 
It

 w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 

th
a
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
t 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
1
5
0

M
u
s
ic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
7
4
,8

0
0

2
2
2
,8

3
5

(5
1
,9

6
5
)

(4
0
,2

5
3
)

(1
1
,7

1
2
)

S
a
la

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
; 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

h
o
u
rs

 s
o
ld

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

; 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 £
1
0
k
 t

o
 

fu
n
d
 s

o
ft
w

a
re

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 i
n
 1

4
/1

5

  
  

  
A

B
2
0
0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 &
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

3
,7

0
6
,3

5
4

3
,9

2
1
,4

4
5

2
1
5
,0

9
1

2
1
4
,3

4
1

7
5
0

D
e
fe

rr
e
d

 d
e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 s
a
v
in

g
s

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

Page 264



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
B

2
3
3
0

C
R

M
4
,0

4
1
,8

6
6

3
,9

1
8
,9

8
7

(1
2
2
,8

7
9
)

(1
2
2
,6

5
9
)

(2
2
0
)

O
u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
. 

T
h
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 s

a
la

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
. 

P
o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 l
e
ft
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
e
n
d
in

g
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 b

a
c
k
fi
ll 

w
a
s
 o

n
ly

 p
u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 a

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

2
3
6
0

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
(3

3
5
,5

1
2
)

2
,4

5
8

3
3
7
,9

7
0

3
3
7
,0

0
0

9
7
0

O
u
tt

u
rn

 2
0
1
3
-1

4
: 

C
S

 d
e
fe

rr
in

g
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

  
  

  
A

B
5
0
0
0

S
tr

e
e
tc

a
re

1
9
,7

9
8
,8

7
9

1
9
,6

4
2
,5

6
5

(1
5
6
,3

1
4
)

(3
1
8
)

(1
5
5
,9

9
6
)

7
2
,6

6
3

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

 v
e
ry

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 o

u
t 

tu
rn

 p
o

s
it

io
n

, 

re
fl

e
c
ti

n
g

 u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
s
 o

n
 G

ri
tt

in
g

 d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

m
il
d

 w
in

te
r,

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
s
 o

n
 d

ra
in

a
g

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 w

e
t 

w
in

te
r,

 u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
s
 o

n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

ro
a
d

s
, 

a
n

d
 f

in
a
ll
y
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 r

e
a
c
ti

v
e
 

m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 w

e
t 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

a
d

d
in

g
to

p
o

t 
h

o
le

p
ro

b
le

m
.

C
lo

s
e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

f 
c
o

s
ts

 t
o

 a
id

 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 p
o

s
it

io
n

, 
a
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 g

ri
tt

in
g

, 
d

u
e
 t

o
 w

in
te

r 

w
e
a
th

e
r.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
4
0
0

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 R

o
a
d
s
 B

 &
 T

S
6
5
9
,8

1
0

4
6
9
,4

9
7

(1
9
0
,3

1
3
)

(1
1
9
,9

2
5
)

(7
0
,3

8
8
)

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 

d
e
la

y
s
 b

y
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
b
ri
d
g
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 k

n
o
c
k
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 l
im

it
e
d
 i
n
p
u
t 

to
 

th
e
 b

ri
d
g
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 

is
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 w

e
 w

e
re

 s
ti
ll 

in
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 

th
e
 b

ri
d
g
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 

th
e
 h

o
p
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 

s
o
m

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 a

ft
e
r 

re
s
o
lv

in
g
 t

h
e
ir
 

s
ta

ff
 i
s
s
u
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

th
is

 d
id

 n
o
t 

p
ro

v
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
4
5
0

O
n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

P
a
rk

in
g

(2
9
,6

3
5
)

(5
5
,0

5
1
)

(2
5
,4

1
6
)

1
,1

9
4

(2
6
,6

1
0
)

F
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

, 
s
m

a
ll,

 l
a
te

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 -

 h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t.

F
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

, 
s
m

a
ll,

 l
a
te

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 -

 h
ig

h
 

v
a
lu

e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
6
9
0

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 R

o
a
d
s
 T

e
c
h

(9
0
,8

5
3
)

(1
2
,0

1
1
)

7
8
,8

4
2

6
7
,3

3
6

1
1
,5

0
6

In
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 f
ill

 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 m

e
a
n
t 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
/s

u
rp

lu
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
7
0
0

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 R

o
a
d
s

8
,5

0
7
,7

3
7

8
,3

6
6
,8

4
6

(1
4
0
,8

9
0
)

(1
5
7
,4

3
9
)

1
6
,5

4
9

3
8
,5

0
0

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w

e
t 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 1

3
-1

4
 w

in
te

r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 m

u
c
h
 l
e
s
s
 

w
in

te
r 

g
ri
tt

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

th
is

 h
a
s
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 a

 £
1
0
8
k
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

in
 t

h
is

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
7
3
0

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
s
t 

R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 A
c
c
o
u
n
t

(6
7
0
,5

4
0
)

(3
2
9
,9

9
8
)

3
4
0
,5

4
2

3
6
8
,2

4
7

(2
7
,7

0
5
)

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 e

xt
e
rn

a
lly

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 s

u
b
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 i
n
 a

n
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 

to
 c

le
a
r 

th
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
 o

rd
e
rs

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
7
4
0

P
u
b
lic

 C
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
s

2
1
9
,0

5
0

1
6
4
,0

1
1

(5
5
,0

3
9
)

(6
0
,4

4
5
)

5
,4

0
6

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 c

re
d
it

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
7
6
0

S
tr

e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
4
,8

3
6
,5

5
2

4
,7

5
8
,4

6
0

(7
8
,0

9
2
)

(4
0
,2

4
7
)

(3
7
,8

4
5
)

3
3
,4

6
0

In
c
o
m

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 £

2
3
k
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
2
8
k
 -

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
v
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
ti
n
g
 o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

R
o
a
d
s
 -

 S
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
7
7
0

S
tr

e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

1
,4

1
6
,7

3
9

1
,4

7
8
,7

6
6

6
2
,0

2
8

2
0
,2

1
5

4
1
,8

1
3

F
in

a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

s
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

in
te

r 
s
to

rm
s

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 w

in
te

r 

s
to

rm
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

te
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
4
0
0
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
d
a
n
g
e
ro

u
s
 c

o
lu

m
n
s

Page 265



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
B

5
7
8
0

S
tr

e
e
tc

a
re

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

5
3
9
,9

3
1

3
6
2
,1

8
2

(1
7
7
,7

4
9
)

(1
7
3
,6

6
5
)

(4
,0

8
5
)

U
n
id

e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

fr
e
e
z
e
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 

re
s
tr

u
c
fu

re
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

  
  

  
A

B
6
0
0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
2
1
3
,4

2
2

1
5
5
,6

0
6

(5
7
,8

1
6
)

(3
4
,9

1
1
)

(2
2
,9

0
6
)

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 o

v
e
ra

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

  
  

  
  

 A
B

6
2
0
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 H

o
ld

in
g
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t

2
1
3
,4

2
2

1
5
5
,6

0
6

(5
7
,8

1
6
)

(3
4
,9

1
1
)

(2
2
,9

0
6
)

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 o

v
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
in

c
o
m

e

  
  

  
A

B
9
0
0
0

P
o

li
c
y
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

1
,7

9
3
,8

8
0

1
,5

5
7
,0

3
3

(2
3
6
,8

4
7
)

(2
4
1
,5

6
9
)

4
,7

2
2

U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
M

T
F

S
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

m
a
d

e
 e

a
rl

y
 a

n
d

 h
o

ld
in

g
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
a
c
a
n

c
ie

s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
u

tr
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 

U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 t

o
 g

o
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 w

id
e
r 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 

p
o

s
it

io
n

.
  

  
  

  
 A

B
7
1
4
0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y

1
,0

4
2
,3

0
0

8
7
8
,9

8
1

(1
6
3
,3

1
9
)

(1
9
0
,7

9
4
)

2
7
,4

7
5

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 a

c
h
ie

v
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

M
T

F
S

 s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

h
o
ld

in
g
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

in
c
o
m

e
.

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 i
n
 

E
n
e
rg

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

p
ro

je
c
t 

w
o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
.

  
  

  
  

 A
L
1
3
4
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
7
5
1
,5

8
0

6
7
8
,0

5
2

(7
3
,5

2
8
)

(5
0
,7

7
5
)

(2
2
,7

5
3
)

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
a
lis

in
g
 M

T
F

S
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 e

a
rl
y
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
u
tu

re
, 

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 e

g
. 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

p
e
n
d
.

Page 266



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
A

F
9
0
0
0

R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

3
,5

9
2
,0

1
5

3
,8

0
4
,9

6
5

2
1
2
,9

5
0

4
2
3
,0

5
9

(2
1
0
,1

0
9
)

1
9
7
,4

7
9

O
v
e
ra

ll
 £

2
1
2
k
 R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 

c
o

m
p

ri
s
e
s
:

  
1
) 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
£
1
3
0
k
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 £
2
1
2
k
 u

n
d

e
ra

c
h

ie
v
e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 

o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 £

4
0
k
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

n
 t

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

n
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
/ 

a
g

e
n

c
y
/o

v
e
rt

im
e
 (

£
3
4
k
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

) 
p

lu
s
 £

8
k
 

s
u

n
d

ry
 o

th
e
r

  
2
) 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 £
9
5
k
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

£
1
5
5
k
 o

v
e
r 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e
 -

 m
a
in

ly
 

M
a
jo

rs
 -

 o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 £

8
7
k
 a

g
e
n

c
y
 t

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 l
e
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

£
6
0
K

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 S

a
v
in

g
s
, 

£
2
1
k
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
, 

£
2
0
k
 

L
e
g

a
l,
 £

1
9
k
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

o
s
ta

g
e
, 

£
1
5
k
 

a
d

v
e
rt

is
in

g
, 

£
2
0
k
 e

x
te

rn
a
ll
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n

d
 £

8
k
 o

th
e
r

  
3
) 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 £

7
0
k
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
d

e
a
le

rs
 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 r

e
g

im
e
 a

n
d

 

o
v
e
r-

a
c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
o

th
e
r 

li
c
e
n

s
in

g
 i
n

c
o

m
e

  
4
) 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 £

2
6
k
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 -
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 l
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e

  
5
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 –

 £
4
5
k
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 1
. 

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n

 a
n

d
 g

ra
n

t 
ti

m
in

g
 

is
s
u

e
s
, 

 a
n

d
 2

. 
n

e
t 

o
f 

in
c
o

m
e
  

fo
r 

T
fL

 g
ra

n
t 

n
o

t 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 b

u
t 

in
c
o

m
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
4
/1

5

  
C

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

£
2
1
2
k
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 D

e
li
v
e
ry

 

G
t

h
b

d
t

t
P

l
i

(£
2
1
0
K

) 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

a
t 

P
1
1

(£
1
3
5
K

) 
A

B
3
4
2
0
 B

e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n

t 
- 

D
e
m

a
n

d
 l
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

in
c
o

m
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

(£
1
1
0
K

) 
A

B
9
4
5
0
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
- 

D
e
m

a
n

d
 l
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
in

c
o

m
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

£
8
0
K

 -
 A

B
7
6
6
0
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

1
3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 1
4
/1

5

(£
4
5
k
) 

- 
O

th
e
r 

It
e
m

s

  
  

  
  

 A
B

3
4
2
0

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 &
 C

e
m

s
(6

8
8
,8

4
0
)

(7
1
5
,3

1
2
)

(2
6
,4

7
2
)

1
0
8
,1

6
3

(1
3
4
,6

3
5
)

D
e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 -

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

£
1
3
4
k
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 £

1
4
3
k
 D

e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
e
re

a
v
m

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
/ 

£
9
k
 o

th
e
r

  
  

  
  

 A
B

3
6
2
0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

1
,7

8
5
,6

6
2

1
,7

1
5
,5

1
6

(7
0
,1

4
6
)

(6
1
,7

5
4
)

(8
,3

9
2
)

3
8
,0

0
0

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
d
e
a
le

rs
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g

re
g
im

e
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
r-

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
o
th

e
r 

lic
e
n
s
in

g
 

in
c
o
m

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll

  
  

  
  

 A
B

7
6
6
0

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
n
in

g
4
9
8
,4

1
0

5
4
4
,1

3
4

4
5
,7

2
4

(3
5
,1

1
4
)

8
0
,8

3
8

F
in

a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 f
in

a
l 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

G
ra

n
t 

a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f
e
e
s
, 

n
e
t 

o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 

fo
r 

T
fL

 g
ra

n
t 

n
o
t 

ra
is

e
d
 i
n
 1

3
/1

4
 -

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
, 

s
o
 l
a
tt

e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

re
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 f
in

a
l 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 

a
n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

fe
e
s
, 

n
e
t 

o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 f
o
r 

T
fL

 

g
ra

n
t 

n
o
t 

ra
is

e
d
 i
n
 1

3
/1

4
 -

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
, 

s
o
 l
a
tt

e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t

Page 267



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
F

9
4
5
0

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
S

v
s

7
2
1
,0

2
0

9
4
6
,6

0
4

2
2
5
,5

8
4

3
3
5
,3

8
4

(1
0
9
,8

0
0
)

1
2
7
,0

0
0

£
2
2
5
K

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
: 

1
) 

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
£
1
3
0
K

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
  

m
a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 

£
2
1
2
K

 u
n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
/ 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 £

4
0
K

 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

n
 

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 A

g
e
n
c
y
/O

v
e
rt

im
e
 (

£
3
4
k
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
)/

 -
£
8
K

 

    
o
th

e
r

2
) 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 £

9
5
K

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
£
1
5
5
k
 

o
v
e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
, 

m
a
in

ly
 M

a
jo

rs
, 

o
ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 £

8
7
K

 A
g
e
n
c
y
 t

o
 s

u
s
ta

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

£
6
8
K

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

s
s
u
re

s
.

(£
1
0
9
K

) 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 

  
fr

o
m

 :

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
(£

5
0
K

) 
=

 (
£
4
3
K

) 

  
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
/ 

(£
7
K

) 
o
th

e
r

P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

£
6
0
K

) 
=

 (
£
5
8
K

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
c
o
m

e
/(

£
2
K

) 
o
th

e
r

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
1
0

P
H

 -
 N

o
n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(6
,6

5
1
,4

6
0
)

(6
,3

1
8
,8

3
2
)

3
3
2
,6

2
8

4
7
4
,4

6
3

(1
4
1
,8

3
5
)

F
in

a
l 
1
3
/1

4
 P

H
 g

ra
n
t 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 £

1
,0

0
8
,6

7
6
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

H
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
. 

T
h
e
 1

3
/1

4
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 w

e
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 o

f 
s
p
e
n
d
, 

d
u
e
 t

o
 

P
H

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 a

 n
e
w

 a
re

a
 o

f 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
1
4
/1

5
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 

1
3
/1

4
.

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 l
in

e
s
 a

s
 

p
e
r 

th
e
 P

H
 g

ra
n
t,

 a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 

fu
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
2
0

P
H

 -
 S

e
xu

a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h

2
,4

7
1
,0

0
0

2
,1

3
2
,0

4
7

(3
3
8
,9

5
3
)

(3
6
8
,3

4
9
)

2
9
,3

9
6

A
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 f
o
r 

s
e
xu

a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
 

w
a
s
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
. 

T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 

c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

d
e
m

a
n
d
-l
e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

o
u
t 

o
f 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 

to
 d

a
te

 (
1
3
/1

4
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
 )

. 
T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 o

u
tu

rn
 

w
a
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 t

o
 G

U
M

 n
o
n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 n

o
n
-c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 t

o
 a

v
o
id

 a
 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 s

u
rg

e
 i
n
 1

4
/1

5
.

A
c
tu

a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
n
o
n
-c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 a

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 w

a
s
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
u
te

 t
ru

s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
d
 n

o
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

in
v
o
ic

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
, 

d
id

 s
o
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
3
0

P
H

 -
 N

H
S

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
2
7
5
,0

0
0

2
0
1
,8

2
1

(7
3
,1

7
9
)

(6
5
,0

0
0
)

(8
,1

7
9
)

T
h
e
 o

ff
e
r 

a
n
d
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
G

P
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

C
h
e
c
k
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
. 

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 
N

H
S

 C
h
e
c
k
s
 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 y

e
a
r.

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
4
0

P
H

 -
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

5
6
,5

0
0

5
6
,5

0
0

5
6
,5

0
0

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 i
n
it
ia

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

c
h
a
rg

e
 w

a
s
 

m
a
d
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
P

u
b
lic

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 

m
a
d
e
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 l
in

e
s
 a

s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 P

H
 g

ra
n
t 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
5
0

P
H

 -
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

3
0
,0

0
0

6
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

(3
0
,0

0
0
)

6
0
,0

0
0

C
o
s
ts

 o
f 
N

C
M

P
 a

re
 p

a
id

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

n
u
rs

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
. 

 A
n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
a
t 

re
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 l
in

e
.

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 

m
a
d
e
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

N
C

M
P

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
s
ts

 

th
a
t 

a
re

 i
n
v
o
ic

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 5

-1
9
 b

lo
c
k
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

Page 268



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
6
0

P
H

 -
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 A

d
v
ic

e
3
1
8
,3

6
0

3
1
8
,3

6
0

3
1
8
,3

6
0

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 i
n
it
ia

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 P

u
b
lic

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 A

d
v
ic

e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

c
h
a
rg

e
 

w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 P

H
 t

e
a
m

's
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 C

C
G

 r
e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 J

S
N

A
, 

fa
lls

 p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 

e
tc

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 

m
a
d
e
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 l
in

e
s
 a

s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 P

H
 g

ra
n
t 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
7
0

P
H

 -
 O

b
e
s
it
y

1
9
0
,0

0
0

9
0
,6

0
0

(9
9
,4

0
0
)

(7
8
,0

0
0
)

(2
1
,4

0
0
)

T
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 1

3
/1

4
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 v

ia
 G

P
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 M

E
N

D
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 f
it
 f
o
r 

b
ir
th

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 f
a
v
o
u
r 

o
f 
a
 w

id
e
r 

m
o
re

 h
o
lis

ti
c
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 1

4
/1

5
.

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
8
0

P
H

 -
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y

1
0
0
,0

0
0

6
6
,5

5
7

(3
3
,4

4
3
)

1
1
,0

0
0

(4
4
,4

4
3
)

A
n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 

1
2
/1

3
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

C
T

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 P

H
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

P
A

R
S

 w
a
s
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 1

3
/1

4
 P

H
 G

ra
n
t 

h
e
n
c
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

1
3
/1

4
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 c

o
s
t.

P
a
rt

 1
3
/1

4
 P

A
R

S
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 P

H
 g

ra
n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

P
C

T
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
.

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
0
9
0

P
H

 -
 S

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 M

is
u
s
e

2
,3

9
4
,0

0
0

1
,7

2
2
,4

6
9

(6
7
1
,5

3
1
)

(4
8
8
,1

4
9
)

(1
8
3
,3

8
2
)

In
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 (

P
B

R
) 

m
o
d
e
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

A
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ru
g
s
 a

n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 1

4
/1

5
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 

 1
4
/1

5
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 1

3
/1

4
 o

u
tt

u
rn

.

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 j
o
u
rn

a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
M

O
P

A
C

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

(9
6
K

).
 S

o
m

e
 t

ie
r 

4
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 1

3
/1

4
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
 u

n
ti
l 
1
4
/1

5
. 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

to
 C

R
I 

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d

  
  

  
  

 A
C

1
1
2
0

P
H

 -
 M

is
c
. 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
3
8
,0

0
0

6
0
4
,1

5
6

4
6
6
,1

5
6

7
,0

3
2

4
5
9
,1

2
4

F
in

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e

1
3
/1

4
 c

h
ild

re
n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r.
  

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
t 

P
1
1
 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 5

-1
9
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

lin
e
. 

 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 v

e
rs

u
s
 

D
H

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
a
s
 v

ir
e
d
 t

o
 

th
e
 m

is
c
. 

p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

F
in

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 

e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 1

3
/1

4
 c

h
ild

re
n
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r.
  

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
r 

a
t 

P
1
1
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

5
-1

9
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

lin
e
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 v

e
rs

u
s
 D

H
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
a
s
 

v
ir
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

is
c
. 

p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

  
 A

D
0
0
0
0

C
h

il
d

re
n

, 
A

d
u

lt
s
 &

 H
o

u
s
in

g
1
8
8
,9

5
5
,5

1
4

1
8
9
,5

1
8
,1

4
8

5
6
2
,6

3
4

5
5
8
,4

5
3

1
9
,5

6
9

8
5
0
,0

7
9

  
  

  
A

B
3
0
0
0

H
o

m
e
s
 &

 H
o

u
s
in

g
2
,4

4
7
,6

5
7

2
,4

8
6
,4

5
2

3
8
,7

9
5

(3
,9

5
7
)

4
2
,7

5
2

N
e
t 

v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

m
p

ty
 

H
o

m
e
s
 t

e
a
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 t
o

 

c
a
p

it
a
l

S
o

m
e
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 t

o
 c

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o

u
ld

 

n
o

t 
b

e
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

ty
 h

o
m

e
s
 

te
a
m

.
  

  
  

  
 A

B
3
8
6
0

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

id
 &

 A
d
v
ic

e
5
1
4
,8

8
0

3
7
6
,1

9
9

(1
3
8
,6

8
1
)

(1
,2

7
3
)

(1
3
7
,4

0
8
)

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
ly

; 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

w
a
s
 p

o
s
te

d
 h

e
re

, 
b
u
t 

s
p
e
n
t 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
ly

; 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

w
a
s
 p

o
s
te

d
 h

e
re

, 

b
u
t 

s
p
e
n
t 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

Page 269



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
B

3
8
8
0

S
tr

a
te

g
y

1
,7

5
9
,3

7
7

1
,9

3
1
,3

9
4

1
7
2
,0

1
7

(2
,6

8
4
)

1
7
4
,7

0
1

N
e
t 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 E

m
p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s
 

te
a
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

E
m

p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s
 t

e
a
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 g

ra
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

G
ra

n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

o
s
te

d
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

.

  
  

  
A

D
9
0
0
0

M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
3
,2

2
3
,6

7
0

3
,1

5
3
,8

2
2

(6
9
,8

4
8
)

5
1
,4

7
4

(1
2
1
,3

2
2
)

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
r 

e
s
ti

m
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 d
o

m
ic

il
ia

ry
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 n

u
rs

in
g

, 

h
o

w
e
v
e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

n
c
il
in

g
 

c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g

e
s
, 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

h
e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

, 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
n

 e
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

u
n

d
e
r 

s
p

e
n

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
m

a
ll
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 i
n

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l,
 S

e
c
ti

o
n

 7
5
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
 h

o
m

e
s
 

c
o

s
t 

c
e
n

tr
e
s
.

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 

o
v
e
r 

e
s
ti

m
a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 d
o

m
ic

il
ia

ry
 c

a
re

 

a
n

d
 n

u
rs

in
g

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

n
c
il
in

g
 c

a
re

 

p
a
c
k
a
g

e
s
, 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

h
e
re

 

id
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

, 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
n

 e
n

d
 o

f 

y
e
a
r 

u
n

d
e
r 

s
p

e
n

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
m

a
ll
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 i
n

 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l,
 S

e
c
ti

o
n

 7
5
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

g
ro

u
p

 h
o

m
e
s
 c

o
s
t 

c
e
n

tr
e
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

6
2
1
0

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 N

e
e
d
s

3
,2

2
3
,6

7
0

3
,1

5
3
,8

2
2

(6
9
,8

4
8
)

5
1
,4

7
4

(1
2
1
,3

2
2
)

T
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a
re

 a
n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 c

a
re

 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
, 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

h
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 

a
n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
m

a
ll 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l,
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 7

5
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
s
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
.

T
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 

o
v
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a
re

 

a
n
d
 n

u
rs

in
g
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

n
g
 c

a
re

 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
, 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

h
e
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
m

a
ll 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l,
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 7

5
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
s
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
.

  
  

  
A

E
2
0
0
0

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 A

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t
9
0
,7

6
7
,1

8
2

9
0
,7

3
6
,5

6
6

(3
0
,6

1
6
)

(2
2
,9

2
2
)

7
,6

9
4

5
6
1
,9

6
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

 s
ti

ll
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n

 i
s
s
u

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

tw
o

 m
a
in

 f
a
c
to

rs
 -

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 d
e
m

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
a
x
i 

c
o

s
ts

 b
u

t 
th

is
 o

v
e
r 

s
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 

a
s
 m

u
c
h

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

a
rl

y
 M

T
F

S
 a

n
d

 

a
n

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
s
 f

ro
m

 v
a
c
a
n

c
ie

s
. 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
 i
n

to
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
 f

o
r 

S
E

N
 

R
e
fo

rm
 g

ra
n

t 
o

f 
£
7
5
k
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

fu
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
£
1
6
1
k
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
0
7
0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

1
,6

1
6
,2

0
8

1
,3

0
6
,9

5
9

(3
0
9
,2

4
9
)

(3
4
3
,9

7
0
)

(3
4
,7

2
1
)

E
a
rl
y
 M

T
F

S
 f
ro

m
 C

a
te

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

h
e
ld

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
n
y
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 1

3
/1

4
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 o
n
e
 o

ff
 s

a
v
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

s
in

c
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 f
lu

c
tu

a
ti
n
g
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
m

a
n
d
. 

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
0
9
0

A
d
u
lt
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

1
4
2
,3

9
6

1
8
1
,6

9
3

3
9
,2

9
7

3
9
,2

9
7

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ra
n
t

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

v
a
ra

ia
n
c
e
 

is
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

g
ra

n
t

Page 270



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
1
0
0

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

M
g
t 

T
e
a
m

5
3
7
,1

9
9

3
9
9
,7

9
9

(1
3
7
,4

0
0
)

(1
3
7
,1

6
9
)

(2
3
1
)

A
ft
e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
, 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 h

e
ld

 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 

in
-y

e
a
r 

s
a
v
in

g
 o

n
ly

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 o

ff
s
e
t 

th
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

.

S
E

N
D

 R
e
fo

rm
 G

ra
n
t 

F
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
7
5
,0

0
0
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
ta

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 n

e
xt

 y
e
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

n
e
w

 w
a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
1
6
0

H
IA

S
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

7
5
3
,5

1
4

7
2
7
,1

6
1

(2
6
,3

5
3
)

(1
8
,3

3
3
)

(8
,0

2
0
)

T
h
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 t

e
a
m

 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a

 p
o
s
t 

in
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 

p
a
rt

 f
u
n
d
e
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
1
8
0

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 L

A
C

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

8
9
2
,3

6
5

8
2
6
,2

2
9

(6
6
,1

3
6
)

(4
0
,4

3
6
)

(2
5
,7

0
0
)

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

im
e
 l
a
g
 i
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

T
h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 p
e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
1
9
0

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
8
1
2
,2

9
0

7
0
3
,3

0
5

(1
0
8
,9

8
5
)

(1
6
,8

6
0
)

(9
2
,1

2
5
)

F
e
w

e
r 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

g
ra

n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

e
tt

in
g
s
 i
n
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 t

h
a
n
 

in
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 s
e
tt

in
g
s
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 

le
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 f
o
r 

p
a
y
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 

n
o
t 

b
e
in

g
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

1
.

T
h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 

s
in

c
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 f
o
r 

p
a
y
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

1
1
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

to
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 s
e
tt

in
g
s
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

2
5
6
0

P
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

8
3
2
,5

4
4

9
0
4
,2

8
6

7
1
,7

4
2

6
0
,1

3
6

1
1
,6

0
6

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
 r

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 

fo
r 

a
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
3
5
0

S
E

N
1
,8

1
0
,6

8
0

2
,3

8
5
,6

3
1

5
7
4
,9

5
1

5
5
0
,6

7
0

2
4
,2

8
1

5
6
1
,9

6
0

D
u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 M

T
F

S
 s

a
v
in

g
 t

h
is

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
S

E
N

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
s
 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 g

ro
w

 

g
o
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 P

T
S

 

c
o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
m

a
in

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 1

2
/1

3
 a

n
d
 y

e
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 a

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll.

 

W
o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
, 

a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
 i
t 

w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

W
o
rk

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 S

E
N

D
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 B

ill
. 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t

o
 e

xp
lo

re
 

th
e
 m

a
in

 d
ri
v
e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d

  
  

  
  

 A
E

7
6
6
0

1
4
-1

9
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

3
8
9
,4

6
0

3
5
7
,6

2
8

(3
1
,8

3
2
)

(3
1
,8

3
2
)

F
in

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d

F
in

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d

Page 271



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
A

E
3
0
0
0

C
h

il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
8
,3

1
0
,1

8
9

2
8
,4

9
5
,3

6
1

1
8
5
,1

7
2

2
9
8
,6

5
7

(1
1
3
,4

8
4
)

3
0
0
,0

0
0

T
h

e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 m

a
in

ly
 a

ri
s
e
s
 f

ro
m

 C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
 m

o
re

 

e
x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 a

g
e
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
ri

m
 s

ta
ff

 b
e
c
a
u

s
e
 

o
f 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
d

if
fi

c
u

lt
ie

s
.

T
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
s
 h

ig
h

 a
s
 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
t 

p
e
ri

o
d

 1
1
 d

u
e
 

to
 t

h
re

e
 m

a
in

 f
a
c
to

rs
: 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

le
g

a
l 
e
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 i
n

c
u

rr
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

c
a
re

 p
ro

c
e
e
d

in
g

s
 w

a
s
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n

 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 

b
e
in

g
 a

d
jo

u
rn

e
d

 i
n

to
 1

4
/1

5
 f

o
r 

fi
n

a
l 

h
e
a
ri

n
g

s
,t

h
e
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 

T
e
a
m

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fe

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

s
e
c
o

n
d

 h
a
lf

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
e
re

  
le

s
s
 

th
a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 

w
o

rk
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e
s
 

w
e
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 f

o
r 

le
s
s
 t

h
a
n

  
th

e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
q

u
o

te
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
3
8
0

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

(1
5
2
,5

3
0
)

(1
1
9
,6

1
6
)

3
2
,9

1
4

9
,1

6
3

2
3
,7

5
1

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 f
in

a
l 
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 f
o
r 

o
ld

 

y
o
u
th

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

lo
s
e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 o

n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
3
9
0

C
h
ild

re
n
 W

it
h
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s

3
,5

4
6
,3

8
3

3
,3

7
2
,8

1
1

(1
7
3
,5

7
2
)

(1
6
1
,4

9
4
)

(1
2
,0

7
8
)

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
n
 b

o
th

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
O

n
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
rs

o
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 C
a
re

 O
rd

e
r 

w
h
o
 w

a
s
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t

o
 n

e
e
d
 a

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
t 

re
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 a

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
m

u
c
h
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r.

 S
o
m

e
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
n
 u

p
 o

v
e
rn

ig
h
t 

s
h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
re

d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
8
3
0

E
xi

s
ti
n
g
 P

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

6
,4

1
0
,4

1
0

6
,6

6
6
,7

0
9

2
5
6
,2

9
9

2
6
9
,1

7
8

(1
2
,8

7
9
)

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 h

ig
h
 

c
o
s
t 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
8
4
0

L
e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e

1
,9

4
8
,6

6
6

2
,0

2
2
,2

0
3

7
3
,5

3
7

6
0
,6

1
1

1
2
,9

2
6

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

d
u
e
 t

o
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 

re
tu

rn
 h

o
m

e
 a

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
8
5
0

C
IC

 &
 L

iv
in

g
 A

w
a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 -

 S
ta

ff
 C

o
s
ts

1
,2

3
6
,2

7
5

1
,2

6
3
,2

7
1

2
6
,9

9
6

4
6
,7

3
3

(1
9
,7

3
7
)

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 

m
e
t,

 d
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
8
6
0

F
o
s
te

ri
n
g
, 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 &

 O
th

e
r 

C
o
s
ts

1
,2

0
3
,3

3
4

1
,2

5
3
,2

8
3

4
9
,9

4
9

5
9
,5

1
0

(9
,5

6
1
)

3
0
0
,0

0
0

A
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
  

b
e
in

g
 a

d
o
p
te

d
  

o
r 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

m
a
d
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 S
G

O
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
  

p
re

s
s
u
re

 t
o
 

fu
n
d
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 w

h
e
re

 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 .

 O
n
 g

o
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 i
f 
n
o
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

a
v
a
lla

b
e
l 
to

 f
u
n
d
 t

h
is

.

Page 272



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
8
7
0

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
6
5
3
,9

4
4

6
0
3
,4

2
3

(5
0
,5

2
1
)

(2
1
,6

2
1
)

(2
8
,9

0
0
)

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fe
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

b
e
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

d
u
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
.

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fe
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

b
e
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
8
9
0

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

2
,8

7
6
,2

3
4

2
,7

8
8
,9

3
4

(8
7
,3

0
0
)

(5
4
,8

4
5
)

(3
2
,4

5
5
)

T
h
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 h

a
s
 a

ri
s
e
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 

b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 d

u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

b
e
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e
 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
q
u
o
te

.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
8
9
5

E
a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

2
,0

0
2
,0

9
7

1
,9

6
6
,9

2
0

(3
5
,1

7
7
)

(2
0
,1

5
3
)

(1
5
,0

2
4
)

T
h
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 h

a
s
 a

ri
s
e
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
t 

b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

3
9
0
0

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 U

n
it

9
2
5
,3

0
8

9
8
5
,0

0
7

5
9
,6

9
9

5
7
,0

1
2

2
,6

8
7

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti
e
s
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 f
u
lf
ill

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
2
3
k
 i
s
 

a
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

o
lle

d
 o

v
e
r 

to
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1
5
 a

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

S
C

B
.

  
  

  
A

E
4
0
0
0

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

2
,0

8
3
,2

3
0

2
,0

1
7
,2

7
0

(6
5
,9

6
0
)

(6
3
,8

5
3
)

(2
,1

0
7
)

U
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 c

a
u

s
e
d

 p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n

tl
y
 b

y
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n

c
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 e
it

h
e
r 

b
e
e
n

 f
il
le

d
 o

r 
d

e
le

te
d

 b
y
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 2
8
/0

4
/2

0
1
4
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 

a
s
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 e
it

h
e
r 

n
o

t 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

/ 
o

r 
c
o

s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 l
o

w
e
r 

th
a
n

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 

e
s
ti

m
a
te

d
. 

 A
 C

a
rr

y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 R
e
q

u
e
s
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 m
a
d

e
 f

o
r 

£
4
9
k
 f

o
r 

Z
e
ro

 B
a
s
e
d

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
A

d
u

lt
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 D
a
ta

 c
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

4
4
9
0

S
C

 &
 L

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
8
8
,9

0
0

2
4
9
,9

3
0

(3
8
,9

7
0
)

(2
6
,4

5
4
)

(1
2
,5

1
6
)

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 H

o
S

 a
n
d
 P

A
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
ru

it
e
d
 t

o
.

Page 273



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
A

E
6
0
0
0

A
d

u
lt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

6
2
,1

1
9
,6

2
6

6
2
,6

2
4
,7

1
6

5
0
5
,0

9
0

2
9
9
,0

5
4

2
0
6
,0

3
6

(1
1
,8

8
1
)

T
h

e
 M

T
F

S
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 m
it

ig
a
te

d
 b

y
 o

n
e
-o

ff
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 i
n

 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 £

8
5
0
k
 C

C
G

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

R
e
a
b

le
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 £

4
7
5
k
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 

y
e
a
r 

in
c
o

m
e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

in
c
o

m
e
 r

e
c
o

n
c
il
ia

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o

 

b
e
e
n

 a
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

tr
a
n

s
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 D
A

A
T

 

o
f 

£
2
0
0
k
.D

re
y
w

o
o

d
 C

o
u

rt
 w

il
l 
b

e
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 -

 a
t 

p
re

s
e
n

t 
s
h

o
w

in
g

 i
n

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 a

ri
s
e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
y
 i
n

 

th
e
 E

x
tr

a
 C

a
re

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 f

a
c
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 w
il
l 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
d

e
ll
e
d

 e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

. 
th

e
 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 f
o

re
c
a
s
t 

a
s
 a

t 
P

1
1
 a

n
d

 

y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a
n

tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 B

a
d

 D
e
b

t 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

.

T
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 f
o

re
c
a
s
t 

a
s
 

a
t 

P
1
1
 a

n
d

 y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 d
u

e
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a
n

tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 B

a
d

 D
e
b

t 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

4
2
6
0

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
1
,8

0
3
,1

8
0

1
,6

8
3
,4

8
8

(1
1
9
,6

9
2
)

(1
0
0
,6

0
0
)

(1
9
,0

9
2
)

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 w

ill

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
in

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

c
o
s
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

4
4
0
0

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 &
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r
4
,0

0
5
,0

7
0

4
,1

9
7
,1

3
0

1
9
2
,0

6
0

1
5
1
,5

5
0

4
0
,5

1
0

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 D

re
y
w

o
o
d
 C

o
u
rt

 

p
re

s
s
u
re

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
 t

o
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

.

T
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

P
1
1
 a

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
c
h
a
rg

e
 

fr
o
m

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 

fo
re

c
a
s
te

d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

6
1
7
0

A
d
u
lt
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 T

e
a
m

2
4
,2

3
5
,9

0
8

2
4
,5

4
8
,0

7
8

3
1
2
,1

7
0

1
3
2
,1

0
9

1
8
0
,0

6
1

T
h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 N

u
rs

in
g
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 o
ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 

o
n
e
-o

ff
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 C

C
G

, 

a
n
d
 c

lie
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

in
c
o
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

 M
T

F
S

 w
o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 o

c
c
u
r.

 T
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 

in
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 P

1
1
 a

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 

d
u
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

p
a
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 B

a
d
 

D
e
b
t 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
.

T
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

P
1
1
 a

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
u
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

p
a
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 B

a
d
 D

e
b
t 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

6
1
9
0

P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

6
,1

1
3
,1

6
5

6
,0

2
6
,4

6
2

(8
6
,7

0
3
)

(1
2
4
,3

8
4
)

3
7
,6

8
2

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

a
xi

 c
a
rd

s
, 

th
e
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

W
in

te
r 

P
re

s
s
u
re

s
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 H

e
a
lt
h
.

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 P

1
1
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
a
rr

y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 b
e
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t.

Page 274



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
E

6
2
0
0

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s

1
9
,8

6
0
,0

1
0

2
0
,2

1
2
,0

1
1

3
5
2
,0

0
1

3
5
4
,9

7
2

(2
,9

7
1
)

T
h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
: 

U
n
re

a
lis

e
d
 T

ra
v
e
l 
T

ra
in

in
g
 P

ro
je

c
t 

–
 (

c
o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

) 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
3
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 (

1
) 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 h
e
a
lt
h
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 c

lie
n
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
u
n
d
e
d
; 

(2
) 

e
xt

ra
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 m
o
v
in

g
 t

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
ft
e
r 

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
h
o
m

e
 i
n
 

H
a
v
e
ri
n
g
 1

7
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

6
2
2
0

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 O
th

e
r

4
,9

4
0
,9

7
3

5
,0

2
3
,4

8
3

8
2
,5

1
0

9
0
,8

1
4

(8
,3

0
4
)

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 I

n
te

ri
m

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 D

e
c
 2

0
1
3
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

6
2
5
0

Q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

1
,1

6
1
,3

2
0

9
3
1
,3

6
3

(2
2
9
,9

5
7
)

(2
0
5
,4

0
8
)

(2
4
,5

4
9
)

(1
1
,8

8
1
)

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

p
a
rt

 d
u
e
 t

o
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 t

o
 a

lle
v
ia

te
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

.

  
 A

F
0
0
0
0

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

(2
4
0
,5

4
6
,7

3
0
)

(2
4
7
,5

8
8
,3

4
7
)

(7
,0

4
1
,6

1
7
)

(7
,6

0
1
,1

1
1
)

5
5
9
,4

9
4

2
2
,7

0
8

R
e
le

a
s
e
 o

f 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

ll
o

c
a
te

d
 

fo
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 h

a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 o
v
e
ra

ll
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 b

y
 £

7
m

T
h

e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 P
e
ri

o
d

 1
1
 t

o
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
te

 r
e
le

a
s
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 

to
 L

e
is

u
re

 f
o

r 
R

L
D

; 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

fo
r 

re
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
e
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
.

  
  

  
A

F
1
0
0
0

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
4
8
6
,3

6
0

5
1
9
,4

5
7

3
3
,0

9
7

(6
6
,8

9
4
)

9
9
,9

9
1

P
ro

c
e
e
d

s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 h

e
ld

 i
n

 h
o

ld
in

g
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
p

e
n

d
in

g
 C

o
u

rt
 a

p
p

ro
v
a
l

P
O

C
A

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e
d

 o
u

t 
a
n

d
 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

tr
a
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

  
  

  
  

 A
F

1
1
0
0

F
in

a
n
c
e

4
8
6
,3

6
0

5
1
9
,4

5
7

3
3
,0

9
7

(6
6
,8

9
4
)

9
9
,9

9
1

P
ro

c
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
C

ri
m

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 h

o
ld

in
g
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

p
e
n
d
in

g
 C

o
u
rt

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l

P
O

C
A

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 o

u
t 

a
n
d
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

  
  

 A
F

3
0
0
0

In
te

rn
a
l 
S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(1
4
3
,3

7
1
)

(3
7
,5

3
9
)

1
0
5
,8

3
2

(2
0
0
,0

0
0
)

3
0
5
,8

3
2

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 H

R
A

 r
e
c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

 R
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
n

d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
fi

n
a
n

c
e
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
u

e
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

p
a
n

 o
f 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

o
l.
C

ir
c
u

la
r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 n
o

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

fo
r 

F
in

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 O
n

e
 O

ra
c
le

 O
B

IE
E

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 –
 

th
is

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 b

u
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 a
s
 a

n
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 

w
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 g

o
n

e
 t

o
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
. 

P
e
n

s
io

n
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 –

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

 

c
h

a
rg

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
x
p

e
rt

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

c
y
 o

n
 n

e
w

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 H

R
A

 r
e
c
h

a
rg

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 H

 R
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
n

d
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
fi

n
a
n

c
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

p
a
n

 o
f 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l.
C

ir
c
u

la
r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n

s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 n
o

t 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 f
o

r 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 O
n

e
 

O
ra

c
le

 O
B

IE
E

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 –
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
ld

 

b
e
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e
d

 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 b

u
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

 a
s
 a

n
y
 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 g

o
n

e
 t

o
 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
. 

P
e
n

s
io

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 –

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 f
u

n
c
ti

o
n

 

c
h

a
rg

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
p

e
rt

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

c
y
 o

n
 

n
e
w

 P
e
n

s
io

n
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

Page 275



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
F

3
2
1
0

S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(2
2
8
,8

6
5
)

(9
1
,9

0
7
)

1
3
6
,9

5
8

(2
0
0
,0

0
0
)

3
3
6
,9

5
8

  
  

  
  

 A
F

3
7
0
0

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 R

e
la

ti
o
n
s

8
5
,4

9
4

5
4
,3

6
8

(3
1
,1

2
6
)

0
(3

1
,1

2
6
)

  
  

  
A

F
4
0
0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

a
tt

e
rs

(6
6
,5

8
7
,5

7
4
)

(7
1
,7

9
4
,2

1
0
)

(5
,2

0
6
,6

3
6
)

(6
,9

2
2
,2

3
4
)

1
,7

1
5
,5

9
8

0
R

e
le

a
s
e
 o

f 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

ll
o

c
a
te

d
 

fo
r 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

£
6
.9

m
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
b

e
 a

ll
o

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 

F
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
. 

T
h

e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 P
e
ri

o
d

 1
1
 t

o
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
te

 r
e
le

a
s
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 

to
 L

e
is

u
re

 f
o

r 
R

L
D

; 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

fo
r 

re
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
e
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
F

4
1
1
0

In
s
 T

ra
d
in

g
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t

8
1
,1

0
0

(1
1
)

(8
1
,1

1
1
)

(8
1
,1

1
1
)

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f
u
n
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
le

a
s
e

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f
u
n
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
le

a
s
e

  
  

  
  

 A
F

4
1
4
0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

5
1
8
,4

2
0

4
3
1
,3

0
3

(8
7
,1

1
7
)

(7
2
,8

1
0
)

(1
4
,3

0
7
)

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f
o
re

c
a
s
ti
n
g
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 

a
b
o
u
t 

£
7
2
k
, 

m
a
in

ly
 f
ro

m
 s

a
la

ri
e
s
 £

5
1
k

  
  

  
  

 A
F

4
3
0
0

C
o
n
s
 R

e
v
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

(9
3
,8

1
8
,0

6
0
)

(9
4
,0

9
6
,3

3
1
)

(2
7
8
,2

7
1
)

(2
7
8
,2

7
1
)

In
te

re
s
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
ti
o
n
 

d
e
fi
c
it

In
te

re
s
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
ti
o
n
 d

e
fi
c
it

  
  

  
  

 A
F

4
3
1
0

C
o
rp

 F
in

 T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s

2
6
,4

2
2
,6

7
5

2
6
,3

8
7
,3

0
1

(3
5
,3

7
4
)

7
6
,0

0
0

(1
1
1
,3

7
4
)

A
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

o
n
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
b
a
te

 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

A
u
d
it
 F

e
e
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 C

M
T

 a
s
 a

n
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
 

s
u
rp

lu
s

  
  

  
  

 A
F

4
3
2
0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

u
b
s
c
.

4
5
6
,8

4
5

4
2
3
,7

6
4

(3
3
,0

8
1
)

(3
3
,0

8
1
)

M
a
in

ly
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 G

ra
n
ts

 S
c
h
e
m

e
M

a
in

ly
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 G

ra
n
ts

 

S
c
h
e
m

e

  
  

  
  

 A
F

4
3
4
0

S
a
v
in

g
s
 &

 P
ro

v
is

io
n
s

(4
4
0
,1

3
4
)

(4
,9

4
5
,2

1
8
)

(4
,5

0
5
,0

8
4
)

(6
,9

2
5
,4

2
4
)

2
,4

2
0
,3

4
0

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
,n

o
w

 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 £

6
.9

m
, 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
c
la

re
d
 a

s
 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 i
n
to

 

th
e
 P

e
n
s
io

n
 f
u
n
d
, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
e
xe

c
u
ti
v
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
, 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 u

s
e
 

in
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 e

tc

T
h
e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 P
e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 t

o
 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
te

 r
e
le

a
s
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 t

o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

e
xa

m
p
le

 t
o
 

L
e
is

u
re

 f
o
r 

R
L
D

; 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

a
v
in

g
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
F

4
3
5
0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 Y

/E
 A

/C
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

(1
6
4
,3

1
0
)

(1
6
4
,3

1
0
)

(1
6
4
,3

1
0
)

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
L
e
a
v
e
 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
L
e
a
v
e
 

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

  
  

  
A

F
5
0
0
0

C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

1
,4

4
6
,3

1
8

(1
,4

4
6
,3

1
8
)

(1
,4

4
6
,3

1
8
)

S
u

rp
lu

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
o

 

C
M

T
 a

s
 a

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d

S
u

rp
lu

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
o

 C
M

T
 a

s
 a

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d

A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 r
e
c
h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

 R
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

p
a
n
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l.
C

ir
c
u
la

r 
tr

a
n
s
fe

rs
 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

O
n
e
 O

ra
c
le

 O
B

IE
E

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 –
 t

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 b

u
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

a
s
 a

n
y
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 g

o
n
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
. 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 –

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
xp

e
rt

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 o

n
 n

e
w

 P
e
n
s
io

n
 R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s

A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

 r
e
c
h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

 R
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
u
e
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

p
a
n
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l.
C

ir
c
u
la

r 
tr

a
n
s
fe

rs
 f
ro

m
 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 O

n
e
 

O
ra

c
le

 O
B

IE
E

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 –
 t

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 b

u
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

s
 a

n
y
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 

h
a
v
e
 g

o
n
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
. 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 –

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

xp
e
rt

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 o

n
 n

e
w

 P
e
n
s
io

n
 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s

Page 276



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
F

5
4
0
0

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
1
,4

4
6
,3

1
8

(1
,4

4
6
,3

1
8
)

(1
,4

4
6
,3

1
8
)

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f
u
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
o
 C

M
T

 

a
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

S
u
rp

lu
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f
u
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
o
 C

M
T

 a
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

  
  

  
A

F
6
0
0
0

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

y
s
te

m
s

(9
3
0
,6

0
0
)

(9
0
1
,3

3
3
)

2
9
,2

6
7

7
2
7

2
8
,5

4
0

T
h

e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 o

n
 

b
u

d
g

e
t

  
  

  
  

 A
F

6
5
0
0
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

(7
6
2
,1

4
0
)

(7
2
5
,0

0
5
)

3
7
,1

3
5

(1
1
5
,8

6
1
)

1
5
2
,9

9
6

B
u
d
g
e
ts

 w
e
re

 m
o
v
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 P

1
1
 a

n
d
 

fi
n
a
l 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 w
h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

v
e
r 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 

m
o
v
e
d
.

B
u
d
g
e
ts

 w
e
re

 m
o
v
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

P
1
1
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 w
h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 

o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 m

o
v
e
d
.

  
  

  
  

 A
F

6
5
2
0
 

C
o
re

 S
y
s
te

m
s
 A

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y

(2
2
2
,4

2
0
)

(1
)

2
2
2
,4

1
9

2
0
2
,1

2
4

2
0
,2

9
5

T
h
is

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 e

xp
e
n
d
it
u
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

X
e
ro

x 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

lw
a
y
s
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

a
s
 a

n
 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
, 

th
is

 w
a
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 i
n
 

o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
.

  
  

  
  

 A
F

6
5
3
0
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

A
n
d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

1
0
8
,1

1
0

(9
8
,3

1
9
)

(2
0
6
,4

2
9
)

(2
1
7
,5

3
6
)

1
1
,1

0
7

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
a
la

ry
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 V

R
.

  
  

  
  

 A
F

6
5
4
0

H
o
ld

in
g
 C

o
d
e
s
 -

 F
in

a
n
c
e

(2
,8

8
0
)

(3
6
,0

9
3
)

(3
3
,2

1
3
)

(3
2
,9

9
1
)

(2
2
2
)

T
h
is

 c
o
s
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 w

ill

a
lw

a
y
s
 s

h
o
w

 a
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
.

  
  

  
A

F
7
0
0
0

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
4
6
1
,6

0
3

2
0
9
,4

2
2

(2
5
2
,1

8
1
)

(4
5
3
,8

2
0
)

2
0
1
,6

4
0

F
in

a
l 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 i
s
 n

o
m

in
a
l 
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l.

T
h

e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n

t 
is

 m
a
in

ly
  

d
u

e
 t

o
 

th
e
 d

e
la

y
 i
n

 s
u

rr
e
n

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

E
M

E
 

le
a
s
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
's

 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

lu
te

c
h

 

fa
c
il
it

y
. 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 L
a
n

d
 

h
o

ld
in

g
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h

e
 v

ir
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

th
e
ir

 r
e
n

ta
l 
in

c
o

m
e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 

fu
tu

re
 b

u
il
d

in
g

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 

th
e
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
m

o
v
e
d

 b
y
 

£
4
3
k
 d

u
e
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

P
T

S
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
.

  
  

  
  

 A
E

7
5
9
0

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

6
8
3
,3

5
5

6
3
3
,3

0
5

(5
0
,0

5
0
)

6
,2

2
0

(5
6
,2

7
0
)

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
£
5
0
k
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 P

ro
je

c
t 

o
ff
ic

e
r 

v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 i
n
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

e
a
m

.

£
4
7
k
 f
o
r 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t

o
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
 w

a
s
 m

is
s
e
d
. 

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 

s
h
o
w

s
 i
n
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

b
u
d
g
e
t.

  
  

  
  

 A
F

7
6
5
0

P
ro

p
 &

 L
a
n
d
 H

ld
g
s

(2
,0

1
7
,2

7
0
)

(2
,5

1
5
,2

3
9
)

(4
9
7
,9

6
9
)

(5
3
4
,7

0
5
)

3
6
,7

3
6

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
tt

ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 r

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
fu

n
d
 

(£
3
0
4
k
) 

a
n
d
 H

R
A

 c
o
m

m
e
ri
c
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 (

£
4
0
9
k
),

 

p
a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 a

n
 M

T
F

S
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

(-
£
3
0
9
k
) 

d
u
e
 t

o
 

a
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

In
g
re

b
o
u
rn

e
 C

o
u
n
tr

y
 P

a
rk

 s
c
h
e
m

e
.

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt

u
rn

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 £

3
7
k
 

s
in

c
e
 P

1
1
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

v
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
's

u
rp

lu
s
' 
re

n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 t

o
 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t

Page 277



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
  

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L

F
IN

A
L

 

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
IN

A
L

 

A
C

T
U

A
L

S

F
IN

A
L

 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

P
1
1
 

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

M
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

F
R

O
M

P
1
1
 T

O
 F

IN
A

L
 

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

 O
N

-G
O

IN
G

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

IN
A

L
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 O

u
tt

u
rn

 R
e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1
3
-1

4

  
  

  
  

 A
F

7
7
5
0

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

8
0
9
,3

0
9

1
,1

9
6
,4

1
1

3
8
7
,1

0
2

3
4
4
,0

7
6

4
3
,0

2
6

F
in

a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
£
3
8
7
k
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 F

le
e
t 

H
o
ld

in
g
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

(£
1
8
0
k
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
d
ju

s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 1

4
/1

5
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
r-

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 

w
it
h
in

 P
T

S
 o

f 
£
1
4
8
k
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 £

1
1
3
k
 r

e
fu

n
d
 t

o
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

o
u
te

 a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

 d
e
fi
c
it
 o

f 
£
4
5
k
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fu

e
l 
c
o
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
, 

e
n
d
 o

f 

y
e
a
r 

s
to

c
k
 w

ri
te

 o
ff
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

u
n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 v

e
h
ic

le
 r

e
p
a
ir
 (

a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

d
a
m

a
g
e
)

M
a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 1

0
k
 l
a
te

 c
h
a
rg

e
s
 f
o
r 

v
e
h
ic

le
 l
e
a
s
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 
8
k
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

s
to

c
k
 w

ri
te

 o
ff
s
, 

4
k
 f
u
e
l 
c
o
s
ts

, 
£
5
k
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
, 

£
5
k
 

re
p
a
ir
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

  
  

  
  

 A
L
1
4
0
0

C
o
rp

 S
a
fe

ty
 &

 F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
6
6
,6

5
0

1
3
3
,4

0
9

(3
3
,2

4
1
)

(1
4
5
,1

5
0
)

1
1
1
,9

0
9

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

ri
s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 o

v
e
r-

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 

p
ri
n
t/

c
o
p
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
s
e
ts

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

u
n
d
e
r-

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 b
y
 t

h
e
 A

s
b
e
s
to

s
 t

e
a
m

.

T
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 
th

e
 l
e
g
a
l 
in

v
o
ic

e
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 
C

E
M

E
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
p
p
a
re

n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 P

e
ri
o
d
 1

1
 

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

  
  

  
A

F
8
0
0
0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
R

 &
 O

D
(1

2
1
,3

9
0
)

(6
0
,6

2
0
)

6
0
,7

7
0

2
0
,6

2
3

4
0
,1

4
7

2
2
,7

0
8

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 d

u
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 

in
c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 H
R

A
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i
n

  

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d

 

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 d

u
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 i
n

c
o

m
e
 f

ro
m

 H
R

A
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i
n

  
s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d

 

  
  

  
  

 A
F

3
0
7
0

P
e
o
p
le

 &
 C

h
a
n
g
e

(1
2
1
,3

9
0
)

(6
0
,6

2
0
)

6
0
,7

7
0

2
0
,6

2
3

4
0
,1

4
7

2
2
,7

0
8

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 H
R

A
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
  

s
ta

ff
 

w
o
rk

lo
a
d
 

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 d

u
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 H

R
A

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
  

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 

  
  

  
A

G
2
0
0
0

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,5

3
6
,8

5
0

1
,7

9
8
,7

2
0

(7
3
8
,1

3
0
)

(5
6
7
,7

2
7
)

(1
7
0
,4

0
4
)

IM
A

N
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

t 
re

c
o

v
e
ry

, 
d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 b
a
d

 

d
e
b

t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

; 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 c
o

u
rt

 c
o

s
t 

in
c
o

m
e
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
s

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 £
1
7
0
k
 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 –

 d
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 

b
a
d

 d
e
b

t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 d
u

e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

d
e
b

t 
p

ro
fi

le
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 

c
o

u
rt

 c
o

s
t 

in
c
o

m
e

  
  

  
  

 A
B

2
3
8
0
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

2
,3

8
8
,5

6
0

2
,0

3
5
,1

3
1

(3
5
3
,4

2
9
)

(6
7
,6

9
2
)

(2
8
5
,7

3
8
)

  
  

  
  

 A
B

2
3
7
0

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 S

u
b
s
id

y
(6

,7
4
0
)

(3
8
2
,9

5
1
)

(3
7
6
,2

1
1
)

(5
0
0
,0

0
0
)

1
2
3
,7

8
9

  
  

  
A

L
1
0
0
0

L
e
g

a
l 
&

 D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,4

1
9
,5

2
0

2
,3

2
3
,8

7
6

(9
5
,6

4
4
)

(1
6
4
,7

3
3
)

6
9
,0

8
9

P
ri

m
a
ri

ly
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
lo

c
a
l 
la

n
d

 c
h

a
rg

e
s
 

in
c
o

m
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

u
o

y
a
n

t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
lu

s
 

s
m

a
ll
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
s
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

c
o

s
t 

c
e
n

tr
e
s

  
  

  
  

 A
L
1
3
3
0

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

(3
5
,3

7
0
)

(1
1
4
,4

4
3
)

(7
9
,0

7
3
)

(1
4
8
,1

5
5
)

6
9
,0

8
2

P
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lo

c
a
l 
la

n
d
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

u
o
y
a
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
lu

s
 s

m
a
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
s
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
s

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
le

g
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
n
 R

o
m

fo
rd

 

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 u

n
e
xp

e
c
te

d
 p

a
rt

ia
l 

s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
lo

n
g
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
la

n
d
 

c
h
a
rg

e
s
 l
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 

IM
A

N
 o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

, 
d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 b

a
d
 

d
e
b
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
; 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
u
rt

 c
o
s
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s

E
xc

h
e
q
u
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 £
1
7
0
k
 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 –

 d
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 b

a
d
 

d
e
b
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
d
e
b
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
u
rt

 c
o
s
t 

i

Page 278



BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2014/15 PERIOD 03 (JUNE) 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 The 2014/15 period 3 revenue monitor reports that: 

! The forecast revenue outturn is currently projected at an overspend balance of 
£2.0m for the General Fund and a breakeven position for the oneSource 
directorate.

! Risk assessed budgets are based on last year’s assessment and those 
considered high risk will be reported on in for future months.  As with this report, 
a full review of all budgets will be undertaken on a quarterly basis. 

! The Dedicated Schools Budget (DSB); Public Health; the Collection Fund and 
the Housing Revenue Account are ringfenced and any year end variance will 
remain with them. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

CMT are asked: 

2.1 To note the proposed outturn position at Appendix A and are reminded to brief their 
lead members on said position for their area. 

2.2 To note the use of the Corporate Contingency. 

2.3 To note the approval of allocating the majority of the unused Corporate Provisions and 
the Corporate Contingency into the Strategic Reserve to fund future potential 
redundancies.

3. MONITORING APPROACH 

3.1. Detailed monitoring reports to CMT will be on a quarterly basis, with exceptions in the 
intervening periods. 

3.2. Online Forecasting (CP) is embedded now and will operate very much as last year. 

3.3. The time allocated to budget holders and senior managers to finalise their forecast is 
unchanged at 3 weeks, with the forecast being available to view within 4 weeks of the 
end of each period. 

3.4. All high risk budgets will be continued to be reviewed on a monthly basis by 
Operational Finance staff (June to February).  Medium risk budgets will be reviewed 
on a rolling quarterly basis and low risk budgets will not be reviewed. 

4. ANALYSIS OF MAJOR VARIANCES BY SERVICE 

4.1 Forecast variances reported by Heads of Services are identified in the Summary 

attached at Appendix A.

4.2 The 2014/15 forecast outturn as at period 3 is set out in the table overleaf. 

Page 279



Revised 

Budget

Forecast 

Outturn

Forecast 

Outturn

Variance

£’000 £’000 £’000

Culture, Community & Ecomonic Development 43,794  43,797  3 

Public Health 0  0  0 

Childrens, Adults & Housing 104,150  106,087  1,937 

Resources 13,593  13,664  71 

Sub total 161,537  163,548  2,011 

Contingency 2,000  2,000  0 

Revenue Total 163,537  165,548  2,011 

Dedicated Schools Budget 0  0  0 

oneSource 7,245  7,248  3 

Grand Total 170,782  172,796  2,014 

Collection Fund 0  (3,750) (3,750)

Housing Revenue Account 0  (137) (137)

Directorate 

4.3 Further information on the reasons for the major variances in excess of 25k can be 

found at Appendix B.  This includes the explanations provided by budget holders on 
any variances. 

4.4 The oneSource directorate is reporting a breakeven position at this period.  Information 

on the major Service variances is presented at Appendix C.  Any year end variance 
will be shared with its partner, the London Borough of Newham, as per the business 
case.

4.5 The Collection Fund is reporting a £3.75m surplus and as a ringfenced area any 
variance, surplus or otherwise, will be returned to the fund.

4.6 The overall forecast takes no account of any potential surplus to be realised from 
corporate provisions.  However as we proceed into the financial year the level of 
“uncommitted” provisions and other corporate items such as excess interest will be 
presented to CMT. 

4.7 CMT has agreed that any year end unused amounts mentioned in section 4.6 will be 
allocated to the Strategic Reserve to contribute to the funding of the ongoing 
Transformation and Redundancy Programme. 

5. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 

5.1 The overall underspend of £137k forecast is primarily due to  
a) new starters coming into post later than budgeted for, and  
b) rent and service charge income rates remaining steady despite welfare 

reforms.
However, some cost centres have not been updated following the Homes and Housing 
restructure so there is some uncertainty that could lead to movement in the forecasts 
until mid-year. 

6. PUBLIC HEALTH  

6.1 A review exercise has been undertaken to align 14/15 revised budgets at cost centre 
level as per expected year end spend.  Therefore, at the end of quarter one, a nil year 
end balance is expected.

Page 280



6.2 Any underspend identified at 14/15 year end can be carried forward into 15/16 via the 
public health reserve in line with PH grant guidance.

7. CORPORATE CONTINGENCY 

7.1 The opening balance of the Corporate Contingency fund is £2m and as anticipated at 
this stage of the year no allocations have been processed to date. 

7.2 However, there are known committed allocations (approx. £0.5m) that, once approved 
and or realised, will be processed.

7.3 As stated at a previous CMT meeting, it is also anticipated that any year end surplus 
will be needed to fund the potential transformation reserve shortfall. 

8. THE TRANSFORMATION RESERVE AND FUNDING REDUNDANCIES 

8.1 The latest position on the transformation reserve and the funding of redundancies was 
reported to CMT on 17th July 2014 and the key elements were: 

! £15.7m has been set aside in the Strategic Reserve this year to fund the 
transformation and other general specific projects. 

! £8.4m of the above is available to fund future redundancies (including 
oneSource).

! The total future exit costs are estimated at approx. £2.5m for the current year 
and £13m for the next round of MTFS (4 years). 

! £7.1m is the potential shortfall in redundancy funding 

8.2 The above assessment was based on current available information and could change 
significantly as the budget strategy is formalised.

8.3 However in order to plan to fund the potential shortfall CMT are asked to consider 
allocating the majority of the unused Corporate Provisions and the Corporate 
Contingency into the Strategic Reserve. 

9. EARMARKED RESERVES 

9.1 The quarterly update on the proposed use of the earmarked reserves is available at 

Appendix D. The setting up of the earmarked reserves is undertaken to provide 
specific resources for key priority improvement areas. 

10. ANALYSIS OF SHORT TERM DEBTORS 

10.1 The table below shows the level of outstanding debt as represented in the 2013/14 
statement of accounts.  During the course of the financial year a comparison will be 
undertaken with the level debts presented to the Debt Management Board: 

Page 281



£m £m £m

12.9 -8.2 4.7

1.9 -1.1 0.8

6.2 0.0 6.2

Capital 10.5 0.0 10.5

8.4 -5.2 3.2

1.9 -1.4 0.5

4.7 -3.7 1.0

5.2 -1.4 3.8

0.7 0.0 0.7

0.9 0.0 0.9

11.4 -2.1 9.3

64.7 -23.1 41.6

Council Tax

Business Rates

BDP
(set 31/03/14)

Net
(set 31/03/14)

Other Sundry Debtors

Total

Government Departments

Housing Benefits Overpayments

Parking

Housing

Social Services

Short term Debtors 14/15

Gross

Other Local Authorites

Health Authorites

10.2 Housing includes the following: 

! Housing Rents; 

! Private Sector Leasing; 

! Leaseholders 

! Helpline; Garages; and Former Tennant Arrears. 

10.3 Some elements of the above only become debtors at the year end, and are therefore 
not reported on in-year by the Debt Management Board.

STAFF CONTACTS 

Overview, Corporate Finance 

and Resources 

Andrew Blake-Herbert 
Group Director

01708 432201 

Culture, Community and 

Economic Development 

Cynthia Griffin 
Group Director 

01708 432260 

Children, Adults and Housing Joy Hollister 
Group Director 

01708 433804 

Public Health Cynthia Griffin 
Group Director 

01708 432260 

Page 282



Appendix A

FULL YEAR 

REVISED

BUDGET

TOTAL 

ACTUALS 

AND 

ENCUMB 

RANCES

FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN 

VARIANCE 

PERIOD 3

A00000 Total (7,245,109) (2,709,096) 2,010,838

   AB0000 Culture, Community & Economic Development 43,794,214 9,685,843 2,804

      AB1000 Culture & Leisure 13,422,821 4,023,444 17

      AB2000 Corporate & Customer Transformation 3,642,274 1,620,716 76,420

      AB4000 Directorate Support Service 76,041 (602,616) 0

      AB5000 Streetcare 19,039,843 3,177,355 20,704

      AB6000 Communications 179,600 (313,313) 0

      AB7000 Economic Development 2,665,770 (178,838) 120

      AB9000 Policy & Community Manager 1,679,630 218,614 (46,390)

      AF9000 Regulatory Services 3,088,235 1,740,481 (48,067)

   AC0000 Public Health 0 (760,714) 0

      AC1000 Public Health 0 (760,714) 0

   AD0000 Children, Adults & Housing 104,149,454 27,904,688 1,936,904

      AB3000 Homes & Housing 730,677 1,639,010 (13,285)

      AD9000 Mental Health 3,141,990 898,646 45,840

      AE2000 Learning & Achievement 12,027,238 1,535,609 638,466

      AE3000 Childrens Services 26,852,535 7,319,954 829,094

      AE4000 Business & Performance 1,818,280 767,182 (41,019)

      AE6000 Adult Services 59,578,734 15,744,288 477,808

   AF0000 Resources (155,188,777) (39,538,913) 71,130

      AF1000 Finance & Procurement (49,280) 18,767 0

      AF4000 Corporate Financial Matters 13,416,511 758,288 0

      AF5000 Contingency 2,000,000 0 0

      AF6000 Business Systems 0 0 0

      AF7000 Asset Management 531,160 (2,049,422) (14,421)

      AF8000 Strategic HR & OD 116,820 (245,957) 19,850

      AG1000 External Finance (170,782,288) (31,910,739) 0

      AG2000 Exchequer Services (1,391,990) (6,319,173) 2,290

      AL1000 Legal & Democratic Svs 970,290 667,377 63,411

      AL2000 Transformation Agenda 0 (458,053) 0

   AA0000 Collection Fund Directorate 0 (35,266,022) (3,750,000)

      AA1000 Collection Fund Srvce 0 (35,266,022) (3,750,000)

Summary Revenue Budget Monitoring Period 3 2014-15

Page 283



Appendix B

FULL YEAR 

REVISED

BUDGET

TOTAL 

ACTUALS 

AND 

ENCUMB 

RANCES

FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN 

VARIANCE 

PERIOD 3

REASON FOR FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN VARIANCE

A00000 Total (7,245,109) (37,975,118) (1,739,162)

      AA1000 Collection Fund Srvce 0 (35,266,022) (3,750,000) Overall underspend expected on 

NNDR, CT support o be carried 

forward

         AA1010 Collection Fund Act 0 (35,266,022) (3,750,000) Period 3 £3.75mil. £3mil due to NNDR 

unsuccessful appeals and increase in 

NNDR Rateable Value. Remaining 

£750k mil due to CTS underspend.

   AB0000 Culture, Community & Economic De 43,794,214 9,685,843 2,804

      AB1000 Culture & Leisure 13,422,821 4,023,444 17

         AB1020 Arts Services 410,840 225,273 28,525 Underlying pressure on Fairkytes Arts 

centre budget including payment on 

£30k in grant monies to Queens 

theatre and studio three. Service area 

working on a management plan to 

address this projected overspend

         AB1080 Grounds Maintenance DSO 895,750 1,374,409 (77,746) Projected surplus is as a result of 

improved income performance.

         AB1160 Countryside Services 196,450 77,748 (25,087) vacant post pending approval to 

recruit.

         AB1300 Library Service 3,170,139 850,050 47,623 Increase in National Non Domestic 

Rates (Business Rates) of £45k per 

annum, associated with the new 

Rainham Librarary building, is the 

main reason for the projected 

overspend of £47k which will need to 

be contained and addressed within 

the Service.

      AB2000 Corporate & Customer Transformat 3,642,274 1,620,716 76,420 £76k is the net position after 

operational underspends.

         AB2330 CRM 3,834,566 1,620,716 (115,872) The underspend is due to delays in 

recuitment to vacancies which is an 

ongoing process

         AB2360 Customer Serv Transform (192,292) 0 192,292 £192k is the outstanding target for 

2014-15.  There will be a £34k 

slippage of this in 2014-15 with full 

delivery next year.

      AB5000 Streetcare 19,039,843 3,177,355 20,704 Overall stable position although 

known pressures expected in 

Parking & highways, ongoing 

management action being taken to 

reflect budget movements and 

relaignments
         AB5400 Borough Roads B & TS 658,530 (603,584) (159,100) Forecast based on last years out turn 

and stable workload to match last year 

outturn this financial year

         AB5460 Parking Facilities (152,790) 261,460 177,995 mainly a reduction in CEO income 

reflecting the trend of last year

         AB5700 Borough Roads 8,393,490 655,534 167,282 There are a number of planned 

actions during the later half of 2014 

that will contribute towards reducing 

this overspend

Revenue Budget Monitoring Period 3 2014-15

Page 284



Appendix B

FULL YEAR 

REVISED

BUDGET

TOTAL 

ACTUALS 

AND 

ENCUMB 

RANCES

FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN 

VARIANCE 

PERIOD 3

REASON FOR FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN VARIANCE

Revenue Budget Monitoring Period 3 2014-15

         AB5750 Refuse Coll & Waste Dis 3,696,960 (1,020,369) (115,304) There are a number of budget 

realignments due to take place in the 

coming months that will reflect the 

new waste contract rates, in addition 

we are projecting greater income on 

green waste service, and reduce cost 

in other waste disposal charges

         AB5760 Street Cleansing 4,663,870 1,410,437 78,059 Some small scale staffing pressure 

due to Maternity leave and other 

secondment cover in yr, HOS seeking 

to recover as much of this as possible 

in yr

         AB5780 Streetcare Management 253,231 957,162 (149,300) Salaries underspends arising from 

delayed recruitment, anticipate 

recruitment being completed by 

October.

         AL1360 Safety On The Road 310,470 147,650 (39,532) Salary underspend arising from recent 

retirement, HOS considering options 

to net off other pressures within 

streetcare

      AB9000 Policy & Community Manager 1,679,630 218,614 (46,390) ACE Service has now closed, 

HAVCO's core grant has been 

reduced to reflect this.

         AB7140 Corporate Policy and Community 903,870 59,693 (46,390) ACE Service has now closed, 

HAVCO's core grant has been 

reduced to reflect this.

      AF9000 Regulatory Services 3,088,235 1,740,481 (48,067) Underspend primarily reflects 

income achievement in Planning, 

Building Control and Crematorium 

plus activity/ salary underspends 

set against reduction in burials/ 

ancillary income plus agency cost 

in planning to sustain performance 

in response to Government 

requirements

         AB2320 Births Deaths & Mrgs 302,000 399,532 75,837 £75K overspend due to under 

achievement in income

         AB3420 Crematorium & Cems (929,210) (14,000) (109,934) Underspend comprises of over 

achievement on crematorium income, 

reduced burials, reduced utility costs.

         AF9450 Development Control Svs 785,720 (19,297) (29,509) The £29k underspend is the net result 

of £122k underspend in Building 

Control, net of other pressures in 

Planning.

   AD0000 Children, Adults & Housing 104,149,454 27,904,688 1,936,904

      AD9000 Mental Health 3,141,990 898,646 45,840 The budgets managed by NELET 

are projecting a slight overspend 

due to placement and support 

package activity, and these are 

reviewed on ongoing basis to 

ensure value for money in 

commissioning activity.

Page 285



Appendix B

FULL YEAR 

REVISED

BUDGET

TOTAL 

ACTUALS 

AND 

ENCUMB 

RANCES

FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN 

VARIANCE 

PERIOD 3

REASON FOR FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN VARIANCE

Revenue Budget Monitoring Period 3 2014-15

         AE6210 Mental Health Needs 3,141,990 898,646 45,840 The budgets managed by NELET are 

projecting a slight overspend due to 

placement and support package 

activity, and these are reviewed on 

ongoing basis to ensure value for 

money in commissioning activity.

      AE2000 Learning & Achievement 12,027,238 1,535,609 638,466 Overspend due to SEN transport 

costs. Number of children and the 

complexity of cases is likely to 

lead to an increase in wheelchairs 

and escorts and possibly the 

numbers of routes.
         AE3350 SEN 1,795,420 516,435 644,630 The number of children and the 

complexity of cases is likely to lead to 

an increase in wheel chairs, escorts 

and possibly routes. This pressure on 

spending  is in an area already looking 

at further savings proposals. Both of 

these cost pressures and further 

savings proposals will be considered 

together as will be developing 

personalised pathways for children 

and young people which may include 

transport. This may then lead to a 

wider review of the councils  transport 

service.

      AE3000 Childrens Services 26,852,535 7,319,954 829,094 A number of issues are 

contributing to projected 

overspend . Main areas are 

increasing numbers of looked after 

children and placements costs. 

Also there is a reduced level of 

Adoption Reform Grant this year.

         AE3830 Existing Placements 6,956,670 1,726,587 433,733 There has been an increase in the 

numbers of children being looked after 

including some large sibling groups. 

This has also led to an increase in 

more expensive Independent 

Fostering placements.

         AE3840 Leaving Care Service 1,662,366 633,646 280,382 The projected overspend is made up 

mainly from placement costs. There 

has been an increase in looked after 

children including some with very high 

need and risk factors who have come 

into care at 16/17 years. Also there 

have been delays in young people 

moving into independent 

accommodation resulting in the need 

to continue semi-independent 

accommodation beyond 18 years.

         AE3860 Fostering, Adoption & Other Costs 894,286 358,972 114,226 Adoption reform grant lower than 

previous year plus increased demand 

on prescriptions

Page 286



Appendix B

FULL YEAR 

REVISED

BUDGET

TOTAL 

ACTUALS 

AND 

ENCUMB 

RANCES

FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN 

VARIANCE 

PERIOD 3

REASON FOR FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN VARIANCE

Revenue Budget Monitoring Period 3 2014-15

      AE4000 Business & Performance 1,818,280 767,182 (41,019) Forecasting underspend due to 

residual vacancies arising from the 

recent staffing restructure (all due 

to be occupied by September) as 

well as other vacancies for part of 

the year; generation of income, and 

some staff voluntarily reducing 

their hours.  The residual 

underspend has been earmarked to 

fund the future Principal Social 

Worker role(s)

         AE4290 Adult Stroke Srvice 2,230 41,002 51,710 Budget to be realigned to clear this 

overspend

         AE4600 Performance and Policy 1,128,260 442,131 (70,746) Budget to be realigned and partly due 

to vacancies from restructure

      AE6000 Adult Services 59,578,734 15,744,288 477,808 The predicted overspend is due to: 

(a) placement activity in Learning 

Disabilities which will need to be 

closely monitored over the 

subsequent months; (b) Dreywood 

Court; and (c) pressures in the 

Preventative Service (rents and 

council tax in ASC run schemes) . 

Transport remains a pressure 

especially in Learning Disabilitiies 

and Yew Tree for £196k. Budgets 

throughout the Service are in the 

process of being realigned 

following the Primary Support 

Reason recoding and staffing 

restructures

         AE4400 Strategy & Commissioning 3,709,250 1,062,282 208,680 The overspend is due to Dreywood 

Court cost pressure

         AE6170 Adult Community Team 23,019,878 6,638,695 (126,278) Underspend currently projected on 

staffing budgets. To note income 

budgets are to be realigned due to 

PSR recoding and expenditure 

budgets are to be closely monitored 

as more information on actual spend 

becomes available.

         AE6190 Prevention 5,694,023 1,644,962 145,738 The overspend is due to the pressure 

of rents and council tax in RJC, St 

Ethelberga and Painsbrook. Pressure 

in Transport for Yew Tree of £63k

Page 287



Appendix B

FULL YEAR 

REVISED

BUDGET

TOTAL 

ACTUALS 

AND 

ENCUMB 

RANCES

FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN 

VARIANCE 

PERIOD 3

REASON FOR FULL YEAR 

PROJECTED

OUTTURN VARIANCE

Revenue Budget Monitoring Period 3 2014-15

         AE6200 Learning Disabilities 19,290,060 4,774,606 271,026 Three high cost Transition cases 

expected in year and Ordinary 

Residence import and export 

pressures have resulted in projected 

overspend position. CLDT has a 

dedicated resource to work on CHCF 

and OR, to reduce overspend 

position. Transport forecast is 

significantly above budget as in 2013-

14 as the pressure remains at £133k 

overpsent.  As the service carries out 

a review to increase the level of 

personalised support , linked to 

proposed savings plans, this may lead 

to a review of the use of transport for 

this client group. This may then lead 

to a wider review of the councils  

transport service.

   AF0000 Resources (155,188,777) (39,538,913) 71,130

         AF7650 Prop & Land Hldgs (1,886,930) (761,570) (104,570) Whilst some projected rental income 

is below target or part of schemes that 

have been delayed, the overall 

performance of the commercial rent 

portfolio has more than counter-

balanced both this effect and any 

impact of other operational budget 

variations - thereby giving rise to a 

positive projected budget variation at 

P3.

         AF7750 Transport Accounts 769,530 457,368 90,149 Mainly due to Passenger Travel 

service additional pressure of 22% 

pension on additional hours & 

overtime.

      AL1000 Legal & Democratic Svs 970,290 667,377 63,411 the projected overspend is as a 

result of the £68k efficiency 

through reduction in mayoral 

activity which requires further 

detailed exploration. If any of the 

proposals relate to reduced 

staffing then these will have to be 

redirected as a onesource effiiency 

rather than LBH efficiency. more 

detail will be available by end of 

Period 4 once a more detailed 

analysis has been conduced

         AL1320 Democratic Services 950,000 403,517 63,411 the projected overspend is as a result 

of the £68k efficiency through 

reduction in mayoral activity which 

requires further detailed exploration. If 

any of the proposals relate to reduced 

staffing then these will have to be 

redirected as a onesource effiiency 

rather than LBH efficiency. more detail 

will be available by end of Period 4 

once a more detailed analysis has 

been conduced

Page 288



O
n

e
S

o
u

rc
e
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
P

o
s
it

io
n

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 C

R
E

V
IS

E
D

B
U

D
G

E
T

 

Y
T

D

 A
C

T
U

A
L

S

Y
T

D

E
N

C
U

M
B

R
A

N
C

E
S

A
C

T
U

A
L

S
 +

 

E
N

C
U

M
B

R
A

N
C

E
S

Y
T

D
  

R
E

M
A

IN
IN

G
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

F
Y

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
D

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

F
Y

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
D

O
U

T
T

U
R

N

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E

R
E

A
S

O
N

 F
O

R
 F

Y
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

E
D

O
U

T
T

U
R

N
 V

A
R

IA
N

C
E

3
0
9
,7

3
0

(7
6
9
,9

2
8
)

3
5
2
,1

7
1

(4
1
7
,7

5
7
)

8
7
7
,4

8
7

1
2
4
,3

0
0

(1
8
5
,4

3
0
)

S
ta

ff
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
.

1
,2

8
3
,1

1
0

1
9
3
,6

8
2

6
,5

0
3

2
0
0
,1

8
5

1
,0

8
2
,9

2
5

9
8
3
,1

1
0

(3
0
0
,0

0
0
)

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 s

y
s
te

m
s
.

1
8
,5

6
3
,7

5
0

2
4
8
,3

1
7

9
5
2
,2

2
8

1
,2

0
0
,5

4
5

1
7
,4

1
3
,2

0
5

1
8
,5

6
3
,7

5
0

0

2
,6

2
1
,0

4
0

3
3
4
,2

9
2

1
4
8
,7

4
0

4
8
3
,0

3
2

2
,1

3
8
,0

0
8

2
,6

0
4
,1

3
1

(1
6
,9

0
9
)

(7
7
,9

0
0
)

(2
,4

9
2
,5

4
5
)

3
,5

5
0
,2

7
8

1
,0

5
7
,7

3
3

(1
,3

3
5
,6

3
3
)

(7
7
,9

0
0
)

0

4
0
0
,4

7
9

1
,0

5
8
,2

6
7

1
1
3
,2

0
0

1
,1

7
1
,4

6
7

(7
7
0
,9

8
8
)

8
6
1
,0

6
1

4
6
0
,5

8
2

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 Y

e
a
r 

1
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
 £

1
m

, 
b
u
t 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 t

o
 r

e
a
lis

e
 t

h
e
 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

is
 s

a
v
in

g
 w

o
n
’t
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 u

n
ti
l 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

a
t 

th
e
 

e
a
rl
ie

s
t.

 T
h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

it
ig

a
te

d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 b
y
 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t,

 v
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 p
a
rt

-

y
e
a
r 

re
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 

re
a
lis

e
 t

h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
.

1
4
,2

0
0

(3
5
,7

6
6
)

1
2
8
,8

4
9

9
3
,0

8
3

(7
8
,8

8
3
)

6
5
,2

0
0

5
1
,0

0
0

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 o
n
e
S

o
u
rc

e
 s

a
v
in

g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 a

n
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

is
 f
u
lly

 s
ta

ff
e
d
 t

h
is

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

a
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

r 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 a

ri
s
in

g
. 

O
n
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r'
s
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 w

ill
 

s
a
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 i
f 
n
o
t 

b
a
c
k
fi
lle

d
 b

u
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

im
p
a
c
t.

T
O

T
A

L
2
3
,1

1
4
,4

0
9

(1
,4

6
3
,6

8
1
)

5
,2

5
1
,9

6
9

3
,7

8
8
,2

8
8

1
9
,3

2
6
,1

2
1

2
3
,1

2
3
,6

5
2

9
,2

4
3

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 A

p
p

o
rt

io
n

m
e
n

t

N
e
w

h
a
m

6
1
%

5
,6

3
8

H
a
v
e
ri
n
g

3
9
%

3
,6

0
5

F
in

a
n

c
e
 o

n
e
S

o
u

rc
e

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
E

R
V

IC
E

P
e
ri

o
d

 3
 2

0
1
4
/1

5

E
x
c
h

e
q

u
e
r 

&
 T

ra
n

s
a
c
ti

o
n

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
g

a
l 

&
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

IC
T

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 &
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

H
R

Page 289



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
E

A
R

M
A

R
K

E
D

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T

B
A

L
A

N
C

E

3
0

S
T
 J

U
N

E
 

2
0
1
4

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

B
A

L
A

N
C

E

3
1

S
T

M
A

R
C

H

2
0
1
5

3
6
,7

0
2

3
6
,7

0
2

0

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 &
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 

F
u
n
d
s

3
2
6
,5

5
7

3
2
6
,5

5
7

2
2
6
,5

5
7

5
,9

1
3

5
,9

1
3

5
,9

1
3

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 C

tt
e
e

3
3
2
,4

7
0

3
3
2
,4

7
0

2
3
2
,4

7
0

T
ra

in
in

g
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
5
7
,4

6
4

5
7
,4

6
4

0

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e

a
g
re

e
d
 v

ia
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

1
7
,2

8
9

1
7
,2

8
9

1
0
,0

0
0

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
 I
n
v
e
s
t 
to

 S
a
v
e
 p

o
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
.

W
h
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

G
ro

u
p
.

V
ia

 C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

G
ro

u
p

P
a
rt

 o
f 
C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

G
ro

u
p
 a

g
e
n
d
a
.

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 I
n
te

re
s
t 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

*S
e
e
 n

o
te

 1

T
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
o
d
e
/R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
S

e
e
 N

o
te

 1

8
2
7
,0

7
9

8
2
7
,0

7
9

8
2
7
,0

7
9

T
h
e
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6
 d

e
p
o
s
it
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s

R
e
p
o
rt

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

L
e
a
d
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

R
e
p
o
rt

 s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 L

e
a
d
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
.

R
e
p
o
rt

 s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 L

e
a
d
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
.

T
O

T
A

L
1
,2

7
1
,0

0
4

1
,2

7
1
,0

0
4

1
,0

6
9
,5

4
9

T
h
e
s
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
is

te
d
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 

y
e
a
rs

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

h
e
lp

 f
in

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 

c
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

. 
 T

h
is

 c
o
v
e
rs

:

(a
) 

  
  
  
 f
u
n
d
 c

re
a
te

d
 b

y
 f
e
e
s

(b
) 

  
  
  
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 M

e
m

o
ri
a
l 
fu

n
d

(c
) 

  
  
  
 M

e
m

o
ri
a
l 
G

a
rd

e
n
 F

u
n
d

S
c
h
o
o
l 
M

e
a
ls

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

T
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 s
e
rv

ic
e
.

G
ro

u
p
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
C

h
ild

re
n
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
R

E
A

S
O

N
 F

O
R

 /
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E

3
1

S
T

M
A

R
C

H

2
0
1
4

H
O

W
 /
 W

H
E

N
 U

S
E

D
H

O
W

 M
A

N
A

G
E

D
 A

N
D

 

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
L

E
D

P
R

O
C

E
S

S
 A

N
D

 

T
IM

E
S

C
A

L
E

 F
O

R
 R

E
V

IE
W

 

O
F

 R
E

L
E

V
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 

A
D

E
Q

U
A

C
Y

R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

U
s
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 A
S

S
. 

A
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
A

S
S

 

B
o
a
rd

.

B
y
 G

ro
u
p
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 &

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

e

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
n
o
rm

a
l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
B

u
d
g
e
t.

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

5
/1

0
/0

3
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
in

g
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
.

B
y
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ri
e
s
 

a
n
d
 C

re
m

a
to

ri
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r.

U
p
o
n
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 w

it
h
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

.

W
:\
d
a
ta

0
2
\A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
c
y
\G

e
n
e
ra

l\
P

ro
je

c
t 
B

o
a
rd

 (
A

ll 
Y

e
a
rs

)\
P

ro
je

c
t 
B

o
a
rd

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 2

0
1
4
-1

5
\P

e
ri
o
d
 3

\M
e
m

b
e
rs

\A
p
p
 D

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s
 S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 1
4
-1

5
 P

e
ri
o
d
 3

 A
ll.

x
ls

Page 290



 

APPENDIX H 
 

EARMARKED AND GENERAL RESERVES AS AT 31 MARCH 2014 
 

8. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance as earmarked reserves to provide 

financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet 

General Fund expenditure in 2013/14. 
 

 

 
B
a
la
n
c
e
 a
s
 a
t 

3
1
 3
 2
0
1
2
 

T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
  

to
/(
fr
o
m
) 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

re
s
e
rv
e
s
 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 a
s
 a
t 

3
1
 3
 2
0
1
3
 

T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
  

(f
ro
m
)/
to
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

T
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

re
s
e
rv
e
s
 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 a
s
 a
t 

3
1
 3
 2
0
1
4
 

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Corporate Transformation 
(incl. Plusage) Reserve 

16,780 4,622 1,564 22,966 (7,317) 277 15,926 

oneSource - - - - 750 - 750 

Insurance Reserve 4,196 187 - 4,383 - - 4,383 

Reserves for future Capital 
Schemes 

5,987 2,859 (131) 8,715 (134) - 8,581 

Schools Reserves - (481) 1,853 1,372  (1,258) 114 

Legal Reserve 349 (47) (197) 105 (107) 2 - 

Crematorium and 
Cemetery Funds 

537 95 - 632 (300) - 332 

Streetcare Initiative - - - - (1,000) 1,000 - 

Social Care Funding 3,004 3,459 233 6,696 1,974 - 8,670 

Public Health Reserve - 241 - 241 1,061  1,302 

Library Book Fund - (160) 800 640 (160) - 480 

Whole Life Costing 
Transport Fleet Reserve 

- 189 - 189 63 189 441 

Capital Bridge Funding 1,000 - (1,000) - - - - 

Primary School Bridge 
Funding 

1,360 - (1,360) - - - - 

Property Strategy Review 85 - (85) - - - - 

Standards Fund LEA 
Contribution 

332 - (332) - - - - 

Property Management - - - - - - - 

Other Reserves 5,059 (963) (1,345) 2,751 1,549 (210) 4,090 

Totals 38,689 10,001 - 48,690 (3,621) - 45,069 

 

Page 291



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

  

The General Fund balance can be further analysed as follows: 

31st March 

2013 

£000 

 31st March 

2014 

£000 

11,768 General Fund 11,766 

2,728 General Reserves 2,847 

14,496 Sub Total 14,613 

8,716 Schools Balances 8,739 

2,914 Centrally held Schools balances (see Note 35)  1,689 

26,126 Total General Fund balance 25,041 

 

 

 

Page 292



APPENDIX I:  

JOINT MEETING OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES, 8 SEPTEMBER 

2014, ANSWERS TO MEMBER QUESTIONS ON THE COUNCIL’S FINANCIAL 

STRATEGY 

 

Questions were asked by Members on the areas shown below and answers were 

given by officers or Cabinet Members as follows: 

1. Consultation on 2% Council Tax increase – It was not feasible to consult on 

this as the final decision on the level of Council Tax would not be taken until 

February 2015. A referendum would be required if a higher increase was 

wanted and there would not be the time to organise this which would also be a 

costly exercise. A question relating to the Council Tax increase may be able to 

be included in the consultation. 
 

2. Transformation Costs – These costs were built in for the first two years only 

and there were no budgeted transformation costs by the end of year 4. 
 

3. Pensions – It was not the case that an additional £40m had been paid into the 

Council pension scheme although there had been a large increase. This had 

been stipulated by the Council’s actuary in order to balance the pension fund, 

given that both assets and liabilities had increased substantially. A one-off 

contribution of £10m had been made last year in order to reduce annual extra 

contributions and to allow the pension fund to invest in local infrastructure. 

The Council had to keep to its legal requirements on this issue. 
 

4. Funding for maintained schools – It was the case that academies currently 

received slightly more funding than maintained schools but this gap had now 

almost closed. Schools were generally funded equally per pupil although there 

were different weightings given for each borough. Further information on the 

variation in schools funding between boroughs could be provided by officers. 
 

5. Impact of change in national Government policy – The proposed cuts were for 

a period of two years and it was possible that the position may change after 

this. The Shadow Minister for Local Government had however recently 

indicated in a letter to the Leader that there would not be any increase in 

funding for Local Authorities and that money may also be transferred to more 

‘needy’ Councils. 
 

6. Use of reserves – Reserves had been used to for example fund the £10m 

contribution to the pension fund and would also be used to meet redundancy 

costs. Strategic reserves were earmarked for specific purposes and verified 

by an auditor. The in-year contingency had been lowered from £2m to £1m 

and Members regularly took advice on how to best use the reserves. The 

Page 293



current General Fund balance of £11m was not earmarked but it was felt that 

at least £10m of this would be needed to fund changes required under the 

Care Act. The Group Director was happy to discuss the use of reserves with 

Members further. 
 

7. Proposed Development Company – The Council was currently working with 

Capita to assess the viability of this proposal. The final cost would be known 

in approximately two months. The cash amounts held by the Council could be 

used for this sort of scheme. Risks would be factored in and a report on the 

Development Company would be brought to Cabinet.  
 

8. Other savings from Economic Development – The Council was supporting 

businesses to come into Romford. The proposed saving was a stretch target 

based on economic conditions and the amount of vacant office space. 

Members could be briefed separately on this.  
 

9. Interest shortfall – There was not an interest shortfall of £5m as this was 

mixing up General Fund borrowing with Housing borrowing. Housing 

borrowing had increased to £250m two year ago when the Government 

changed the housing finance system. The Housing Revenue Account had 

nothing to do with the General Fund Account. 
 

10. Streetcare – Non-contractable items related to recharges for support services. 

A full survey of lamp columns was needed to check they were suitable for 

LED lighting. A further risk was a change in energy prices although this could 

be mitigated. The current energy budget was £650k. 
 

11. Communications – The annual cost of producing Living Magazine was £60k 

although not all of this could be delivered as a saving. A list of events run by 

the Council and their cost could be provided as well as information on 

twinning activities. There was no set twinning budget but funding was made 

available for specific campaigns and activities. Funding was also sometimes 

available from twinning partners. Reputation management referred to dealing 

with the press, social media and managing emerging issues related to the 

Council. It was planned to reduce the budget for the Havering Show by £17k 

through attracting more sponsorship.  
 

12. Customer Transformation and Channel Shift – While more people were using 

on-line Council services, it was still proposed to retain a face to face service.  
 

13. Culture and Leisure – The proposed Music School saving was considered 

robust given the successful new model operating in the Music School. 

MyPlace savings could be found via increasing income and efficiencies from 

integrating management between MyPlace and the neighbouring sports 

centre. The Stubbers Centre had been leased to a charity for a peppercorn 

Page 294



rent. Both the lease and rent level expired in two years and this would need to 

be renegotiated and hence produce more income.  
 

14. CCTV – The two CCTV systems would be moved onto one site at Waterloo 

Road. There was however no reduction proposed in the CCTV service. 

Officers would provide details of the numbers of prosecutions brought about 

the use of CCTV. Number plate recognition software was being introduced 

with the Police although the Police would not be making any financial 

contribution to this.   
 

15. Supporting People Review – It was proposed that support and housing 

management tasks could be combined in one role however some Members 

felt this was a high risk strategy. Consultation would be carried out with 

tenants on this proposal. It would not be possible to run a pilot scheme as the 

saving needed to be made next year.   
 

16. Private Sector Leasing – There were around 1,000 properties managed in this 

sector. Complaints received were responded to in the same way as for a 

council tenant. The proposed £500k saving was based on increasing the 

number of units let although the market was changing. The rent paid by 

landlords was based on levels at the lower end of the market as seen in areas 

such as Harold Hill and Rainham. Several Members felt that many landlords in 

Harold Hill were sub-dividing properties excessively. Officers accepted this but 

it was noted that, for some people, a single room in a shared house was their 

only affordable option. A vetting system for landlords was in place for larger 

HMOs but this could not be used as an income generator. Some Members felt 

there was a danger of ghettoisation in Harold Hill with too many people being 

put in the area but officers responded that they did not control the market.    
 

17. Meals on Wheels – The current provision of Meals on Wheels would be 

reviewed. A new staffing model would be considered in order to generate 

savings.  
 

18. Care Act and Better Care Fund – More successful reablement was now seen 

in people’s homes than at Royal Jubilee Court although Royal Jubilee Court 

continued to very effective as a step-down facility following hospital care. 

Community Treatment Teams had demonstrated an impact and this had led to 

the use of pooled funding opportunities from the Better Care Fund. The 

performance element of the Better Care Fund would be decided later that 

week at the Health and Wellbeing Board. This was a new and complex area 

and work was progressing with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) on 

e.g. undertaking joint assessments at Queen’s Hospital. Commissioning work 

such as this would be taken through the Health and Wellbeing Board and 

Individuals Overview and Scrutiny Committee for monitoring. The proposed 

cap would apply to existing people on benefits. 
 

Page 295



19. Social Care Agency Staff – Officers were looking to retrain permanent staff to 

take on new roles and make processes more effective. Eight new children’s 

social workers had started work that week. The allocation of admin work 

would be looked at as part of the review but it was also important that social 

workers took ownership of their assessments. Modelling of the impact of the 

Care Act was continuing but this had been factored into the proposals as far 

as possible. Officers would confirm the proportion of savings related to young 

people with disabilities. It was important to get the balance right in the use of 

agency staff.  
 

20. Social Care Staffing – It was not possible to guarantee that serious incidents 

seen in areas such as Rotherham would not occur. The implications of the 

Rotherham inquiry for Havering would be looked at shortly by the Crime & 

Disorder Committee. Services were however scrutinised by Members. Social 

worker pay was benchmarked and a recruitment & retention strategy was in 

place. Havering social workers were more interested in support, career 

progression and a manageable caseload than they were in money. 
 

21. Younger Adults – While current users would be affected, the assessment 

criteria for younger adults was not going to be altered. It was aimed to deliver 

services in the most appropriate way and appeal procedures would be in 

place. 
 

22. OneSource – It was planned to change the Council’s job evaluation scheme 

and avoid any negative impact on lower paid staff. A new pay line for lower 

paid staff would be introduced if necessary. A new job evaluation scheme for 

the highest paid staff was also likely to be introduced. There were 

approximately 2,500 staff that may be affected but the proposed saving was 

only £500k from a £95, total wage bill. It was hoped to introduce a consistent 

set of practices and to agree these with the unions. 
 

23. Council Tax Support – The GLA precept made up 20% of Council Tax bills 

and it was also necessary to consult with the GLA on changes to the Havering 

scheme. The second person rebate normally applied to households that were 

not eligible for other Council Tax support and the Council’s preferred option 

proposed therefore to abolish this. It was emphasised that the proposal only 

applied to working age applicants, not retired people.  
 

24. Parking – The proposals had been amended but it was wished to allow a 

period of free parking for everybody. A breakdown of expenditure on parking 

could be supplied to Members. It was not possible to be certain of the impact 

of the proposed new tariffs. The additional schemes referred to related to the 

introduction of a broader parking strategy. Officers would look at the impact of 

a 40p rather than £1 charge after the free first 30 minutes in order to assess 

whether this would reduce parking in side streets. It was proposed to 

Page 296



introduce charges for car parking in parks but a free period for the first 30 

minutes was under consideration. The 10 minute grace period applied to any 

duration of parking ticket. It was noted that revenue gathering was not the 

purpose of parking enforcement. It was planned to introduce parking at 

football pitches and some Members felt this could result in people parking in 

nearby streets. Officers agreed to consider this.  
  

25. Moving Traffic Offences Powers – These had now been adopted by all but six 

London Boroughs. Once adopted, decisions would be made on how these 

powers would be applied. Details could be provided to Members on the 

advantages of using these powers. A report on adopting the powers would 

also be brought to full Council. Some Members felt that taking on these 

powers could make the Council unpopular with local residents. 
 

26. Trading Standards – Savings could be made via a restructure and no longer 

undertaking some of the non-statutory functions carried out by Trading 

Standards. While enforcement of underage alcohol sales would continue it 

was felt that e.g. the training of shop staff did not need to be carried out by 

Trading Standards officers. The banking protocol also no longer needed to be 

led by Trading Standards. Enforcement work would not be affected and there 

was not felt to be a risk to revenue generation from the proposals. Officers 

wished to move the service to a more intelligence-led way of working. Officers 

would supply details of the income recovered from proceeds of crime. 
 

27. Voluntary Sector Review – The reduction of the grant to HAVCO was due to 

the closure of their Community Accountancy Service. Rate relief for charities 

would be unaffected by any of the proposals. It was clarified that Council 

grants were often given to not for profit organisations in order to employ 

people so it was not simply a matter of increasing volunteer numbers. Other 

Members felt that most volunteers in Council services did come from charities. 

It was also possible that some extra work could be commissioned from 

charities in connection with the requirements of the Care Act. 
 

28. Libraries – Opening hours of the four larger libraries would be unchanged. 

The smaller libraries would be open for three and a half days per week and 

longer if sufficient volunteers could be found. There was no suggestion that 

any libraries would close. Officers had thought seriously about the viability of 

the proposals which were based on library service models that ran 

successfully elsewhere. The local studies library was a valuable service and 

efforts would be made to recruit more volunteers to help operate it. Officers 

would supply details of library footfall. The new Rainham and Harold Hill 

libraries would continue to operate. There were a total of 93 people currently 

employed in Council libraries although as many of these were part-time staff, 

this equated to 53.1 FTE posts.  
 

Page 297



29. Health and Wellbeing – This category related to leisure centres and ‘Policy, 

Marketing and Administration’ referred to expenditure on support services.  
 

30. Queen’s Theatre – Officers met on a quarterly basis with the Queen’s Theatre 

and had discussed the budget options. Full details of options would be shared 

with theatre management once the consultation had started. The actual level 

of grant to the theatre was not £400,000 as for example, rent was not charged 

on the building. 
 

31. Youth Service – It was proposed to no longer provide discretionary services. 

All youth services provided by the Council would be mapped by officers. Work 

with vulnerable young people such as dealing with any gangs in Romford 

town centre would be protected. It would also be possible to signpost to other 

youth provision. Some Members felt that Overview and Scrutiny should look at 

this area. An initial proposition had been received from staff to form an 

employee led mutual to take on aspects of the service and this would need to 

be worked through. Some staff would transfer to the over 12 service which 

would be combined with Early Help & Troubled Families. The Youth Service 

had direct contact with more than 200 young people but did a lot of other work 

with young people in addition. 
 

32. Troubled Families – Savings in this area, after the first year, would be 

challenging and officers accepted there was a lot of work to do.  
 

33. Children’s Centres – There would be more reliance on volunteers to run 

Children’s Centres but there were no current plans to involve the private 

sector. It was hoped to retain five or six of the current Children’s Centres but 

this could not be guaranteed at this stage.  
 

34. Equalities Impact Assessments – All compulsory assessments had been 

completed and the complete set would be appended to the next Cabinet 

report on the budget. These would remain in draft as final decisions would not 

be taken until February 2015.  

Page 298



APPENDIX M 

Public Consultation on the Council’s Budget 2014-18 

The Cabinet has set out its initial proposals to address a £60 million budget gap over 

the next four years. 

Following a special Overview & Scrutiny meeting on Monday 8th September and 

having deliberated alternative budget proposals put forward by councillors, the 

Cabinet will agree proposals for public consultation at its meeting on 24th September. 

This paper sets out the strategy and action plan that will govern that public 

consultation.  

Strategic objectives 

The objectives of the consultation are: 

• To promote a wider and deeper understanding of the Council’s general 

budget proposals 

• To gather the views of Havering residents, businesses and other stakeholders 

on the general budget strategy 

• To undertake specific and robust consultation on those proposals that affect 

statutory services 

• To provide the public and other stakeholders with the chance to put forward 

alternative proposals that could achieve the same level of budget savings   

Approach 

The consultation will take a two-tiered approach. 

Tier 1:  Public consultation on the entirety of the Council’s budget 

strategy and proposals will be undertaken for three months 

Tier 2:  Specific statutory consultation will be undertaken where required 

to address proposals affecting statutory services. These will also 

last for three months each. 

Tier 2 consultations will run concurrently, overlap with, or run later than the tier 1 

consultation, depending on the timescales required for specific savings to be 

delivered. Plans are set out in separate appendices. 

A budget consultation hub will be created on the Council’s website, setting out the 

main proposals and any counter proposals, alongside more detailed documentation. 

The public will be asked to complete a questionnaire in response to the proposals.  

This online channel will be supported with the use of traditional and social media and 

public meetings. Hard copies of the budget questionnaire will be distributed with a 

Page 299



special budget issue of Living in Havering and at public meetings - for return to a 

Freepost address.   

Action Plan  

Channel Audience Details Timescale 

 
 
Havering.gov.uk 

 
 
All audiences 

Consultation hub: 

• Summary of proposals 

• Detailed Cabinet report 

• Links to statutory consultations 

• Feedback forms 
 

 
 
Sept 29th – 
Dec 29th 

Local media All residents Supporting communication to explain 
proposals and promote consultation 
mechanisms 
 

Sept 29th – 
Dec 29th 

Social media All residents Promotion of consultation mechanisms  Sept 29th – 
Dec29th 
 

Living in 
Havering 

All residents • Summary of proposals 

• Description of stat. consultations 

• Localised summaries of impact by 
constituency 

• Promotion of mechanisms for 
feedback 

• Hard copy of questionnare 
 
 

October 

E-bulletins Various 
audiences 

The Council’s e-bulletins will provide both 
general and targeted information and 
promotion of consultation activity. 
Audiences include local businesses 

Sept - Dec 

Public meetings Attendees Three public meetings – by constituency: 

• Romford  

• Rainham & Dagenham  

• Hornchurch & Upminster  
 
Attendance at various existing meetings: 

• Over 50s Forum 

• Business Networks 

• Meetings by invitation 

 
TBC during 
October & 
November 
 
TBC 

 

  

Page 300



Questions 

After setting out the Council’s proposals, the consultation will ask the following 

questions on the budget strategy: 

1. Do you agree with the choice of priority services to be protected? [yes/no] 

 

2. To clarify this, please tick your top three priority services? [list] 

 

3. These proposals are based on annual council tax increases of not more than 

two per cent. Would you be willing to pay higher increases in council tax to 

protect more services from cuts? [yes/no] 

 

4. Do you have any other general comments on the budget strategy as a whole? 

[text box] 

 

As part of the questionnaire, respondents will be asked monitoring information, 

including postcode, age, gender, disability and ethnicity. This will help us ensure that 

the responses from the survey reflect the community at large and are not confined to 

certain geographical areas, age bands, or ethnicities. It will also allow us to ensure 

we have taken the views of people with disabilities into account. 

Page 301



Page 302

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX K 

Public Consultation on the proposed library strategy and budget  

The Council intends to consult with Havering residents on proposed changes to the 

library service, to achieve savings of £1.138m.  

The consultation will be with borough residents (as well as some non-borough 

residents who use Havering’s libraries). Staff will be formally consulted on the 

proposals once the final decisions have been made by Cabinet in February 2015. 

The consultation will focus on the draft Library Strategy, including measures to 

achieve the proposed budget reductions. 

Strategic objectives 

The objectives of the public consultation are: 

• To promote a wider and deeper understanding of the budget proposals for the 

library service and the proposed strategy to deliver necessary savings. 

• To undertake robust consultation – seeking the views of library users and the 

general public on the strategy and specific measures proposed. 

• To provide residents and other stakeholders with an opportunity to suggest 

alternative proposals to achieve the necessary savings 

Approach 

All relevant information pertaining to the Library consultation will be provided through 

the havering.gov.uk website – in line with the general budget consultation and other 

statutory consultations.  

Hard copies of questions and the strategy will also be circulated through Libraries 

and at public meetings. The consultation will be well publicised through a range of 

communications channels. 

  

Page 303



Action Plan 

Channel Audience Details Timescale 

Havering.gov.uk All audiences • Summary of proposals 

• Cabinet report 

• Feedback forms 
 

Sept 29th  
– Dec 29th 

Library buildings Library users Posters, leaflets and feedback forms Sept - Dec 

Living in 
Havering 

All residents Summary of the library proposals, set 
within the context of all budget proposals.  
Dates for meetings and promotion of 
feedback mechanisms. 
 

October 

Media / social 
media 

All residents Promotion of consultation activity and 
links to relevant material 

Sept-Dec 

Libraries social 
media 

Library users Links to relevant material and promotion 
of consultation activity. 

Sept-Dec 

Local 
stakeholder 
meetings 

By invitation: 
Partner orgs 
Key groups 
Volunteers 

Meeting to discuss strategy and overall 
proposals to local volunteers and groups 
in Council Chamber or Romford Library. 
 
Also meeting by invitation with 
representatives of specific stakeholder 
groups. 
 

October -
December 

Library users 
meetings 

Local library 
users 

Meetings to be arranged with groups of 
library users; including a meeting to 
reference the specific proposals for the 
Local Studies and Family History Centre 
proposals. 
 

November 

Letters Users of 
housebound 
service 

Letters enclosing feedback forms to the 
current users of the housebound service 

October 

 

  

Page 304



Questions 

The draft library strategy aims to save £1.14 million, whilst preserving access to all 

ten libraries in Havering and maintaining the role of libraries as cultural, social and 

learning hubs across the Borough: 

1. Do you agree with the Council’s proposals to reduce opening hours, rather 

than close library buildings? [yes/no] 

 

2. Do you agree with proposals to open four libraries (Harold Hill, Romford, 

Hornchurch and Rainham) for 50 hours per week and the other six libraries for 

25 hours per week? [yes/no] 

 

3. Would you prefer that all libraries were open for a consistent (but lower) 

number of hours per week? [yes/no] 

 

4. If you answered no to any of the questions above, what alternative opening 

arrangements do you suggest? [text box] 

 

5. Do you agree with the proposal to involve more volunteers to support the 

management of libraries, in order to extend opening hours [yes/no] 

 

6. The libraries’ housebound service supports around 95 people at a cost of 

£15,000. Do you agree the Council should find more cost-effective ways to 

support this group of customers? [yes/no] 

 

7. PC users in libraries will be charged 50p for an hours’ usage under these 

proposals. Do you think this is a reasonable charge? [yes/no] 

 

8. Do you have any other suggestions to save money in the library service, 

either by reducing costs or raising income – or other comments to make about 

these proposals? [text box] 

 

9. Do you have any further comments to make about the Library Strategy? [text 

box] 

 

As part of the questionnaire, respondents will be asked monitoring information, 

including postcode, age, gender, disability and ethnicity. This will help us ensure that 

the responses from the survey reflect the community at large and are not confined to 

certain geographical areas, age bands, or ethnicities. It will also allow us to ensure 

we have taken the views of people with disabilities into account. 

 

Page 305



Page 306

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX L 
 

Public Consultation on the Council Tax Support Scheme 
 
The Council intends to consult on proposed changes to its Council Tax Support 
scheme with the public and preceptors. Any new scheme must be in place by 31st 
January 2015. 
 
The Consultation will last from September 29th until December 29th. The outcome of 
the consultation will be evaluated and fully considered prior to a final Cabinet 
decision on the changes being referred to full Council on 28th January 2015. 
 
The consultation will be with Borough residents and the GLA.  
 
Strategic objectives 
 
The objectives of the public consultation are: 
 

• To promote a wider and deeper understanding of proposed changes to the 
Council Tax Scheme which are aimed at delivering necessary savings. 

• To undertake robust consultation, seeking the views of the general public and 
stakeholder on the proposed changes. 

 
Approach 
 
All relevant information pertaining to the Council Tax Support consultation will be 
provided through the havering.gov.uk website – in line with the general budget 
consultation and other statutory consultations. The consultation will be well 
publicised through a range of communications channels. 

 

Channel Audience Details Timescale 

Formal 
consultation 

Greater 
London 
Authority 

 

One of the requirements placed on local 
authorities is that we include major 
preceptors in the consultation process.  

We have advised the GLA of the proposed 
changes to the scheme and, at their 
request, will consult them formally when 
the consultation period starts.   

Ongoing 

Havering.gov.uk 

 

Residents For residents, the consultation will run 
from September 2014 to December 2014. 
A description of the changes and a 
questionnaire will be available on line. 

 

Sept - 
November 

Living in 

Havering 

All residents Summary of the council tax support 

proposals within the context of all budget 

proposals.  

October  

Page 307



Promotion of feedback mechanisms. 

Community 
Group meetings 

Meetings with 
range of 
partners and 
providers 

During this period we will meet with 
representatives from Havering’s 
community groups, social landlords, 
internal staff and voluntary organisations 
to separately canvas their views on the 
proposed changes.  

 

Sept - Nov 

 

Questions 

The amount of funding for council tax support is being reduced and local authorities 
will be expected to manage this reduction in subsidised expenditure. 
 
Every household will now be expected to pay something towards their council tax. 
The Council considered a range of schemes and liability reductions.  
 
In line with a number of other councils, we believe introducing a 15% reduction for 
working age claimants will not cause undue financial hardship and could save up to 
£1.6 million. 
 

1. Is it reasonable to introduce a 15% liability reduction for working age 
claimants? [yes/no and comments] 

 
Currently working age claimants can have savings or investments of up to £16,000 
before they are disqualified from receiving help with their Council Tax. From 2015/16 
it is proposed that this limit is reduced to £6,000.  
 

2. Should working age council tax payers have no more than £6,000 savings or 

investments before claiming Council Tax Support? [yes/no and comments] 

 
Currently council tax payers whose incomes are too high to qualify for Council Tax 
Support can receive assistance if other adults living in the household are on a low 
income. This is called Second Adult Rebate. The Council proposes that Second 
Adult Rebate is removed from the scheme for working age claimants. 
 

3. Should working age council tax payers, who do not qualify for Council Tax 

Support, receive a reduction in their Council Tax through Second Adult 

Rebate? [yes/no and comments] 

People who own or rent an empty property are currently charged 100% of the 

Council Tax. The Council is considering increasing the council tax by 50% where the 

property has been empty for more than two years.   

4. Should people who own or rent a property which has been empty for more 

than two years, be charged 150% council tax? [yes/no and comments] 

Page 308



APPENDIX J 

Public Consultation on the Parking strategy and Budget  

The Cabinet has set out its initial proposals to address a £60 million budget gap over 

the next four years. 

One of the measures that affects a statutory service, are the proposals to amend the 

parking strategy and parking charges across the Borough. 

Changes to parking regimes must be undertaken in consultation with a number of 

statutory bodies, including the GLA. This public consultation is in addition to those 

formal exchanges with public bodies. 

Strategic objectives 

The objectives of the consultation are: 

• To promote a wider and deeper understanding of the budget proposals for 

parking and the impact on parking charges. 

• To undertake robust consultation – seeking opinions from the general public 

on the new strategy and the specific parking charges that are proposed. 

• To solicit opinion on increased parking restrictions and enforcement around 

schools – an area that gives rise to significant concerns. 

• To seek nominations from the public of areas where works could be 

undertaken to provide more bays, introduce residents’ parking schemes, or 

alter existing parking regimes. 

Action Plan 

Channel Audience Details Timescale 

Havering.gov.uk All audiences • Summary of proposals 

• Cabinet report 

• Feedback forms 
 

Sept 29th  
– Dec 29th 

Living in 
Havering 

All residents Summary of the parking proposals within 
the context of all budget proposals.  
Promotion of feedback mechanisms. 
 
 

October  

Media / social 
media / posters 
/e-bulletins 

All residents Promotion of consultation activity and 
links to relevant material 
 

Sept-Dec 

Public meetings Attendees Three meetings in constituencies 
Opportunity to question Cabinet Members 
on the full range of budget proposals. 
Feedback forms provided. 
 

November 

Letters to 
representative 

Representative 
groups 

Letters early in the process, asking for 
comment from representative groups for 

October 

Page 309



groups motorists, People with disabilities and 
businesses 

Questions 

The Council’s role is to provide adequate parking provision and assist the free 

movement of traffic around the Borough through the enforcement of parking 

restrictions. Revenue raised through parking should cover the costs of providing this 

service, with any surplus spent only on transport and parking initiatives. 

1. These proposals would allow for half an hour free parking (20 minutes free 

parking, plus 10 minutes ‘grace’ period) in on-street ‘pay and display’ bays 

and in car parks outside Romford. We believe this would support local 

businesses and shoppers. Do you agree with this proposal? [yes/no] 

 

2. Would you prefer no free period, but lower charges for longer stays [yes/no] 

 

3. Do you agree that parking tariffs should be set in a way that supports short 

term parking and deters long-stay commuters (higher charges for longer 

stays)? [yes/no] 

 

4. Do you agree with the proposal that car parking in parks should cost less than 

it does in town centre car parks? [yes/no] 

 

5. The ‘school run’ causes many issues for pedestrians, parents, children and 

motorists. Would you support more parking restrictions and enforcement 

around schools? [yes/no] 

 

6. The proposals would amend the arrangements for a number of parking 

permits used by residents and businesses in certain circumstances. Do you 

have any comments on these proposals? [text box] 

 

7. The Council wants to help local people park near their homes. If you have any 

requests for additional parking bays, residents’ parking schemes or changes 

to parking restrictions in your local area, please list them here and we will 

consider them (subject to separate, local consultation). [text box] 

 

8. Do you have any other comments on the parking proposals and strategy that 

you have not addressed in previous responses? [text box] 

 

 

As part of the questionnaire, respondents will be asked monitoring information, 

including postcode, age, gender, disability and ethnicity. This will help us ensure that 

the responses from the survey reflect the community at large and are not confined to 

Page 310



certain geographical areas, age bands, or ethnicities. It will also allow us to ensure 

we have taken the views of people with disabilities into account. 

Page 311



Page 312

This page is intentionally left blank



   
 CABINET 
24 September 2014 

 

Subject Heading: 
  

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PHASE 2 
PRIMARY SCHOOL EXPANSION 
PROPOSALS - RAINHAM 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Meg Davis – Lead Member for 
Children and Learning 

CMT Lead: 
 

Joy Hollister - Group Director, Children 
Services, Housing and Adult Social Care 

Report Author and contact details: 
 

Mary Pattinson, Head of Learning and 
Achievement 

mary.pattinson@havering.gov.uk 

Tel.  01708 433808 

Policy context: 
 

The recommendations have implications in 
the Rainham area 

Financial summary: 
 

Estimated costs of £2m, funded from the  
Phase 2 of the Primary Expansion 
Programme re Parsonage Farm/Rainham 
Planning Area 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

Yes as expenditure arising from 
implementation of the recommendations is 
likely to exceed £500,000 

 
When should this matter be reviewed? 
 

September 2015 

Reviewing OSC: 
 

Children’s Services 

 
 
 
The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 

Ensuring a clean, safe and green borough    [] 
Championing education and learning for all    X 
Providing economic, social and cultural activity 
  in thriving towns and villages [] 
Valuing and enhancing the lives of our residents   [] 
Delivering high customer satisfaction and a stable council tax [] 

Agenda Item 6

Page 313



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
 
Cabinet decided on 20th November 2013 to initiate statutory processes to 
permanently expand the capacity of a number of primary schools from September 
2014.  Following the completion of the appropriate statutory processes, an 
Executive Decision was made by the Lead Member for Children and Learning and 
the Lead Member for Value on 15 May 2014.  This recommended proceeding with 
the proposed school expansions.  This was then “called in” under a requisition 
signed by two Members representing more than one Group on 21st May 2014. 
 

The requisition was considered at a special meeting of the Children and Learning 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 24th June 2014.  At this meeting the requisition 
was partially upheld for the Parsonage Farm, Scotts Primary and The RJ Mitchell 
schools.  The expansions of the remaining schools were approved.  These schools 
included Broadford Primary, Benhurst Primary, Newtons Primary, The Mawney, 
Suttons Primary and Hacton Primary schools. 
 

The decision of the special meeting of the Children and Learning Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee on 24th June 2014 was considered at a Cabinet meeting on 
30th July 2014.  At this meeting Cabinet took the decision to approve the expansion 
proposals for the RJ Mitchell and Scotts primary schools.  It also decided to defer 
the decision as to whether to agree proposals to expand Parsonage Farm.  This 
was so that further work could be undertaken by officers to more fully explore 
expansion issues in the Rainham area. 
 

Following the Cabinet meeting, officers across the Council have considered a 
range of issues related to the expansion of Parsonage Farm Primary. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
 
That Cabinet uphold the decision of the Lead Member made on 15th May in 
respect of Parsonage Farm Primary School. 
 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. On 20th November 2013, Cabinet decided to initiate the necessary steps 

needed to undertake the statutory processes necessary to permanently 
expand the capacity of a number of primary schools from September 2014.  
The decision about which particular schools was delegated to Lead Member 
for Children and Learning and Value.  Following this Cabinet decision, and 

Page 314



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

in the light of projections of pupil numbers, school organisation officers 
considered a range of options for increasing primary phase school capacity.  
This included the expansion of existing community schools, the expansion of 
existing schools on ‘split sites’ where existing main sites are constrained, the 
establishment of primary phase provision on secondary school sites possibly 
as ‘all through provision’ and the encouragement of Free Schools to be 
established in areas of highest need.  Subsequently, nine schools were 
identified for proposed expansion.  These included Broadford Primary, 
Benhurst Primary, Newtons Primary, Parsonage Farm Primary, Scotts 
Primary, R J Mitchell Primary, The Mawney School, Suttons Primary and 
Hacton Primary. 

 
Statutory Processes and Expansion Proposals 
 
2. Following the identification of the proposed schools to be expanded, a 

statutory consultation process was undertaken in February and March 2014.  
A subsequent Non-Key Executive Decision was made by the Head of 
Learning and Achievement on 24th March 2014 to proceed to the 
representation stage.  The representation stage, from 28th March to 25th 
April 2014, complied with statutory requirements and invited representations 
from all interested parties on these proposals to permanently expand nine 
primary phase schools. 

 

3. The Statutory Notice, that included details of the expansion proposals for all 
nine schools, was published in the Romford Recorder on 28th March 2014; 
notices were also fixed to the entrance gates of each school and circulated 
to all interested parties, including all schools in Havering, neighbouring 
boroughs, the Diocese of Chelmsford and Diocese of Brentwood and the 
DfE, as required by legislation.  A Notice was also published on the 
Council’s website with a link to further information about the proposals and 
information sent to local MPs.   

 

4. During the representation period, a total of 67 objection responses were 
received relating to 2 of the nine schools.   66 of these were received for 
Parsonage Farm Primary School of which included 2 petitions totalling 235 
signatures from residents in the local area and 190 signatures from 
parents/carers.  The objection comments raised specific concerns relating 
to; 

• Road and traffic congestion 

• Parking  

• Pedestrian issues 

• Loss of playground space and overcrowding of existing ancillary 
facilities 

• Potential rise in noise levels during school times 
 

5. It was noted that the Headteacher and the Governing Body of the school 
fully support the proposal to permanently expand Parsonage Farm Primary 
School. 

 

6. One objection response was received for Hacton Primary School.  
 

Page 315



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 
7. It was noted that the Headteacher and the Governing Body of the school 

fully support the proposal to permanently expand Hacton Primary School. 
 

8. Seven schools, namely Broadford Primary, Benhurst Primary, Newtons 
Primary, Scotts Primary, RJ Mitchell Primary, The Mawney and Suttons 
Primary schools received no representations.  

 

9. Following the end of the representation period and after due consideration 
of all the responses, an Executive Decision to proceed with these schools 
was signed on 15th May 2014, by Lead Member for Children and Learning 
and Value.  This Executive Decision recommended proceeding with all 9 
proposed school expansions as detailed in the table below; 

 

 

10. On 21st May 2014 the Executive Decision was “called in”.  The reasons for 
the requisition were detailed on the formal notification and were as follows: 

• To consider the financial implications of the decision including the wider 
financial implications for the Council and individual schools arising from 
increasing admissions. 

• To consider the risks associated with the primary schools expansion 
programme as identified in the Notice of Key Executive Decision. 

• To consider the implications of the proposal to double the size of 
Parsonage Farm Primary School particularly the concerns of the parents 
and local residents over disruption to children’s education and the impact 
of the expansion will have on the local environment. 

• To consider whether the schools identified for expansion will address 
particular local needs. 

 

School Current 
Capacity 

Proposed 
Capacity 
as from 

Number on 
roll as at  
Jan 2014 

Current 
Published 
Admission 
Number 

Proposed 
Admission 
Number 

Broadford 
Primary 

330 420 from 1 
Sept 2014 

360 45 60 from 
1 Sept 2014 

Benhurst 
Primary 

315 420 from 1 
Sept  2014 

311 45 60 from 
1 Sept 2014 

Newtons 
Primary 

315 420 from 1 
Sept 2014 

303 45 60 from 
1 Sept 2014 

Parsonage 
Farm Primary 

486 840 from 1 
Sept 2015 

467 90 120  from 
1 Sept 2015 

Scotts Primary 210 420 from 1 
Sept 2015 

213 30 60 from 
1 Sept 2015 

The RJ Mitchell 
Primary 

210 420 from 1 
Sept 2015 

217 30 60  from 
1 Sept 2015 

The Mawney 
School 

296 630 from 1 
Sept 2016 

297 60 90 from 
1 Sept 2016 

Suttons Primary 
 

262 420 from 1 
Sept 2016 

216 30 60 from 
1 Sept 2016 

Hacton Primary 378 546 from 1 
Sept 2016 

371 50 78 from 
1 Sept 2016 

Page 316



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 
11. A special meeting of the Children and Learning Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee was therefore held on 24th June 2014.  At this meeting the 
requisition was partially upheld for the Parsonage Farm, Scotts Primary and 
The RJ Mitchell Schools.  The expansions of the remaining 6 schools, were 
approved.  These schools include Broadford Primary, Benhurst Primary, 
Newtons Primary, The Mawney, Suttons Primary and Hacton Primary 
schools.  The minutes of this special meeting are included at Appendix 1.  

 

12. At the Cabinet meeting on 30th July 2014, the decision of the special 
meeting of the Children and Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 
24th June 2014 was considered.  At this Cabinet meeting it was decided that 
the expansion proposals for the RJ Mitchell and Scotts Primary schools 
would go forward, but that the expansion proposals for Parsonage Farm 
Primary school would be deferred subject to further review of the issues 
Appendix 2.  

 
Options for Rainham area: 
  
13. The primary schools which are being considered for expansion within 

Havering have been identified because they match the following criteria: 
 

• They can be expanded as there is scope to create additional 
accommodation on site 

• They are located accessibly to where there is increased pressure on 
places 

• They are sufficiently educationally secure and resilient to have the 
capacity to manage a significant increase in size without adverse 
impacts on standards 

• There is clear aspiration on the part of the school to manage the 
expansion 

• The expansion should provide good value for money 
 

14. These criteria were also applied when consideration was being made about 
options within the Rainham area.   

 

15. The following table indicates the minimum additional permanent primary 
phase capacity, that school organisation officers forecast will be needed for 
the Rainham school planning area for September 2015 and then for the next 
five years; 

 

  
July 2013 
Forecast 

  
2013/14 

  
2014/15 

  
2015/16 

  
2016/17 

  
2017/18 

  
2018/19 

  
2019/20 

  
2020/21 

Reception 
Capacity 

255 255 255 255 255 255 255 255 

Projected 
Rolls 

257 255 263 274 279 286 291 294 

Projected 
Rolls with 
Housing 

259 267 281 297 304 313 309 305 

Surplus/Deficit -4 -12 -26 -42 -49 -58 -54 -50 

Page 317



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

Additional 
places needed 
to maintain 5% 
surplus -17 -25 -40 -57 -64 -74 -69 -65 
 

16. The table above shows that the Rainham school planning area will need an 
additional 1 Form of Entry (FE) by 2015/16 to meet the planned demand for 
school places, with a further 1 FE expansion required over the next five 
years.  Schools in the Rainham school planning area includes Brady 
Primary, La Salette Catholic Primary, Parsonage Farm Primary and 
Rainham Village Primary schools. 

 

17. Parsonage Farm was identified as being the preferred school; it was 
therefore this school that was consulted on within the Rainham area.  

 

18. Following the decision of Cabinet on July 30th, officers from a range of 
council teams, including Learning & Achievement, Asset Management, 
Corporate Property Services and Planning & Regulatory Services have 
further reviewed all the options for school expansions in the Rainham 
School planning area against the criteria above.  

 

19. The findings of the review by officers are: 
 

• The expansion of Parsonage Farm Primary school still represents the 
best option for the delivery of the required additional school capacity for 
September 2015. 

• Parsonage Farm Primary school is a good school and is popular with 
pupils and parents with strong leadership. 

• The school are confident that the benefits from having a larger school will 
enable them to provide an excellent education for all pupils and it can 
cater for all of the children living in Rainham & Wennington and South 
Hornchurch wards. 

• The expansion of Rainham Village Primary school is an option to meet 
the further future requirements for school places over the next 5 years in 
the Rainham School planning area, but is not viable for delivery by 
September 2015 due to the following reasons: 

 

o A statutory process would be needed to permanently expand the 
school and this would not be completed in the time required, 
therefore leaving families in Rainham and Wennington without 
sufficient local places for their children to attend in September 2015. 

o The statutory consultation process could raise a range of issues 
which are at the moment unknown. 

o The expansion would be complicated by the site constraints. 
o There are options to increase the site area to the necessary 

requirements, but this may require a land swap which would delay 
implementation. 

o Significant building work, and therefore increased costs, would be 
needed to deliver the expansion, including demolition of existing 
building(s).  
 

Page 318



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

• A proposal to re-build an annex of Rainham Village Primary school has 
been submitted as part of the Phase 2 Priority School Building 
Programme to address condition issues of the building.   If the bid is 
successful the DfE would provide funding for this building works with the 
LA only having to fund part of the cost of any works that were needed to 
deliver the required additional capacity for 2017/18. 

 

20. The decision making process for expanding schools is one of a number of 
responsibilities that sit under the Government’s Office for School’s 
Adjudicator (OSA).  The OSA has oversight of, and responsibility for 
ensuring that the processes that all councils use in making their decisions 
are fair, equitable and timely.  The OSA has, as expected, been monitoring 
the decision making processes in Havering. 

 

21. Following the decision of Cabinet on 30th July 2014, the OSA has informed 
the Council of what it considers are our next steps and has informed the 
Council that the Cabinet is required to make a final decision in relation to 
Parsonage Farm before the Council can reconsider any other options. 

 

22. Should Cabinet not be able to make a decision in relation to Parsonage 
Farm, the Council is then obliged either to refer the decision to the OSA who 
will make a determination or to revoke the original decision with the potential 
to start afresh if so minded  The decision making processes of the OSA are 
legally binding and based on the information presented to the decision 
maker, which in this case was the Lead Member.  However, it is important to 
note that although the OSA should make decisions in a timely manner, in a 
number of other authorities this has taken a number of months. 

 

23. Cabinet is therefore asked to uphold the decision of the Lead Member on 
15th May 2014 on the proposal to expand Parsonage Farm before further 
consideration can be given to the various alternatives available in the 
Rainham area to increase school capacity. 

 

24. It is to be noted that Cabinet are not being asked to retake the original 
decision which was made by the Lead Member following comprehensive 
consideration of all the relevant matters. 

 
 

 
REASONS AND OPTIONS 

 
 
 
Reasons for the decision 
 
1. This decision is necessary to ensure the provision of sufficient primary 

school places to meet the forecast rise in primary pupil numbers.  A 
summary of representations and petitions received, and officers’ comments 
on them, is included in Appendices 3a and 3b.  It was considered that these 
issues could be addressed by the implementation plans that have been 
made, especially related to the impact of the expansion on the local 
environment.   

Page 319



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 

 

2. Whilst the Council appreciates the potential difficulties that may arise, the 
Council considers that these are overridden by the Council’s statutory duties 
to provide sufficient places for the forecast long term increase in primary 
pupil numbers.  If expansion plans are not progressed, then the probability is 
that there will be school age children within Havering without a secure a 
place in a local school.  

 

3. We have looked at the possibility of expanding other local schools in the 
Rainham area and indeed may need to explore these options further in the 
future as demographic pressures continue to increase. However our initial 
investigations of the available opportunities have resulted in a proposal that 
the expansion of Parsonage Farm is the most appropriate option at this 
time. The reasons for this are the school’s clean and simple single storey 
design, which allows us to achieve a modern, high quality and cost-effective 
building solution which would not be easily achieved elsewhere, the size of 
the site which allows the new build to occur without inappropriate loss of 
playing field space and the delivery of the build project in time for September 
2015 when the additional places will be needed.   

 
Other options considered 
 
4. A number of options have been considered for each planning area against a 

clear set of criteria which included looking at site capacity, value for money 
and whether each school is educationally secure and resilient to have the 
capacity to manage an increase in size without adversely impacting on 
standards.  Not providing any additional places is not an option as the 
Council would be failing to meet its statutory obligations.   

 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 

 

 
 
Financial implications and risks 
 
Capital 
 

The 14/15 budget approved by Council in February 2014 included £29.3m for 
Phase 2 of the Primary Expansion Programme.  However at that time only £21.2m 
of funding was identified although it was suggested that the gap of £8.1m could be 
reduced as costs of schemes become clearer and/or funded by s106 contributions, 
additional grant, tariff or capital receipts.  As plans have been finalised a number of 
expansions have not progressed and costs of other schemes have become 
clearer.  This has resulted in estimated costs reducing to £21.2m, in line with the 
funding currently available.   
 

Both the original capital programme and the latest cost estimates include £2m for 
the provision of 1FE in Rainham/Parsonage Farm. 
 
 

Page 320



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 
Revenue Implications for schools 
 

The revenue implications for schools are that, in creating additional classes from 
September 2015 and in subsequent years as the cohort moves through the school, 
additional costs will be incurred particularly for teaching and support staff.   From 
the financial year 2016/17 the schools will receive additional funding through their 
budget shares as the pupils will be on roll at the date of the pupil census that is 
used to calculate funding.   For the period September 2015 to March 2016, 
however, additional resources will need to be provided.   These will be met from a 
Pupil Growth Contingency held within the Schools Budget (funded by the 
Dedicated Schools Grant) as agreed by the Schools Funding Forum.    
 
Revenue Implications for the Local Authority 
 

It should be noted that an increase in school admissions across the Borough may 
also have a ‘knock-on effect’ on other LA budgets such as Special Educational 
Needs, home to school transport, etc.   The details of this are currently being 
quantified and any pressures arising will be addressed through the appropriate 
channels.   The DSG allocation to the LA is based on pupil numbers and will 
therefore increase each year as pupil numbers rise. The majority of this increase 
will be allocated to the schools with the additional pupils through the Schools 
Funding Formula although there may be some available to meet other school-
related pressures. 
 
Risks 
 

There is a risk that pupil numbers continue to grow and that the places delivered as 
a result of phase 2 are insufficient, leading to the need for additional places and 
funding. 
 

Further risks are that, as capital projects develop, costs increase over and above 
the funding available and/or that additional costs are incurred as a result of the 
short timescales available for the delivery of additional classrooms.   In addition to 
the financial risks the timescale also puts the delivery of the programme at risk. 
Wherever possible, measures are being taken to minimise these risks. 
 
Legal implications and risks  
 

At present certain types of school organisational change (including change of age 
range, change of character and expansion through enlargement of premises) are 
subject to statutory processes of consultation and decision-making.  
 

The LA is the decision–maker for expansion (enlargement of premises) proposals 
for community, foundation and voluntary schools.  Decisions must be made within 
a period of two months of the end of the representation period or they must be 
referred to the Schools Adjudicator.  
 

“Paragraph 5(4) of the Alterations Regulations (2013/3110) states that where the 
local authority does not make a determination within the period prescribed by sub-
paragraph (3), the proposals must be referred to the adjudicator. In this case 
executive decisions were taken in respect of all the schools on 15th May 2014, 
which is within the two months prescribed period. The officer concerned had full 
delegated authority to take those decisions. As a result of local government 

Page 321



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 
 
legislation those decisions were requisitioned by Councillors to be considered by 
the Scrutiny committee. That Committee then referred the decisions on to Cabinet 
as is their statutory power but Cabinet upheld the original decision in relation to two 
of the schools. Cabinet did not make any separate decision on the original 
proposals.  
 

The only impact of the statutory scrutiny process is that the implementation had to 
be delayed pending the outcome of that process. 
 

When issuing a decision, the decision-maker can:  

• reject the proposal;  

• approve the proposal without modification;  

• approve the proposal with modifications, having consulted the LA and/or 
governing body (as appropriate); or  

• approve the proposal – with or without modification – subject to certain 
prescribed events (such as the granting of planning permission) being met. 

 

The decision-maker must have regard to the statutory ‘Decision-makers Guidance’ 
– Appendix 4. 
  
Human Resources implications and risks 
 

The human resources implications for the schools to be proposed for expansion 
will be managed by the schools themselves.   There is likely to be a need to recruit 
additional teaching and support staff and the relevant schools will undertake the 
recruitment and selection process in accordance with the appropriate policies and 
procedures.   It is not anticipated that the school will have any difficulties recruiting 
new teaching or support staff as long as appropriate planning is undertaken.  
 
Equalities implications and risks 
 

An Equality Impact Analysis has been undertaken for Phase 2 of the Expansion 
programme and is attached as Appendix 5. 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 
None 

Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



  
 CABINET 
24 September 2014 

 

 

Subject Heading: 
 

APPROVAL TO CONVERT 10600 
STREET LIGHTS IN ROADS ACROSS 
THE BOROUGH TO MORE ENERGY 
EFFICIENT LED LIGHTS. 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Roger Ramsey  

CMT Lead: 
 

Cynthia Griffin 

Report Author and contact details: 
 

Mark Lowers Energy Strategy Team 
Leader 

Corporate Policy and Community 

mark.lowers@havering.gov.uk 

01708 432884 

Policy context: 
 

Improving the energy efficiency of council 
services is part of the Council’s Climate 
Change Action Plan and  one of the key 
objectives outlined in the Corporate Plan – 
‘Invest in our street lighting and install 
energy efficient schemes that reduce 
carbon emissions and save money’. This 
proposal will also assist the council in 
‘future proofing’ the cost of running its 
street lighting provision against the 
background of increasing energy prices. 

Financial summary: 
 

The total investment required to convert 
up to 10,600 street lights across the 
borough is estimated at £2.7million.  A 
funding plan is identified.  The resultant 
annual financial savings are estimated at 
£280k pa energy, and later down the track, 
£83k of component savings - all at today’s 
prices. The project is estimated to 
“payback” within 8 to 9 years.   

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

Yes as the total cost of project exceeds £500k 

When should this matter be reviewed? 
Annually  

Reviewing OSC: 
 

Environment 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 333



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

 
The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 
 

Ensuring a clean, safe and green borough    [X] 
Championing education and learning for all    [] 
Providing economic, social and cultural activity 
  in thriving towns and villages [] 
Valuing and enhancing the lives of our residents   [X] 
Delivering high customer satisfaction and a stable council tax [X] 

 

 

 

 
 
 

This report sets out a proposal to commence a tendering process in order to 
convert a further 60% (10600) of the Council’s sodium street lights to modern Light 
Emitting Diode (LED) technology, which will bring significant longer term savings in 
energy usage/costs, maintenance costs and reduction in carbon emissions. 
 

In October 2013 the council agreed to convert 6000 street lights in residential 
roads to LED.  This project is due to be completed by November 2014.  This report 
seeks agreement to commence phase two of the LED rollout by converting a 
further 10600 street lights. 
 

The estimated cost of the project is £2.7 million with a resultant annual energy cost 
saving of £280k, and a further anticipated (effective from 2017/18) component 
replacement cost saving of £83k at current prices, meaning a simple payback 
period of under 8 years, and 9 years measured on a net present value basis.  An 
interest free loan should be available to the Council to fund 52% (£1.4 million) of 
the total capital cost with the remaining funding coming from resources to be 
identified at the appropriate time by the Director of Resources. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
That Cabinet approves: 

 
a) That the Service proceeds to tender for the purchase of 10,600 LED 

lanterns and the conversion of 10,600 existing street lights, across the 
borough.   

b) In principle, to apply for the maximum interest free loan available under 
the Salix Energy Efficiency Loan Scheme (SEELS) of £1.4 million to part 
fund this project. 

c) The addition of a capital scheme to the value of £2.7m to the Council’s 
Capital Budget for 2015/16, as detailed in the Financial Implications, 
para 7.and to refer this recommendation to full Council. 

d) To delegate award(s) of the contract(s) set out at (a) above to the Group 

SUMMARY 

Page 334



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

Director of Culture, Community and Economic Development 
e) The undertaking of small scale trials of dimming street lights during 

hours of low movement on selected roads to assess the suitability and 
benefit of adopting a dimming regime. 

 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
 
 

1.1 The Council provides and maintains approximately 18,000 street lights 
across the borough.  There is no statutory obligation for the Council to 
provide street lighting, but it does have a duty of care to road and footpath 
users and could face claims if it failed to provide adequate lighting which led 
to injuries and damage. Currently the council spends over £650k a year on 
electricity for street lighting, excluding the streetlights within the social 
housing estate which are paid from the Housing Revenue Allocation (HRA). 
In view of the need to make large efficiency savings and reduce the 
maintenance costs, of future streetlight budgets, the Energy Strategy Team 
have been working with the StreetCare Service to identify ways of reducing 
this sizeable annual electricity bill. 

 

1.2 In the current financial climate, all local authorities with responsibility for 
highways have been looking at ways to reduce the substantial cost of 
lighting their roads, and have adopted a number of ways to do this.  The 
conversion of existing light sources to modern Light Emitting Diode (LED) is 
becoming a popular choice amongst local authorities as a way to reduce 
long term energy costs, as the savings are substantial in both energy and 
maintenance costs. 

 

1.3 In October 2013 the council agreed to convert 6000 street lights in 
residential roads to LED.  This project is due to be completed by November 
2014. This report seeks agreement to commence phase two of the LED 
rollout by converting a further 10600 street lights.  

 
2. The benefits of LED lighting are: 
 

• LEDs use around 60% less energy than current light sources. 

• The guaranteed lifetime of LED street lights is usually 10 to 15 years, 
three times the life of current technologies adopted. The much less 
frequent need to service or replace LEDs means a greatly reduced 
maintenance cost.  

• LEDs can easily be dimmed when less street lighting is needed, such as 
late at night, and at dusk or early dawn, again offering more savings 
opportunities. 

• LEDs provide a white light which is closer to daylight and allows colours 
to be seen easily.  White light also offers further safety advantages in 
that pedestrians feel more secure in their environment and driver 

Page 335



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

reaction time is improved due to improved vision in low lighting 
situations. 

• LEDs switch on instantaneously, unlike other commonly used street 
lighting. LEDs do not have a problem restarting immediately following a 
brief power failure or if inadvertently turned off.  

• LEDs do not contain mercury or lead making disposal of ‘blown’ lamps 
less problematic. 

 

3. Following a number  of small trials of various types of LED lights in selected 
residential roads across the borough undertaken in 2013 the council agreed 
the implementation of Phase One of a roll out of LED street lights.  There 
has so far been positive feedback from residents and StreetCare staff 
working in the areas which have LED lights installed.  The trials and Phase 
One have confirmed that the use of LED lighting has the ability to reduce 
cost whilst maintaining (and in the majority of cases improving on) current 
lighting levels.  Most available LED street lights come with a minimum ten 
year guarantee and an average life of 15-20 years.  

 

4. The Council currently spends an average of £53.49 per each of the orange 
sodium street lights on residential roads, replacing the lantern components 
every three years, which for 10600 street lights equates to an annual cost of 
£189k.  Replacing these with LED lanterns will cost £100 per street light 
every ten years, which for 10600 street lights equates to an annual cost of 
£106k – a significant saving of £83k. 

 

5. The current proposal (Phase Two) focuses on those roads which currently 
have streetlights that are viable candidates for LED conversion.  Given the 
speed with which LED street light technology is progressing, further 
investigations will be undertaken to find suitable LED lanterns for those 
street lights which are left, approximately 5% of our total streetlight stock. 

 

6. The proposed LED lights, and those installed in Phase 1 are capable of 
being dimmed or switched off from a central control, on an individual basis. 
There is a potential for a further £60k annual saving from implementing a 
dimming regime during hours of reduced vehicle or pedestrian movement, It 
is proposed to undertake small scale trials, on selected roads, to assess the 
viability and benefit, of dimming of selected lights.   

 
 

REASONS AND OPTIONS 
 
 
Reasons for the decision: 
 

The change of 10.600 sodium street lights across the borough to LED lighting has 
a number of benefits including: 
 

• Reduced annual energy costs 

• Help future proof the street lighting electricity budget against inevitable 
future energy price increases 

Page 336



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

• The installation of the LED lanterns will enable the Head of StreetCare to 
achieve savings as part of the retendering of the street lighting  
maintenance contract (due Nov 2016) to reflect the lower requirement for 
maintenance of the new lanterns. 

• Help residents feel safe and secure. Through superior colour rendering and 
a higher perceived brightness, the white light of LED lighting  makes it 
easier to distinguish objects, colours, shapes and other details. In particular, 
facial recognition is easier. White light also gives the most even illumination 
with fewer areas of intimidating shadow. 

• Ensure the light is directed downwards instead of upwards into the night 
sky. In contrast to the old orange/yellow lighting this will dramatically reduce 
light pollution in the sky. 

 
Other options considered: 
 

• Do nothing 
 
Not implementing energy efficiency measures in the council’s street lighting will 
leave the street lighting energy budget vulnerable to the inevitable future increases 
in UK electricity costs. 
 

 
 

  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 
 
 

Financial implications and risks: 
 
1. The estimated cost for the supply and installation of 10,600 LED fitting is 

£2.7 million.  This would result in an annual saving at current energy prices 
of approximately £280k.  These savings are guaranteed as long as the 
street lighting inventory records are completed promptly for the LED switch 
over.  Savings will commence as the new lamps are phased in.  In order to 
ensure savings are realised straight away, a bi-monthly update of the street 
lighting inventory will be submitted to the Network Administrator (UK Power 
Networks).   

 

2. The £280k annual savings figure has been increased by 4% per annum to 
reflect Ofgem’s current assessment that prices will rise by 4% year on year 
from 14/15 to 18/19, and then stabilise.  Detailed figures in Appendix A 
reflect those increases - £278k at current prices has 4% added for both 
2015/16 and 2016/17, and thus savings in 2016/17 are shown at an 
estimated £300,685. 

 
3. The current street lighting component replacement contract expired in May 

2014, and has been extended until November 2016.  The figures in 
Appendix A very prudently only assume component replacement savings 
from 1st April 2017.  However, clearly there will be an expectation that the 

Page 337



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

savings will be negotiated and delivered before then.  Component 
replacement savings of £83k, at current prices, have been estimated. 

 

4. The Department of Energy and Climate Change (DECC) currently provides 
a four year interest free loan to local authorities under the Salix Energy 
Efficiency Loan Scheme (SEELS).  The amount of the loan available for any 
one project is up to a maximum of five years annual energy savings 
stemming from the project.  Therefore in the case of this proposal a 
maximum of £1.4 million could be loaned interest free.  Repayments must 
be made at six monthly intervals over a four year period from completion of 
the project, which is anticipated to be March 2016.  Therefore the first 
repayment of £175k would be made in September 2016 with further 
payments of the same amount being made at six monthly intervals until 
March 2020.  

 

5. Appendix A provides a detailed funding flow, and summary of funding.  The 

proposal is deemed good value for money.  The council will invest £2.7m, 

and will save an estimated £395k by 2017/18. (This overall figure is slightly 

higher than the figures in the financial summary, as energy inflation has 

been added). 
 

6. A “net present value” calculation has also been shown in Appendix A to 

reflect the fact that upfront investment is needed, with the savings accruing 

over time.  The Appendix shows that over a 13 year period, the proposal will 

produce a net saving of £1.335m. 
 

7. The total cost of £2.7m will need to be added to the Council capital budget, 

and this is reflected in recommendation c.  The Council capital investment of 

£2.65m will all – either immediately (£1.25m), or over time (the provisional 

Salix loan of £1.4m) – require funding, and decisions on that will be made at 

the appropriate time.  Any decision to accept the Salix loan will be made in 

the context of treasury management assessment at that time. 
 

8. The savings identified – energy and component replacement – will be 
removed from StreetCare budgets at the appropriate time, and will create a 
corporate revenue saving.  Clearly the service will have had the benefit of 
the capital investment, and the savings generated. 

 
Legal implications and risks: 
 

The proposed decisions appear reasonable and there is minimal legal risk in 
making them.  More detailed legal advice may be necessary for later stages in the 
process, particularly procurement.  
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 

Management of the project will be done within existing staff resources or included 
in external contract management arrangements.  Support by Council staff to assist 
delivery of measures will also be done within existing staff resources. 

Page 338



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

 

 
Equalities implications and risks: 
 

The new lighting will not reduce the current level of street lighting in the roads 
affected.  Lighting levels will be maintained or improved and the use of white light 
will have positive effect on the visual impact of the street scene.  
 

Improved road and community safety through improved visual definition from 
LED lighting will be especially relevant to elderly and visually impaired residents.  
 

As the lighting levels will be maintained or improved it is deemed not necessary to 
undertake an additional Equalities Assessment.  
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 
 
http://democracy.havering.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=942  
 
Approval to convert 6000 sodium street lights in residential roads across the 
borough to more energy efficient LED lights 

Page 339



Page 340

This page is intentionally left blank



  
CABINET 
24 September 2014 

 

Subject Heading: RAINHAM AND BEAM PARK GARDEN 
SUBURB HOUSING ZONE PROPOSAL 

Cabinet Member: Cllr Damian White, Cabinet Member for 
Housing 

CMT Lead: Joy Hollister, Group Director – Children, 
Adults and Housing 

Report Author and contact details: Jonathan Geall 
Housing Needs and Strategy Manager 
tel: 01708 434606 e-mail: 
jonathan.geall@havering.gov.uk 

Policy context: Housing Strategy, Regeneration Strategy, 
Rainham Compass 

Financial summary: Submitting a Housing Zone bid on 30 
September 2014 does not, at this stage, incur 
any capital or revenue liabilities.  
During subsequent negotiations with the 
Greater London Authority, however, the 
Council will need to make decisions on: 
• the use of Housing Revenue Account, 

HRA, capital to support council housing 
new building the area; this could include 
taking on additional borrowing in the HRA 

• the use of general fund reserves / 
borrowing and/or pension fund resources 
to fund building homes for private rent 
and/or sale 

• the establish of a Council-owned company 
to develop private housing; this will incur 
start-up costs 

• allocation of developer contributions to 
contribute to the infrastructure needed  

• revenue costs for managing delivery of the 
Housing Zone, however, through the bid 
we will seek capital from which to 
capitalise and re-imburse these costs. 

Subsequent decisions will all need to be 
subject to detailed financial scrutiny and 
member approval.  Approval of the 
recommendations in this report will not fetter 
future decision-making on any of the above 
matters. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 341



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes: There is a significant effect on two or 
more Wards 

When should this matter be reviewed? In six months 

Reviewing OSC: Towns and Communities 

 
 
The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 
 

Ensuring a clean, safe and green borough    [] 
Championing education and learning for all    [] 
Providing economic, social and cultural activity 
  in thriving towns and villages [] 
Valuing and enhancing the lives of our residents   X 
Delivering high customer satisfaction and a stable council tax [] 

 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
 
This report seeks approval to submit a bid to the Mayor of London’s Housing Zone 
Programme. Havering’s bid will focus on Rainham, primarily the underused 
industrial land between the A1306 to the north and the railway line to the south 
referred to as Beam Park, and the surrounding areas of Rainham Village and 
South Hornchurch. 
 

The Greater London Authority, GLA, acting on the Mayor’s instructions, is seeking 
bids through a competitive process with a deadline of 30 September 2014. It is 
understood that the GLA will be conducting an initial assessment shortly after the 
closing date and that the Borough is likely to be asked to submit further information 
and/or refine its submission prior to a final decision expected around December 
2014 to February 2015. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
1. Approves the submission of a Rainham and Beam Park Housing Zone bid 

to the Greater London Authority no later than 30 September 2014. 
 

2. Delegates to the Chief Executive, acting in consultation with the Leader of 
the Council, authority to finalise the bid document. 

 

Page 342



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

3. Approves Economic Development and Regulatory Services initiating work 
on a Planning Strategy Document to strengthen the Council’s position on 
planning applications coming forward in the area. 

 

4. Approves the commencement of work on the feasibility of establishing a 
Council-owned company to develop private housing for rent and sale with 
recommendations brought to a future Cabinet meeting for consideration. 

 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
 
Introduction 
 
1.  The Mayor of London has a responsibility for providing an overall strategic 

plan for housing in the capital. A key part of this is the development of new 
housing. 
 

2. The Mayor’s draft London Housing Strategy published in April 2014 
identifies the housing pressures being faced in every part of London, 
including the outer boroughs such as Havering. The numbers are large: 

 

• in the last six years, London has grown by 600,000 people 

• by 2020, the total population is estimated to top 9 million 

• there is a need to build at least 42,000 homes a year in London. 
 

3.  The draft London Housing Strategy recognises that the London Boroughs 
have very legitimate concerns about the character and scale of local 
development. It is to be welcomed that the Mayor, in the draft London 
Housing Strategy, is clearly in tune with Havering Council’s emphasis on 
high quality homes which add to the fabric of the borough and are in 
keeping with the locality. The Strategy states, ‘We also have to ensure that 
the new homes we build are inspiring for current and future residents, that 
they are set in attractive neighbourhoods and vibrant town centres, and are 
well connected to jobs� [They should be] high quality homes that perform 
well for their occupants, that stand the test of time and that complement 
London’s rich architectural history’. 

 

4.  The Rainham and the Beam Park area – north of the rail line in south 
Havering and concentrated round the A1306 as described later in the report 
– has a significant number of largely empty brownfield sites.  The Council 
expects these sites to come forward for development.  One of these sites is 
owned by the property arm of the GLA. The GLA is proposing to sell on this 
site to a private sector developer in 2015.   

 

5. Officers have significant concerns over an approach that does not have a 
holistic strategy to address the area as development comes forward, 
notably: 

 

Page 343



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

• housing design is likely to be poor as the financial viability of the sites 
are marginal and this means it will be very challenging to secure the 
step change uplift in the area that has been a long standing 
regeneration objective of the Council and other stakeholders 

• vital social infrastructure (such as schools) would be very unlikely to be 
brought forward in line with the development, again because of marginal 
viability on individual sites,  

• necessary transport improvements such as a new station at Beam Park 
and better bus routes are unlikely to be secured, and 

• housing design, tenures and types would not be explicitly linked to 
meeting local needs. 
 

6. The Housing Zone programme now offers what is arguably the most 
significant opportunity in a generation for London Boroughs to pro-actively 
participate to such a large degree in the shaping and development of their 
neighbourhoods through the development of new housing. Designation of 
the area as a Housing Zone, incorporating the approaches being proposed 
– see below – will enhance the Council’s role in balancing the delivery of 
new housing with delivery of schools, parks, leisure facilities needed. In turn, 
the belief is that Housing Zone designation would support appropriate 

densities to maintain Havering’s greener environment and suburban 

character compared with much of the rest of London. 
 
What are Housing Zones? 
 

7. The Housing Zone Prospectus was launched on the 30 June 2014. Housing 
Zones are areas where home building is to be accelerated by close 
partnership working between boroughs, land owners, investors and builders. 
They should be a designated part of a borough in which investment could 
spur on the development of at least 1,000 new homes on brownfield land. 
The time taken to get new schemes going is recognised, but the GLA is 
clear that development in the Zone should commence within the 2015-18 
period.  

 

8. The Prospectus is unequivocal in its view that a Housing Zone can only 
proceed where the local borough is driving the programme and is putting in 
its own resources, in such forms as land holdings, capital investment and 
staff time. In return, the GLA will look to provide grant or repayable loans to 
support: 

 

• infrastructure needs of the community such as schools, leisure and 

transport 

• affordable housing delivery – subsidising the building of new affordable 

homes, including Havering Council building and owning them as well as 

investing in shared ownership homes and other forms of low cost home 

ownership that enable local people to buy a home 

Page 344



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

• site preparation and land remediation – where, for example, providing 

upfront funding for decontaminating land would enable building to start 

far more quickly 

• infrastructure / gap funding – where, for example, providing new and/or 

improved transport or other infrastructure could unlock sites. 
 

9. In addition, the GLA states it will assist in the speeding up of housing 
delivery by streamlining working between the different parts of the ‘GLA 
family’, for instance, GLA planners and Transport for London. 

 

10. The primary aim of a Housing Zone must be the maximisation of new 
housing supply. Resources are not available for improvement of existing 
council housing stock.  

 

11.  The Prospectus recognises that Housing Zones should focus on place-
shaping and creating a high quality environment for new residents, and so 
funding will in all probability be required for schools, community facilities, 
transport and energy infrastructure. Resources made available by the GLA 
through the Housing Zones programme could contribute towards these so 
long as the investment directly unlocks housing supply. 

 
Investment available 
 

12. In total, 20 Housing Zones will be selected across London. The Mayor and 
Department for Communities and Local Government are making £400m 
available across the 20 successful Housing Zones; this consists of £200m 
grant and loan funding to support the development and delivery of housing, 
and £200m repayable investment funding directed at funding for private 
sector investors.  

 
Rainham and Beam Park Garden Suburb Housing Zone bid: outline 
 

13. The focus for Havering’s bid would be the Beam Park to Dover’s Corner 

area of Rainham, with the overall ‘redline’ area including: 
 

• the land immediately to the south of the A1306; a significant land holding 

in this area is under GLA’s ownership 

• the ‘Somerfield’ site; in private ownership although a housing association 

is working up proposals 

• Circle Housing Group’s Passivhaus development which is in 

development and has received the attention of Eric Pickles, MP, the 

Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

• Dover’s Corner 

• sites along the northern side of the A1306  

• small sites around the A1306 and Rainham in the Council’s ownership. 
 

14. The vision is to develop a new garden suburb which would act as a high 
quality addition to historic Rainham and would become a destination 
neighbourhood for: 

Page 345



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

 

• Havering’s working families looking for homes in which to settle and 

grow 

• young professionals in the Borough needing a starter home with rapid 

links to the City 

• Rainham and South Hornchurch residents needing affordable homes yet 

wishing to stay in the area. 
 

15. A Housing Zone focused on Rainham and Beam Park would have 

significant and tangible benefits for the Borough and local people, notably: 
 

• far greater control over what housing, urban fabric and infrastructure is 

developed in the area.  The Council’s participation in shaping the area 

through  the early preparation of a planning strategy document (which 

will be subject of engagement with the community and businesses), and 

actively participating in land assembly and development will maximise 

the Borough’s influence over the new suburb  

• high quality homes, including a significant proportion of houses, built 

along traditional street patterns and around attractive green and open 

spaces, including a wide variety of rented and home ownership homes 

for Havering's residents  

• access to grant for affordable housing, whether for new build directly by 

the Council or by housing associations and developers  

• vastly improved public transport links, including  greater certainty over 

GLA/TfL funding for a new station at Beam Park roughly half way 

between Dagenham Dock and Rainham, better bus links to other parts 

of Havering, and a series of improved cycle routes 

• funding to improve roads and public realm in the area 

• investment in key infrastructure, notably leisure provision to replace 

Chaffords swimming pool, schools, health and transport improvements 

• an increase in housing numbers leading to increased council tax income 

and New Homes Bonus where available although this will need to 

considered alongside the costs to the Council of additional services – the 

large proportion of family-sized owner-occupied properties, and private 

rented properties should act to minimise the impact 

• apprenticeships for local people 

• examples of low energy construction, building on the lessons learnt from 

the Circle Housing’s current Passivhaus development in the area. 

• greater control for the Council, by including private rented housing 

developed by the Council, over who moves into these homes and the 

standard of housing management, and create a significant income 

stream for the Council to offset the need for revenue efficiencies 

elsewhere  

Page 346



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

• consultation mechanisms and forums with local people and elected 

members on key elements of the development, notably the ‘look’ of the 

new homes, infrastructure improvements required, and the policies for 

letting and selling of affordable housing 

• with greater certainty that housing sites will come forward in Rainham as 

a result of the Housing Zone, there should be less pressure to open up 

the green belt in other parts of the Borough to deliver new housing as the 

Council will be in a better position to argue there is an adequate housing 

supply without using green belt land in the west and north of the 

Borough. 
 

16.  Homes developed would consist of; 
 

• 2, 3 and 4 bedroom houses 

• 1 and 2 bed starter homes, typically flats up to a maximum height of, 

say, five to eight storeys, around the new station and surrounding public 

spaces 

• a mix of affordable rent, low cost home ownership, private rent and 

market sale housing 

• top priority for the affordable rented and low cost home ownership 

homes for residents in the Rainham, Wennington and South Hornchurch 

areas enshrined in a local lettings plan consulted upon and agreed with 

local residents and elected members 

 
How a Housing Zone in Rainham and Beam Park could progress 
 

17 In broad terms, a Rainham and Beam Park Garden Suburb Housing Zone 
could progress using the following strategies, each ultimately ensuring the 
GLA’s objective of speeding up housing delivery:  

 

• a comprehensive ‘masterplan’ for the area will be developed and 
embedded within planning strategy documentation, which will include 
design guidance.  This will help to ensure that individual sites come 
forward and support the quality aspirations of the Housing Zone.  During 
its development, Members and residents/businesses will be consulted, 
allowing and encouraging community participation in the proposals 

 

• a social infrastructure plan for the area will form part of this bid. A key 

‘ask’ to be included in the Housing Zone bid is for a mix of forward and 

grant funding for this infrastructure  
 

• establishment of a Housing Zone Board, led by the Council, to include 
the GLA and significant land owners in the area to monitor and progress 
delivery  

 

• the Council to bring forward a number of sites in ownership of the 
Housing Revenue Account, HRA, to provide affordable rent and low cost 
ownership housing for local people. 

Page 347



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

 

18. The different sites within the Housing Zones would in all likelihood require 
different approaches.  

 
 
GLA-owned land at Beam Park  
 

19. On land in the GLA’s ownership, this report is seeking Cabinet’s ‘in principle’ 
support to (a) invest HRA capital and right-to-buy receipts resources in the 
development of affordable rented and shared ownership homes, and (b) 
invest general fund and/or pension fund resources in the development of 
private rented and outright sale homes. In return for this investment, the 
Council would seek a financial package from the GLA including grant and/or 
a reduced/deferred land receipt. The exact form of the financial assistance 
how the Council participates in the development will subject to detailed 
negotiation with the GLA, which has already started, should the GLA wish to 
proceed once the bid has been submitted at the end of September.  This 
could take the form of the Council purchasing part of the site, whether 
through a Council-owned development company or through a partnership 
deal with a future private sector developer. 

 

20. Officers feel that through a Housing Zone, the Council could bring forward a 
planning application for part of the site to include the new station.  This 
would necessitate compulsory purchasing any additional packages of land 
to deliver this site. This could accelerate housing delivery by at least two 
years. 

 

21. The Council is arguably in a strong position to take a lead on assembling the 
funding package for a new Beam Park Station. The business case is strong 
but requires developer and land owner contributions, justified by the uplift in 
house and land values resulting from confirmation that the station will be 
built. The Council is well placed to secure those contributions and there will 
be scope, in due course, for the Council to consider using funds through its 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) towards the cost of the station. 

 

22. Overall, officers believe the proposed approach has the following benefits 
for the GLA: 

 

• bringing forward new build on a difficult site with the Council acting as the  

delivery partner 

• stretching GLA grant and/or investment by using HRA resources for new 

affordable housing 

• place-shaping to create a market for subsequent phases of development 

• a commitment from the Council as part of this bid to provide resources 

from tariff/CIL income and/or uplift in land values for a new station 

• increasing market confidence resulting in private developers bringing 

forward future phases of the Beam Park site. 
 

23. It is very important to note that neither this Cabinet report, nor a subsequent 
submission, commits either the Council or the pension fund to this course of 

Page 348



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

action. Decisions on this will need to be subject to future Cabinet and 
Pension Fund Board approval.  

 

 

Other development sites  
 

24. The Council could utilise CPO powers to acquire / assemble sites for 
onward disposal and development, potentially in joint venture with the 
Council. GLA resources could fund the purchase alongside the Council. Part 
of the Housing Zone bid would include the recovery of the cost to the 
Council of leading and managing the CPO process by means of 
capitalisation of this outlay.  

 

25. The inclusion of additional development sites, including any Council-owned 
sites, within the Housing Zone could enable the Council, housing 
association and/or other developer to access grant and/or investment 
funding to bring these sites forward more quickly than otherwise.  

 

26. This approach would benefit the GLA in two important ways; (a) they would 
provide ‘quick wins’ in terms of early delivery, and (b) as the Council would 
commit to apply tariff income for the new station and other infrastructure 
improvements, the viability, and thus land value, of the later phases of GLA 
land disposal at Beam Park would be increased. 

 

The ‘offer’ from the Council 
 

27. The GLA’s support is predicated on the principle of the bidding boroughs 

offering ‘something-for-something’. The Council’s offer would include:  
 

• organisational support for the Housing Zone  

• a willingness to invest HRA capital – surpluses, borrowing and/or right-

to-buy resources, subject to future Cabinet approval 

• a willingness to consider the establishment of a Council-owned 

development company to develop private housing and therefore use 

general resources (prudential borrowing) and/or pension funds to lever 

in GLA investment funding which is only available to private companies, 

not local authorities. Proceeding with this would be subject to future 

approvals by Cabinet and the Pension Fund Board 

• commitment to apply CPO powers to assemble sites in multiple 

ownership, so long as this work is funded by the GLA through the 

Housing Zone 

• commitment to invest planning tariff resources into infrastructure 

improvements including the new station 

• streamlined planning and ensuring sufficient resources exist to progress 

planning applications in a timely fashion. 

 

Page 349



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

The ‘ask’ of the GLA 
 

28. The Council’s request from the GLA includes: 
 

• grant and investment funding for housing   

• resources from which to capitalise the costs associated with CPO and 

other essential processes related to land assembly, development and 

regeneration 

• political/officer support to ensure delivery of a new station 

• grant and repayable investment in advance of tariff contributions to 

enable infrastructure ahead of tariff income 

• support for planning applications where referable to the Mayor of 

London 

• support for the case to the DCLG for greater flexibilities and freedoms in 

the use of Right to Buy receipts where it can benefit the Housing Zone 

programme 

• enhanced co-ordination throughout the GLA ‘family’ for agreed 

outcomes 

• a clear commitment from the GLA to quality of development embedded 

in the process, including new development to include significant 

numbers of houses as well as flats 

• inclusion of consultation with, and the involvement of, local people and 

elected members in delivery of the Housing Zone. 

 
Consultation to date  
 

29. Officers have consulted their counterparts at the GLA along with local land 
owners and housing associations active in the area. All are supportive of the 
proposals contained in this report. 

 

30. A briefing on the Housing Zone programme and high-level outline of the 
proposals was presented to the Rainham & Wennington and South 
Hornchurch Working Party on 19 August 2014. There was broad support for 
the idea of establishing a Housing Zone in the area so long as investment in 
additional schools, transport and leisure is made at the same time as the 
new housing is developed, rather than later. As can be seen above, this 
forms a key element of the proposals. 

 

31. Officers have committed to brief the Working Party again once the 
submission is firmer.  
 

 
 

REASONS AND OPTIONS 
 
 
Reasons for the decision: 

Page 350



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

 

The Housing Zone programme potentially gives access to significant investment in 
Havering. Not bidding for Housing Zone status would not prevent new housing 
development coming forward in the south of the borough - but it would significantly 
reduce the Council’s ability to influence the type, amount and timing of this new 
provision. Therefore, this report recommends making a bid. 
 
Other options considered: 
 

No bid for Housing Zone status – REJECTED. From officer discussions with the 
GLA, housing associations and developers, it is clear that proposals for new 
housing already are coming forward for sites in the proposed Rainham and Beam 
Park Garden Suburb Housing Zone area, and also that additional sites will be 
marketed soon, including by the GLA itself. Without a co-ordinated approach that 
would result from being awarded Housing Zone status, these sites would come 
forward in a piecemeal fashion meaning (a) the Council’s ability to influence the 
overall style and scale of development would be diminished, and (b) developers 
could argue against increased financial contributions to infrastructure and 
affordable housing on the grounds that their development in isolation has only a 
minimal impact on the area. 
 

Bid for Housing Zone status for another part of the borough – REJECTED. The 
Housing Zone prospectus seeks bids relating to brownfield land capable of 
delivering upwards of 1,000 new homes. Perhaps the only other part of the 
borough that could fit this criterion is Romford town centre. Romford is already the 
subject of strategic market engagement by the Council which is increasing market 
interest. Rainham, however, requires more significant public sector investment; 
hence it is a better ‘fit’ for the Housing Zone programme. 
 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 
 
 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
 

Capital 
 

Making a bid does not commit the Council to any capital outlay, although it does 
indicate the Council’s wish to consider significant investment of HRA, general fund 
and pension fund resources.  In addition, the Council would play an active role in 
collecting and repaying developer infrastructure contributions. 
 

Specific investment decisions will be subject to subsequent decision-making. 
Approval to bid does not fetter the Council’s decision-making on capital usage. 
 
Revenue 
 

Management of a Housing Zone programme would clearly require much officer 
time. The GLA has made it clear that resources available can only be treated as 

Page 351



 Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

capital, and not revenue, however, from officer discussions it is understood that the 
GLA is open to Housing Zone resources being used to fund the capitalisation of 
essential costs incurred in the assembly, preparation, development and 
regeneration of sites – all activities falling under the definition on asset purchase / 
value enhancement and thus capitalisable. 
 

The Council will seek to use such funds to underpin existing staff costs where 
these are focused on delivery of the Housing Zone, hence supporting the Council’s 
overall financial position. 
 
Legal implications and risks: 
 

The recommendation to approve a bid for Housing Zone status does not in itself 
pose any legal risks. However, it should be noted that the outcome of a successful 
bid is designation as a Housing Zone. Whilst that designation does not in itself 
impose any obligations to commit financial resources it would only be granted if the 
GLA were confident that the Council will take forward the proposals set out in its 
bid.   
 

Furthermore if the bid and designation proceed there will be a number of aspects 
which will require significant legal scrutiny. Notably, should the Council wish to 
develop a Council-owned company to develop private housing and avoid any State 
Aid complications, detailed legal advice will be required. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 

None arising directly from this report. 
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
 

A bid for Housing Zone status for the Beam Park area could unlock significant 
investment for housing – both market and affordable – and key infrastructure.  
 

The allocation of affordable housing would be subject to the Council’s Allocation 
Scheme and any local lettings policies that would be drawn up to promote 
Rainham and South Hornchurch residents’ interests. Thus, delivery of affordable 
housing would benefit some of the borough’s most disadvantaged residents. The 
new homes built would include a proportion of homes built to lifetime homes and 
disabled living standards. 
 

Investment in new transport, schools and leisure facilities would ensure that those 
living in the south of the borough benefit from improvements in amenities without 
needing to travel to other parts of the borough incurring costs and inconvenience 
for those residents and potentially resulting in congestion and adverse 
environmental impacts. 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
Housing Zones Prospectus: GLA, June 2014 

Page 352



  
 CABINET 
24 September 2014 

 

Subject Heading: 
 

THE FUTURE OF THE COUNCIL’S 
COMMERCIAL WASTE COLLECTION 
SERVICE 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Councillor Robert Benham 

CMT Lead: 
 

Cynthia Griffin 

Report Author and contact details: 
 

B   Bob Wenman – Head of StreetCare  
Ex 2898 

Policy context: 
 

Provision of a waste collection service to 
businesses 

Financial summary: 
 

This report proposes that the Council sells 
its commercial waste service in 
accordance with the offer set out in the 
exempt section of this report. The sale 
would protect against possible future 
losses and generate a one off receipt. 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 
 
 

Yes 

Significant effect on two or more Wards 

When should this matter be reviewed? 
 

August  2016 

Reviewing OSC: 
 

Environment 

 
The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 
 

Ensuring a clean, safe and green borough    [X] 
Championing education and learning for all    [] 
Providing economic, social and cultural activity 
  in thriving towns and villages [] 
Valuing and enhancing the lives of our residents   [] 
Delivering high customer satisfaction and a stable council tax [X] 

 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
 

This report details the commercial waste collection service which the Council currently 
provides to approximately five hundred and sixty businesses within the Borough and 

Agenda Item 9

Page 353



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

explores the implications of changes in legislation which may require the Council to 
introduce a commercial waste recycling collection service.  

 

It also sets out the results of an exercise to establish the market value of the service to the 
private sector if the Council were to sell it, the service enhancements such a sale would 
deliver and the financial implications. 

 

The report proposes that the Council sells its commercial waste collection service.   
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
Cabinet: 
 

1. Approve the sale of the Council’s commercial waste collection service to Supplier A 
as identified in Appendix A, the confidential section of this report and 

 

2. Authorises the Group Director of Resources and the Head of StreetCare to 
negotiate with Supplier A to conclude the sales process, including the date of the 
transfer of the business, in the best interests of the Council. 

 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 
 

1. Background 
 

1.1. The Council provides a commercial waste collection service to approximately 560 
businesses and 39 Council-managed establishments such as the Town Hall and 
Mercury House. The commercial waste service includes the hire and emptying of 
various sizes of waste containers at specified frequencies. Customers can also 
choose to purchase Council branded commercial waste sacks which are collected on 
a given day. This is a chargeable service with charges covering both collection and 
disposal.  

 

1.2. With the exception of a limited cardboard collection service and recycling from some 
Council owned buildings no other recycling service is offered to businesses within the 
Borough. Whilst customers can arrange a collection of recyclables from a number of 
private waste collection contractors there is an expectation that the Council should 
also provide this service 

 

1.3. A collection service is also provided to 53 schools and 17 charity shops, however in 
accordance with The Controlled Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2012, a 
charge is only made for collection and not disposal of this waste. 

 

1.4. Charges for the disposal of this classification of waste are currently met from within 
the levy payment to the East London Waste Authority (ELWA) and are not recovered 

Page 354



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

from the organisations themselves. Recycling is collected from schools free of charge 
as part of the ELWA /Shanks contract. 

 

1.5. A disposal charge of £139 per tonne has been set by ELWA for 2014/15 and a 
reduced rate of £75 per tonne for separately delivered recyclable waste, however the 
net cost of introducing separate collections of recycling would off set any savings in 
disposal charges - under the ELWA / Shanks contract the Council does not receive 
any value from the sale of the recycling. 

 

1.6. Disposal charges for commercial waste through the ELWA contract have  increased 
by around 10% each year and coupled with rising collection contractor costs have 
resulted in the Council increasing its service charges year on year. The historic 
annual increase of around 10% in ELWA disposal costs is expected to reduce to 4% 
from 2015/16 following the freeze on increases in landfill tax, however disposal 
charges will continue to be significantly higher than those incurred by the private 
sector waste collection companies 

 

1.7. These uncontrollable costs have resulted in the Councils charges being considerably 
higher than those offered by private waste collection companies, and there is risk of 
losing further customers as disposal costs continue to rise over the coming years.  

 
2. Changes in Legislation 
 

2.1. In 2012 the Government amended the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 
2011. This amendment places a duty on any establishment which collects waste 
paper, metal, plastic or glass to take all such measures to ensure separate 
collections of that waste, where such separate collection is technically, 
environmentally, and economically practicable (TEEP). This requirement becomes 
effective on 1 January 2015.   

 

2.2. It may be that a case for not collecting the commercial recycling separately could be 
made on the grounds of the service not being economically practicable given the 
increased collection costs would not be recovered from the sale of the materials 
collected and only part off set by savings in disposal costs.  

 

2.3. Clarification of what could constitute an exception to separate collections under the 
TEEP criteria is still being sought and it is currently felt that the situation will only be 
clarified if an authority is subjected to a legal challenge.  

 
3. The Future of the Commercial Waste Collection Service 
3.1. The annual increase in ELWA disposal costs, the need to offer  competitive charges 

for the service, and the increased operational costs of introducing a commercial 
waste recycling collection to meet customer expectations and mitigate against any 
legal challenge all made it prudent to explore if continuing to operate the commercial 
waste service was the correct way forward.  

 

3.2. In November 2013 (as part of the re-tendering of the waste contract) a market testing 
exercise was undertaken to establish the value of the service to private sector waste 
management companies.  

 

3.3. Ten companies responded to the advert for sale and two companies submitted a one 
off price to purchase the service.  

Page 355



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

 

3.4. Both bids were evaluated against pre set criteria and the results of this evaluation are 
set out below. It should be noted that one contractor also offered a profit share 
arrangement where the Council would share profits above an agreed income level 
50/50 with the contractor. 
 

4. Evaluation Process  
 

4.1. Completed bids were received on the agreed tender return date of 29 November 
2013 from 2 companies.  The table below illustrates the evaluation process 
undertaken by the Technical and Quality Evaluation Team. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.2. Suppliers were asked to complete detailed method statements against a stated 

criteria setting out how they would deliver the services in all the areas. This is 
illustrated in the table below. All bids were then scored by the Technical Evaluation 
Team, to determine the best Technical submission. 

 

 Category (%) 

Price Financial Analysis 80.00 

Quality 

Proven Track Record 5.00 

Compliance with the specification 5.00 

Innovation and Technical solution 5.00 

Customer Service 2.50 

Pricing Options 2.50 

Total 100.00 

 
 

Evaluation: 
Technical Evaluators score the individual Method Statement submissions. 
Each Technical criterion is given a ‘points’ score. 

Clarifications: 
Elements of individual Bidders’ Method Statements may require clarification. 
Final ‘points scores are recorded for each criterion once all clarifications have 
been resolved. 

Technical Consensus: 
The Technical Evaluation team meet to determine a ‘Consensus’ technical score. 
A final ‘Technical Consensus’ score is recorded to form the overall Bid Evaluation. 

Page 356



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

4.3. The financial bids were weighted at 80% overall, with the Method Statements 
accounting for 20% in total.  This was then converted into points, with the maximum 
total being 1000 (800 on the Financial score and 200 on the Quality score). 

 

4.4. The Evaluation Team followed the scoring and evaluation process set out in the sales 
document, which has been re-produced in the table below. Scores were awarded 
relative to the detail of information submitted by each bidder against each criterion. 
Any concerns were noted by the Team and where clarification was required, this was 
sought. At no stage were bidders allowed to change their submitted bids.    

 

0 
No method statement provided or the response is 
not relevant to the method statement requested, 
does not address criterion at all. 

1 
The response is substantially deficient, not meeting 
the required contract standards in a number of key 
areas or to a high degree. 

2 
The response is deficient, not meeting all the 
Council’s requirements in key areas. 

3 
The response is acceptable, meeting the Council’s 
requirements in all key areas. 

4 
The response is good, meeting the Council’s 
requirements in all material respects. 

4.5. Following analysis of the scores, Supplier A scored highest.  
 

 Financial 
Evaluation 

Technical 
Evaluation 

Total 
Evaluated 
Scores 

Supplier A 800 157.5 957.5 
Supplier B 313 137.5 450.5 

 

4.6. Conditions were placed within the sales documents which prevent the contractor 
increasing the prices currently charged by the Council for two years after the sale 
thus protecting our current customers from sudden hikes in service charges.  

 

4.7. In reality all private sector commercial waste and recycling collection companies that 
have been researched charge less than the council currently charges so it is hoped 
that the sale could result in longer term savings for businesses and Council managed 
facilities. Other benefits to customers would include a broader range of containers, 
weekend collections and a full recycling collection service, something which the 
Council does not provide. 

 

4.8. This sales exercise twin tracked the tendering process for the Waste and Recycling 
collection contract which was awarded at the Cabinet meeting on 22 January 2014.   

 

4.9. The successful contractors tendered prices to operate a commercial waste collection 
and recycling service on the Councils behalf have been used to calculate future 
operational costs.  

 

Page 357



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

4.10. These operational costs including the costs of introducing a recycling service, the 
cost of purchasing new containers, the need to offer a competitively priced service, 
the ever increasing disposal charges including the  disposal charges for schools 
waste currently funded from the levy, internal costs associated with administering the 
service and a significant one off investment in a suitable IT system to manage and 
administer the service have also been taken into consideration and used to calculate 
the cost of providing the service going forward.  

 

4.11. These costs have been compared to the income the service could generate if priced 
competitively with service charges made by private sector commercial waste and 
recycling companies to determine the profitability of continuing to offer the service 
beyond 2014/15.  

 

4.12. A summary of this information which shows that the service would begin to operate at 
a loss from 2015/16 is illustrated in Appendix B. It is therefore considered prudent to 
sell the service to Supplier A whilst it is still a going concern, before the need to 
invest in introducing a commercial waste recycling service and to deliver the service 
enhancements as set out in this report. 

 
 

REASONS AND OPTIONS 
 
 
 

Reasons for the decision 
 

The decision to sell the commercial waste service to Supplier A delivers a one off payment 
as set out in the exempt section of this report and the opportunity to benefit from an ongoing 
profit share arrangement. The sale of the service will also protect against the prospect of 
longer term financial losses and deliver service enhancements. 
 
Other options considered 
 

The option to continue to operate the commercial waste service without rationalising 
charges with those made by the private sector and not introducing a recycling service has 
been considered but this could be subject to legal challenge and would not meet customer’s 
expectations that the Council should offer a recycling service to its business community. 
 

The option to develop and operate a commercial waste and recycling collection service has 
also been considered but this has been found to be financially unsustainable, if offered at 
competitive market rates in the longer term. 
 

Both these options were rejected. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 358



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

 
IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 

 
 
 

Financial implications and risks 
 

The proposal in this report is to approve the sale of the Council’s Commercial Waste 
Collection service,  
 

In 2014/15, there is a currently a projected surplus of £156k in respect of this service, a 
surplus which has been broadly stable since 2011/12. However,  disposal costs of c£108k 
are also incurred, and staff time of c£30k are also incurred, meaning the real surplus is 
closer to £18k, a negligible sum.  (It is not currently clear that savings of £30k will be 
generated, should the sale take place, but that is a matter for the service).   
 

The following issues will impact on the profitability of the service :- 
 

Waste Disposal Costs 
 

The 2014/15 ELWA charge of £139 per tonne is in excess of actual cost, and is a burden to 
the business. Moreover, it has historically risen by 10% pa. ELWA have indicated that this 
increase is likely to be in the region of 4% in 2015/16 as a consequence of the 
Government’s freeze on increases in the landfill tax but disposal costs would still remain 
significantly higher than those available to the private sector. 

 
Possible need to introduce recycling 

 

It may be possible to argue that the introduction of separate recycling collections of 
commercial waste is not economically viable. Introducing recycling collections would reduce 
disposal charges (£139 per tonne to £75 per tonne), but would mean increased operational  
costs, which would need to be passed onto customers. Moreover, under the ELWA/Shanks 
contract, the Council does not receive any value from the sale of recycling, which would 
have enabled the Council to have mitigated increases to customers, and would be an option 
available to private sector waste collection companies. 

 

These threats mean that Havering’s charges become increasingly uncompetitive within the 
market, and it is for that reason that sale is being considered. A purchaser would be able to 
operate without paying the inflated ELWA disposal charges, and would be able to receive 
value from the sale of recycling.  
 

Appendix B shows a forecast position for the service, if retained. It  assumes  prices are 
reduced to the  competitive levels needed to retain the current level of business, includes 
the hidden disposal costs and administrative charges, assumes £150k IT investment 
needed in 2015/16, and shows the service going into significant deficit in 2015/16 as a 
result of one off pressures then the deficit reducing before continuing to increase year on 
year, The ICT investment is a one-off sum, but is an exceptionally high figure.  
 

The detail of the proposals submitted by the two suppliers are shown in Appendix A of this 
report and it can be seen that the offer made by Supplier A would generate significantly 
more income than that proposed by Supplier B. Supplier A has also included a profit share 

Page 359



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

opportunity as part of their bid. This supports the recommendation to sell the service to 
Supplier A. 
 

More details about the offer made by Supplier A and the timing of the transfer of the 
business should Cabinet agree to the recommendations in this report are included in the 
exempt section of this report. The sale proceeds would be a capital receipt, and would 
support the Council’s capital budget. 
 

It should be noted that the East London Waste Authority (ELWA) generate a surplus from 
the income they receive through charging the Boroughs to dispose of their commercial 
waste. This income is used to reduce the annual levy that the boroughs are charged. The 
net impact regarding the sale of this service in the levy is estimated to be £17k. This would 
however be offset by additional reductions of approximately £130k in 17/18 arising from 
reduced tonnage charges.    
It is proposed to net the budgeted income (c£86k in 2014/15) against savings from the 
recently re-tendered Waste Contract.  
 
Legal implications and risks 
 

The Council as a waste collection authority (WCA) has a duty under section 45(1)(b) of the 
EPA to arrange for the collection of commercial waste where requested to do so. Section 
75(7) of the EPA defines commercial waste as “waste from premises used wholly or mainly 
for the purposes of trade or business or the purposes of sport, recreation or entertainment”.  
 

Any WCA thinking of operating a selective service for commercial waste would need to 
satisfy itself that it was not breaching its duties under the EPA. If a request is made of the 
authority to collect commercial waste, the authority must have in place arrangements to 
meet the request.   
 

As part of the waste collection tender exercise the Council asked bidders to submit charges 
for them to collect commercial waste should a business within the Borough require the 
Council to do so. This will enable the Council to set an appropriate price for the collection 
and would fulfil our legal obligation to collect should the core commercial waste service be 
sold. 
 

In 2012 the Government amended the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011. This 
amendment places a duty on any establishment which collects waste paper, metal, plastic 
or glass to take all such measures to ensure separate collections of that waste, where such 
separate collection is technically, environmentally, and economically practicable (TEEP). 
This requirement becomes effective on 1 January 2015.   
 

It may be that a case for not collecting the commercial recycling separately could be made 
on the grounds of the service not being economically practicable given the increased 
collection costs would not be recovered from the sale of the materials collected and only 
part off set by savings in disposal cost.  
 

Clarification of what could constitute an exception to separate collections under the TEEP 
criteria is still being sought and it is currently felt that the situation will only be clarified if an 
authority is subjected to a legal challenge. The sale of the service would remove any risk of 
such a challenge related to the collection of commercial waste. 
 
Human Resources implications and risks 

Page 360



Cabinet, / 24 September 2014 
 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\8\AI00007857\$0wsdzppz.doc 

 

The commercial waste service is currently provided by Serco under contract to the Council.   
 

No Havering employees will be affected by the sale of the service. 
 
Equalities implications and risks 
 

The sale of the commercial waste collection service will not have any equalities implications 
as the business community will continue to receive a high quality of service but provided by 
a different provider at the same, if not lower cost to the customer. 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 
 

The sale documents for the Commercial Waste Service.  
 

The waste collection contract specification 
 

DEFRA classification and reporting of waste letter 
 
 

Page 361



Page 362

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 363

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 366

This page is intentionally left blank



        
CABINET 
24 September  2014 

 
 

Subject Heading: 
 

 

COUNCIL HOUSING NEW BUILD 
PROGRAMME  

 
Cabinet Member: 
 

 
Councillor Damian White, Cabinet 
Member for Housing 
 

CMT Lead: 
 

Joy Hollister, Group Director – Children, 
Adults and Housing 
 

Report Author and contact details: 
 

Mike Gappy  
Affordable Housing Development Team 
Manager for Housing Development 
Email: mike.gappy havering.gov.uk 
Tel: 01708 434100 

Policy context: 
 

The Council’s Housing Strategy 2014-
2017demonstrates a need for additional 
affordable housing in the borough.  

Financial summary: 
 

A total of £3,192,000 grant from the 
Greater London Authority has been 
secured. Approval is now sought for the 
allocation of the funding identified at the 
bid stage, together with two additional 
schemes Dewsbury & Kilmartin, at a cost 
of £1.768m.  These 8 no. schemes require 
£19,069,000 of HRA capital resources 
available within the HRA Business Plan. 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

Yes 

Is this a Strategic Decision? 
 

Yes 

When should this matter be reviewed? 
 

Not Applicable 

Reviewing OSC: 
 

Value 

 

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 
 

Clean, safe and green borough      [] 
Excellence in education and learning     [] 
Opportunities for all through economic, social and cultural activity [] 
Value and enhance the life of every individual    [�] 
High customer satisfaction and a stable council tax   [�] 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 367



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
SUMMARY 

 
 

1. In line with the Council’s commitment to address the local need for good quality 
affordable homes, approval was given by the Leader of the Council on 4th March 2014 
to submit bids to the Greater London Authority (GLA) to attract inward funding for new 
build housing schemes.  Although the bidding round was extremely competitive, the 
Council was successful in securing £3,192,000 inward investment from the GLA to 
fund development in the borough. This funding covers six schemes consisting of 117 
new homes and a shop unit integrated into one of the housing schemes.   

 

2. This report seeks authority to allocate the required complementary funding from 
unallocated Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital sources. 

 

3. The report also seeks authority to allocate Right-to-Buy receipts and the required 
complementary funding from unallocated HRA capital resources for two additional 
schemes at Kilmartin Way and Dewsbury Road. GLA funding has not been sought for 
these as the combined use of right-to-buy and other HRA resources is sufficient. 
These schemes will deliver 10 new homes, making a total of 127 new homes for which 
approval is now sought. 

 

4. As part of the enabling programme this report seeks permission to proceed with the 
making of a compulsory purchase order (CPO) generally under the Acquisition of Land 
Act 1981 and specifically under Section 17 of the Housing Act 1985 to compulsory 
acquire the leasehold interests within the block 9-35 Briar Road, Harold Hill, RM3 8AH 
located on the Briar Road Estate, Harold Hill, in the event of acquisition by agreement 
proving to be unsuccessful. 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
 
Cabinet  
 

Authorises: 
 

1. The making of the London Borough of Havering (Briar Road) Compulsory 
Purchase Order 2014 under Section 17 and Part XVII of the Housing Act 1985, 
and the Acquisition of Land Act 1981 to acquire all leasehold interests with the 
block 9-35 Briar Road, Harold Hill to develop new residential flats and houses.  
The premises detailed for acquisition are shown on the plan in Appendix 2. 

2. The Director of Legal and Governance to alter the Compulsory Purchase Order 
boundary as shown on the plan in Appendix 2 so as to exclude any 
land/interests acquired prior to the sealing of the Order. 

3. The Director of Legal and Governance to seal the Order and take all necessary 
steps, including the publication of all statutory notices, to secure confirmation of 
the Order (with or without modifications). 

4. The Director of Legal and Governance (in the event that the Secretary of State 
notifies the Council that it has been given the power to confirm the Compulsory 

Page 368



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

Purchase Order to confirm the Order and take all steps necessary to secure 
possession of the property, including the making of a General Vesting 
Declaration if he or she is satisfied that it is appropriate to do so. 

5. The Head of Homes and Housing and/or the Property Services Manager both in 
advance of and after the making and confirmation of the CPO, to arrange for 
negotiations to proceed with the owners of leaseholders interests and rights in 
the land with a view to acquiring those interests and rights by agreement if 
possible but thereafter by determination, and to pay such compensation for the 
acquisition of the interests and rights as may be proper and reasonable 

Approves: 

6. An allocation of £495,000 from Right-to-Buy receipts should be agreed for this 
new build programme.  

7. The entering into a funding agreement with the GLA to enable the Council to 
receive grant. 

8. The commencement of the process of procuring the main contractor/s to deliver 
the schemes. 

9. The appropriation of the proposed development site at Ongar way into the HRA 
should this be necessary. 

Notes: 

10. That the specific financial allocations from all sources are applied to the 
constituent schemes as detailed in Appendix 3 to this report and notes that the 
requested increase to the capital budget is £22,756,000 inclusive of the 
externally funded grant from the GLA of £3,192,000 and that this increase be 
agreed and is to be referred to council for final approval.   

11. That the Cabinet resolves to spend the proceeds of the shared ownership home 
sales, on housing and/or regeneration projects.   

12. That properties at Diana Princess of Wales House, Ongar Way, Kilmartin Way 
and Dewsbury Road previously agreed by Cabinet for disposal in the open 
market are now being retained for direct housing development and that earlier 
Cabinet decisions regarding these sales are superseded by this report. 

13. Agrees that an allocation of £19,069,000 resources from the HRA Business 
Plan should be agreed across the whole of new build programme (whether in 
addition to GLA or RTB funds), for expenditure across 2015/16 to 2017/18.  

14. Delegates authority to the Lead Member for Housing to make variations to any 
of the schemes covered in this report, including virement between schemes, 
deemed desirable following scheme review, resident consultation and/or 
identified as a planning requirement unless the variations would incur additional 
capital investment by the Council in which case the approval of Cabinet and 
Council would be sought. 

 
 
 

Page 369



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

REPORT DETAIL 
 

 
 
This report covers a number of affordable housing schemes, funded in a range of different 
ways. These are discussed in detail below. 
 
Council funded schemes with Greater London Authority grant support  
 

1. As a registered Investment Partner with the Greater London Authority (GLA), the 
Council submitted bids for housing development funding under the Mayor of London’s 
‘2015-18 Housing Covenant’. The bids consisted of a number of affordable housing 
schemes to be built on Council-owned land, held within the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA).  

 

2. One site at Ongar Way had previously been declared surplus to requirement within 
the HRA.  An opportunity, however, arose to bid for GLA funding to support a 
development of shared ownership properties on the site. This was in addition to the 
Housing Covenant Programme. It may prove necessary to appropriate this site 
between the general fund and the HRA; this is currently being investigated and 
approval is sought in this report should this prove necessary.  

 

3. In all cases, capital funding from the HRA Business Plan is also required as the GLA 
places a cap on the amount of grant it makes available to individual schemes. 

 

4. The schemes allocated funding by the GLA are set out in summary in the table below 
with full details in Appendix 1.  The full financial detail is set out in exempt Appendix 
3. 
 

Scheme 
Number of 
new homes 

Type and tenure mix/Comment 

Briar Road  
Harold Hill 

46 

• 15 no 1 bed flats for rent,  

• 21 no. 2 bed flats for rent,  

• 4 no. 2 bed houses for shared 
ownership,   

• 6 no 3 bed houses for shared 
ownership, and  

• one no. shop unit  
 

Note: This scheme requires the 
demolition of 7 shops with residential 
maisonettes above, some of which are 
leased and will need to be 
repurchased, block 1-7 Briar Road and 
the Betty Whiting Centre , and 10 no. 
garages. 

Former Princess 
Diana of Wales 
Hostel site 
Harold Hill 

6 

• 5 no. 3 bed houses for shared 
ownership, and  

• 1 no. 2 bed wheelchair bungalow 
for rent 

Page 370



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

Lexington Way 
Cranham 

12 

• 7 no.3 bed houses for shared 
ownership,  

• 3 no. 2 bed houses for shared 
ownership, and  

• 2 no. 2 bed flats for rent 

New Plymouth & 
Napier House 
(infill site) 
South 
Hornchurch 

14 
• 7 no. 2 bed houses for rent, and 

• 7 no 3 bed houses for shared 
ownership 

Block Extensions 
(sites to be 
identified) 

27 • 27 no 2 bed flats for  rent 

Ongar Way 
South 
Hornchurch 

12 

• 2 no. 1 bed bungalows,  

• 4 no 2 bed bungalows,  

• 2 no 3 bed houses, and  

• 4 no. 4 bed houses all for shared 
ownership 

TOTAL 117  

 
Council funded schemes 

 

4. The Council has entered into an agreement with Communities and Local Government 
under Section 11(6) of the Local Government Act 2003 to use Capital Receipts from 
the sale of dwellings under the Right to Buy. The agreement allows the Council to 
retain use of the receipts for the provision of affordable rented housing provided the 
monies are expended within three years of receipt. This report includes two proposed 
schemes funded using right-to-buy and additional HRA capital funding. 

 

5. The schemes funded using only Council resources are set out in summary in the table 
below with full detail in Appendix 1. The full financial detail is set out in exempt 
Appendix 3. 
 
Scheme Number of new 

homes 
Type and tenure mix 

Kilmartin Way 5 • 5 no. 3 bed houses for rent 

Dewsbury Rd 5 • 5 no. 3 bed houses for rent 

TOTAL 10  

 
Development Programme Principles   
 

6. The proposals contained in this report produce a mix of accommodation which reflects 
the broad range of housing need in the Borough set out in the Council’s Housing 
Strategy and will deliver both homes for rent and low cost home ownership 
opportunities for local people looking to take a first step on the home ownership 
ladder. 

 

7. Rental levels for the rented units are set at ‘Discounted Rent’ levels agreed within the 
Borough Framework, which is a local agreement with the GLA guiding rental levels 
and shared ownership affordability. These rents are capped at 80% of the market rent 
for equivalent one and two bedroom properties and 67% of market rent for three 

Page 371



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

bedroom properties. However, there is one wheelchair unit that has been set at the 
lower ‘Capped Rent’ level of 50% of market rent. 

 

8. The low cost home ownership units are planned to be sold on a shared ownership 
basis, with an average initial sales tranche of 50%. The Homes and Housing Service’s 
research indicates these will be affordable for local people. 

 

9. For all these new council housing developments: 
 

• the new homes will be developed on land held within the HRA,  

• the Council will retain a freehold interest, albeit on a shared ownership basis where 
applicable 

• the rented properties will be held and managed within the HRA 

• development using the Council’s own land and capital resources will remove, or at 
most reduce to an absolute minimum, any requirement to offer nominations to 
other boroughs. 

 

10. The proposed use of HRA land is in keeping with the Council’s Asset Management 
Plan which states that land and property assets should only remain in Council 
ownership if they:  

 

• need to be retained in Council control for the provision of services 

• are of great value to the Council, community and other stakeholders and are in 
need of the degree of protection from development or other uses afforded only by 
ownership 

• are investment properties providing a financial return that can fully satisfy relevant 
investment criteria. 

 

11. All schemes will meet London Housing Design Guide standards including the current 
Lifetime Homes standards and Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes which, 
among many design improvements, aims to reduce fuel bills for the occupants.   

 
 
 

REASONS AND OPTIONS 
 
 

Reasons for the decision: 
 

Development of the proposed schemes will meet well-documented housing need, and is fully 
in line with the Council’s Housing Strategy 2014-17. The schemes will provide a range of 
rented and shared ownership homes for local people. The new homes will remain a Council 
asset and a significant element of the overall programme attracts GLA subsidy. 

 

The programme will ensure the final phase of the Briar Road Estate Regeneration scheme 
can be completed while the selection of other small sites makes good use of existing 
underused assets to deliver new homes.  
 

Developing on Council-owned land and retaining control over the new dwellings would 
strengthen the Council’s housing portfolio and future revenue sources. 
 
 
 
 

Page 372



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

Other options considered: 
 

Disposal of the land for development by a housing association or private developer – 
REJECTED. The proposals to expand its existing development programme rather than to 
dispose of the sites ensures the Council has full control over the type, number and quality of 
homes developed and retains control over allocation through existing Housing policy. 
 

It is also important to note that should the Council not be able to spend its right-to-buy 
receipts within three years of their generation, they will need to be returned to the HCA/GLA 
with interest. These proposals will obviate the risk of this. 
 

 
 

  IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 
 
 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
 
Right to buy receipts   
 

The Council holds £2,340,389 in unallocated right-to-buy receipts.  Under the agreement 
made between the Council and the Department for Communities and Local Government, 
DCLG, in June 2012, the Council can retain the proceeds of right-to-buy sales (net of 
receipts already assumed within the HRA Business Plan) for the sole purpose of delivering 
new housing for ‘low cost rent’, whether at Discounted of Capped Rent levels. These receipts 
can fund development directly by the Council or be converted to grant to subsidise a housing 
association’s or other developer’s social or affordable rented scheme in the borough. Under 
the terms of the agreement, the right-to-buy receipts cannot be used to fund the development 
of shared ownership homes.  
 

Under the agreement to use right-to-buy receipts on new affordable housing, the Council 
must spend the resources within three years of their generation. Failure to do so would 
render the Council liable to repay the receipts to the DCLG, for onward transmission to the 
GLA, with interest. The proposals in this report will utilise in part the unallocated right-to-buy 
receipts currently received and further schemes will need to be brought forward in a timely 
fashion and thus obviate this risk of repayment. 
 
HRA Business Plan resources  
 

The schemes require £19,069,000 of HRA resources from the HRA Business Plan.  
 

Completion of all the GLA funded schemes is required by March 2018. The initial funding 
profile will see c£3.8m spent in 2015/16, c£7.6m in 2016/17 and c£7.6m in 2017/18. This 
profile, alongside previous commitments on HRA resources, will see annual investment in 
excess of £10m across these years in the Council’s existing stock to enable the Decent 
Homes standard to be maintained and further improvement beyond this standard to be made.  
 

It should also be noted that under the GLA grant funding agreement, when any further 
tranches of the shared ownership properties are sold, an element of the receipt proportion to 
the original GLA grant funding must be set aside by the Council in a Recycled Capital Grant 
Fund” (RCGF) for investment in future affordable housing development.   
 
 

Page 373



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

Mitigating development risk 
 

Any large-scale construction programme will carry some degree of development risk. That 
said, the Homes and Housing Service is doing much to mitigate these risks. It is noted that 
the build costs estimated by cost consultants could vary from actual tenders from main 
contractors. A contingency of 2.5% of total scheme costs has been built into the budgets as 
standard practice, and there is some flexibility within the HRA should any major financial 
implications arise (in which case a subsequent report to Members would be required) – there 
would be no liability falling to the general fund. The Council aims to enter into appropriate 
contracts with main contractors to protect its interests after a competitive procurement 
process.  All schemes would have the necessary professionals involved including Employer’s 
Agents, Clerks of Works and CDM Co-ordinators.  
 

Costs have been incurred at risk to date within the HRA in preparing the schemes in advance 
of planning consent. Any abortive costs could be absorbed within the HRA although pre-
planning consultation with planners is keeping this risk to an absolute minimum.  
 

Whilst GLA funding has been secured in principle, the actual draw down of all the grant funds 
will only be possible upon completion of the developments. The schemes will need to be 
completed in accordance with the completion deadline agreed with the GLA of March 2018, 
and therefore has the inherent risks associated with this which the Council will need to 
manage. Should financial risk arise as a result of timing or other issues, this will be 
negotiated with GLA as part of the programme monitoring process. There is some 
contingency built into the timeline in case of slippage.  
 

It is not possible to estimate at this stage the likely costs the Council will have to incur for the 
CPO at Briar Road and acquisition as it is not clear whether or not an inquiry will be required, 
nor how many of the properties within the block will be subject to compulsory purchase. 
These costs will be met by the HRA. 
 
Revenue 
 

Financial analysis indicates that the properties to be developed net of repurchase costs 
would make a positive revenue contribution to the HRA Business Plan over a 30 year 
lifecycle. The first development scheme will start to make a positive contribution to the HRA 
from year 13, will be Lexington Way. 
 
Legal implications and risks: 
 

There are no direct legal implications in the development proposals   themselves except the 
potential existence of third party rights over the land or other restrictions.   Initial 
investigations have been undertaken which appear to indicate there are no legal 
impediments to the works being undertaken, however, more detailed investigations will be  
undertaken and legal advice provided as appropriate. 
 

Acceptance of  grant funding from the GLA will be subject to a number   of conditions 
including timescales and the design standards for the proposed units  The Council will need 
to ensure that it complies with these, failing which funding may be withdrawn or clawed back 
if additional time cannot be negotiated. 
 

Section 17(3) of the Housing Act 1985 allows local authorities to acquire land and property 
by Compulsory Purchase Order for housing purposes 
 

The Compulsory Purchase Orders will be subject to confirmation by the Secretary of State.  
 

Page 374



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

Office of Deputy Prime Minister Circular 06/2004 provides that there must be a compelling 
case in the public interest for the Compulsory Purchase Orders given the interference with 
the property rights of those affected. This Report sets out that out the reasons for the CPO 
which is the development of flats and houses.  
 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 

The report deals with the development of affordable homes and therefore has no direct 
Human Resources implications or risks  
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
 

The report deals with the development of affordable homes. This will benefit those in lower 
incomes within the community to buy or rent affordable accommodation. 

 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 

 
The Mayor’s Housing Covenant - 2015-18 Programme – GLA 
Affordable Housing Capital Funding Guide 2014-15 - HCA 
Havering Housing Strategy 2014-2017 

 
 

Page 375



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SITES 

 
 

Scheme 1 
 
Briar Road site 
Harold Hill 
Redevelopment of the shopping precinct and associated space at Briar 
Road 
 

• The site is located at Briar Road, Harold Hill 
 
                    The site currently accommodates 7 no shop units and 7 no 
                    residential. 

    
3 no shops are currently vacant as are 5 residential units. The remaining two 
residential units have been sold on a leasehold basis and will need to be 
repurchased. The existing shop leases will need to be brought to an end 
through use of Compulsory Purchase Powers if it is not possible to achieve 
vacant possession through negotiation. 

 
The site has been earmarked for development for some time under the Briar 
Road Development Programme 
 
Demolition of the existing units will enable provision of 46 units for rent and 
shared ownership together with a single shop unit suitable for a general store 
serving the estate.  
 

• This scheme will provide 
 
15 no 1 bedroom 2 person flats for discounted rent 
10 no 2 bedroom 3 person flats for discounted rent 
11 no 2 bedroom 4 person flats for discounted rent 
4 no 2 bedroom houses for shared ownership 
6 no 3 bedroom houses for shared ownership 
1 no shop unit 
 

Scheme 2 
 
Former Princess Diana of Wales Hostel 
Harold Hill 
 

• This is the site of the dis used homeless hostel at Harold Hill 
 

• The site  will be developed to provide  
 

5 no 3 bedroom houses for shared ownership and 
           1 no 2 bedroom wheelchair adapted bungalow for social rent 

Page 376



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 

Scheme 3 
 
Lexington Way 
Upminster 

• The site is located in Upminster between Lexington Way, and 
Roseberry Gardens.  
 

• It is split into two areas. Roseberry Gardens (south) and the main 
site area towards the north. It consists of a large grassed area with 
10 garages. 

 

• The scheme will provide 
 

7 no 3 bedroom houses for low cost home ownership 
           3 no 2 bedroom houses for low cost home ownership 
           2 no 2 bedroom flats for affordable rent 
 

Scheme 4 
 
New Plymouth & Napier House (infill) 
Rainham 
 

• New Plymouth House infill sites scheme will provide  
 

            7 no 2bedroom house for affordable rent  
            7 no 3bedroom houses for shared ownership  

 

Scheme 5 
 
Block Extensions 
 

• Block extensions (Sites yet to be identified) 
 

• This scheme will see the provision of 27 units for rent 
 

Scheme 6 
 
Ongar Way 

• An opportunity arose to develop this site for shared ownership sale 
under the continuous market engagement arrangements 
 
 

• This scheme will deliver 
 

     2 no 1 bedroom bungalows for shared ownership 
          4 no 2 bedroom bungalows for shared ownership 

Page 377



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

          2 no 3 bedroom houses for shared ownership 
          4 no 4 bedroom houses for shared ownership 

 
 

Scheme 7 
 
Kilmartin Way 
 

• Located in Elm Park, this site offers a viable and deliverable 
solution to spending our RTB receipts relatively quickly  
 

• The scheme will  provide 
 

5 no 3 bedroom houses for affordable rent 
 

Scheme 8 
 
Dewsbury Road 

• Located in Harold Hill, this site is split into two areas. The east of 
the site currently has 26 lockup garages. The north west of the site 
is an unused allotment 

 

• Utilising RTB receipts, this scheme will proved 
 

5 no 3 bedroom houses for affordable rent 

 
 
 

Page 378



Cabinet, 24 September 2014 

 
APPENDIX 2 
 
 
Briar Road CPO Boundary  (Outlined in red) 
 
 

 

Page 379



Page 380

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 381

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 382

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 THE COUNCIL'S FINANCIAL STRATEGY
	Appendix A 2015-19 Savings for Budget Strategy Report 140924
	Appendix B EIAs front sheet
	Appendix B All EIAs
	Appendix C CABINET PARKING STRATEGY REPORT FINAL
	Appendix D Library Strategy 2015-17 final
	Appendix E CTS 2015 Scheme Draft Summary Appendix
	Appendix F Budget Monitoring Outturn Report Members
	Appendix G Period 3 Revenue Monitor (Members)
	Appendix H Earmarked & General Reserves
	Appendix I Joint OSC Notes
	Appendix J Budget consultation strategyfinal
	Appendix K Library consultation strategy final
	Appendix L CTS consultation strategy final
	Appendix M Parking consultation strategyfinal

	6 IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PHASE 2 PRIMARY SCHOOL EXPANSION PROPOSALS - RAINHAM
	Item 6 Appendix -EQIA Report

	7 Approval to convert 10600 street lights in roads across the borough to more energy efficient LED lights.
	8 Beam Park Housing Zone Proposal
	9 THE FUTURE OF THE COUNCILS COMMERCIAL WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE
	Item 9 Exempt Appendices - Commercial Waste Sale

	10 Council Housing New Build Programme
	Item 10 Exempt Appendix - Council Housing New Build Programme


